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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark one)
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF TH E SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014
OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
COMMISSION FILE NUMBER 1-16483

JMondelez,

Internotional

Mondel ez International, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Virginia 52-2284372
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
Three Parkway North, Deerfield, lllinois 60015
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: 847-943-4000
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:
Name of each exchange on which

Title of each class registered
Class A Common Stock, no par value The NASDAQ Global Select Market
Floating Rate Notes due 2015 New York Stock Exchange LLC
1.125% Notes due 2017 New York Stock Exchange LLC
2.375% Notes due 2021 New York Stock Exchange LLC
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes No O

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act. Yes O No

Note: Checking the box above will not relieve any registrant required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act from
their obligations under those Sections.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§ 232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or
for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (8§ 229.405 of this chapter) is not contained
herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in
Part 11l of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer
Accelerated filer O Non-accelerated filer [ Smaller reporting company [
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yes O No

The aggregate market value of the shares of Class A Common Stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant, computed by reference to the
closing price of such stock on June 30, 2014, was $63 billion. At January 31, 2015, there were 1,649,480,188 shares of the registrant’s Class A
Common Stock outstanding.

Documents Incorporated by Reference
Portions of the registrant’s definitive proxy statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission in connection with its annual
meeting of shareholders expected to be held on May 20, 2015 are incorporated by reference into Part Il hereof.
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Forward-Looking Statements
This report contains a number of forward-looking statements. Words, and variations of words, such as “will,” “may,” “expect,”
" plan,” “believe,” “likely,” “estimate,” “anticipate,” “project,” “potential,” “might,” “outlook” and similar expressions

“would,” “intend,
are intended to identify our forward-looking statements, including but not limited to statements about: our future performance,
including our future revenue growth and margins; our strategy, including our goals to deliver top-tier financial performance and be a
great place to work; price volatility and pricing actions; the cost environment and measures to address increased costs; the effects
of implementing our transformation and sales and marketing initiatives; the costs of, cost savings generated by, timing of
expenditures under and completion of our restructuring programs; our market-leading positions; snack food consumption trends;
growth in our categories and markets; volatility in global markets; commaodity prices and supply; economic conditions; currency
exchange rates, controls and restrictions; our expansion plans; our operations in Venezuela; our entry into and the timeframe for
completing the planned coffee business transactions; the cash proceeds and ownership interest to be received in the transactions;
completion of our biscuit operation acquisition; legal matters; changes in laws and regulations and regulatory compliance;
environmental compliance and remediation actions; the estimated value of goodwill and intangible assets; impairment of goodwill
and intangible assets and our projections of operating results and other factors that may affect our impairment testing; our
accounting estimates and judgments; remediation efforts related to income tax controls; pension expenses, contributions and
assumptions; employee benefit plan expenses, obligations and assumptions; relationships with employees and representatives; tax
positions; our liquidity, funding sources and uses of funding; reinvestment of earnings; our risk management program, including the
use of financial instruments for hedging activities; capital expenditures and funding; share repurchases; dividends; compliance with
financial and long-term debt covenants; debt repayment and funding; guarantees and our contractual obligations.

These forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond our control. Important factors that
could cause actual results to differ materially from those described in our forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to,
risks from operating globally and in emerging markets; changes in currency exchange rates, controls and restrictions; continued
volatility of commodity and other input costs; weakness in economic conditions; weakness in consumer spending; pricing actions;
unanticipated disruptions to our business; competition; failing to successfully complete the planned coffee business transactions on
the anticipated timeframe; the transactions, the restructuring programs and our other transformation initiatives not yielding the
anticipated benefits; changes in the assumptions on which the restructuring programs are based; protection of our reputation and
brand image; management of our workforce; consolidation of retail customers and competition with retailer and other economy
brands; changes in our relationships with suppliers or customers; legal, regulatory, tax or benefit law changes, claims or actions;
strategic transactions; our ability to innovate and differentiate our products; significant changes in valuation factors that may
adversely affect our impairment testing of goodwill and intangible assets; perceived or actual product quality issues or product
recalls; failure to maintain effective internal control over financial reporting; volatility of capital or other markets; pension costs; use
of information technology; our ability to protect our intellectual property and intangible assets; and a shift in our pre-tax income
among jurisdictions, including the United States. We disclaim and do not undertake any obligation to update or revise any forward-
looking statement in this report except as required by applicable law or regulation.

PART I
Iltem 1. Business.
General

We are one of the world’s largest snack companies with global net revenues of $34.2 billion and earnings from continuing
operations of $2.2 billion in 2014. We manufacture and market delicious snack food and beverage products for consumers in
approximately 165 countries around the world. Our portfolio includes nine billion dollar brands— LU, Nabisco and Oreo biscuits;
Cadbury, Cadbury Dairy Milk and Milka chocolates; Trident gum; Jacobs coffee and Tang powdered beverages. Our portfolio
includes 58 brands that each generated annual revenues of $100 million or more in 2014.

We are proud members of the NASDAQ 100 and Standard & Poor’s 500. Our Common Stock trades on The NASDAQ Global
Select Market under the symbol “MDLZ.” We have been incorporated in the Commonwealth of Virginia since 2000.

1
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We have been recognized for our ongoing economic, environmental and social contributions and this year were listed again on the
Dow Jones Sustainability Index (“DJSI") — World and North American Indices. The DJSI selects the top 10% of global companies
and top 20% of North American companies based on an extensive review of financial and sustainability programs within each
industry. We also participate in the Carbon Disclosure Project Climate and Water forums and continue to disclose and work to
reduce our carbon and water footprints. We are committed to continue this and other related work in the areas of sustainable
resources and agriculture, mindful snacking, community partnerships and safety of our products and people. Please see
www.mondelezinternational.com/well-being for more information.

Strategy

We intend to leverage our core strengths, including our significant global presence, market leadership positions and portfolio of
iconic brands and innovation platforms, to achieve two primary goals: deliver top-tier financial performance and be a great place to
work. We plan to achieve these goals by executing five long-term strategies:

» Unleash the Power of Our People. We believe that our two company goals, to deliver top-tier financial performance and
to be a great place to work, are interdependent and that one is not fully achievable without the other. Being a great place
to work enables us to recruit, retain and unleash the talents of great people. We strive to maintain balance between our
two goals and remain focused on evolving our ways of working, our standards of leadership and the development
opportunities available to our colleagues.

e Transform Snacking . Driving growth is at the forefront of our long-term business strategies. By meeting the needs of
consumers through innovation of our portfolio of products, we expect to grow and maintain our Power Brands and
market-leading positions.

Our global Power Brands continue to be a significant competitive advantage. Our Power Brands include global brands
such as Oreo, LU and belVita biscuits; Milka , Cadbury Dairy Milk and Lacta chocolate; Halls candy; Trident gum; Tang
powdered beverages and Jacobs , Tassimo and Carte Noire coffee. Our brands enable us to fulfill consumer needs with
a full range of snacking choices. Our global innovation platforms allow us to quickly adapt successful products from one
market to many others and by addressing the different needs of our consumers.

Beginning in 2015, we changed our regional operating structure to create greater category management leadership and
structure within each of our regions, as we have in place within our Europe and North America regions. We expect these
changes to lead to further global and local consumer-preferred innovations and accelerate our speed to market.

» Revolutionize Selling. As part of our focus on growth around the world and particularly in emerging markets, we have
heavily invested in our routes to market and sales capabilities. In 2014, we continued to develop our sales and
distribution capabilities across key markets, and we made significant improvements in our marketing effectiveness and
spending. We expanded our brand presence across digital media and continue to make our working media more
effective, extending our reach and marketing budgets. By making smart choices on our advertising and marketing
effectiveness and spending, we can invest more in our brands and further strengthen our support to grow the business.

» Drive Efficiency to Fuel Growth. We manage our business through a virtuous cycle. To drive sales and earnings growth,
we focus first on delivering high quality products that meet consumer needs. We expand our margins through leveraging
lean and simple cost management programs within our integrated supply chain and through overhead discipline. Savings
can be reinvested to pursue additional targeted growth opportunities within our portfolio. As we announced in May 2014,
under our 2014-2018 Restructuring Program, we are currently working to reduce our annual operating costs by at least
$1.5 billion by the program’s completion at the end of 2018.

» Protect the Well-being of Our Planet. We are committed to growing our business while protecting our planet and its
people. We strive to enhance the well-being of the people who enjoy and make our products and to nurture thriving
communities where we live, work and grow the ingredients that go into our products. To accomplish these objectives, we
focus on delivering safe, high-quality foods and ensuring a safe work environment for our employees. We are working to
protect resources, focusing on where we can have the greatest impact. We are also creating food that fits the way people
eat today and provides balanced snacking choices. Our “Call For Well-Being” initiative focuses on four areas that we
believe will have the greatest impact: sustainability, mindful snacking, safety and community partnerships. In each of
these areas, we set clear goals and metrics. For more information on the progress of our Call For Well-Being initiative,
please see www.mondelezinternational.com/well-being .
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Reportable Segments

Our operations and management structure are organized into five reportable operating segments:

Latin America
Asia Pacific
EEMEA
Europe

North America

We manage our operations by region to leverage regional operating scale, manage different and changing business environments
more effectively at a local level and pursue growth opportunities as they arise in our key markets. Our regional management teams
have responsibility for the business, product categories and financial results in the regions.

Our segment net revenues for each of the last three years were:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in millions)
Net revenues:
Latin America $ 5,153 $ 5,382 $ 5,396
Asia Pacific 4,605 4,952 5,164
EEMEA 3,638 3,915 3,735
Europe 13,912 14,059 13,817
North America 6,936 6,991 6,903
$34,244 $35,299 $35,015
Our brands span five product categories:
» Biscuits (including cookies, crackers and salted snacks)
» Chocolate
* Gum & candy
» Beverages (including coffee and powdered beverages)
e Cheese & grocery
During 2014, our segments contributed to our net revenues in these product categories as follows:
Percentage of 2014 Net Revenues by Product Category
Gum & Cheese &
Segment Biscuits Chocolate Candy Beverages Grocery Total
Latin America 3.9% 3.1% 3.4% 2.7% 1.9% 15.0%
Asia Pacific 3.4% 4.5% 2.3% 1.4% 1.9% 13.5%
EEMEA 1.9% 3.1% 1.9% 2.9% 0.8% 10.6%
Europe 8.4% 15.8% 2.6% 9.6% 4.2% 40.6%
North America 16.0% 0.9% 3.4% - - 20.3%
33.6% 27.4% 13.6% 16.6% 8.8% 100.0%

Within our product categories, the classes of products that contributed 10% or more to consolidated net revenues were:

Biscuits - Cookies and crackers
Chocolate - Tablets, bars and other
Beverages - Coffee

For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
29% 28% 27%
27% 27% 27%
11% 11% 11%
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We use segment operating income to evaluate segment performance and allocate resources. We believe it is appropriate to
disclose this measure to help investors analyze our segment performance and trends. For a definition and reconciliation of segment
operating income to consolidated pre-tax earnings as well as other information on our segments, see Note 17, Segment Reporting .
Our segment operating income for each of the last three years was:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in millions)

Segment operating income:

Latin America $ 475 $ 570 $ 769

Asia Pacific 385 512 657

EEMEA 327 379 506

Europe 1,770 1,699 1,762

North America 922 889 781
$3,879 $4,049 $4,475

Currency and other items significantly affect the comparability of our consolidated and segment operating results from year to year.
Please see our Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations for a review of our
operating results.

During the last three fiscal years, our segments contributed to segment operating income as reflected below.

For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Segment operating income:
Latin America 12.3% 14.1% 17.2%
Asia Pacific 9.9% 12.6% 14.7%
EEMEA 8.4% 9.4% 11.3%
Europe 45.6% 42.0% 39.4%
North America 23.8% 21.9% 17.4%
100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Significant Divestitures and Acquisitions

For information on our significant past and planned divestitures and acquisitions, please refer to Note 2, Divestitures and
Acquisitions, and specifically, our discussion under Planned Coffee Business Transactions and Spin-Off of Kraft Foods Group .

Customers

No single customer accounted for 10% or more of our net revenues from continuing operations in 2014. Our five largest customers
accounted for 15.7% and our ten largest customers accounted for 23.7% of net revenues from continuing operations in 2014.

Seasonality

Demand for our products is generally balanced over the first three quarters of the year and increases in the fourth quarter primarily
because of holidays and other seasonal events.

Competition

We face competition in all aspects of our business. Competitors include large multi-national as well as numerous local and regional
companies. Some competitors have different profit objectives than we do and therefore approach pricing and promotional decisions
differently. We compete based on product quality, brand recognition and loyalty, service, product innovation, taste, convenience,
the ability to identify and satisfy consumer preferences, effectiveness of sales and marketing, routes to market and distribution
networks, promotional activity and price. Improving our market position or introducing a new product requires substantial research,
development, advertising and promotional expenditures. We believe these investments lead to a better value proposition for the
consumer.
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Distribution and Marketing

Across our segments, we generally sell our products to supermarket chains, wholesalers, supercenters, club stores, mass
merchandisers, distributors, convenience stores, gasoline stations, drug stores, value stores and other retail food outlets. We
distribute our products through direct store delivery, company-owned and satellite warehouses, distribution centers and other
facilities. We also use the services of independent sales offices and agents in some of our international locations.

We conduct marketing efforts through three principal sets of activities: (i) consumer marketing and advertising including on-air,
print, outdoor, digital and social media and other product promotions; (ii) consumer sales incentives such as coupons and rebates;
and (iii) trade promotions to support price features, displays and other merchandising of our products by our customers.

Raw Materials and Packaging

We purchase and use large quantities of commaodities, including cocoa, coffee, dairy, wheat, corn products, soybean and vegetable
oils, sugar and other sweeteners and nuts. In addition, we purchase and use significant quantities of packaging materials to
package our products and natural gas, fuels and electricity for our factories and warehouses. We regularly monitor worldwide
supply, cost and currency trends related to these commodities so we can cost-effectively secure ingredients, packaging and energy
sources required for production.

A number of external factors such as weather conditions, commodity market conditions, currency fluctuations and the effects of
governmental agricultural programs affect the cost and availability of raw materials and agricultural materials used in our products.
We use hedging techniques to limit the impact of fluctuations in the cost of our principal raw materials. However, we cannot fully
hedge against changes in commaodity costs and our hedging strategies may not protect us from increases in specific raw material
costs.

While the costs of our principal raw materials fluctuate, we believe there will continue to be an adequate supply of the raw materials
we use and that they will generally remain available from numerous sources. For additional information on our commodity costs,
refer to the Commodity Trends section within Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations .

Intellectual Property

Our intellectual property rights (including trademarks, patents, copyrights, registered designs, proprietary trade secrets, technology
and know-how) are material to our business.

We own numerous trademarks and patents in many countries around the world. Depending on the country, trademarks remain valid
for as long as they are in use or their registration status is maintained. Trademark registrations generally are for renewable, fixed
terms. We also have patents for a number of current and potential products. Our patents cover inventions ranging from basic
packaging techniques to processes relating to specific products and to the products themselves. Our issued patents extend for
varying periods according to the date of patent application filing or grant and the legal term of patents in the various countries
where patent protection is obtained. The actual protection afforded by a patent, which can vary from country to country, depends
upon the type of patent, the scope of its coverage as determined by the patent office or courts in the country, and the availability of
legal remedies in the country. While our patent portfolio is material to our business, the loss of one patent or a group of related
patents would not have a material adverse effect on our business.

From time to time, we grant third parties licenses to use one or more of our trademarks in connection with the manufacture, sale or
distribution of third party products. Similarly, we sell some products under brands we license from third parties. In our agreement
with Kraft Foods Group, Inc., we each granted the other party various licenses to use certain of our and their respective intellectual
property rights in named jurisdictions following the Spin-Off.
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Research and Development

We pursue four objectives in research and development: product safety and quality, growth through new products, superior
consumer satisfaction and reduced costs. At December 31, 2014, we had approximately 2,650 food scientists, chemists and
engineers working primarily in 11 key technology centers: East Hanover, New Jersey; Whippany, New Jersey; Banbury, United
Kingdom; Bournville, United Kingdom; Curitiba, Brazil; Paris, France; Melbourne, Australia; Mexico City, Mexico; Munich, Germany;
Reading, United Kingdom and Suzhou, China. Our research and development expense was $455 million in 2014, $471 million in
2013 and $462 million in 2012.

Regulation

Our food products and packaging materials are subject to local, national and multi-national regulations related to labeling,
packaging, food ingredients, pricing, marketing and advertising, privacy and related areas. In addition, various jurisdictions regulate
our operations by licensing our manufacturing plants, enforcing standards for selected food products, grading food products,
inspecting manufacturing plants and warehouses and regulating trade practices related to the sale of and imposing their own
labeling requirements on our food products. Many of the food commaodities we use in our operations are subject to government
agricultural policy and intervention. These policies have substantial effects on prices and supplies and are subject to periodic
governmental and administrative review.

Throughout the countries in which we do business, government authorities are continually adopting new laws and implementing
new regulations that affect our business and operations. Examples include selective food taxes in Mexico; profit, price and other
controls imposed within Venezuela and Argentina; Russian sanctions on the sourcing of raw materials from the European Union
and potential labeling disclosure requirements for genetically modified ingredients in the United States. We will continue to monitor
developments of the new laws and regulations. At this time, we do not expect the cost of complying with these new laws and
regulations will be material. Also refer to Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies—Currency Translation and Highly
Inflationary Accounting , for additional information on government regulations and currency effects on our operations in Venezuela,
Argentina and Russia.

Environmental Regulation

Throughout the countries in which we do business, we are subject to local, national and multi-national environmental laws and
regulations relating to the protection of the environment. We have programs across our business units designed to meet applicable
environmental compliance requirements. In the United States, the laws and regulations include the Clean Air Act, the Clean Water
Act, the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act and the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability
Act (“CERCLA"). CERCLA imposes joint and severable liability on each potentially responsible party. As of December 31, 2014, our
subsidiaries were involved in one active proceeding in the United States under a state equivalent of CERCLA related to our current
operations. As of December 31, 2014, we accrued an immaterial amount for environmental remediation. Based on information
currently available, we believe that the ultimate resolution of the existing environmental remediation and our compliance with
environmental laws and regulations will not have a material effect on our financial results.

Employees

We employed approximately 104,000 people worldwide at December 31, 2014 and approximately 107,000 at December 31, 2013.
Employees represented by labor unions or workers’ councils represent approximately 64% of our 91,000 employees outside the
United States and approximately 28% of our 13,000 U.S. employees. Our business units are subject to various local, national and
multi-national laws and regulations relating to their relationships with their employees. In accordance with European Union
requirements, we also have established a European Workers Council composed of management and elected members of our
workforce. We believe we generally have good relationships with our employees and their representative organizations.

Foreign Operations

We generated 82.1% of our 2014 net revenues, 83.1% of our 2013 net revenues and 82.9% of our 2012 net revenues from
continuing operations outside the United States. We sell our products to consumers in approximately 165 countries. At

December 31, 2014, we had operations in more than 80 countries and made our products at 170 manufacturing and processing
facilities in 58 countries. Refer to Note 17, Segment Reporting, for additional information on our U.S. and non-U.S. operations.
Refer to Item 2, Properties , for more information on our manufacturing and other facilities. Also, for a discussion of risks related to
our operations outside the United States, see “Risk Factors” in Item 1A.
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Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following are our executive officers as of February 20, 2015:

Name Age Title

Irene B. Rosenfeld 61 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Brian T. Gladden 49 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Gustavo H. Abelenda 54 Executive Vice President and President, Latin America

Tracey Belcourt 48 Executive Vice President, Strategy

David A. Brearton 54 Executive Vice President, Strategic Initiatives

Mark A. Clouse 46 Executive Vice President and Chief Growth Officer and
Executive Vice President and President, North America

Timothy P. Cofer 46 Executive Vice President and President, Asia Pacific and EEMEA

Lawrence MacDougall 58 Executive Vice President and President, EEMEA

Karen J. May 56 Executive Vice President, Human Resources

Daniel P. Myers 59 Executive Vice President, Integrated Supply Chain

Gerhard W. Pleuhs 58 Executive Vice President and General Counsel

Jean E. Spence 57 Executive Vice President, Research, Development and Quality

Hubert Weber 52 Executive Vice President and President, Europe

Ms. Rosenfeld became Chief Executive Officer and Director in June 2006 and became Chairman of the Board in March 2007. Prior
to that, she served as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Frito-Lay, a division of PepsiCo, Inc., a food and beverage
company, from September 2004 to June 2006. Ms. Rosenfeld was employed continuously by Mondeléz International and its
predecessor, General Foods Corporation, in various capacities from 1981 until 2003, including President of Kraft Foods North
America and President of Operations, Technology, Information Systems and Kraft Foods, Canada, Mexico and Puerto Rico.

Mr. Gladden became Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer in December 2014. He joined Mondeléz International in
October 2014. Prior to that, he served as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Dell Inc., a provider of technology
products and services, from June 2008 until February 2014, and as President and Chief Executive Officer of SABIC Innovative
Plastics, a manufacturer of industrial plastics, from August 2007 to May 2008. Mr. Gladden spent 19 years at the General Electric
Company, a multinational conglomerate, in a variety of key leadership positions, including Vice President and General Manager,
Resin Business and Chief Financial Officer, GE Plastics.

Mr. Abelenda became Executive Vice President and President, Latin America in January 2013. Prior to that, he served as Group
Vice President and President, Latin America from August 2003 to December 2012, Vice President and Managing Director, Brazil
from October 2000 to August 2003, Food Vice President, Mercosur Area from April 1998 to October 2000 and General Manager,
Brazilian Beverages and Sugar Confectionery Business from February 1997 to April 1998. Mr. Abelenda joined Mondeléz
International in 1984.

Ms. Belcourt became Executive Vice President, Strategy in October 2012. She joined Mondeléz International in September 2012.
Prior to that, she was a partner of Bain & Company, a management consulting firm, from September 1999 to August 2012, where
she specialized in the design and implementation of growth strategies to improve business performance across a variety of
consumer industries. Ms. Belcourt was an assistant professor of economics at Concordia University in Montreal from 1994 to 1999
and served as an economic consultant to the U.S. Agency for International Development in Africa in 1999 during her professorship.
Ms. Belcourt also serves on the Board of Directors of FTD Companies, Inc., a floral and gifting provider.

Mr. Brearton became Executive Vice President, Strategic Initiatives in December 2014. Prior to that, he served as Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer from May 2011 to November 2014, Executive Vice President, Operations and Business
Services from January 2008 to May 2011, Executive Vice President, Global Business Services and Strategy from April 2006 to
December 2007 and Senior Vice President of Business Process Simplification and Corporate Controller from February 2005 to April
2006. He previously served as Senior Vice President, Finance for Kraft Foods International. Mr. Brearton joined Mondeléz
International in 1984.

Mr. Clouse became Executive Vice President and Chief Growth Officer in July 2014 and has served as Executive Vice President
and President, North America since October 2012. Prior to that, Mr. Clouse served as President of the Snacks and Confectionery
business in North America from June 2011 to October 2012 and Senior Vice President of the Biscuits
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Global Category Team from October 2010 to June 2011. He was Managing Director of Kraft Foods Brazil from January 2008 to
September 2010 and President of Kraft Foods Greater China from January 2006 to January 2008. Prior to that, Mr. Clouse held
various positions of increasing responsibility around the world. Before joining Mondeléz International in 1996, Mr. Clouse served in
the United States Army for seven years, obtaining the rank of Captain.

Mr. Cofer became Executive Vice President and President, Asia Pacific and EEMEA in September 2013. Prior to that, he served as
Executive Vice President and President, Europe, from August 2011 until September 2013, Senior Vice President, Global Chocolate
Category from June 2010 to August 2011, Senior Vice President, Strategy and Integration from January 2010 to June 2010,
President of Pizza from January 2008 to January 2010, Senior Vice President and General Manager of Oscar Mayer from January
2007 to January 2008 and Vice President and General Manager of EU Chocolate from June 2003 to January 2007. Mr. Cofer
joined Mondeléz International in 1992.

Mr. MacDougall became Executive Vice President and President, EEMEA in July 2014. Prior to that, he served as President,
EEMEA from November 2012 to July 2014 and as President, Middle East and Africa from March 2010 to October 2012. Prior to its
acquisition by Mondeléz International, Mr. MacDougall was continuously employed by Cadbury Pty Ltd, a confectionery company,
for 28 years in various leadership positions, most recently serving as President, Middle East and Africa from February 2007 to
February 2010.

Ms. May became Executive Vice President, Human Resources in October 2005. Prior to that, she was Corporate Vice President,
Human Resources, for Baxter International Inc., a healthcare company, from February 2001 to September 2005. Ms. May also
serves on the Board of Directors of MB Financial Inc., a financial services provider.

Mr. Myers became Executive Vice President, Integrated Supply Chain in September 2011. Prior to that, he worked for Procter &
Gamble, a consumer products company, for 33 years in a variety of leadership positions, most recently serving as Vice President,
Product Supply for P&G’s Global Hair Care business from September 2007 to August 2011.

Mr. Pleuhs became Executive Vice President and General Counsel in April 2012. Prior to that, he was Senior Vice President &
Deputy General Counsel, Business Units from November 2007 to March 2012 and Senior Vice President and Deputy General
Counsel, International for Kraft Foods Global, Inc. from July 2004 to November 2007. Before joining Mondeléz International in 1990,
Mr. Pleuhs held a number of senior positions within the German Law Department of Jacobs Kaffee Deutschland GmbH, an
international beverage and confectionery company, prior to and after its acquisition by Altria Group, the former parent company of
Mondeléz International. Mr. Pleuhs has a law degree from the University of Kiel, Germany and is licensed to practice law in
Germany.

Ms. Spence became Executive Vice President, Research, Development and Quality in January 2004. Prior to that, she served as
Senior Vice President, Research and Development for Kraft Foods North America from August 2003 to January 2004 and Senior
Vice President of Worldwide Quality, Scientific Affairs and Compliance for Kraft Foods North America from November 2001 to
August 2003. She joined Mondeléz International in 1981. Ms. Spence also serves on the Supervisory Board of GEA Group AG.

Mr. Weber became Executive Vice President and President Europe in September 2013. Prior to that, he served as President of the
European and Global Coffee category from September 2010 until September 2013, President of the DACH region (Germany,
Austria and Switzerland) from February 2009 to August 2010, Managing Director, Spain from August 2007 to January 2009, Vice
President of Global Tassimo Venture Team from July 2004 to July 2007 and Senior Director, International Sales, Kraft Foods
International from January 2000 to June 2004. Mr. Weber joined Mondeléz International in 1988.

Ethics and Governance

We adopted the Mondeléz International Code of Conduct, which qualifies as a code of ethics under Iltem 406 of Regulation S-K.
The code applies to all of our employees, including our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting
officer or controller, and persons performing similar functions. Our code of ethics is available free of charge on our web site at
www.mondelezinternational.com and will be provided free of charge to any shareholder submitting a written request to: Corporate
Secretary, Mondeléz International, Inc., Three Parkway North, Deerfield, IL 60015. We will disclose any waiver we grant to an
executive officer or director under our code of ethics, or certain amendments to the code of ethics, on our web site at
www.mondelezinternational.com .
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In addition, we adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines, charters for each of the Board's four standing committees and the Code
of Business Conduct and Ethics for Non-Employee Directors. All of these materials are available on our web site at
www.mondelezinternational.com and will be provided free of charge to any shareholder requesting a copy by writing to: Corporate
Secretary, Mondeléz International, Inc., Three Parkway North, Deerfield, IL 60015.

Available Information

Our Internet address is www.mondelezinternational.com . Our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q,
Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), are available free of charge as soon as possible after we
electronically file them with, or furnish them to, the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC"). You can access our
filings with the SEC by visiting www.mondelezinternational.com . The information on our web site is not, and shall not be deemed to
be, a part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K or incorporated into any other filings we make with the SEC.

You can also read, access and copy any document that we file, including this Annual Report on Form 10-K, at the SEC’s Public
Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for information on the operation
of the Public Reference Room. In addition, the SEC maintains an Internet site at www.sec.qgov that contains reports, proxy and
information statements, and other information regarding issuers, including Mondeléz International, that are electronically filed with
the SEC.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors.

You should read the following risk factors carefully when evaluating our business and the forward-looking information contained in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Any of the following risks could materially and adversely affect our business, operating results,
financial condition and the actual outcome of matters described in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. While we believe we have
identified and discussed below the key risk factors affecting our business, there may be additional risks and uncertainties that we
do not presently know or that we do not currently believe to be significant that may adversely affect our business, performance or
financial condition in the future.

We operate in a highly competitive industry.

The food and snacking industry is highly competitive. Our principal competitors include major international food, snack and
beverage companies that, like us, operate in multiple geographic areas as well as numerous local and regional companies. We
compete based on product quality, brand recognition and loyalty, service, product innovation, taste, convenience, the ability to
identify and satisfy consumer preferences, effectiveness of sales and marketing, routes to market and distribution networks,
promotional activity and price. If we do not effectively respond to challenges from our competitors, our business could be adversely
affected.

Competitor and customer pressures may require that we reduce our prices. These pressures may also restrict our ability to
increase prices in response to commodity and other cost increases. Failure to effectively assess, change and set proper pricing
may negatively impact the achievement of our strategic and financial goals. The emergence of new distribution channels, such as
Internet sales directly to consumers, may affect customer and consumer preferences, cost structures or margins. We may also
need to increase or reallocate spending on marketing, advertising and new product innovation to protect or increase market share.
These expenditures might not result in trade and consumer acceptance of our efforts. If we reduce prices or our costs increase but
we cannot increase sales volumes to offset those changes, then our financial condition and results of operations will suffer.

In addition, companies in our industry are under increasing pressure to improve the efficiency of their overall cost structures. We
have announced a transformation agenda with the goals of focusing our portfolio, improving our cost structure and operating model,
and accelerating our growth. If we do not achieve these objectives in a way that minimizes disruptions to our business, our financial
condition and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected.

Maintaining, extending and expanding our reputation and brand image is essential to our business succe Ss.

Our success depends on our ability to maintain brand image for our existing products, extend our brands into new geographies and
to new distribution platforms, including online, and expand our brand image with new product offerings.
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We seek to maintain, extend and expand our brand image through marketing investments, including advertising and consumer
promotions, and product innovation. Continuing global focus on health and wellness, including weight management, and increasing
attention from the media, shareholders, consumers, activists and other stakeholders on the role of food marketing could adversely
affect our brand image. It could also lead to stricter regulations and increased focus on food and snacking marketing practices.
Increased legal or regulatory restrictions on our advertising, consumer promotions and marketing, or our response to those
restrictions, could limit our efforts to maintain, extend and expand our brands. Moreover, adverse publicity about regulatory or legal
action against us, product quality and safety, or environmental and human rights risks in our supply chain could damage our
reputation and brand image, undermine our customers’ confidence and reduce demand for our products, even if the regulatory or
legal action is unfounded or these matters are immaterial to our operations.

In addition, our success in maintaining, extending and expanding our brand image depends on our ability to adapt to a rapidly
changing marketing and media environment, including our increasing reliance on social media and online dissemination of
marketing and advertising campaigns. We are subject to a variety of legal and regulatory restrictions on how and to whom we
market our products. These restrictions may limit our ability to maintain, extend and expand our brand image, particularly as social
media and the communications environment continue to evolve. Negative posts or comments about us on social networking web
sites (whether factual or not) or security breaches related to use of our social media and failure to respond effectively to these
posts, comments or activities could seriously damage our reputation and brand image across the various regions in which we
operate. In addition, we might fail to invest sufficiently in maintaining, extending and expanding our brand image. As a result, we
might be required to recognize impairment charges on our intangible assets or goodwill. If we do not successfully maintain, extend
and expand our reputation and brand image, then our brands, product sales, financial condition and results of operations could be
materially and adversely affected.

We are subject to risks from operating globally.

We are a global company and generated 82.1% of our 2014 net revenues, 83.1% of our 2013 net revenues and 82.9% of our 2012
net revenues outside the United States. We manufacture and market our products in approximately 165 countries and have
operations in more than 80 countries, so we are subject to risks inherent in multinational operations. Those risks include:

« compliance with U.S. laws affecting operations outside of the United States, including anti-bribery laws such as the
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (“FCPA");

« compliance with antitrust and competition laws, data privacy laws, and a variety of other local, national and multi-national
regulations and laws in multiple regimes;

e changes in tax laws, interpretation of tax laws and tax audit outcomes;

» currency devaluations or fluctuations in currency values, including in developing markets such as Venezuela, Argentina
and Russia as well as in developed markets such as countries within the European Union;

» changes in capital controls, including currency exchange controls, government currency policies or other limits on our
ability to import raw materials or finished product or repatriate cash from outside the United States;

» discriminatory or conflicting fiscal policies;

* increased sovereign risk, such as default by or deterioration in the economies and credit ratings of governments;

» changes in local regulations and laws, the uncertainty of enforcement of remedies in foreign jurisdictions, and foreign
ownership restrictions and the potential for nationalization or expropriation of property or other resources;

e varying abilities to enforce intellectual property and contractual rights;

» greater risk of uncollectible accounts and longer collection cycles;

« design, implementation and use of effective control environment processes across our diverse operations and employee
base; and

» the imposition of increased or new tariffs, quotas, trade barriers or similar restrictions on our sales or regulations, taxes
or policies that might negatively affect our sales.

In addition, political and economic changes or volatility, geopolitical regional conflicts, terrorist activity, political unrest, civil strife,
acts of war, public corruption, expropriation and other economic or political uncertainties could interrupt and negatively affect our
business operations or customer demand. The slowdown in economic growth or high unemployment in some emerging markets
could constrain consumer spending, and declining consumer purchasing power could adversely impact our profitability. Continued
instability in the banking and governmental sectors of certain countries in the European Union or the dynamics associated with the
federal and state debt and budget challenges in the United States could adversely affect us. All of these factors could result in
increased costs or decreased revenues, and could materially and adversely affect our product sales, financial condition and results
of operations.
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Our operations in certain emerging markets expose u s to political, economic and regulatory risks.

Our growth strategy depends in part on our ability to expand our operations in emerging markets, including Brazil, China, India,
Mexico, Russia, Venezuela, Argentina, Ukraine, the Middle East, Africa and Southeast Asia. However, some emerging markets
have greater political, economic and currency volatility and greater vulnerability to infrastructure and labor disruptions than more
established markets. In many countries outside of the United States, particularly those with emerging economies, it may be
common for others to engage in business practices prohibited by laws and regulations with extraterritorial reach, such as the FCPA
and the U.K. Bribery Act, or local anti-bribery laws. These laws generally prohibit companies and their employees, contractors or
agents from making improper payments to government officials, including in connection with obtaining permits or engaging in other
actions necessary to do business. Failure to comply with these laws could subject us to civil and criminal penalties that could
materially and adversely affect our reputation, financial condition and results of operations.

In addition, competition in emerging markets is increasing as our competitors grow their global operations and low cost local
manufacturers expand and improve their production capacities. Our success in emerging markets is critical to our growth strategy.
If we cannot successfully increase our business in emerging markets and manage associated political, economic and regulatory
risks, our product sales, financial condition and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected.

Unanticipated business disruptions could adversely affect our ability to provide our products to our ¢ ustomers.

We manufacture and source products and materials on a global scale. We have a complex network of suppliers, owned
manufacturing locations, co-manufacturing locations, distribution networks and information systems that support our ability to
provide our products to our customers consistently. Factors that are hard to predict or beyond our control, like weather, natural
disasters, fire, explosions, terrorism, political unrest, generalized labor unrest or health pandemics could damage or disrupt our
operations or our suppliers’ or co-manufacturers’ operations. If we do not effectively respond to disruptions in our operations, for
example, by finding alternative suppliers or replacing capacity at key manufacturing or distribution locations, or cannot quickly repair
damage to our information, production or supply systems, we may be late in delivering or unable to deliver products to our
customers. If that occurs, we may lose our customers’ confidence, and long-term consumer demand for our products could decline.
In addition, we might not have the functions, processes or organizational capability necessary to achieve on our anticipated
timeframes our strategic ambition to reconfigure our supply chain and drive efficiencies to fuel growth. Further, changes to
regulatory restrictions within the markets in which we operate may impact our ability to supply multiple markets with a streamlined
manufacturing footprint. These events could materially and adversely affect our product sales, financial condition and results of
operations.

We are subject to currency exchange rate fluctuatio  ns.

At December 31, 2014, we sold our products in approximately 165 countries and had operations in more than 80 countries. A
significant portion of our business is exposed to currency exchange rate fluctuations. Our financial results and capital ratios are
sensitive to movements in currency exchange rates because a large portion of our assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses must
be translated into U.S. dollars for reporting purposes or converted into U.S. dollars to service obligations such as our U.S. dollar-
denominated indebtedness and dividends. In addition, movements in currency exchange rates can affect transaction costs because
we source product ingredients from various countries. We seek to mitigate our exposure to exchange rate fluctuations, primarily on
cross-currency transactions, but our efforts may not be successful. Accordingly, changes in the currency exchange rates that we
use to translate our results into U.S. dollars for financial reporting purposes or for transactions involving multiple currencies could
materially and adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

Commodity and other input prices are volatile and m ay rise significantly or availability of commaoditie s may become
constrained.

We purchase and use large quantities of commaodities, including cocoa, coffee, dairy, wheat, corn products, soybean and vegetable
oils, sugar and other sweeteners, and nuts. In addition, we purchase and use significant quantities of packaging materials to
package our products and natural gas, fuels and electricity for our factories and warehouses. Prices for these raw materials, other
supplies and energy are volatile and can fluctuate due to conditions that are difficult to predict. These conditions include global
competition for resources, currency fluctuations, political conditions, severe weather, the potential longer-term consequences of
climate change on agricultural productivity, crop disease or pests, water risk, health pandemics, consumer or industrial demand,
and changes in governmental trade, alternative energy and agricultural programs. Many of the commodities we purchase are grown
by smallholder farmers, who might lack the capacity to invest to increase
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productivity or adapt to changing conditions. Although we monitor our exposure to commodity prices and hedge against input price
increases, we cannot fully hedge against changes in commodity costs, and our hedging strategies may not protect us from
increases in specific raw material costs. Continued volatility in the prices of commaodities and other supplies we purchase could
increase or decrease the costs of our products, and our profitability could suffer as a result. Moreover, increases in the price of our
products to cover increased input costs may result in lower sales volumes, while decreases in input costs could require us to lower
our prices and thereby affect our revenues, profits or margins. Likewise, constraints in the supply of key commodities may limit our
ability to grow our net revenues. If our mitigation activities are not effective, if we are unable to price to cover increased costs or
must reduce our prices, or if we are limited by supply constraints, our financial condition and results of operations could be
materially adversely affected.

Changes in laws and regulations could increase our costs.

Our activities throughout the world are highly regulated and subject to government oversight. Various laws and regulations govern
food production, storage, distribution, sales, advertising and marketing, as well as licensing, trade, labor, tax and environmental
matters, and health and safety practices. Government authorities regularly change laws and regulations and their interpretations.
Our compliance with new or revised laws and regulations or the interpretation and application of existing laws and regulations could
materially and adversely affect our product sales, financial condition and results of operations.

We may be unable to hire or retain and develop key  personnel or a highly skilled and diverse global wo rkforce or manage
changes in our workforce.

We must hire, retain and develop effective leaders and a highly skilled and diverse global workforce. We compete to hire new
personnel in the many countries in which we manufacture and market our products and then to develop and retain their skills and
competencies. Unplanned turnover or failure to develop adequate succession plans for leadership positions or hire and retain a
diverse global workforce with the skills and in the locations we need to operate and grow our business could deplete our
institutional knowledge base and erode our competitiveness.

We also face increased personnel-related risks in connection with implementing the changes in our transformation agenda related
to our operating model and business processes. These risks could lead to operational challenges, including increased competition
for employees with the skills we require to achieve our business goals, higher employee turnover, including of employees with key
capabilities, and challenges in developing the capabilities necessary to transform our business processes. Furthermore, we might
be unable to manage changes in, or that affect, our workforce appropriately or satisfy the legal requirements associated with how
we manage and compensate our employees. This includes our management of employees represented by labor unions or workers’
councils, who represent approximately 64% of our 91,000 employees outside the United States and approximately 28% of our
13,000 U.S. employees.

These risks could materially and adversely affect our reputation, ability to meet the needs of our customers, product sales, financial
condition and results of operations.

We must address risks related to consolidation of r etail customers and leverage our value proposition in order to compete
against retailer and other economy brands.

Retail customers, such as supermarkets, warehouse clubs and food distributors in the European Union, the United States and our
other major markets, continue to consolidate, resulting in fewer but larger customers with whom we can conduct business. Larger,
more sophisticated retail customers and alliances among customers can resist price increases, delist or reduce the shelf space
allotted to our products, and demand lower pricing, increased promotional programs, longer payment terms or specifically tailored
products. In addition, larger retail customers have the scale to develop supply chains that permit them to operate with reduced
inventories or to develop and market their own retailer and other economy brands that compete with some of our products. Our
products must provide higher quality or value to our consumers than the less expensive alternatives, particularly during periods of
economic uncertainty. Consumers may not buy our products if consumers perceive the difference in the quality or value between
our products and retailer or other economy brands has narrowed. If consumers switch to purchasing or otherwise prefer retailer or
other economy brands, then we could lose market share or sales volumes or need to shift our product mix to lower margin
offerings.

Retail consolidation also increases the risk that adverse changes in our customers’ business operations or financial performance
will have a corresponding material adverse effect on us. For example, if our customers cannot access sufficient funds or financing,
then they may delay, decrease or cancel purchases of our products, or delay or fail to pay us for previous purchases.
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If we do not effectively respond to retail consolidation, increasing retail power and competition from retailer and other economy
brands, our reputation, product sales, financial condition and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected.

We are subject to and may fail to manage changes in our relationships with significant customers or su ppliers.

During 2014, our five largest customers accounted for 15.7% of our net revenues. There can be no assurance that our customers
will continue to purchase our products in the same mix or quantities or on the same terms as in the past, particularly as increasingly
powerful retailers continue to demand lower pricing and develop their own brands. The loss of or disruptions related to significant
customers, such as the disruptions we experienced in 2014 with customers in France, could result in a material reduction in sales
or change in the mix of products we sell to a significant customer. This could materially and adversely affect our product sales,
financial condition and results of operations.

Additionally, disputes with significant suppliers, including those related to pricing or performance, could adversely affect our ability
to supply products to our customers and could materially and adversely affect our product sales, financial condition and results of
operations.

We may decide or be required to recall products or be subjected to product liability claims.

We could decide, or laws or regulations could require us, to recall products due to suspected or confirmed product contamination,
spoilage or other adulteration, product misbranding or product tampering. In addition, if another company recalls or experiences
negative publicity related to a product in a category in which we compete, consumers might reduce their overall consumption of
products in this category. Any of these events could materially and adversely affect our reputation, product sales, financial condition
and results of operations.

We may also suffer losses if our products or operations violate applicable laws or regulations, or if our products cause injury, illness
or death. In addition, our marketing could face claims of false or deceptive advertising or other criticism. A significant product
liability or other legal judgment against us, a related regulatory enforcement action or a widespread product recall could materially
and adversely affect our reputation and profitability. Moreover, even if a product liability or consumer fraud claim is unsuccessful,
has no merit or is not pursued, the negative publicity surrounding assertions against our products or processes could materially and
adversely affect our reputation, product sales, financial condition and results of operations.

We could be subject to legal or tax claims or other regulatory enforcement actions.

We are a large food and snacking company operating in highly regulated environments and constantly evolving legal, tax and
regulatory frameworks around the world. Consequently, we are subject to greater risk of litigation, legal or tax claims or other
regulatory enforcement actions. There can be no assurance that our employees, contractors or agents will not violate policies and
procedures we have implemented to promote compliance with existing laws and regulations. Moreover, our failure to maintain
effective control environment processes could lead to violations, unintentional or otherwise, of laws and regulations. Litigation, legal
or tax claims or regulatory enforcement actions arising out of our failure or alleged failure to comply with applicable laws,
regulations or controls could subject us to civil and criminal penalties that could materially and adversely affect our reputation,
product sales, financial condition and results of operations.

We may not successfully identify, complete or manag e strategic transactions.

We evaluate a variety of potential strategic transactions, including acquisitions, divestitures, joint ventures, minority investments
and other strategic alliances that could further our strategic business objectives. We may not successfully identify, complete or
manage the risks presented by these strategic transactions. Strategic transactions may result in the diversion of management
attention from our existing business and may present financial, managerial and operational risks. Our success depends, in part,
upon our ability to identify suitable transactions; negotiate favorable contractual terms; comply with applicable regulations and
receive necessary consents, clearances and approvals (including regulatory and antitrust clearances and approvals); integrate or
separate businesses; realize the full extent of the benefits, cost savings or synergies presented by strategic transactions; effectively
implement control environment processes with employees joining us as a result of a transaction; minimize adverse effects on
existing business relationships with suppliers and customers; achieve accurate estimates of fair value; minimize potential loss of
customers or key employees; and minimize indemnities and potential disputes with buyers, sellers and strategic partners.
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With respect to acquisitions and joint ventures in particular, we are also exposed to potential risks based on our ability to conform
standards, controls, policies and procedures, and business cultures; consolidate and streamline operations and infrastructures;
identify and eliminate redundant and underperforming operations and assets; manage inefficiencies associated with the integration
of operations; and coordinate antitrust and competition laws in the United States, the European Union and other jurisdictions. Joint
ventures and strategic alliances pose additional risks, as we share ownership and management responsibilities with one or more
other parties who may not have the same objectives, priorities, strategies or resources as we do. In May 2014, we entered into an
agreement to combine our wholly owned coffee portfolio (outside of France) with D.E Master Blenders 1753 B.V., and in
conjunction with that transaction, Acorn Holdings B.V., owner of D.E Master Blenders 1753 B.V., made a binding offer to receive
our coffee business in France. We might not effectively separate our coffee business, integrate our operations into the new venture
or complete the transaction on the anticipated timeframe. Furthermore, we may not be able to complete, on terms favorable to us,
desired or proposed divestitures of businesses that do not meet our strategic objectives or our growth or profitability targets. Our
divestiture activities, or related activities such as reorganizations, restructuring programs and transformation initiatives, may require
us to recognize impairment charges or to take action to reduce costs that remain after a divestiture is completed. Gains or losses
on the sales of, or lost operating income from, those businesses may also affect our profitability.

Any of these risks and challenges could materially and adversely affect our business, product sales, financial condition and results
of operations.

We must correctly predict, identify and interpret ¢ hanges in consumer preferences and demand and offer new products to
meet those changes.

Consumer preferences for food and snacking products change continually. Our success depends on our ability to predict, identify
and interpret the tastes, dietary habits, packaging and other preferences of consumers around the world and to offer products that
appeal to these preferences. Moreover, weak economic conditions, recession, equity market volatility or other factors could affect
consumer preferences and demand. If we do not offer products that appeal to consumers or if we misjudge consumer demand for
our products, our sales and market share will decrease and our profitability could suffer.

We must distinguish among short-term fads, mid-term trends and long-term changes in consumer preferences. If we do not
accurately predict which shifts in consumer preferences will be long-term, or if we fail to introduce new and improved products to
satisfy those preferences, our sales could decline. In addition, because of our varied consumer base, including by geography, we
must offer an array of products that satisfy the broad spectrum of consumer preferences. If we fail to expand our product offerings
successfully across product categories, or if we do not rapidly develop products in faster growing and more profitable categories,
demand for our products could decrease and our profitability could suffer.

Prolonged negative perceptions concerning the health implications of certain food products could influence consumer preferences
and acceptance of some of our products and marketing programs. For example, recently, consumers have increasingly focused on
health and wellness, including weight management and reducing sodium and added sugar consumption. In addition, consumer
preferences differ by region, and we must monitor and adjust our use of ingredients to respond to these regional preferences. We
might be unsuccessful in our efforts to effectively respond to changing consumer preferences and social expectations. Continued
negative perceptions and failure to satisfy consumer preferences could materially and adversely affect our reputation, product
sales, financial condition and results of operations.

Failure to maintain effective internal control over financial reporting could adversely affect us, and we have not
maintained effective internal controls over our acc ounting for income taxes.

The accuracy of our financial reporting depends on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. Internal control
over financial reporting can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements and may not prevent or detect misstatements because of its inherent limitations. These limitations include, among
others, the possibility of human error, inadequacy or circumvention of controls and fraud. If we do not maintain effective internal
control over financial reporting or design and implement controls sufficient to provide reasonable assurance with respect to the
preparation and fair presentation of our financial statements, we could be unable to file accurate financial reports on a timely basis.
As a result, our reputation, results of operations and stock price could be materially adversely affected.
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In connection with management’s assessment of internal control over financial reporting under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, we determined that we did not maintain effective monitoring and
oversight of controls over the completeness, accuracy and presentation of our accounting for income taxes, including the income
tax provision and related tax assets and liabilities. We determined that the ineffective monitoring and oversight of controls over
income tax accounting constituted a material weakness. As of December 31, 2014, we made substantial progress toward
remediating the material weakness. See Iltem 9A, Controls and Procedures , for a discussion of the material weakness and the
progress on the remediation. If the new controls we have implemented to address the material weakness and to strengthen our
overall internal control over accounting for income taxes are not designed or do not operate effectively, if we are unsuccessful in
implementing or following these new processes or if we are otherwise unable to remediate this material weakness, we may not
timely or accurately report our financial condition or results of operations. This could adversely affect our stock price and the
confidence of investors, business partners and others in our financial reports.

We are increasingly dependent on information techno logy.

We rely on information technology networks and systems, including the Internet, to process, transmit and store electronic and
financial information, to manage a variety of business processes and activities, and to comply with regulatory, legal and tax
requirements. We also depend on our information technology infrastructure for digital marketing activities and for electronic
communications among our personnel, customers and suppliers around the world. These information technology systems, many of
which are managed by third parties or used in connection with shared service centers, may be susceptible to damage, disruptions
or shutdowns due to failures during the process of upgrading or replacing software, databases or components thereof, power
outages, hardware failures, computer viruses, attacks by computer hackers or other cybersecurity risks, telecommunication failures,
user errors, natural disasters, terrorist attacks or other catastrophic events. Furthermore, to the extent our information technology
systems are managed by third parties or used in connection with external shared service centers, we would have to coordinate with
these third parties to try to resolve issues related to these events. If any of our significant information technology systems suffer
severe damage, disruption or shutdown, and our disaster recovery and business continuity plans do not effectively resolve the
issues in a timely manner, our product sales, financial condition and results of operations may be materially and adversely affected,
and we could experience delays in reporting our financial results.

In addition, if we are unable to prevent physical and electronic break-ins, cyber-attacks and other information security breaches, we
may suffer financial and reputational damage, be subject to litigation or incur remediation costs or penalties because of the
unauthorized disclosure of confidential information belonging to us or to our partners, customers, suppliers or employees. The
mishandling or inappropriate disclosure of non-public sensitive or protected information could lead to the loss of intellectual
property, negatively impact planned corporate transactions or damage our reputation and brand image. Misuse, leakage or
falsification of legally protected information could also result in a violation of data privacy laws and regulations and have a negative
impact on our reputation, business, financial condition and results of operations.

Weak financial performance, downgrades in our credi t ratings, illiquid global capital markets and vola tile global economic
conditions could limit our access to the global cap ital markets, reduce our liquidity and increase our borrowing costs.

We may need to access the long-term and short-term global capital markets to obtain financing. Our financial performance, our
short-and long-term debt credit ratings, interest rates, the stability of financial institutions with which we partner, the liquidity of the
overall global capital markets and the state of the global economy, including the food industry, will affect our access to, and the
availability or cost of, financing on acceptable terms and conditions in the future. There can be no assurance that we will have
access to the global capital markets on terms we find acceptable.

We regularly access the commercial paper markets in the United States and Europe for ongoing funding requirements. A
downgrade in our credit ratings by a credit rating agency could increase our borrowing costs and adversely affect our ability to issue
commercial paper. Disruptions in the global commercial paper market or other effects of volatile economic conditions on the global
credit markets also could reduce the amount of commercial paper that we could issue and raise our borrowing costs for both short-
and long-term debt offerings.

Limitations on our ability to access the global capital markets, a reduction in our liquidity or an increase in our borrowing costs could
materially and adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.
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Volatility in the equity markets, interest rates or other factors could substantially increase our pen sion costs.

We sponsor a number of defined benefit pension plans for our employees throughout the world. At the end of 2014, the projected
benefit obligation of our defined benefit pension plans was $12.5 billion and plan assets were $9.6 billion. The difference between
plan obligations and assets, or the funded status of the plans, significantly affects the net periodic benefit costs of our pension plans
and the ongoing funding requirements of those plans. Our major defined benefit pension plans are funded with trust assets invested
in a globally diversified portfolio of investments, including equities and corporate debt. Among other factors, changes in interest
rates, mortality rates, early retirement rates, investment returns, minimum funding requirements in the jurisdictions in which the
plans operate, the viability of other employers in the multiemployer pension plans in which we participate and the market value of
plan assets can affect the level of plan funding, cause volatility in the net periodic pension cost and increase our future funding
requirements. Legislative and other governmental regulatory actions may also increase funding requirements for our pension plans’
benefits obligation.

Volatility in the global capital markets may increase the risk that we are required to make additional cash contributions to the
pension plans and recognize further increases in our net pension cost. A portion of our pension trust assets is invested in European
sovereign debt and subject to heightened risk that it could lose value as a result of political and financial turmoil in Europe.

Due to our participation in multi-employer pension plans, we may have exposure under those plans that extends beyond what our
obligation would be with respect to our employees. Our contributions to a multi-employer plan may increase beyond our bargaining
obligations depending on the financial condition of the multi-employer plan. We may be required to participate in funding the
unfunded obligations of the plan allocable to a withdrawing employer, and our costs might increase as a result. Further, if we have a
partial or complete withdrawal from a multi-employer pension plan, we may be required to pay an amount to the plan based on our
allocable share of the underfunded status of the plan. This liability will generally increase if other employers cease patrticipating in
the plan whether or not due to bankruptcy. (See Note 10, Benefit Plans , to the consolidated financial statements for more
information on our multiemployer pension plans.)

A significant increase in our pension benefit obligations or funding requirements could have a negative impact on our ability to
invest in the business and adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

Our intellectual property rights are valuable, and our failure to protect them could reduce the value of our products and
brands.

We consider our intellectual property rights, particularly and most notably our trademarks, but also our patents, trade secrets,
copyrights and licensing agreements, to be a significant and valuable part of our business. We attempt to protect our intellectual
property rights by taking advantage of a combination of patent, trademark, copyright and trade secret laws in various countries, as
well as licensing agreements, third party nondisclosure and assignment agreements and policing of third party misuses of our
intellectual property. Our failure to obtain or adequately protect our intellectual property rights, or any change in law or other
changes that serve to lessen or remove the current legal protections of our intellectual property, may diminish our competitiveness
and could materially harm our business.

We may be unaware of third party claims of intellectual property infringement relating to our technology, brands or products. Any
litigation regarding patents or other intellectual property could be costly and time-consuming and could divert management’s and
other key personnel’s attention from our business operations. Third party claims of intellectual property infringement might require
us to pay monetary damages or enter into costly license agreements. We also may be subject to injunctions against development
and sale of certain of our products. Any of these occurrences could materially and adversely affect our reputation, product sales,
financial condition and results of operations.

Iltem 1B. Un resolved Staff Comments.

None.
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Item 2. Properties.

On December 31, 2014, we had 170 manufacturing and processing facilities in 58 countries and 216 distribution centers and
depots worldwide. During 2014, we disposed of or ceased operations in 7 and opened 3 new manufacturing facilities and we no
longer lease or we ceased operations in 18 and opened 12 new distribution facilities. It is our practice to maintain all of our plants
and other facilities in good condition. We believe we have or will add sufficient capacity to meet our planned operating needs.

As of December 31, 2014

Number of Number of

Manufacturing Distribution

Facilities Facilities
Latin America 20 4
Asia Pacific 32 72
EEMEA 27 13
Europe 74 38
North America 17 89
Total 170 216
Owned 160 51
Leased 10 165
Total 170 216

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

Information regarding legal proceedings is available in Note 11, Commitments and Contingencies , to the consolidated financial
statements in this report.

Ite m 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, R  elated Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.

Our Common Stock is listed on The NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol “MDLZ.” At January 31, 2015, there were
62,195 holders of record of our Common Stock. Information regarding the market price of our Common Stock and dividends
declared during the last two fiscal years is included in Note 18, Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) , to the consolidated financial
statements.

Comparison of Five-Year Cumulative Total Return

The following graph compares the cumulative total return on our Common Stock with the cumulative total return of the S&P 500
Index and the Mondeléz International performance peer group index. The graph assumes, in each case, that an initial investment of
$100 is made at the beginning of the five-year period. The cumulative total return reflects market prices at the end of each year and
the reinvestment of dividends each year (and takes into account the value of Kraft Foods Group, Inc. shares distributed in the Spin-
Off). The vertical line below indicates the October 1, 2012 Spin-Off date and is intended to facilitate comparisons of performance
against peers listed below and the stock market before and following the Spin-Off.

—8—Mondeléz Intemational —+==S&P 500 Performance Peer Group
&250.00
$22500
£20000 -
$175 00 - Kraft Foods Group Spin-off Date ]—)
£150.00
$125.00
$100.00
§75.00
£50.00
525.00
50.00 i f f } i
12/2009 1212010 1272011 1272012 12/2013 1212014
Mondel ez Performance
Date International S&P 500 Peer Group
December 31, 2009 $ 100.00 $ 100.00 $ 100.00
December 31, 2010 120.39 115.06 112.26
December 31, 2011 147.64 117.49 120.95
December 31, 2012 158.73 136.30 132.99
December 31, 2013 223.95 180.14 158.54
December 31, 2014 234.22 205.14 171.35

The Mondeléz International performance peer group consists of the following companies considered our market competitors or that
have been selected on the basis of industry, global focus or industry leadership: Campbell Soup Company, The

Coca-Cola Company, Colgate-Palmolive Company, Danone S.A., General Mills, Inc., The Hershey Company, Kellogg Company,
Nestlé S.A., PepsiCo, Inc., The Procter & Gamble Company and Unilever N.V.

This performance graph and other information furnished under this Part Il Item 5(a) of this Form 10-K shall not be deemed to be
“soliciting material” or to be “filed” with the SEC or subject to Regulation 14A or 14C, or to the liabilities of Section 18 of the
Exchange Act.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Our stock repurchase activity for each of the three months in the quarter ended December 31, 2014 included:

Total Number

of Shares
Purchased as Approximate Dollar Value
Total Part of Publicly
Number Average of Shares That May Yet
of Shares Price Paid Announced be Purchased Under
Purchased @ per Share Program @ the Program @

October 1-31, 2014 94,645 $ 33.95 = $ 3,748,483,943
November 1-30, 2014 10,687,311 38.51 10,627,813 3,339,111,657
December 1-31, 2014 7,002,654 38.61 7,001,127 3,068,780,002
Quarter Ended December 31, 2014 17,784,610 38.53 17,628,940

(1) The total number of shares purchased includes: (i) shares purchased pursuant to the repurchase program described in (2) below; and (ii) shares
tendered to us by employees who used shares to exercise options and to pay the related taxes for grants of restricted and deferred stock that
vested, totaling 94,645 shares, 59,498 shares and 1,527 shares for the fiscal months of October, November and December 2014, respectively.

(2) During 2013, our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of $7.7 billion of our Common Stock through December 31, 2016. On March 12,
2013, our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to the lesser of 40 million shares or $1.2 billion of our Common Stock through
March 12, 2016. On August 6, 2013, our Audit Committee, with authorization delegated from our Board of Directors, increased the repurchase
program capacity to $6.0 billion of Common Stock repurchases and extended the expiration date to December 31, 2016. On December 3, 2013, our

Board of Directors approved an increase of $1.7 billion to the program related to a new accelerated share repurchase program, which concluded in
May 2014. See Note 13, Capital Stock , for additional information.

19



Table of Contents

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Mondel €z International, Inc.
Selected Financial Data — Five Year Review (1

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(in millions, except per share and employee data)

Continuing Operations @

Net revenues $ 34,244 $ 35299 $ 35015 $ 35,810 $ 31,489
Earnings from continuing operations, net of taxes 2,201 2,332 1,606 1,764 677
Net earnings attributable to Mondeléz International:

Per share, basic 1.29 1.30 0.90 0.99 0.38

Per share, diluted 1.28 1.29 0.88 0.99 0.38
Cash Flow and Financial Position @
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,562 6,410 3,923 4,520 3,748
Capital expenditures 1,642 1,622 1,610 1,771 1,661
Property, plant and equipment, net 9,827 10,247 10,010 13,813 13,792
Total assets 66,815 72,515 75,477 93,785 95,228
Long-term debt 13,865 14,482 15,574 23,095 26,859
Total Mondeléz International shareholders’ equity 27,750 32,373 32,276 35,271 35,859
Shares outstanding at year end 4 1,664 1,705 1,778 1,768 1,748
Per Share and Other Data ®
Book value per shares outstanding 16.68 18.99 18.15 19.95 20.51
Dividends declared per share ©) 0.58 0.54 1.00 1.16 1.16
Common Stock closing price at year end 36.33 35.30 25.45 37.36 3151
Number of employees 104,000 107,000 110,000 126,000 127,000

(1) The selected financial data should be read in conjunction with Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and our
consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and past Annual Reports on Form 10-K for earlier
periods. A significant portion of our business is exposed to currency exchange rate fluctuation as a large portion of our assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses
must be translated into U.S. dollars for reporting purposes. Refer to Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
for a discussion of operating results on a constant currency basis where noted.

(2) Significant items impacting the comparability of our results from continuing operations include: Spin-Off Costs in 2012-2014, Restructuring Programs in 2012-
2014, Cost Savings Initiatives in 2010-2013; divestitures and sales of property in 2013, 2012 and 2010, an acquisition in 2013, the acquisition of Cadbury in
2010 and the related Integration Program in 2010-2014; the benefit from the Cadbury acquisition-related indemnification resolution in 2013; losses on debt
extinguishment in 2014 and 2013; the unrealized gain on the planned coffee business divestiture currency hedges in 2014; the debt tender offers completed in
2014 and 2013; accounting calendar changes in 2013, 2011 (including a 53rd week of operating results in 2011) and 2010; impairment charges related to
intangible assets in 2014, 2012 and 2010 and our provision for income taxes in all years. Please refer to Notes 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies ;
2, Divestitures and Acquisitions ; 5, Goodwill and Intangible Assets ; 6, Restructuring Programs ; 7, Integration Program and Cost Savings Initiatives ; 8, Debt
and Borrowing Arrangements ; 9, Financial Instruments ; 11, Commitments and Contingencies ; 15, Income Taxes ; and 17, Segment Reporting , for additional
information regarding items affecting comparability of our results from continuing operations.

(3) Our Cash Flow and Financial Position information includes Kraft Foods Group, Inc. data for periods prior to the October 1, 2012 Spin-Off date. Refer to Note 2,
Divestitures and Acquisitions , for information on the divested net assets and items impacting cash flow. Other items impacting comparability primarily relate to
the receipt of net cash proceeds from the resolution of the Starbucks arbitration in 2013 and our acquisition of Cadbury in 2010.

(4) Refer to Note 13, Capital Stock , for additional information on our share repurchase program in 2014 and 2013.

(5) Per Share and Other Data includes Kraft Foods Group, Inc. data for periods prior to the October 1, 2012 Spin-Off date. Refer to Note 2, Divestitures and
Acquisitions , related to the resolution of the Starbucks arbitration and the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012, for additional
information on the Cadbury acquisition in 2010.

(6) Refer to the Equity and Dividends section within Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations for additional
information on our dividends following the October 1, 2012 Spin-Off.

(7) Closing prices reflect historical market prices and have not been adjusted for periods prior to October 1, 2012 to reflect the Spin-Off of Kraft Foods Group, Inc.
on that date.
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ltem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following discussion and analysis contains forward-looking statements. It should be read in conjunction with the other sections
of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including the consolidated financial statements and related notes contained in Item 8,
“Forward-Looking Statements” and “Risk Factors” contained in Item 1A.

Description of the Company

We manufacture and market primarily snack food and beverage products, including biscuits (cookies, crackers and salted snacks),
chocolate, gum & candy, coffee & powdered beverages and various cheese & grocery products. We have operations in more than
80 countries and sell our products in approximately 165 countries.

Over the last several years, we have been expanding geographically and building our presence in the snacking category. At the
same time, we continued to invest in product quality, marketing and innovation behind our iconic brands, while implementing a
series of cost saving initiatives. Our goals are to achieve industry-leading revenue growth over time along with the higher expected
growth rates of advantaged snack categories; leverage our cost structure through supply chain reinvention, productivity programs,
overhead streamlining, volume growth and improved product mix to drive margin gains; and grow earnings per share in the top-tier
of our peer group.

Planned Coffee Business Transactions

On May 7, 2014, we announced that we entered into an agreement to combine our wholly owned coffee portfolio (outside of
France) with D.E Master Blenders 1753 B.V. (“DEMB?"). In conjunction with this transaction, Acorn Holdings B.V. (“AHBV"), owner of
DEMB, has also made a binding offer to receive our coffee business in France. The parties have also invited our partners in certain
joint ventures to join the new company.

Upon completion of all proposed transactions, we expect to receive cash of approximately € 4 billion and a 49 percent equity
interest in the new company, to be called Jacobs Douwe Egberts (“*JDE”"). AHBV will hold a majority share in the proposed
combined company and will have a majority of the seats on the board, which will be chaired by current DEMB Chairman Bart Becht.
We will have certain minority rights. AHBV is owned by an investor group led by JAB Holding Company s.ar.l.

The transactions (collectively, the “JDE coffee transactions”) remain subject to regulatory approvals and the completion of
employee information and consultation requirements. We continue to expect the transactions to be completed in 2015, subject to
closing conditions, including regulatory approvals. In December 2014, the European Commission announced its intention to further
evaluate the proposed transaction against EU antitrust regulations in order to make a final determination on merger clearance,
which we currently expect in the second half of 2015. We and DEMB also continue to undertake consultations with Works Councils
and employee representatives as required in connection with the transactions.

In connection with the expected receipt of approximately € 4 billion upon closing, we entered into currency exchange forward
contracts in the second quarter of 2014 to lock in an expected U.S. dollar value of approximately $5 billion. As of December 31,
2014, the forward contracts were recorded as derivative assets within other current assets and through December 31, 2014, we
recognized $628 million of unrealized gains related to the hedges within interest and other expense, net. On February 11, 2015, we
monetized the forward contracts and recorded an additional realized gain of $311 million in the first quarter of 2015, for a total
realized gain of $939 million. We also entered into new currency exchange forward contracts to continue to lock in an expected
U.S. dollar value of approximately $5 billion from the transactions. Based on changes in the euro/U.S. dollar exchange rate, the
actual closing date of the planned JDE coffee transactions and the settlement dates of the hedges or other hedges we may put into
place, the actual amount of U.S. dollars we receive could change. In addition to the hedges, we have also incurred incremental
expenses related to readying our coffee businesses for the planned transactions that totaled $77 million through December 31,
2014 and were recorded within selling, general and administrative expenses of our Europe and EEMEA segments and within our
general corporate expenses. For additional information on the JDE coffee transactions, see Note 2, Divestitures and Acquisitions—
Planned Coffee Business Transactions .
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2014-2018 Restructuring Program

On May 6, 2014, our Board of Directors approved a $3.5 billion restructuring program, comprised of approximately $2.5 billion in
cash costs and $1 billion in non-cash costs (the “2014-2018 Restructuring Program”), and up to $2.2 billion of capital expenditures.
The primary objective of the 2014-2018 Restructuring Program is to reduce our operating cost structure in both our supply chain
and overhead costs. We expect the 2014-2018 Restructuring Program to generate annualized savings of at least $1.5 billion by the
program’s completion at the end of 2018. Lower overheads and accelerated supply chain cost reductions are each expected to
generate roughly half of the total incremental savings. We expect to incur the majority of the program’s charges in 2015 and 2016
and to complete the program by year-end 2018. In 2014, we recorded restructuring and related implementation charges of $381
million under this program. For additional information on the 2014-2018 Restructuring Program, see Note 6, Restructuring
Programs .

S ummary of Results

* Net revenues decreased 3.0% to $34.2 billion in 2014 and increased 0.8% to $35.3 billion in 2013. Net revenues in 2014
were significantly affected by unfavorable currency translation as the U.S. dollar strengthened against most currencies in
which we operate.

* Organic Net Revenue increased 2.4% to $36.0 billion in 2014 and increased 3.9% to $35.9 billion in 2013. Organic Net
Revenue is a non-GAAP financial measure we use to evaluate our underlying results (see the definition of Organic Net
Revenue and our reconciliation with net revenues within Non-GAAP Financial Measures appearing later in this section).

» Diluted EPS attributable to Mondeléz International decreased 41.6% to $1.28 in 2014 and increased 28.1% to $2.19 in
2013. Excluding the results of discontinued operations, our diluted EPS attributable to Mondeléz International from
continuing operations decreased 0.8% to $1.28 in 2014 and increased 46.6% to $1.29 in 2013. A number of significant
items also affected the comparability of our reported results, as further described in the Discussion and Analysis of
Historical Results appearing later in this section and in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

» Adjusted EPS increased 14.3% to $1.76 in 2014 and increased 7.7% to $1.54 in 2013. On a constant currency basis,
Adjusted EPS increased 23.4% to $1.90 in 2014 and increased 11.9% to $1.60 in 2013. Adjusted EPS is a non-GAAP
financial measure we use to evaluate our underlying results (see the definition of Adjusted EPS and our reconciliation
with diluted EPS within Non-GAAP Financial Measures appearing later in this section).

Fi nancial Outlook

We seek to achieve top-tier financial performance. We manage our business to achieve this goal using a number of operating
metrics including Organic Net Revenue, Adjusted Operating Income and Adjusted EPS. (Refer to Non-GAAP Financial Measures
appearing later in this section for more information on these measures.) Additional metrics that we use or monitor include product
quality measures, category growth, market share performance, pricing net of commodity costs, net commaodity inflation, volume
growth, Power Brand Organic Net Revenue growth, gross and net productivity savings, brand support and related investments,
capital spending, cash conversion cycle, free cash flow, return on invested capital and shareholder returns. We also monitor a
number of factors and trends that we expect may impact our near- and long-term revenues and profitability objectives:

Long-Term Demographics and Consumer Trends — Snack food consumption is highly correlated to GDP growth, urbanization of the
population and rising discretionary income levels associated with a growing middle class particularly in emerging markets. Over the
long-term, we expect these trends to continue leading to growth in key consumer behaviors, including increased snacking
occasions, greater use of convenience food and migration to more frequent, smaller meals. In the near term, lower GDP growth,
high unemployment and weak consumer confidence in Europe and emerging markets has slowed category and our growth.

Demand — We monitor consumer spending and our market share within the food and beverage categories in which we sell our
products. Growth in the global categories slowed from approximately 4% in 2013 to 3.6% in 2014. We believe the slowdown in
category growth will continue to affect our near-term net revenue growth, but we expect the slowdown, particularly in emerging
markets, to be temporary. We expect category growth to return to levels more in line with the expected growth of emerging markets
and consumer spending in those markets. We continue to make investments in our brands and build strong routes to market to
address the needs of consumers in emerging and developed markets. In doing so, we anticipate stimulating demand in our
categories and growing our position in these markets.
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Volatility of Global Markets — Our growth strategy depends in part on our ability to expand our operations, particularly in emerging
markets. Some of these markets have greater political and economic volatility and vulnerability to infrastructure and labor
disruptions as we experienced this past year in markets including Russia, Ukraine, Venezuela and Argentina. Volatility in these
markets affects demand for and the costs of our products and requires frequent changes in how we operate our business. There
will likely be continued volatility across these and other markets in which we sell. As such, we are focused on aggressively
managing our costs currently as we continue to invest in brand building and routes to market.

Competition — We operate in highly competitive markets that include global, regional and local competitors. Our advantaged
geographic footprint, operating scale and portfolio of brands have all significantly contributed to building our market-leading
positions across most of the product categories in which we sell. To grow and maintain our market positions, we focus on product
quality, bringing new products and innovations to market and effectively meeting consumer needs and preferences. We pursue
significant growth opportunities such as expanding our global operations and growing our portfolio of Power Brands and innovative
products. We continue to optimize our manufacturing and other operations and invest in our brands through ongoing research and
development, advertising and marketing consumer promotions.

Pricing — We adjust our product prices based on a number of variables including demand, the competitive environment and
changes in our product input costs. Our net revenue growth and profitability may be affected as we adjust prices to address new
conditions. In 2014, we generally increased prices in response to higher commodity costs, currency and other market factors. In
2015, we continue to expect higher aggregate commaodity and related costs and anticipate adjusting our prices in response to
changing market conditions. Price competition or delayed price increases by competitors or customers also affected our net
revenues in 2014 and may continue to affect net revenues or market share in the near term until the market adjusts to the changes
in input costs and other market conditions. In 2015, we plan to address some of these issues and improve our revenue mix by
discontinuing certain low margin, customer-specific product lines, discontinuing certain low-margin licensed products and continuing
to simplify our portfolio of SKUs.

Operating Costs — Our operating costs include raw materials, labor, selling, general and administrative expenses, taxes, currency
impacts and financing costs. We manage these costs through cost saving and productivity initiatives, sourcing and hedging
programs, pricing actions, refinancing and tax planning. We continue to work on various programs to expand our profitability and
margins, such as our 2014-2018 Restructuring Program designed to bring about significant reductions in our operating cost
structure in both our supply chain and overhead costs.

Currency — As a global company with over 80% of our net revenues generated outside the United States, we are exposed to
changes in global economic conditions and currency movements. In 2014, as the U.S. dollar strengthened relative to other
currencies in which we operate and as several countries experienced significant declines in or devaluations of their currency, these
currency movements had a significant negative effect on our reported results of operations. Our 2014 net revenues were $34.2
billion, down 3.0% from 2013, including a negative 5.1 percentage point impact from currency translation. While we have net
investment hedges in the form of local currency denominated debt to offset the translation of certain of our overseas investments,
we generally do not hedge against currency translation. We primarily seek to hedge against economic losses on cross-currency
transactions. Due to limited markets for hedging currency transactions and other factors, we may not be able to effectively hedge all
of our cross-currency transaction risks. During 2014, we recognized $167 million of currency devaluation charges in pretax earnings
related to the remeasurement of our net monetary assets in Venezuela. The economy, monetary policies and other business
restrictions in Venezuela, as well as in other countries such as Argentina and Russia, have created a challenging business
environment in which to operate, and our ability to hedge against currency-related economic losses may be limited. While we work
to mitigate our exposure to these currency risks, factors such as continued global market volatility, actions by foreign governments,
political uncertainty and other external developments could lead to further unfavorable currency impacts in the future.

Financing Costs — We regularly evaluate our variable and fixed-rate debt. We continue to use lower cost short- and long-term debt
to finance our ongoing working capital, capital expenditures and other investments, dividends and share repurchases. In the first
quarter of 2014 and fourth quarter of 2013, we retired $5 billion of our long-term U.S. dollar-denominated debt and issued lower-
cost long-term euro and U.S. dollar-denominated debt. Our weighted-average interest rate on our total debt as of December 31,
2014 was 4.3%, down from 4.8% as of December 31, 2013 and down from 5.8% as of December 31, 2012.
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Disc ussion and Analysis of Historical Results
Items Affecting Comparability of Financial Results

The following table includes significant income or (expense) items that affected the comparability of our pre-tax results of operations
and our effective tax rates. Please refer to the notes to the consolidated financial statements indicated below for more information.
Refer also to the Consolidated Results of Operations — Net Earnings and Earnings per Share Attributable to Mondeléz International
table for the per share impacts of these items.

For the Years Ended December 31,
See Note 2014 2013 2012
(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Planned coffee business transactions: Note 2
Incremental costs for readying the businesses $ (77) $ - $ -
Unrealized gain on currency hedge 628 - -
2014-2018 Restructuring Program: Note 6
Restructuring charges (274) - -
Implementation charges (107) - -
2012-2014 Restructuring Program: Note 6
Restructuring charges (360) (267) (102)
Implementation charges (99) (63) (8)
Remeasurement of Venezuelan net monetary
assets: Note 1
March 31, 2013: 4.30 to 6.30 bolivars
to U.S. dollar - (54) -
March 31, 2014: 6.30 to 10.70 bolivars
to U.S. dollar (142) - -
SICAD | remeasurements through
December 31, 2014 (25) - -
Loss on debt extinguishment and
related expenses Note 8 (495) (612) -
Benefit from indemnification resolution Note 11 - 385 -
Acquisitions, divestitures and sales of property: Note 2
Gain on Morocco acquisition - 22 -
Acquisition-related costs (2) (7 -
Other acquisition integration costs 4) 4) -
Gains on divestitures - 8 107
Gains on sales of properties 7 68 77
Spin -Off Costs Note 2 (35) (62) (1,053)
Gain on resolution of
Starbucks arbitration Note 2 - 2,522 -
Cadbury Integration Program Note 7 8 (216) (185)
Effective tax rate Note 15 13.8% 2.5% 9.5%
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Consolidated Results of Operations
The following discussion compares our consolidated results of operations for 2014 with 2013 and 2013 with 2012.
2014 compared with 2013

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2014 2013 $ change % change
(in millions, except per share data)

Net revenues $ 34,244 $ 35,299 $ (1,055) (3.0)%
Operating income 3,242 3,971 (729) (18.4)%
Earnings from continuing operations 2,201 2,332 (131) (5.6)%
Net earnings attributable to

Mondeléz International 2,184 3,915 (1,731) (44.2)%
Diluted earnings per share from

continuing operations attributable to

Mondeléz International 1.28 1.29 (0.02) (0.8)%
Diluted earnings per share attributable to

Mondeléz International 1.28 2.19 (0.92) (41.6)%

Net Revenues — Net revenues decreased $1,055 million (3.0%) to $34,244 million in 2014, and Organic Net Revenue @) increased
$845 million (2.4%) to $36,036 million. The change in net revenues and Organic Net Revenue are detailed below:

2014
Change in net revenues (by percentage point)
Higher net pricing 4.5pp
Unfavorable volume/mix (2.1)pp
Total change in Organic Net Revenue (1) 2.4%
Unfavorable currency (5.2)pp
Impact of divestitures (0.2)pp
Impact of accounting calendar change (0.0)pp
Impact of acquisition —
Total change in net revenues (3.0)%

(1) Please see the Non-GAAP Financial Measures section at the end of this item.

Organic Net Revenue growth was driven by higher net pricing, partially offset by unfavorable volume/mix. Overall, net pricing was
up as we realized the effects of input cost-driven pricing actions implemented over the course of the year. Higher net pricing was
reflected primarily in Latin America, EEMEA, Europe and Asia Pacific. Unfavorable volume/mix was driven primarily by Europe,
Asia Pacific and Latin America. In addition to price elasticity, the decline was largely due to a slow response by competitors to
higher input costs as well as the impact of price-related customer disruptions in Europe. Unfavorable currency impacts decreased
net revenues by $1,806 million, due primarily to the devaluation of the Venezuelan bolivar and the strength of the U.S. dollar
relative to several currencies, including the Argentinean peso, Russian ruble, Brazilian real and Ukrainian hryvnya, partially offset
by the strength of the British pound sterling relative to the U.S. dollar. The impact of divestitures completed in 2013 resulted in a
year-over-year decrease in net revenues of $70 million and included a salty snacks business in Turkey, a confectionery business in
South Africa and a chocolate business in Spain. The accounting calendar change made in Europe in 2013 resulted in a year-over-
year decrease in net revenues of $38 million. The acquisition of a biscuit operation in Morocco on February 22, 2013 added $14
million in incremental net revenues this year for the period prior to the anniversary date of the acquisition.

25



Table of Contents

Operating Income — Operating income decreased $729 million (18.4%) to $3,242 million in 2014, Adjusted Operating Income (1)
increased $149 million (3.5%) to $4,416 million and Adjusted Operating Income on a constant currency basis @ increased $436
million (10.2%) to $4,703 million due to the following:

Operating
Income Change
(in millions) (percentage point)

Operating Income for the Year Ended December 31,20 13 $ 3,971
Spin-Off Costs 62 1.8pp
2012-2014 Restructuring Program costs 330 8.7pp
Integration Program and other acquisition integration costs 220 5.6pp
Benefit from indemnification resolution (336) (8.7)pp
Remeasurement of net monetary assets in Venezuela 54 1.3pp
Gains on acquisition and divestitures, net (30) (0.7)pp
Operating income from divestitures (6) (0.2)pp
Acquisition-related costs 2 —

Adjusted Operating Income @ for the Year Ended December 31, 2013 $ 4,267
Higher net pricing 1,594 37.4pp
Higher input costs (971) (22.8)pp
Unfavorable volume/mix (354) (8.3)pp
Lower selling, general and administrative expenses 313 7.3pp
Change in unrealized gains / (losses) on hedging activities (174) (4.0)pp
Gains on sale of property in 2013 (68) (1.5)pp
VAT-related settlements 84 2.0pp
Gain on sale of property in 2014 7 0.1pp
Impact from acquisition 3 0.1pp
Other, net 2 -
Total change in Adjusted Operating Income (constant currency) @ 436 10.2%
Unfavorable currency - translation (287) (6.7)pp
Total change in Adjusted Operating Income @) 149 3.5%

Adjusted Operating Income () for the Year Ended December 31, 2014 $ 4,416
Spin-Off Costs (35) (0.9)pp
2012-2014 Restructuring Program costs (459) (11.5)pp
2014-2018 Restructuring Program costs (381) (9.6)pp
Integration Program and other acquisition integration costs 4 0.1pp
Remeasurement of net monetary assets in Venezuela (167) (4.2)pp
Intangible asset impairment charges (57) (1.6)pp
Costs associated with the JDE coffee transactions 77) (2.0)pp
Acquisition-related costs (2) —
Operating Income for the Year Ended December 31,20 14 $ 3,242 (18.4)%

(1) Please see the Non-GAAP Financial Measures section at the end of this item.

During 2014, higher net pricing outpaced increased input costs. Higher net pricing was reflected across all segments. The increase
in input costs was driven by higher raw material costs, in part due to higher currency exchange transaction costs on imported
materials, partially offset by lower manufacturing costs. Unfavorable volume/mix was driven by Latin America, Asia Pacific and
Europe, partially offset by gains in EEMEA and North America.
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Total selling, general and administrative expenses decreased $222 million from 2013, due to a number of factors noted in the table
above, including in part, a favorable currency impact, lower Integration Program costs, value-added tax (“VAT")-related settlements
in 2014, lower Spin-Off Costs, 2013 business divestitures and a gain on a sale of property in 2014. Items that increased selling,
general and administrative expenses included a 2013 benefit received related to the resolution of a Cadbury acquisition
indemnification, increased devaluation charges related to our net monetary assets in Venezuela, costs incurred for the 2014-2018
Restructuring Program, costs incurred in 2014 related to the JDE coffee transactions, gains on property sales in 2013 and higher
2012-2014 Restructuring Program costs.

Excluding the factors noted above, selling, general and administrative expenses decreased $313 million from 2013, driven primarily
by lower overhead costs and lower advertising and consumer promotion costs. Overhead costs fell as a result of continued cost
reduction efforts. Advertising and consumer promotion costs were lower due primarily to savings from consolidating media
providers, reductions in non-working media costs and efficiencies gained by shifting spending to lower-cost, digital media outlets,
while we increased our spending on our Power Brands and maintained working media spending.

The change in unrealized gains / (losses) decreased operating income by $174 million in 2014. In 2014, the net unrealized losses
on primarily commodity hedging activity were $112 million, as compared to net unrealized gains of $62 million in 2013 related to
currency and commodity hedging activity. In 2013, we recorded pre-tax gains of $68 million related to sales of properties in India
and Europe. In 2014, we recorded a benefit of $84 million related to VAT-related settlements in Latin America. In 2014, we
recorded a pre-tax gain of $7 million related to the sale of a property in Europe. The acquisition of a biscuit operation in Morocco on
February 22, 2013 added $3 million in incremental operating income in 2014 for the period prior to the anniversary of the
acquisition.

Unfavorable currency impacts decreased operating income by $287 million, due primarily to the devaluation of the Venezuelan
bolivar in 2013 and 2014 and the strength of the U.S. dollar relative to several currencies, including the Argentinean peso, Brazilian
real, Russian ruble and Ukrainian hryvnya, partially offset by the strength of the British pound sterling relative to the U.S. dollar.

Operating income margin decreased from 11.2% in 2013 to 9.5% in 2014. The decrease in operating income margin was driven
primarily by costs incurred for the 2014-2018 Restructuring Program, the year-over-year negative impact of the benefit from the
resolution of the Cadbury acquisition-related indemnification recorded in 2013, higher costs for the 2012-2014 Restructuring
Program, the impact from the devaluation of our net monetary assets in Venezuela and costs incurred related to the JDE coffee
transactions, partially offset by lower Integration Program costs. Adjusted Operating Income margin increased from 12.1% in 2013
to 12.9% in 2014. The increase in Adjusted Operating Income margin was driven primarily by lower overhead costs from continued
cost reduction efforts and lower advertising and consumer promotion costs due primarily to current year productivity initiatives,
partially offset by a decline in gross profit margin due entirely to the unfavorable impact of unrealized gains / (losses) on currency
and commodity hedging activities.

27



Table of Contents

Net Earnings and Earnings per Share Attributable to Mondeléz International — Net earnings attributable to Mondeléz International of
$2,184 million in 2014 decreased by $1,731 million (44.2%) due primarily to the results of the discontinued operations in the prior
year. Diluted EPS from continuing operations attributable to Mondeléz International was $1.28 in 2014, down $0.01 (0.8%) from
$1.29 in 2013. Adjusted EPS (1) was $1.76 in 2014, up $0.22 (14.3%) from $1.54 in 2013. Adjusted EPS on a constant currency
basis @ was $1.90 in 2014, up $0.36 (23.4%) from $1.54 in 2013.

Diluted EPS
Diluted EPS Attributable to Mondel &z International for the Year Ended December 31, 201 3 $ 2.19
Discontinued operations 0.90
Diluted EPS Attributable to Mondel &z International from Continuing Operations for the Year
Ended December 31, 2013 $ 1.29
Spin-Off Costs @ 0.02
2012-2014 Restructuring Program costs (3 0.14
Integration Program and other acquisition integration costs ) 0.10
Net benefit from indemnification resolution ©) (0.20)
Remeasurement of net monetary assets in Venezuela ©) 0.03
Gains on acquisition and divestitures, net (@) (0.04)
Net earnings from divestitures (2 -
Acquisition-related costs @ -
Loss on debt extinguishment and related expenses (1) 0.22
Residual tax benefit impact due to resolution of Starbucks arbitration (2) (0.02)
Adjusted EPS @ for the Year Ended December 31, 2013 $ 1.54
Increase in operations 0.25
Change in unrealized gains / (losses) on hedging activities (0.07)
Gain on sale of property in 2013 (@ (0.03)
VAT-related settlements 0.04
Gain on sale of property in 2014 (@ -
Lower interest and other expense, net (8 0.08
Changes in shares outstanding () 0.08
Changes in income taxes (10) 0.01
Adjusted EPS (constant currency) @ for the Year Ended December 31, 2014 $ 1.90
Unfavorable currency - translation (0.14)
Adjusted EPS @ for the Year Ended December 31, 2014 $ 1.76
Spin-Off Costs @ (0.01)
2012-2014 Restructuring Program costs 3 (0.21)
2014-2018 Restructuring Program costs () (0.16)
Integration Program and other acquisition integration costs ) -
Remeasurement of net monetary assets in Venezuela ©) (0.09)
Income / (costs) associated with the JDE coffee transactions 0.19
Intangible asset impairment charges (1) (0.02)
Loss on debt extinguishment and related expenses (1) (0.18)
Diluted EPS Attributable to Mondel &z International for the Year Ended December 31, 201 4 $ 1.28

(1) Please see the Non-GAAP Financial Measures section at the end of this item.

(2) Referto Note 2, Divestitures and Acquisitions , for more information on Spin-Off Costs following the Kraft Foods Group, Inc. divestiture, the
resolution of the Starbucks arbitration, an acquisition in our EEMEA segment and other property sales and the Planned Coffee Business
Transactions and other divestitures. Note the $628 million unrealized gain on the currency hedges related to the JDE coffee transactions was
recorded in interest and other expense, net and is included in the income /(costs) associated with the JDE coffee transactions of $0.19 above.
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®
4)
®)
(6)
@)

(8)
©)

Refer to Note 6, Restructuring Programs , for more information on our 2014-2018 Restructuring Program and our 2012-2014 Restructuring
Program.

Refer to Note 7, Integration Program and Cost Savings Initiatives , for information on our Cadbury acquisition integration program and Note 2,
Divestitures and Acquisitions , for other integration charges associated with our acquisition of a biscuit operation in our EEMEA segment.

Refer to Note 11, Commitments and Contingencies , for more information on the benefit related to the resolution of a Cadbury acquisition
indemnification in 2013.

Refer to Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies—Currency Translation and Highly Inflationary Accounting , for more information on the
remeasurements of net monetary assets in Venezuela in the current and prior-year periods.

Refer to Note 8, Debt and Borrowing Arrangements , for more information on our loss on debt extinguishment and related expenses in connection
with our debt tender offers in February 2014 and December 2013.

Excludes the favorable currency impact on interest expense related to our non-U.S. dollar denominated debt.

Refer to Note 12, Stock Plans , and Note 13, Capital Stock , for more information on our equity compensation programs and share repurchase
program and Note 16, Earnings Per Share , for earnings per share weighted-average share information.

(10) Refer to Note 15, Income Taxes , for more information on the change in our income taxes and effective tax rate.
(11) Refer to Note 5, Goodwill and Intangible Assets , for more information on the impairment charges in 2014 recorded related to two trademarks.
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2013 compared with 2012

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2013 2012 $ change % change
(in millions, except per share data)

Net revenues $ 35,299 $ 35,015 $ 284 0.8%
Operating income 3,971 3,637 334 9.2%
Earnings from continuing operations 2,332 1,606 726 45.2%
Net earnings attributable to

Mondeléz International 3,915 3,067 848 27.6%
Diluted earnings per share from

continuing operations attributable to

Mondeléz International 1.29 0.88 0.41 46.6%
Diluted earnings per share attributable to

Mondeléz International 2.19 1.71 0.48 28.1%

Net Revenues — Net revenues increased $284 million (0.8%) to $35,299 million in 2013, and Organic Net Revenue () increased
$1,338 million (3.9%) to $35,938 million. The change in net revenues and Organic Net Revenue are detailed below:

2013

Change in net revenues (by percentage point)
Favorable volume/mix 3.4pp
Higher net pricing 0.5pp
Total change in Organic Net Revenue @) 3.9%
Unfavorable currency (2.4)pp
Impact of divestitures (1.0)pp
Impact of acquisition 0.2pp
Impact of accounting calendar change 0.1pp
Total change in net revenues 0.8%

(1) Please see the Non-GAAP Financial Measures section at the end of this item.

Organic Net Revenue growth was driven by favorable volume/mix and higher net pricing. Favorable volume/mix was driven
primarily by higher shipments across all segments except Asia Pacific. Higher net pricing in Latin America, primarily related to
Venezuela, Argentina and Brazil, and in North America was partially offset by lower net pricing in Europe, Asia Pacific and EEMEA,
primarily due to lower coffee prices. Unfavorable currency decreased net revenues by $837 million, due primarily to the devaluation
of the Venezuelan bolivar and the strength of the U.S. dollar relative to most currencies, including the Brazilian real, Argentinean
peso, Australian dollar, Indian rupee, Japanese yen and South African rand, partially offset by the strength of the euro relative the
U.S. dollar. The impact of divestitures resulted in a year-over-year decrease in net revenues of $345 million. In addition, the
acquisition of a biscuit operation in Morocco added $91 million in net revenues and the accounting calendar change in Europe
added $37 million in net revenues in 2013.
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Operating Income — Operating income increased $334 million (9.2%) to $3,971 million in 2013, Adjusted Operating Income ()
increased $1 million (0.0%) to $4,267 million and Adjusted Operating Income on a constant currency basis M) increased $147
million (3.4%) to $4,413 million due to the following:

Operating
Income Change
(in millions) (percentage point)

Operating Income for the Year Ended December 31,20 12 $ 3,637
Spin-Off Costs 444 10.5pp
2012-2014 Restructuring Program costs 110 2.3pp
Integration Program costs 140 3.0pp
Spin-Off pension expense adjustment (2 68 1.7pp
Intangible asset impairment charge 52 1.5pp
Gains on divestitures, net (107) (2.4)pp
Acquisition-related costs 1 -
Operating income from divestitures (79) (1.7)pp

Adjusted Operating Income () for the Year Ended December 31, 2012 $ 4,266
Higher net pricing 157 3.7pp
Higher input costs (333) (7.9)pp
Favorable volume/mix 495 11.6pp
Higher selling, general and administrative expenses (246) (5.7)pp
Change in unrealized gains / (losses) on hedging activities 61 1.4pp
Gains on sales of property in 2013 68 1.6pp
Gains on sales of property in 2012 (77) (1.8)pp
Impact from acquisition 16 0.4pp
Impact of accounting calendar changes 6 0.1pp
Total change in Adjusted Operating Income (constant currency) @ 147 3.4%
Unfavorable currency - translation (146) (3.4)pp
Total change in Adjusted Operating Income 1 (0.0)%

Adjusted Operating Income @ for the Year Ended December 31, 2013 $ 4,267
Spin-Off Costs (62) (2.5)pp
2012-2014 Restructuring Program costs (330) (7.7)pp
Integration Program and other integration costs (220) (5.0)pp
Benefit from indemnification resolution 336 9.3pp
Remeasurement of net monetary assets in Venezuela (54) (2.5)pp
Gains on acquisition and divestitures, net 30 0.7pp
Acquisition-related costs (2) (0.1)pp
Operating income from divestitures 6 0.1pp
Operating Income for the Year Ended December 31, 20 13 $ 3,971 9.2%

(1) Please see the Non-GAAP Financial Measures section at the end of this item.
(2) Represents the estimated annual benefit plan expense associated with certain benefit plan obligations transferred to Kraft Foods Group, Inc. in the
Spin-Off.

Favorable volume/mix was driven primarily by volume gains across all segments except Asia Pacific. Higher net pricing in Latin
America and North America was partially offset by lower net pricing in Europe, Asia Pacific and EEMEA, primarily due to lower
coffee pricing. During 2013, increased input costs outpaced higher net pricing. The increase in input costs was driven by higher raw
material costs, in part due to higher currency exchange transaction costs on imported materials, partially offset by lower
manufacturing costs.

Total selling, general and administrative expenses decreased $497 million from 2012, due in part to lower Spin-Off Costs, a benefit
from the resolution of the Cadbury acquisition-related indemnification, a favorable currency impact net of the negative impact from
the devaluation of our net monetary assets in Venezuela, gains on the sales of properties in 2013 and the impact of businesses
divested in 2013 and 2012, which were patrtially offset by gains on sales of properties in 2012, higher Integration Program costs,
higher 2012-2014 Restructuring Program costs and the inclusion of expenses related to the acquired biscuit operations in Morocco.
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Excluding the factors noted above, selling, general and administrative expenses increased $246 million from 2012, driven primarily
by higher overhead costs in emerging markets, including investments in sales capabilities and route-to-market expansion in
emerging markets, the 2012 reversal of reserves carried over from the Cadbury acquisition in 2010 and no longer required, prior-
year proceeds from insurance settlements and higher advertising and consumer promotion costs in Asia Pacific, EEMEA and Latin
America.

The change in unrealized gains / (losses) added $61 million in operating income for 2013. In 2013, the net unrealized gains were
$62 million, as compared to net unrealized gains of $1 million in 2012. In 2013, we recorded pre-tax gains of $68 million related to
sales of properties in India and Europe. In 2012, we recorded pre-tax gains of $77 million related to sales of properties in Russia
and Turkey. The acquisition of a biscuit operation in Morocco added $16 million in operating income for 2013. Accounting calendar
changes that went into effect in Europe in the first quarter of 2013 increased operating income by $6 million.

Unfavorable currency impacts decreased operating income by $146 million, due primarily to the devaluation of the Venezuelan
bolivar and the strength of the U.S. dollar relative to most currencies, including the Brazilian real, Argentinean peso, Indian rupee,
Japanese yen, South African rand and Russian ruble, partially offset by the strength of the euro relative to the U.S. dollar.

Operating income margin increased from 10.4% in 2012 to 11.2% in 2013. The increase in operating income margin was driven
primarily by lower Spin-Off Costs and the benefit from the resolution of the Cadbury acquisition-related indemnification, partially
offset by higher costs for the 2012-2014 Restructuring Program, lower Integration Program costs, a negative impact from
divestitures and the unfavorable impact from the devaluation of our net monetary assets in Venezuela. Adjusted Operating Income
margin decreased from 12.3% in 2012 to 12.1% in 2013. The decrease in Adjusted Operating Income margin was driven primarily
by a modest decline in gross margin, due to the timing of price increases to cover rising currency exchange transaction costs on
imported raw materials in the second half of the year, partially offset by the benefit of leverage on our selling, general and
administrative expenses.
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Net Earnings and Earnings per Share Attributable to Mondeléz International — Net earnings attributable to Mondeléz International of
$3,915 million increased by $848 million (27.6%) in 2013. Diluted EPS attributable to Mondeléz International was $2.19 in 2013, up
$0.48 (28.1%) from 2012. Diluted EPS from continuing operations attributable to Mondeléz International was $1.29 in 2013, up
$0.41 (46.6%) from 2012. Adjusted EPS M) was $1.54 in 2013, up $0.11 (7.7%) from 2012. Adjusted EPS on a constant currency
basis M was $1.60 in 2013, up $0.17 (11.9%) from 2012.

Diluted EPS
Diluted EPS Attributable to Mondel &z International for the Year Ended December 31, 201 2 $ 1.71
Discontinued operations 0.83
Diluted EPS Attributable to Mondel &z International from Continuing Operations for the Year
Ended December 31, 2012 0.88
Spin-Off Costs @ 0.39
2012-2014 Restructuring Program costs (3 0.04
Integration Program costs () 0.08
Spin-Off interest expense adjustment ©) 0.06
Spin-Off pension expense adjustment ©) 0.02
Intangible asset impairment charge () 0.02
Gains on divestitures, net @ (0.03)
Net earnings from divestitures (2) (0.03)
Adjusted EPS @ for the Year Ended December 31, 2012 1.43
Increase in operations 0.04
Gains on sales of property in 2013 @ 0.03
Gains on sales of property in 2012 @) (0.03)
Change in unrealized gains / (losses) on hedging activities 0.03
Lower interest and other expense, net (8 0.03
Changes in shares outstanding ©) —
Changes in income taxes (10) 0.07
Adjusted EPS (constant currency) (O for the Year Ended December 31, 2013 1.60
Unfavorable foreign currency - translation (0.06)
Adjusted EPS @ for the Year Ended December 31, 2013 1.54
Spin-Off Costs @ (0.02)
2012-2014 Restructuring Program costs () (0.14)
Integration Program and other acquisition integration costs ) (0.10)
Loss on debt extinguishment and related expenses (11) (0.22)
Net benefit from indemnification resolution 12) 0.20
Remeasurement of net monetary assets in Venezuela (13 (0.03)
Gains on acquisition and divestitures, net () 0.04
Residual tax benefit impact due to resolution of Starbucks arbitration 0.02
Acquisition-related costs @ -
Net earnings from divestitures -
Diluted EPS Attributable to Mondel €z International from Continuing Operations for the Year
Ended December 31, 2013 1.29
Discontinued operations 0.90
Diluted EPS Attributable to Mondel €z International for the Year Ended December 31, 201 3 $ 2.19

(1) Please see the Non-GAAP Financial Measures section at the end of this item.

(2) Referto Note 2, Divestitures and Acquisitions , for more information on Spin-Off Costs following the Kraft Foods Group, Inc. divestiture, the
resolution of the Starbucks arbitration, other divestitures, an acquisition in our EEMEA segment and sales of property.

(3) Refer to Note 6, Restructuring Programs , for more information on our 2012-2014 Restructuring Program.
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Refer to Note 7, Integration Program and Cost Savings Initiatives , for information on our Cadbury acquisition integration program and Note 2,
Divestitures and Acquisitions , for other integration charges associated with our acquisition of a biscuit operation in our EEMEA segment.
Represents interest expense associated with the assumed reduction of $6 billion of our debt on January 1, 2011 from the utilization of funds
received from the $6 billion of notes Kraft Foods Group, Inc. issued in 2012 in connection with our Spin-Off capitalization plan. Note that during the
year ended December 31, 2012, a portion of the $6 billion of debt was retired. As such, we adjusted interest expense during this period as if this
debt had been repaid on January 1, 2012 to ensure consistency of our assumption and related results.

Represents the estimated annual benefit plan expense associated with certain benefit plan obligations transferred to Kraft Foods Group, Inc. in the
Spin-Off.

In 2012, we recorded $52 million of impairment charges related to a trademark on a Japanese chewing gum product within our Asia Pacific
segment.

Excludes the favorable currency impact on interest expense related to our non-U.S. denominated debt, the change in interest expense included in
Spin-Off Costs and the change in interest expense associated with the assumed reduction of $6 billion of our debt on January 1, 2012 from the
utilization of funds received from the $6 billion of notes Kraft Foods Group, Inc. issued directly and cash proceeds distributed to us in June 2012 in
connection with our Spin-Off capitalization plan.

Refer to Note 12, Stock Plans , and Note 13, Capital Stock , for more information on our equity compensation programs and share repurchase
program and Note 16, Earnings Per Share , for earnings per share weighted-average share information.

(10) Refer to Note 15, Income Taxes , for more information on the change in our income taxes and effective tax rate.
(11) Refer to Note 8, Debt and Borrowing Arrangements , for more information on our loss on debt extinguishment and related expenses in connection

with our debt tender offer in December 2013.

(12) Refer to Note 11, Commitments and Contingencies , for more information on the benefit related to the resolution of a Cadbury acquisition

indemnification in 2013.

(13) Refer to Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies—Currency Translation and Highly Inflationary Accounting , for more information on the

remeasurement of net monetary assets in Venezuela in 2013.
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Results of Operations by Reportable Segment

Our operations and management structure are organized into five reportable operating segments:

Latin America
Asia Pacific
EEMEA
Europe

North America

We manage our operations by region to leverage regional operating scale, manage different and changing business environments
more effectively at a local level and pursue growth opportunities as they arise in our key markets. Beginning in 2015, within each
region, we also manage by product category. In the historical periods presented and discussed below, we managed our operations
within Latin America, Asia Pacific and EEMEA by location and within Europe and North America by location and product category.

We use segment operating income to evaluate segment performance and allocate resources. We believe it is appropriate to
disclose this measure to help investors analyze segment performance and trends. See Note 17, Segment Reporting, for additional
information on our segments and Items Affecting Comparability of Financial Results earlier in this section for items affecting our
segment operating results.

Our segment net revenues and earnings for the following historical periods were:

For the Years Ended December 31,

Net revenues:
Latin America
Asia Pacific
EEMEA
Europe
North America

Net revenues

Earnings from continuing operations before income taxes:
Operating income:
Latin America
Asia Pacific
EEMEA
Europe
North America
Unrealized gains / (losses) on hedging activities
General corporate expenses
Amortization of intangibles
Benefit from indemnification resolution
Gains on acquisition and divestitures, net
Acquisition-related costs
Operating income
Interest and other expense, net
Earnings from continuing operations before income taxes
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2014 2013 2012
(in millions)
5,153 $ 5,382 $ 5,396
4,605 4,952 5,164
3,638 3,915 3,735
13,912 14,059 13,817
6,936 6,991 6,903
34,244 $ 35,299 $ 35,015
For the Years Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012
(in millions)
475 $ 570 $ 769
385 512 657
327 379 506
1,770 1,699 1,762
922 889 781
(112) 62 1
(317) (287) (728)
(206) (217) (217)
- 336 -
- 30 107
2) 2) 1)
3,242 3,971 3,637
(688) (1,579) (1,863)
2,554 $ 2,392 $ 1,774
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Latin America

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2014 2013 $ change % change
(in millions)
Net revenues $ 5,153 $ 5,382 $ (229) (4.3)%
Segment operating income 475 570 (95) (16.7)%

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2013 2012 $ change % change
(in millions)
Net revenues $ 5,382 $ 5,396 $ (14) (0.3)%
Segment operating income 570 769 (199) (25.9)%

2014 compared with 2013:

Net revenues decreased $229 million (4.3%), due to unfavorable currency (19.4 pp) and unfavorable volume/mix (4.2 pp), partially
offset by higher net pricing (19.3 pp). Unfavorable currency impacts were due primarily to the Venezuelan bolivar devaluation and
the strength of the U.S. dollar relative to the Argentinean peso and Brazilian real. Unfavorable volume/mix was driven primarily by
Mexico, Venezuela and Argentina, partially offset by gains in Brazil and the Western Andean countries. Higher net pricing was
reflected primarily in the higher inflationary countries of Venezuela and Argentina, as well as in Brazil and Mexico.

Segment operating income decreased $95 million (16.7%), due primarily to higher raw material costs, unfavorable currency,
unfavorable volume/mix, the year-over-year net impact from the remeasurement of net monetary assets in Venezuela, costs
incurred for the 2014-2018 Restructuring Program and higher advertising and consumer promotion costs. These unfavorable items
were partially offset by higher net pricing, lower manufacturing costs, the absence of Integration Program costs in 2014, lower other
selling, general and administrative expenses (including $84 million related primarily to VAT-related settlements) and lower 2012-
2014 Restructuring Program costs.

2013 compared with 2012:

Net revenues decreased $14 million (0.3%), due to unfavorable currency (12.6 pp), mostly offset by higher net pricing (11.4 pp) and
favorable volume/mix (0.9 pp). Unfavorable currency was due primarily to the Venezuelan bolivar devaluation and the strength of
the U.S. dollar relative to the Brazilian real and Argentinean peso, partially offset by the strength of the Mexican peso relative to the
U.S. dollar. Higher net pricing was reflected across the entire region except in Mexico. Favorable volume/mix was driven primarily
by Brazil, partially offset by volume/mix declines in Argentina and Venezuela.

Segment operating income decreased $199 million (25.9%), due primarily to higher raw material costs, unfavorable currency
including the $54 million impact from the devaluation of net monetary assets in Venezuela, higher other selling, general and
administrative expenses (including prior-year proceeds from an insurance settlement), higher manufacturing costs, higher 2012-
2014 Restructuring Program costs, and higher advertising and consumer promotion costs. These unfavorable items were partially
offset by higher net pricing and lower Spin-Off Costs.
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Asia Pacific
For the Years Ended
December 31,
2014 2013 $ change % change
(in millions)
Net revenues $ 4,605 $ 4,952 $ (347) (7.0)%
Segment operating income 385 512 (127) (24.8)%
For the Years Ended
December 31,
2013 2012 $ change % change
(in millions)
Net revenues $ 4,952 $ 5,164 $ (212) (4.1)%
Segment operating income 512 657 (145) (22.1)%

2014 compared with 2013:

Net revenues decreased $347 million (7.0%), due to unfavorable volume/mix (5.7 pp) and unfavorable currency (4.2 pp), partially
offset by higher net pricing (2.9 pp). Unfavorable volume/mix was driven primarily by China, Australia/New Zealand, Indonesia,
Malaysia and the Philippines, partially offset by gains in India. Unfavorable currency impacts were due primarily to the strength of
the U.S. dollar relative to the Australian dollar, Indian rupee, Indonesian rupiah and Japanese yen. Higher net pricing was primarily
due to India, Indonesia, the Philippines, Australia/New Zealand and China.

Segment operating income decreased $127 million (24.8%), due primarily to higher raw material costs, unfavorable volume/mix, an
intangible asset impairment charge related to a biscuit trademark, higher 2012-2014 Restructuring Program costs, 2014-2018
Restructuring Program costs and unfavorable currency. These unfavorable items were partially offset by higher net pricing, lower
manufacturing costs, lower advertising and consumer promotion costs, the absence of Integration Program costs in 2014 and lower

other selling, general and administrative expenses (including an unfavorable year-over-year impact from the 2013 gain on a sale of
property in India).

2013 compared with 2012:

Net revenues decreased $212 million (4.1%), due to unfavorable currency (4.7 pp) and lower net pricing (1.9 pp) partially offset by
favorable volume/mix (2.5 pp). Unfavorable currency was due primarily to the strength of the U.S. dollar relative to the Australian
dollar, Indian rupee and Japanese yen. Lower net pricing was reflected in the region’s developed markets, partially offset by higher
net pricing in the region’s emerging markets, primarily in India, the Philippines and Thailand. Favorable volume/mix was driven by

the region’s emerging markets, primarily India, China, the Philippines and Malaysia, as well as in the region’s developed markets of
Australia/New Zealand.

Segment operating income decreased $145 million (22.1%), due primarily to higher raw material costs, lower net pricing,
unfavorable currency, higher other selling, general and administrative expenses (including investments in sales capabilities and
route-to-market expansion, the impacts of a gain on sale of property in India and prior-year proceeds from an insurance settlement)
and higher advertising and consumer promotion costs. These unfavorable items were partially offset by lower manufacturing costs,
a 2012 asset impairment charge related to a trademark in Japan, lower Spin-Off Costs and favorable volume/mix.
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EEMEA
For the Years Ended
December 31,
2014 2013 $ change % change
(in millions)
Net revenues $ 3,638 $ 3,915 $ (277) (7.1)%
Segment operating income 327 379 (52) (13.7Y%
For the Years Ended
December 31,
2013 2012 $ change % change
(in millions)
Net revenues $ 3,915 $ 3,735 $ 180 4.8%
Segment operating income 379 506 (127) (25.1)%

2014 compared with 2013:

Net revenues decreased $277 million (7.1%), due to unfavorable currency (13.4 pp) and the impact of divestitures (0.5 pp), partially
offset by higher net pricing (5.7 pp), favorable volume/mix (0.8 pp) and the impact of the February 2013 acquisition of a biscuit
operation in Morocco (0.3 pp). Unfavorable currency impacts were due to the strength of the U.S. dollar relative to most currencies
in the region, primarily the Russian ruble, Ukrainian hryvnya, South African rand and Turkish lira. Divestitures completed in 2013
resulted in a $20 million decline in net revenues. Higher net pricing was reflected across most of the segment, primarily in Russia,
Ukraine and Turkey. Favorable volume/mix was driven primarily by Russia, the Gulf Cooperation Council (“GCC”) countries and
Turkey. The acquisition of a biscuit operation in Morocco in February 2013 added $14 million in incremental net revenues for 2014
for the period prior to the anniversary date of the acquisition.

Segment operating income decreased $52 million (13.7%), due primarily to higher raw material costs, unfavorable currency, higher
2012-2014 Restructuring Program costs, costs incurred for the 2014-2018 Restructuring Program and costs associated with the
JDE coffee transactions. These unfavorable items were partially offset by higher net pricing, lower manufacturing costs, lower
Integration Program and other acquisition integration costs, favorable volume/mix, the impact of 2013 divestitures and lower
advertising and consumer promotion costs.

2013 compared with 2012:

Net revenues increased $180 million (4.8%), due to favorable volume/mix (11.0 pp) and the impact of the acquisition of a biscuit
operation in Morocco (2.5 pp), partially offset by unfavorable currency (4.7 pp), the impact of divestitures in Turkey and South Africa
(2.2 pp) and lower net pricing (1.8 pp). Favorable volume/mix was driven primarily by Russia, Ukraine, Egypt, West Africa, Central
and East Africa and South Africa. Unfavorable currency was due to the strength of the U.S. dollar relative to most currencies in the
region, including the South African rand, Russian ruble and Egyptian pound. Lower net pricing was reflected primarily in Russia and
Ukraine, due to lower coffee and chocolate pricing, partially offset by higher net pricing in the GCC countries, South Africa and

Egypt.

Segment operating income decreased $127 million (25.1%), due primarily to higher other selling, general and administrative
expenses (including investments in sales capabilities and route-to-market expansion and a write-off of a $15 million VAT receivable
that is no longer realizable), the 2012 gains on the sales of property in Russia and Turkey, lower net pricing, higher raw material
costs, higher Integration Program and Morocco biscuit acquisition integration costs, unfavorable currency, higher advertising and
consumer promotion costs, higher 2012-2014 Restructuring Program costs and the impact of divestitures in Turkey and South
Africa. These unfavorable items were partially offset by favorable volume/mix, lower manufacturing costs and the impact from the
acquisition in Morocco.
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Europe
For the Years Ended
December 31,
2014 2013 $ change % change
(in millions)
Net revenues $ 13,912 $ 14,059 $ (147) (1.0)%
Segment operating income 1,770 1,699 71 4.2%
For the Years Ended
December 31,
2013 2012 $ change % change
(in millions)
Net revenues $ 14,059 $ 13,817 $ 242 1.8%
Segment operating income 1,699 1,762 (63) (3.6)%

2014 compared with 2013:

Net revenues decreased $147 million (1.0%), due to unfavorable volume/mix (2.3 pp), the impact of the prior year's accounting
calendar change (0.2 pp) and the impact of divestitures (0.0 pp), partially offset by higher net pricing (1.3 pp) and favorable
currency (0.2 pp). Unfavorable volume/mix was driven by lower shipments across all categories. The decline was due to pricing-
related elasticity across the region and certain pricing-related customer disruptions. The accounting calendar change made in 2013
resulted in a year-over-year decrease in net revenues of $38 million. In addition, divestitures completed in 2013 resulted in an $11
million decline in net revenues. Higher net pricing was driven by chocolate and cheese & grocery, partially offset by lower net
pricing in all other categories, primarily biscuits and coffee. Favorable currency impacts primarily reflected the strength of the British
pound sterling relative to the U.S. dollar, partially offset by the strength of the U.S. dollar against the Swedish krona, the euro and
Norwegian krone.

Segment operating income increased $71 million (4.2%), due primarily to lower manufacturing costs, higher net pricing, lower
Integration Program costs (including the reversal of a prior-year accrual), lower advertising and consumer promotion costs and
lower other selling, general and administrative expenses (net of the unfavorable year-over-year impact from the 2013 gains on the
sales of property in the United Kingdom, Norway and Italy, and the benefit from a 2014 gain on a sale of property in the United
Kingdom). These favorable items were partially offset by higher raw material costs (primarily higher cocoa costs), costs incurred for
the 2014-2018 Restructuring Program, unfavorable volume mix, higher 2012-2014 Restructuring Program costs, costs associated
with the JDE coffee transactions, an intangible asset impairment charge related to a candy trademark and the year-over-year
impact from last year's accounting calendar change.

2013 compared with 2012:

Net revenues increased $242 million (1.8%), due to favorable volume/mix (3.2 pp), favorable currency (2.1 pp) and the impact of an
accounting calendar change (0.3 pp), partially offset by lower pricing (2.4 pp) and the impact of current and prior-year divestitures
(1.4 pp). Favorable volume/mix was driven by higher shipments in chocolate, biscuits and coffee, partially offset by lower shipments
in gum & candy and cheese & grocery. Favorable currency primarily reflected the strength of the euro, Swedish krona and Polish
zloty relative to the U.S. dollar, partially offset by the strength of the U.S. dollar relative to the British pound sterling. Lower net
pricing was driven primarily by lower coffee prices.

Segment operating income decreased $63 million (3.6%), due primarily to lower net pricing, higher 2012-2014 Restructuring
Program costs, the impact of current and prior-year divestitures and higher Integration Program costs (partially due to the reversal
of $45 million of charges due to the outcome of labor negotiations in April 2012). These unfavorable items were partially offset by
favorable volume/mix, lower manufacturing costs, favorable currency, lower other selling, general and administrative expenses
(including the impacts of gains on the sales of property in the United Kingdom, Norway and Italy and a $44 million reversal in 2012
of reserves carried over from the Cadbury acquisition in 2010 no longer required), lower advertising and consumer promotion costs,
the impact of an accounting calendar change and lower raw material costs (primarily coffee).
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North America

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2014 2013 $ change % change
(in millions)
Net revenues $ 6,936 $ 6,991 $ (55) (0.8)%
Segment operating income 922 889 33 3.7%

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2013 2012 $ change % change
(in millions)
Net revenues $ 6,991 $ 6,903 $ 88 1.3%
Segment operating income 889 781 108 13.8%

2014 compared with 2013:

Net revenues decreased $55 million (0.8%), due to unfavorable currency (1.0 pp) and the impact of divestitures (0.6 pp), partially
offset by favorable volume/mix (0.7 pp) and higher net pricing (0.1 pp). Unfavorable currency impact was due to the strength of the
U.S. dollar relative to the Canadian dollar. Divestitures completed in 2013 resulted in a $39 million decline in net revenues.
Favorable volume/mix was driven primarily by higher shipments in biscuits, partially offset by lower shipments in gum. Higher net
pricing was reflected primarily in biscuits and gum, partially offset by lower net pricing in chocolate.

Segment operating income increased $33 million (3.7%), due primarily to lower raw material costs, lower other selling, general and
administrative expenses, favorable volume/mix, lower 2012-2014 Restructuring Program costs, lower advertising and consumer
promotion costs and higher net pricing. These favorable items were partially offset by costs incurred for the 2014-2018
Restructuring Program, higher manufacturing costs and the impact of divestitures.

2013 compared with 2012:

Net revenues increased $88 million (1.3%), due to favorable volume/mix (2.5 pp) and higher net pricing (0.4 pp), partially offset by
the impact of current and prior-year divestitures (1.0 pp) and unfavorable currency (0.6 pp). Favorable volume/mix was driven
primarily by higher shipments in biscuits and candy, partially offset by lower shipments in gum. Higher net pricing was reflected
primarily in biscuits and candy, partially offset by lower net pricing in gum.

Segment operating income increased $108 million (13.8%), due primarily to favorable volume/mix, lower pension expenses due to
the transfer of certain benefit plan obligations to Kraft Foods Group, Inc. in the Spin-Off, higher net pricing, lower manufacturing
costs, lower advertising and consumer promotion costs (including a reversal of some prior-year accruals), lower Spin-Off Costs and
lower Integration Program costs. These favorable items were partially offset by higher 2012-2014 Restructuring Program costs,
higher raw material costs, and the impact of a current and prior-year divestitures.
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Critical Accounting Estimates

We prepare our condensed consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP. The preparation of these financial
statements requires the use of estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the periods presented. Actual results
could differ from those estimates and assumptions. Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies , to the consolidated
financial statements includes a summary of the significant accounting policies we used to prepare our consolidated financial
statements. We have discussed the selection and disclosure of our critical accounting policies and estimates with our Audit
Committee. The following is a review of our most significant assumptions and estimates.

Goodwill and Non-Amortizable Intangible Assets :

We test goodwill and non-amortizable intangible assets for impairment on an annual basis in the fourth quarter. We assess goodwill
impairment risk throughout the year by performing a qualitative review of entity-specific, industry, market and general economic
factors affecting the reporting units with goodwill. Annually, we may perform qualitative testing, or depending on factors such as
prior-year test results, current year developments, current risk evaluations and other practical considerations, we may elect to do
guantitative testing instead. Quantitative impairment testing consists of a two-step evaluation. The first step compares a reporting
unit's estimated fair value with its carrying value. We estimate a reporting unit’s fair value using a discounted cash flow method
which incorporates planned growth rates, market-based discount rates and estimates of residual value. This year, for reporting units
in our Europe and North America segments, we used a market-based, weighted-average cost of capital of 6.9% to discount the
projected cash flows of those operations. For our Latin America, Asia Pacific and EEMEA reporting units, we used a risk-rated
discount rate of 9.9%. Estimating the fair value of individual reporting units requires us to make assumptions and estimates
regarding our future plans and industry and economic conditions, and our actual results and conditions may differ over time. If the
carrying value of a reporting unit's net assets exceeds its fair value, we apply the second step to measure the difference between
the carrying value and implied fair value of goodwill. If the carrying value of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, the goodwill is
impaired and its carrying value is reduced to the implied fair value of the goodwill.

On January 1, 2014, an organizational change occurred within our North America region from a country and product category
structure to a regional product category structure. As a result, our North America region now has two instead of four reporting units.
For any reporting units that were reorganized, the goodwill was allocated to the new reporting unit structure based on relative fair
values of the related business units.

In 2014, 2013 and 2012, all reporting units passed our annual goodwill impairment testing. If expectations are not met or specific
valuation factors outside of our control, such as discount rates, change significantly, then the estimated fair value of a reporting unit
or reporting units might decline and lead to a goodwill impairment in the future.

We test non-amortizable intangible assets for impairment by performing a qualitative review and assessing events and
circumstances that could affect the fair value or carrying value of the indefinite-lived intangible assets. If significant potential
impairment risk exists for a specific asset, we quantitatively test it for impairment by comparing its estimated fair value with its
carrying value. Estimated fair value is determined using planned growth rates, market-based discount rates and estimates of royalty
rates. If the carrying value of the asset exceeds its estimated fair value, the asset is impaired and its carrying value is reduced to
the estimated fair value.

During our 2014 review of non-amortizable intangible assets, we recorded $57 million of impairment charges related to two
trademarks. In both cases, the impairments arose due to lower than expected product growth and decisions made in the fourth
quarter to redirect support for the products to other regional brands. We recorded a $48 million charge related to a biscuit
trademark in our Asia Pacific segment and a $9 million charge related to a candy trademark in our Europe segment. The
impairment charges were calculated as the excess of the carrying value over the estimated fair value of the intangible assets on a
global basis and were recorded within asset impairment and exit costs. We primarily use a relief of royalty valuation method,
which utilizes estimates of future sales, growth rates, royalty rates and discount rates in determining a brand’s global fair

value. During our 2014 intangible asset impairment review, we also noted three brands with $341 million of aggregate book value
as of December 31, 2014 that each had a fair value in excess of book value of 10% or less. While these intangible assets passed
our annual impairment testing and we believe our current plans for each of these brands will allow them to continue to not be
impaired, if expectations are not met or specific valuation factors outside of our control, such as discount rates, change significantly,
then a brand or brands could become impaired in the future.

Refer also to Note 5, Goodwill and Intangible Assets , for additional information.
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Trade and marketing programs:

We promote our products with advertising, marketing, sales incentives and trade promotions. These programs include, but are not
limited to, cooperative advertising, in-store displays, consumer promotions, new product introduction fees, discounts, coupons,
rebates and volume-based incentives. We expense advertising costs either in the period the advertising first takes place or as
incurred. Sales incentive and trade promotion activities are recorded as a reduction to revenues based on amounts estimated due
to customers and consumers at the end of a period. We base these estimates principally on historical utilization and redemption
rates. For interim reporting purposes, advertising expenses and sales incentives are charged to operations as a percentage of
volume, based on estimated volume and estimated program spending. We do not defer costs on our year-end consolidated
balance sheet and all marketing costs are recorded as an expense in the year incurred.

Employee Benefit Plans:

We sponsor various employee benefit plans throughout the world. These include primarily pension plans and postretirement
healthcare benefits. For accounting purposes, we estimate the pension and post-retirement healthcare benefit obligations utilizing
assumptions and estimates for discount rates; expected returns on plan assets; expected compensation increases; employee-
related factors such as turnover, retirement age and mortality (during 2014, we applied the new mortality tables in accounting for
our U.S. pension plans); and health care cost trends. We review our actuarial assumptions on an annual basis and make
modifications to the assumptions based on current rates and trends when appropriate. Our assumptions also reflect our historical
experiences and management’s best judgment regarding future expectations. These and other assumptions affect the annual
expense and obligations recognized for the underlying plans.

As permitted by U.S. GAAP, we generally amortize the effect of changes in the assumptions over future periods. The cost or benefit
of plan changes, such as increasing or decreasing benefits for prior employee service (prior service cost), is deferred and included
in expense on a straight-line basis over the average remaining service period of the employees expected to receive benefits.

Since pension and post-retirement liabilities are measured on a discounted basis, the discount rate significantly affects our plan
obligations and expenses. The expected return on plan assets assumption affects our pension plan expenses, since many of our
pension plans are partially funded. The assumptions for discount rates and expected rates of return and our process for setting
these assumptions are described in Note 10, Benefit Plans , to the consolidated financial statements.

While we do not anticipate further changes in the 2015 assumptions for our U.S. and non-U.S. pension and postretirement health
care plans, as a sensitivity measure, a fifty-basis point change in our discount rates or the expected rate of return on plan assets
would have the following effects, increase / (decrease), on our annual benefit plan costs:

As of December 31, 2014
U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
Fifty -Basis -Point Fifty -Basis -Point
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
(in millions)

Effect of change in discount rate on

pension costs $ (13) $ 14 $ (56) $ 82
Effect of change in expected rate

of return on plan assets on pension

costs (5) 5 (42) 41
Effect of change in discount rate on
postretirement health care costs 3) 3 (2) 1

Income Taxes:

As a global company, we calculate and provide for income taxes in each tax jurisdiction in which we operate. The provision for
income taxes includes the amounts payable or refundable in the current year, the effect of deferred taxes and impacts from
uncertain tax positions. Our provision for income taxes is significantly affected by shifts in the geographic mix of our pre-tax
earnings across tax jurisdictions, changes in tax laws and regulations, tax planning opportunities available in each tax jurisdiction
and the ultimate outcome of various tax audits.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the
financial statement and tax bases of our assets and liabilities and for operating losses and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates that will apply to taxable income in the years in which those differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. Valuation allowances are established for deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not
that a tax benefit will not be realized.

We recognize tax benefits in our financial statements from uncertain tax positions only if it is more likely than not that the tax
position will be sustained on examination by tax authorities based on the technical merits of the position. The amount we recognize
is measured as the largest benefit that has a greater than 50 percent likelihood of being realized upon settlement. We evaluate
uncertain tax positions on an ongoing basis and adjust the related tax liabilities or assets in light of changing facts and
circumstances, such as the progress of a tax audit or expiration of a statute of limitations. We believe the estimates and
assumptions used to support our evaluation of uncertain tax positions are reasonable. However, final determination of historical tax
liabilities, either by settlement with tax authorities or expiration of statutes of limitations, could be materially different from estimates
reflected on our consolidated balance sheet and historical income tax provisions. The outcome of these final determinations could
have a material effect on our provision for income taxes, net earnings or cash flows in the period in which the determination is
made. We believe our tax positions comply with applicable tax laws and that we have adequately accounted for uncertain tax
positions.

No taxes have been provided on undistributed foreign earnings that are planned to be indefinitely reinvested. If future events, such
as material changes in long-term investment requirements, necessitate that these earnings be distributed, an additional provision
for taxes may apply, which could materially affect our future effective tax rate.

See Note 15, Income Taxes , for additional information on our effective tax rate, current and deferred taxes, valuation allowances
and unrecognized tax benefits.

Contingencies:
See Note 11, Commitments and Contingencies , to the consolidated financial statements.

New Accounting Guidance:
See Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies , to the consolidated financial statements for a discussion of new
accounting standards.

Commodity Trends

We regularly monitor worldwide supply, commodity cost and currency trends so we can cost-effectively secure ingredients,
packaging and fuel required for production. During 2014, the primary drivers of the increase in our aggregate commodity costs were
increased cocoa, dairy, packaging, energy and coffee bean costs and higher currency-related costs on our commaodity purchases,
partially offset by lower costs for sugar and grains and oils due primarily to hedging.

A number of external factors such as weather conditions, commodity market conditions, currency fluctuations and the effects of
governmental agricultural or other programs affect the cost and availability of raw materials and agricultural materials used in our
products. We address higher commodity costs and currency impacts primarily through hedging, higher pricing and manufacturing
and overhead cost control. We use hedging techniques to limit the impact of fluctuations in the cost of our principal raw materials;
however, we may not be able to fully hedge against commodity cost changes, and our hedging strategies may not protect us from
increases in specific raw material costs. We generally also price to protect gross profit dollars. Due to competitive or market
conditions, planned trade or promotional incentives, or other factors, our pricing actions may lag commodity cost changes
temporarily.

We expect price volatility and a slightly higher aggregate cost environment to continue in 2015. While the costs of our principal raw
materials fluctuate, we believe there will continue to be an adequate supply of the raw materials we use and that they will generally
remain available from numerous sources.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

We believe that cash from operations, our $4.5 billion revolving credit facility and our authorized long-term financing will provide
sufficient liquidity for our working capital needs, planned capital expenditures, future contractual obligations, share repurchases and
payment of our anticipated quarterly dividends. We expect to maintain investment grade credit ratings on our debt. We continue to
utilize our commercial paper program, primarily uncommitted international credit lines and long-term debt issuances for regular
funding requirements. We also use intercompany loans with our international subsidiaries to improve financial flexibility. Overall, we
do not expect any negative effects to our funding sources that would have a material effect on our liquidity, including the indefinite
reinvestment of our earnings outside of the United States. In Venezuela, we consider all undistributed earnings to be indefinitely
reinvested and access to cash of $278 million in Venezuela to be limited due to the uncertain economic and political environment.
We do not expect this limitation to have a material adverse effect on our liquidity. Refer to Note 1, Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies — Currency Translation and Highly Inflationary Accounting , for additional information.

The cash flow activity of the Kraft Foods Group, Inc. discontinued operation, which was divested on October 1, 2012, is included
within our consolidated cash flow results for periods prior to October 1, 2012.

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Operating activities provided net cash of $3,562 million in 2014, $6,410 million in 2013 and $3,923 million in 2012. The decrease in
operating cash flows in 2014 relative to 2013 was primarily related to our receipt of $2.6 billion of net cash from the resolution of the
Starbucks arbitration in 2013 and higher related income taxes paid in 2014 and lower relative working capital cash improvements
than in 2013, as we decreased our cash conversion cycle (a metric that measures working capital efficiency and utilizes days sales
outstanding, days inventory on hand and days payables outstanding) by 10 days in 2014 as compared to a 13 day reduction in
2013. These year-over-year decreases were partially offset by lower interest payments in 2014 following the debt refinancing in the
first quarter of 2014 and the fourth quarter of 2013. The increase in operating cash flows in 2013 relative to 2012 was primarily
related to the receipt of the $2.6 billion from the Starbucks arbitration resolution, lower spending on Spin-Off Costs and the 2012-
2014 Restructuring Program, lengthening of days payables outstanding, increased collection of receivables and lower interest
payments.

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities:

Net cash used in investing activities was $1,642 million in 2014, $1,483 million in 2013 and $1,687 million in 2012. The increase in
net cash used in investing activities in 2014 relates to lower cash inflows in 2014 to offset higher capital expenditures in 2014. In
2013, we received higher cash proceeds from property sales, net proceeds from divestitures and cash from Kraft Foods Group, Inc.
in connection with the Spin-Off, partially offset by cash we paid for an acquisition in Morocco. The decrease in net cash used in
investing activities in 2013 relative to 2012 related to payments made to Kraft Foods Group, Inc. in 2012 in connection with the
Spin-Off, partially offset by cash we paid for the acquisition in Morocco and lower proceeds from divestitures in 2013.

Capital expenditures were $1,642 million in 2014, $1,622 million in 2013 and $1,610 million in 2012. The 2014 capital expenditures
were funded from operating activities and were made primarily to modernize manufacturing facilities and support new product and
productivity initiatives. We expect 2015 capital expenditures to be up to $1.8 billion, including capital expenditures required for
investments in systems and the 2014-2018 Restructuring Program. We expect to continue to fund these expenditures from
operations.

Net Cash (Used in) / Provided by Financing Activities:

Net cash used in or provided by financing activities was $2,688 million used in 2014, $6,687 million used in 2013 and $204 million
provided in 2012. The decrease in net cash used in financing activities in 2014 relative to 2013 was primarily due to significantly
lower long-term debt repayments and lower share repurchases in 2014, offset in part by decreased proceeds from the issuance of
long-term debt and other short-term borrowings and higher dividend payments in 2014. The decrease in net cash provided by
financing activities in 2013 relative to 2012 was primarily due to lower net proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt, higher re-
payment of long-term debt and repurchases of Common Stock, partially offset by lower dividend payments reflecting our new
capital structure and dividend rate following the Spin-Off and higher short-term borrowings.
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Debt:

From time to time we refinance long-term and short-term debt. The nature and amount of our long-term and short-term debt and the
proportionate amount of each varies as a result of current and expected business requirements, market conditions and other
factors. Generally, in the first and second quarters of the year, our working capital requirements grow, increasing the need for short-
term financing. The third and fourth quarters of the year typically generate higher cash flows. As such, we may issue commercial
paper or secure other forms of financing throughout the year to meet short-term working capital needs.

In February 2014, our Board of Directors approved a $5 billion long-term financing authority that remains available as of
December 31, 2014.

In the next 12 months, $1,513 million of long-term debt will mature as follows: $1,029 million in March 2015 and € 400 million ($484
million as of December 31, 2014) in June 2015. We expect to fund these repayments with cash from operations and the issuance of
commercial paper or additional debt.

Our total debt was $16.7 billion at December 31, 2014 and $17.1 billion at December 31, 2013. Our debt-to-capitalization ratio was
0.38 at December 31, 2014 and 0.35 at December 31, 2013. At December 31, 2014, the weighted-average term of our outstanding
long-term debt was 7.7 years. Our average daily commercial borrowings were $1.9 billion in 2014, $1.0 billion in 2013 and $1.0
billion in 2012. We expect to continue to comply with our long-term debt covenants. Refer to Note 8, Debt and Borrowing
Arrangements , for more information on our debt and debt covenants.

Equity and Dividends

Stock Plans:
See Note 12, Stock Plans , to the consolidated financial statements for more information on our stock plans, grant activity during
2014, 2013 and 2012, and stock award modifications related to the Spin-Off.

Share Repurchases:
See Note 13, Capital Stock , to the consolidated financial statements for more information on our share repurchase and accelerated
share repurchase programs.

We intend to continue to use a portion of our cash for share repurchases. Under our current Board of Directors’ authorization to
repurchase up to $7.7 billion of our Common Stock through December 31, 2016, we have repurchased $4.6 billion ($1.9 billion in
2014 and $2.7 billion in 2013) of shares, with $3.1 billion of share repurchase capacity remaining. The number of shares that we
ultimately repurchase under our share repurchase program may vary depending on numerous factors, including share price and
other market conditions, our ongoing capital allocation planning, levels of cash and debt balances, other demands for cash, such as
acquisition activity, general economic or business conditions and board and management discretion. Additionally, our share
repurchase activity during any particular period may fluctuate. We may accelerate, suspend, delay or discontinue our share
repurchase program at any time, without notice.

Dividends:

We paid dividends of $964 million in 2014, $943 million in 2013 and $2,058 million in 2012. Immediately following the Spin-Off of
Kraft Foods Group, Inc. on October 1, 2012, our annual dividend rate changed to $0.52 per common share. On August 6, 2013, our
Audit Committee, with authorization from our Board of Directors, approved an 8% increase in the quarterly dividend to $0.14 per
common share or $0.56 per common share on an annual basis. On August 5, 2014, our Audit Committee, with authorization from
our Board of Directors, approved a 7% increase in the quarterly dividend to $0.15 per common share or $0.60 per common share
on an annual basis. The declaration of dividends is subject to the discretion of our Board of Directors and depends on various
factors, including our net earnings, financial condition, cash requirements, future prospects and other factors that our Board of
Directors deems relevant to its analysis and decision making.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Aggregate Contra  ctual Obligations

We have no significant off-balance sheet arrangements other than the contractual obligations discussed below.

Guarantees:

As discussed in Note 11, Commitments and Contingencies , we enter into third-party guarantees primarily to cover the long-term
obligations of our vendors. As part of these transactions, we guarantee that third parties will make contractual payments or achieve
performance measures. At December 31, 2014, we had no material third-party guarantees recorded on our consolidated balance
sheet.

In addition, at December 31, 2014, we were contingently liable for $743 million of guarantees related to our own performance.
These include letters of credit and guarantees related to the payment of custom duties and taxes.

Guarantees do not have, and we do not expect them to have, a material effect on our liquidity.

Aggregate Contractual Obligations:
The following table summarizes our contractual obligations at December 31, 2014.

Payments Due

2020 and
Total 2015 2016-17 2018-19 Thereafter
(in millions)
Debt (D) $ 15,381 $ 1,513 $ 3,254 $ 2,947 $ 7,667
Interest expense (2 6,939 700 1,224 877 4,138
Capital leases 24 17 7 - -
Operating leases ) 1,080 309 409 231 131
Purchase obligations: )

Inventory and production costs 6,544 3,935 1,664 811 134
Other 1,378 1,051 320 7 —
7,922 4,986 1,984 818 134
Other long-term liabilities ®) 666 43 126 190 307
Total $ 32,012 $ 7,568 $ 7,004 $ 5,063 $ 12,377

(1) Amounts include the expected cash payments of our long-term debt excluding capital leases, which are presented separately in the table above.
The amounts also exclude $(10) million of net unamortized non-cash bond premiums and discounts and mark-to-market adjustments related to our
interest rate swaps recorded in total debt.

(2) Amounts represent the expected cash payments of our interest expense on our long-term debt. Interest calculated on our euro and British pound
sterling notes were forecasted using currency exchange rates as of December 31, 2014. An insignificant amount of interest expense was excluded
from the table for a portion of our other non-U.S. debt obligations due to the complexities involved in forecasting expected interest payments.

(3) Operating lease payments represent the minimum rental commitments under non-cancelable operating leases.

(4) Purchase obligations for inventory and production costs (such as raw materials, indirect materials and supplies, packaging, co-manufacturing
arrangements, storage and distribution) are commitments for projected needs to be utilized in the normal course of business. Other purchase
obligations include commitments for marketing, advertising, capital expenditures, information technology and professional services. Arrangements
are considered purchase obligations if a contract specifies all significant terms, including fixed or minimum quantities to be purchased, a pricing
structure and approximate timing of the transaction. Most arrangements are cancelable without a significant penalty and with short notice (usually
30 days). Any amounts reflected on the consolidated balance sheet as accounts payable and accrued liabilities are excluded from the table above.

(5) Other long-term liabilities include estimated future benefit payments for our postretirement health care plans through December 31, 2024 of $203
million. We are unable to reliably estimate the timing of the payments beyond 2024; as such, they are excluded from the above table. There are also
another $280 million of various other long-term liabilities that are expected to be paid over the next 5 years. In addition, the following long-term
liabilities included on the consolidated balance sheet are excluded from the table above: accrued pension costs, income taxes, insurance accruals
and other accruals. We are unable to reliably estimate the timing of the payments (or contributions beyond 2015, in the case of accrued pension
costs) for these items. We currently expect to make approximately $529 million in contributions to our pension plans in 2015. We also expect that
our net pension cost will increase to approximately $321 million in 2015. The increase is primarily due to lower discount rates offset by favorable
beginning of the year asset levels and planned contributions. As of December 31, 2014, our total liability for income taxes, including uncertain tax
positions and associated accrued interest and penalties, was $1,041 million. We currently estimate payments of approximately $133 million related
to these positions over the next 12 months.
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Non-GAAP Financial Measures

We use non-GAAP financial information and believe it is useful to investors as it provides additional information to facilitate
comparisons of historical operating results, identify trends in our underlying operating results and provide additional transparency
on how we evaluate our business. We use certain non-GAAP financial measures to budget, make operating and strategic decisions
and evaluate our performance. We disclose non-GAAP financial measures so that you have the same financial data that we use to
assist you in making comparisons to our historical operating results and analyzing our underlying performance.

Our non-GAAP financial measures reflect how we evaluate our current and prior-year operating results. As new events or
circumstances arise, these definitions could change over time:

» “Organic Net Revenue” is defined as net revenues excluding the impact of acquisitions, divestitures (including
businesses under sale agreements and exits of major product lines under a sale or licensing agreement), Integration
Program costs, accounting calendar changes and currency rate fluctuations.

« “Adjusted Operating Income” is defined as operating income excluding the impact of Spin-Off Costs, pension costs
related to obligations transferred in the Spin-Off, the 2012-2014 Restructuring Program, the 2014-2018 Restructuring
Program, the Integration Program and other acquisition integration costs, the remeasurement of net monetary assets in
Venezuela, the benefit from the Cadbury acquisition-related indemnification resolution, incremental costs associated with
the JDE coffee transactions, impairment charges related to goodwill and intangible assets, gains or losses on divestitures
or acquisitions, acquisition-related costs and the operating results of divestitures (including businesses under sale
agreements and exits of major product lines under a sale or licensing agreement). We also evaluate growth in our
Adjusted Operating Income on a constant currency basis.

» “Adjusted EPS” is defined as diluted EPS attributable to Mondeléz International from continuing operations excluding the
impact of Spin-Off Costs, pension costs related to the obligations transferred in the Spin-Off, the 2012-2014
Restructuring Program, the 2014-2018 Restructuring Program, the Integration Program and other acquisition integration
costs, the remeasurement of net monetary assets in Venezuela, the net benefit from the Cadbury acquisition-related
indemnification resolution, losses on debt extinguishment and related expenses, the residual tax benefit impact from the
resolution of the Starbucks arbitration, hedging gains or losses and incremental costs associated with the JDE coffee
transactions, impairment charges related to goodwill and intangible assets, gains or losses on divestitures or
acquisitions, acquisition-related costs and net earnings from divestitures (including businesses under sale agreements
and exits of major product lines under a sale or licensing agreement), and including an interest expense adjustment
related to the Spin-Off transaction. We also evaluate growth in our Adjusted EPS on a constant currency basis.

We believe that the presentation of these non-GAAP financial measures, when considered together with our U.S. GAAP financial
measures and the reconciliations to the corresponding U.S. GAAP financial measures, provides you with a more complete
understanding of the factors and trends affecting our business than could be obtained absent these disclosures. Because non-
GAAP financial measures may vary among other companies, the non-GAAP financial measures presented in this report may not be
comparable to similarly titled measures used by other companies. Our use of these non-GAAP financial measures is not meant to
be considered in isolation or as a substitute for any U.S. GAAP financial measure. A limitation of these non-GAAP financial
measures is they exclude items detailed below that have an impact on our U.S. GAAP reported results. The best way this limitation
can be addressed is by evaluating our non-GAAP financial measures in combination with our U.S. GAAP reported results and
carefully evaluating the following tables that reconcile U.S. GAAP reported figures to the non-GAAP financial measures in this Form
10-K.
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Organic Net Revenue

Applying the definition of “Organic Net Revenue”, the adjustments made to “net revenues” (the most comparable U.S. GAAP
financial measure) were to exclude the impact of currency, divestitures, an accounting calendar change in 2013 and acquisitions.
We believe that Organic Net Revenue better reflects the underlying growth from the ongoing activities of our business and provides
improved comparability of results.

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2014 2013 $ Change % Change
(in millions)

Organic Net Revenue $ 36,036 $ 35,191 $ 845 2.4%
Impact of currency (1,806) - (1,806) (5.1)pp
Impact of divestitures - 70 (70) (0.2)pp
Impact of accounting calendar change - 38 (38) (0.1)pp
Impact of acquisition 14 - 14 —

Net revenues $ 34,244 $ 35,299 $ (1,055) (3.0)%

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2013 2012 $ Change % Change
(in millions)

Organic Net Revenue $ 35,938 $ 34,600 $ 1,338 3.9%
Impact of currency (837) - (837) (2.4)pp
Impact of divestitures 70 415 (345) (2.0)pp
Impact of accounting calendar change 37 - 37 0.1pp
Impact of acquisition 91 - 91 0.2pp

Net revenues $ 35,299 $ 35,015 $ 284 0.8%

(1) Amount measured at prior-year (2012) currency exchange rates.
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Adjusted Operating Income

Applying the definition of “Adjusted Operating Income”, the adjustments made to “operating income” (the most comparable U.S.
GAAP financial measure) were to exclude Spin-Off Costs, 2012 pension costs related to the obligations transferred in the Spin-Off,
2012-2014 Restructuring Program costs, 2014-2018 Restructuring Program costs, the Integration Program and other acquisition
integration costs, the benefit from the Cadbury acquisition-related indemnification resolution, the remeasurement of net monetary
assets in Venezuela, impairment charges related to intangible assets, incremental costs associated with the JDE coffee
transactions, net gains on an acquisition and divestitures, acquisition-related costs and operating income from divestitures. We also
evaluate Adjusted Operating Income on a constant currency basis. We believe these measures provide improved comparability of
operating results.

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2014 2013 $ Change % Change
(in millions)

Adjusted Operating Income (constant currency) $ 4,703 $ 4,267 $ 436 10.2%
Impact of unfavorable currency (287) - (287) (6.7)pp
Adjusted Operating Income $ 4,416 $ 4,267 $ 149 3.5%
Spin-Off Costs (35) (62) 27 0.9pp
2012-2014 Restructuring Program (459) (330) (129) (2.8)pp
2014-2018 Restructuring Program (381) - (381) (9.6)pp

Integration Program and other acquisition integration
costs 4 (220) 224 5.7pp
Benefit from indemnification resolution - 336 (336) (8.7)pp
Remeasurement of net monetary assets in Venezuela (167) (54) (113) (2.9)pp
Intangible asset impairment charges (57) - (57) (1.6)pp
Costs associated with the JDE coffee transactions 77) - 77) (2.0)pp
Gains on acquisition and divestitures, net - 30 (30) (0.7)pp
Acquisition-related costs (2) (2) - -
Operating income from divestitures - 6 (6) (0.2)pp
Operating Income $ 3,242 $ 3,971 $ (729) (18.4)%

For the Years Ended
December 31,
2013 2012 $ Change % Change
(in millions)

Adjusted Operating Income (constant currency) $ 4,413 $ 4,266 $ 147 3.4%
Impact of unfavorable currency (146) - (146) (3.4)pp
Adjusted Operating Income $ 4,267 $ 4,266 $ 1 0.0%
Spin-Off Costs (62) (444) 382 9.0pp
Spin-Off pension expense adjustment - (68) 68 1.7pp
2012-2014 Restructuring Program (330) (110) (220) (5.4)pp

Integration Program and other acquisition integration
costs (220) (140) (80) (2.0)pp
Benefit from indemnification resolution 336 - 336 9.3pp
Remeasurement of net monetary assets in Venezuela (54) - (54) (1.5)pp
Intangible asset impairment charge - (52) 52 1.5pp
Gains on acquisition and divestitures, net 30 107 77) @.7)pp
Acquisition-related costs (2) (1) (1) (0.1)pp
Operating income from divestitures 6 79 (73) (1.6)pp
Operating Income $ 3,971 $ 3,637 $ 334 9.2%
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Adjusted EPS

Applying the definition of “Adjusted EPS”, the adjustments made to “diluted EPS attributable to Mondeléz International” (the most
comparable U.S. GAAP financial measure) were to exclude Spin-Off Costs, 2012 pension costs related to the obligations
transferred in the Spin-Off, 2012-2014 Restructuring Program costs, 2014-2018 Restructuring Program costs, the Integration
Program and other acquisition integration costs, the net benefit from the Cadbury acquisition-related indemnification resolution, the
residual tax benefit impact from the resolution of the Starbucks arbitration, losses on debt extinguishment and related expenses, the
remeasurement of net monetary assets in Venezuela, impairment charges related to intangible assets, hedging gains or losses and
incremental costs associated with the JDE coffee transactions, net gains on an acquisition and divestitures, acquisition-related
costs and net earnings from divestitures, and including a 2012 interest expense adjustment related to the Spin-Off transaction. We
also evaluate Adjusted EPS on a constant currency basis. We believe Adjusted EPS provides improved comparability of operating
results.

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2014 2013 $ Change % Change
Adjusted EPS (constant currency) $ 1.90 $ 1.54 $ 0.36 23.4%
Impact of unfavorable currency (0.14) - (0.14)
Adjusted EPS $ 1.76 $ 1.54 $ 0.22 14.3%
Spin-Off Costs (0.01) (0.02) 0.01
2012-2014 Restructuring Program (0.21) (0.14) (0.07)
2014-2018 Restructuring Program (0.16) - (0.16)
Integration Program and other acquisition integration
costs - (0.10) 0.10
Net benefit from indemnification resolution - 0.20 (0.20)
Residual tax benefit associated with
Starbucks arbitration resolution - 0.02 (0.02)
Loss on debt extinguishment and related expenses (0.18) (0.22) 0.04
Remeasurement of net monetary assets in Venezuela (0.09) (0.03) (0.06)
Intangible asset impairment charges (0.02) - (0.02)
Income / (costs) associated with the
JDE coffee transactions 0.19 - 0.19
Gains on acquisition and divestitures, net - 0.04 (0.04)
Acquisition-related costs - - -
Net earnings from divestitures - - -
Diluted EPS attributable to Mondel &z International
from continuing operations $ 1.28 $ 1.29 $ (0.01) (0.8)%
Discontinued operations - 0.90 (0.90)
Diluted EPS attributable to Mondel &z International $ 1.28 $ 2.19 $ (0.91) (41.6)%
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For the Years Ended
December 31,

2013 2012 $ Change % Change
Adjusted EPS (constant currency) $ 1.60 $ 1.43 $ 0.17 11.9%
Impact of unfavorable currency (0.06) — (0.06)
Adjusted EPS $ 1.54 $ 1.43 $ 0.11 7.7%
Spin-Off Costs (0.02) (0.39) 0.37
Spin-Off pension expense adjustment - (0.02) 0.02
Spin-Off interest expense adjustment - (0.06) 0.06
2012-2014 Restructuring Program (0.14) (0.04) (0.10)
Integration Program and other acquisition
integration costs (0.10) (0.08) (0.02)
Net benefit from indemnification resolution 0.20 - 0.20
Residual tax benefit associated with
Starbucks arbitration resolution 0.02 - 0.02
Loss on debt extinguishment and related expenses (0.22) - (0.22)
Remeasurement of net monetary assets
in Venezuela (0.03) - (0.03)
Intangible asset impairment charge - (0.02) 0.02
Gains on acquisition and divestitures, net 0.04 0.03 0.01
Acquisition-related costs - - -
Net earnings from divestitures - 0.03 (0.03)
Diluted EPS attributable to Mondel €z
International from continuing operations $ 1.29 $ 0.88 $ 0.41 46.6%
Discontinued operations 0.90 0.83 0.07
Diluted EPS attributable to Mondel &z International $ 2.19 $ 1.71 $ 0.48 28.1%
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ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures a  bout Market Risk.

As we operate globally, we are primarily exposed to currency exchange rate, commodity price and interest rate market risks. We
monitor and manage these exposures as part of our overall risk management program. Our risk management program focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to reduce the potentially adverse effects that the volatility of these markets may
have on our operating results. We principally utilize derivative instruments to reduce significant, unanticipated earnings fluctuations
that may arise from volatility in currency exchange rates, commodity prices and interest rates. For additional information on our
derivative activity and the types of derivative instruments we use to hedge our currency exchange, commaodity price and interest
rate exposures, see Note 9, Financial Instruments .

Many of our non-U.S. subsidiaries operate in functional currencies other than the U.S. dollar. Fluctuations in currency exchange
rates create volatility in our reported results as we translate the balance sheets, operating results and cash flows of these
subsidiaries into the U.S. dollar for consolidated reporting purposes. The translation of non-U.S. dollar denominated balance sheets
and statements of earnings of our subsidiaries into the U.S. dollar for consolidated reporting generally results in a cumulative
translation adjustment to other comprehensive income within equity. A stronger U.S. dollar relative to other functional currencies
adversely affects our consolidated earnings and net assets while a weaker U.S. dollar benefits our consolidated earnings and net
assets. While we hedge significant forecasted currency exchange transactions as well as certain net assets of non-U.S. operations
and other currency impacts, we cannot fully predict or eliminate volatility arising from changes in currency exchange rates on our
consolidated financial results. See Consolidated Results of Operations and Results of Operations by Reportable Segment under
Discussion and Analysis of Historical Results for currency exchange effects on our financial results during 2014. For additional
information on the impact of currency policies and the remeasurement of our Venezuelan net monetary assets on our financial
condition and results of operations, also see Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies—Currency Translation and Highly
Inflationary Accounting .

We also continually monitor the market for commodities that we use in our products. Input costs may fluctuate widely due to
international demand, weather conditions, government policy and regulation and unforeseen conditions. To manage the input cost
volatility, we enter into forward purchase agreements and other derivative financial instruments. We also pursue productivity and
cost saving measures and take pricing actions when necessary to mitigate the impact of higher input costs on earnings.

We regularly evaluate our variable and fixed-rate debt as well as current and expected interest rates in the markets in which we
raise capital. Our primary exposures include movements in U.S. Treasury rates, corporate credit spreads, London Interbank
Offered Rates (“LIBOR”), Euro Interbank Offered Rate (“EURIBOR”") and commercial paper rates. We periodically use interest rate
swaps and forward interest rate contracts to achieve a desired proportion of variable versus fixed rate debt based on current and
projected market conditions. In addition to using interest rate derivatives to manage future interest payments, earlier this year and in
the fourth quarter of 2013, we also retired $5 billion of our long-term debt and issued $6.3 billion of lower borrowing cost debt. Our
weighted-average interest rate on our total debt as of December 31, 2014 was 4.3%, down from 4.8% as of December 31, 2013.

Value at Risk:

We use a value at risk (“VAR”) computation to estimate: 1) the potential one-day loss in the fair value of our interest rate-sensitive
financial instruments; and 2) the potential one-day loss in pre-tax earnings of our currency and commodity price-sensitive derivative
financial instruments. The VAR analysis was done separately for our currency exchange, fixed income and commaodity risk
portfolios as of each quarter end during 2014. The instruments included in the VAR computation were currency exchange forwards
and options for currency exchange risk, debt and swaps for interest rate risk, and commodity forwards, futures and options for
commodity risk. Excluded from the computation were anticipated transactions, currency trade payables and receivables, and net
investments in non-U.S. subsidiaries, which the abovementioned instruments are intended to hedge.

The VAR model assumes normal market conditions, a 95% confidence interval and a one-day holding period. A parametric delta-
gamma approximation technique was used to determine the expected return distribution in interest rates, currencies and commodity
prices for the purpose of calculating the fixed income, currency exchange and commodity VAR, respectively. The parameters used
for estimating the expected return distributions were determined by observing interest rate, currency exchange, and commodity
price movements over the prior quarter for the calculation of VAR amounts at December 31, 2014 and 2013, and over each of the
four prior quarters for the calculation of average VAR amounts during each year. The values of currency and commodity options do
not change on a one-to-one basis with the underlying currency or commodity and were valued accordingly in the VAR computation.
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As of December 31, 2014, the estimated potential one-day loss in fair value of our interest rate-sensitive instruments, primarily debt,
and the estimated potential one-day loss in pre-tax earnings from our currency and commodity instruments, as calculated in the

VAR model, were:

Pre-Tax Earnings Impact

Fair Value Impact

At 12/31/14 Average High

Instruments sensitive to:
Interest rates
Foreign currency rates $ 51 $ 42 $ 58
Commodity prices 26 28 38

Pre-Tax Earnings Impact

Low At 12/31/14 Average High Low
(in millions)
$ 50 $ 41 $ 50 $ 30
$ 25
19

Fair Value Impact

At 12/31/13 Average High Low At 12/31/13 Average High Low
(in millions)
Instruments sensitive to:
Interest rates $ 44 $ 70 $ 112 $ 44
Foreign currency rates $ 28 $ 19 $ 28 $ 13
Commodity prices 25 18 25 14

This VAR computation is a risk analysis tool designed to statistically estimate the maximum expected daily loss, under the specified
confidence interval and assuming normal market conditions, from adverse movements in interest rates, currency exchange rates
and commodity prices. The computation does not represent actual losses in fair value or earnings we will incur, nor does it consider
the effect of favorable changes in market rates. We cannot predict actual future movements in market rates and do not present
these VAR results to be indicative of future movements in market rates or to be representative of any actual impact that future

changes in market rates may have on our future financial results.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Mondeléz International, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of earnings,
comprehensive earnings, equity and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Mondeléz
International, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. Also in our opinion, the Company did not maintain, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2014, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) because a material weakness in internal
control over financial reporting related to the ineffective monitoring and oversight of controls over income tax accounting existed as
of that date. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented
or detected on a timely basis. The material weakness referred to above is described in the Report of Management on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A. We considered this material weakness in determining the nature,
timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the 2014 consolidated financial statements, and our opinion regarding the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting does not affect our opinion on those consolidated financial
statements. The Company’s management is responsible for these financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control
over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in
management’s report referred to above. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements and on the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the financial statements
included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ P RICEWATERHOUSE C OOPERS LLP

Chicago, lllinois
February 20, 2015
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Mondel €z International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Earnings
For the Years Ended December 31
(in millions of U.S. dollars, except per share data )

2014
Net revenues $ 34,244
Cost of sales 21,647
Gross profit 12,597
Selling, general and administrative expenses 8,457
Asset impairment and exit costs 692
Gains on acquisition and divestitures, net -
Amortization of intangibles 206
Operating income 3,242
Interest and other expense, net 688
Earnings from continuing operations before income taxes 2,554
Provision for income taxes 353
Earnings from continuing operations 2,201
Earnings from discontinued operations, net of income taxes —
Net earnings 2,201
Noncontrolling interest 17
Net earnings attributable to Mondeléz International $ 2,184
Per share data:
Basic earnings per share attributable to Mondeléz International:
Continuing operations $ 1.29
Discontinued operations —
Net earnings attributable to Mondeléz International $ 1.29

Diluted earnings per share attributable to Mondeléz International:
Continuing operations $ 1.28
Discontinued operations —

Net earnings attributable to Mondeléz International 1.28
Dividends declared $ 0.58

&

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

55

2013 2012
$ 35299 $ 35015
22,189 21,939
13,110 13,076
8,679 9,176
273 153
(30) (107)
217 217
3,971 3,637
1,579 1,863
2,392 1,774
60 168
2,332 1,606
1,603 1,488
3,935 3,004
20 27
$ 30915 $ 3,067
$ 130 $ 0.90
0.91 0.83
$ 2.21 $ 1.73
$ 1.29 $ 0.88
0.90 0.83
$ 2.19 $ 1.71
$ 054 % 1.00
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Mondel €z International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Earnings
For the Years Ended December 31

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Net earnings
Other comprehensive earnings / (losses):
Currency translation adjustment:
Translation adjustment
Tax (expense) / benefit
Pension and other benefits:
Net actuarial gain / (loss) arising during period
Reclassification of (gains) / losses into net earnings:
Amortization of experience losses and prior service costs
Settlement losses
Tax (expense) / benefit
Derivatives accounted for as hedges:
Net derivative gains / (losses)
Reclassification of (gains) / losses into net earnings
Tax (expense) / benefit

Total other comprehensive earnings / (losses)

Comprehensive earnings / (losses)
less: Comprehensive earnings / (losses) attributable to noncontrolling
interests

Comprehensive earnings / (losses) attributable to Mondeléz International

2014
$ 2,201

(3,287)
(228)

(1,388)

132
42
386

(166)
(45)

92

(4,462)

(2,261)

(16)
$ (2,245)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2013 2012
$ 3,935 3,094
(1,080) 759
36 39
713 (2,266)
193 414
4 135
(244) 486
169 (412)
72 602
(86) (87)
(223) (330)
3,712 2,764
20 33
$ 3,692 2,731
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Mondel €z International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets, as of December 31
(in millions of U.S. dollars, except share data)

2014 2013
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,631 $ 2,622
Trade receivables (net of allowances of $66 at December 31, 2014 and
$86 at December 31, 2013) 3,802 4,463
Other receivables (net of allowances of $91 at December 31, 2014 and
$73 at December 31, 2013) 949 940
Inventories, net 3,480 3,743
Deferred income taxes 480 517
Other current assets 1,408 889
Total current assets 11,750 13,174
Property, plant and equipment, net 9,827 10,247
Goodwill 23,389 25,597
Intangible assets, net 20,335 21,994
Prepaid pension assets 53 54
Other assets 1,461 1,449
TOTAL ASSETS $ 66,815 $ 72,515
LIABILITIES
Short-term borrowings $ 1,305 $ 1,594
Current portion of long-term debt 1,530 1,003
Accounts payable 5,299 5,345
Accrued marketing 2,047 2,318
Accrued employment costs 946 1,043
Other current liabilities 2,880 3,051
Total current liabilities 14,007 14,354
Long-term debt 13,865 14,482
Deferred income taxes 5,512 6,282
Accrued pension costs 2,912 1,962
Accrued postretirement health care costs 526 412
Other liabilities 2,140 2,491
TOTAL LIABILITIES 38,962 39,983
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 11)
EQUITY
Common Stock, no par value (5,000,000,000 shares authorized and
1,996,537,778 shares issued at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013) - -
Additional paid-in capital 31,651 31,396
Retained earnings 14,529 13,419
Accumulated other comprehensive losses (7,318) (2,889)
Treasury stock, at cost (332,896,779 shares at December 31, 2014 and 291,141,184
shares at December 31, 2013) (11,112) (9,553)
Total Mondeléz International Shareholders’ Equity 27,750 32,373
Noncontrolling interest 103 159
TOTAL EQUITY 27,853 32,532
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 66,815 $ 72,515

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Balances at January 1, 2012

Comprehensive earnings / (losses):

Net earnings

Other comprehensive earnings / (losses), net

of income taxes

Exercise of stock options and issuance of other

stock awards

Cash dividends declared ($1.00 per share)
Spin-Off of Kraft Foods Group, Inc.
Dividends paid on noncontrolling interest and

other activities

Balances at December 31, 2012
Comprehensive earnings / (losses):

Net earnings

Other comprehensive losses,

net of income taxes

Exercise of stock options and issuance of other

stock awards
Common Stock repurchased

Cash dividends declared ($0.54 per share)
Dividends paid on noncontrolling interest and

other activities

Balances at December 31, 2013
Comprehensive earnings / (losses):

Net earnings

Other comprehensive losses,

net of income taxes

Exercise of stock options and issuance of other

stock awards
Common Stock repurchased

Cash dividends declared ($0.58 per share)
Dividends paid on noncontrolling interest and

other activities

Balances at December 31, 2014

Mondel €z International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Equity

(in millions of U.S. dollars, except per share data )
Mondel &z International Shareholders ' Equity
Accumulated
Other
Additional Comprehensive
Common Paid-in Retained Earnings/ Treasury Noncontrolling Total
Stock Capital Earnings (Losses) Stock Interest Equity

$ - $ 31,318 $ 18,067 $ (6,638) $ (7,476) $ 111 $ 35,382
- - 3,067 - - 27 3,094
- - - (336) - 6 (330)
- 141 (53) - 319 - 407
- - (1,775) - - - (1,775)
= 89 (8,755) 4,308 = = (4,358)
- = - - - (@ @

$ - 3 31,548 $ 10,551 $ (2,666) $ (7,457) $ 140 $ 32,416
- - 3,915 — — 20 3,935
- - - (223) - - (223)
= 10 97) = 343 = 256
- (161) - - (2,739) - (2,900)
- - (950) - - - (950)
- @ - - - @ @

$ - 3 31,396 $ 13,419 $ (2,889) $ (9553) $ 159 $ 32,532
- - 2,184 — — 17 2,201
- - — (4,429) - (33) (4,462)
= 271 (98) = 332 = 505
- - - - (1,891) - (1,891)
- = (976) - - = (976)
- (16) - - - (40) (56)

$ - 3 31,651 $ 14529 $ (7,318) $ (11,112) $ 103 $ 27,853

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Mondel €z International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31
(in millions of U.S. dollars)

2014 2013
CASH PROVIDED BY / (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net earnings $ 2,201 3,935
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to operating cash flows:
Depreciation and amortization 1,059 1,077
Stock-based compensation expense 141 128
Deferred income tax (benefit) / provision (186) (64)
Gains on acquisition and divestitures, net - (30)
Asset impairments 240 97
Benefit from indemnification resolution - (385)
Loss on early extinguishment of debt 493 608
Unrealized gain on planned coffee business divestiture currency
hedge (628) -
Other non-cash items, net (184) (29)
Change in assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions and divestitures:
Receivables, net 184 492
Inventories, net (188) (116)
Accounts payable 387 793
Other current assets (86) (42)
Other current liabilities 135 62
Change in pension and postretirement assets and liabilities, net (6) (126)
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,562 6,410
CASH PROVIDED BY / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures (1,642) (1,622)
Acquisition, net of cash received (7 (119)
Proceeds from divestitures, net of disbursements - 60
Cash received from / (transferred to) Kraft Foods Group
related to the Spin-Off - 55
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and other 7 143
Net cash used in investing activities (1,642) (1,483)
CASH PROVIDED BY / (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issuances of commercial paper, maturities greater than 90 days 2,082 1,329
Repayments of commercial paper, maturities greater than 90 days (2,713) (607)
Net issuances of other short-term borrowings, net 398 613
Long-term debt proceeds 3,032 3,248
Long-term debt repaid (3,017) (7,559)
Repurchase of Common Stock (1,700) (2,900)
Dividends paid (964) (943)
Other 194 132
Net cash (used in) / provided by financing activities (2,688) (6,687)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (223) (93)
Cash and cash equivalents:
Increase / (decrease) (991) (1,853)
Balance at beginning of period 2,622 4,475
Balance at end of period $ 1,631 2,622
Cash paid:
Interest $ 827 1,150
Income taxes $ 1,238 760

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Mondel €z International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policie S

Description of Business:

Mondeléz International, Inc. (formerly Kraft Foods Inc.) was incorporated in 2000 in the Commonwealth of Virginia. Mondeléz
International, Inc., through its subsidiaries (collectively “Mondeléz International,” “we,” “us” and “our”), sells food and beverage
products to consumers in approximately 165 countries.

Discontinued Operation:

On October 1, 2012 (the “Distribution Date”), we completed the spin-off of our former North American grocery business, Kraft Foods
Group, Inc. (“Kraft Foods Group”), by distributing 100% of the outstanding shares of common stock of Kraft Foods Group to holders
of our Common Stock (the “Spin-Off”). We retained our global snacks business along with other food and beverage categories. The
divested Kraft Foods Group business is presented as a discontinued operation on the consolidated statements of earnings for all
periods presented. The Kraft Foods Group other comprehensive earnings, changes in equity and cash flows are included within our
consolidated statements of comprehensive earnings, equity and cash flows through October 1, 2012. See Note 2, Divestitures and
Acquisitions, for additional information.

Principles of Consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements include Mondeléz International, Inc. as well as our wholly owned and majority owned
subsidiaries. We account for investments in which we exercise significant influence (20%-50% ownership interest) under the equity
method of accounting. We use the cost method of accounting for investments in which we have an ownership interest of less than
20% and in which we do not exercise significant influence. The noncontrolling interest represents the non-controlling investors’
interests in the results of subsidiaries that we control and consolidate. All intercompany transactions are eliminated.

Accounting Calendar Change:

In connection with moving toward a common consolidation date across the Company, in the first quarter of 2013, we changed the
consolidation date for our Europe segment, from predominantly the last Saturday of each period to the last calendar day of each
period. The change had a favorable impact of $37 million on net revenues and $6 million on operating income in 2013.

At this time, the majority of our operating subsidiaries report results as of the last calendar day of the period except for our North
America segment. The North America segment reported results as of the last Saturday of the period and beginning in the first
quarter of 2015, reports results as of the last calendar day of the period.

We believe these changes to a common consolidation date are preferable and will improve business planning and financial
reporting by better matching the close dates of the operating subsidiaries and bringing the reporting dates closer to the period-end
date. As the effect to prior-period results was not material, we have not revised the prior-period results.

Use of Estimates:

We prepare our consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America (“U.S. GAAP”), which require us to make estimates and assumptions that affect a number of amounts in our
consolidated financial statements. Significant accounting policy elections, estimates and assumptions include, among others,
pension and benefit plan assumptions, valuation assumptions of goodwill and intangible assets, useful lives of long-lived assets,
restructuring program liabilities, marketing program accruals, insurance and self-insurance reserves and income taxes. We base
our estimates on historical experience and other assumptions that we believe are reasonable. If actual amounts differ from
estimates, we include the revisions in our consolidated results of operations in the period the actual amounts become known.
Historically, the aggregate differences, if any, between our estimates and actual amounts in any year have not had a material effect
on our consolidated financial statements.

Currency Translation and Highly Inflationary Accounting:

We translate the results of operations of our subsidiaries from multiple currencies using average exchange rates during each period
and translate balance sheet accounts using exchange rates at the end of each period. We record currency translation adjustments
as a component of equity and realized exchange gains and losses on transactions in earnings.
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Venezuela. As prescribed by U.S. GAAP for highly inflationary economies, we have been accounting for the results of our
Venezuelan subsidiaries using the U.S. dollar as the functional currency since January 1, 2010.

On February 8, 2013, the Venezuelan government announced the devaluation of the official Venezuelan bolivar exchange rate from
4.30 bolivars to 6.30 bolivars to the U.S. dollar and the elimination of the second-tier, government-regulated SITME exchange rate
previously applied to value certain types of transactions. In connection with the announced changes, we recorded a $54 million
currency remeasurement loss related to the devaluation of our net monetary assets in Venezuela within selling, general and
administrative expenses in our Latin America segment during the three months ended March 31, 2013.

On January 24, 2014, the Venezuelan government announced the expansion of the auction-based currency transaction program
referred to as SICAD or SICAD | and new profit margin controls. The application of the SICAD | rate was extended to include
foreign investments and significant operating activities, including contracts for leasing and services, use and exploitation of patents
and trademarks, payments of royalties and contracts for technology import and technical assistance. As of December 31, 2014, the
SICAD | exchange rate for the food segment auctions in which we participate was 11.50 bolivars to the U.S. dollar.

Additionally, on March 24, 2014, the Venezuelan government launched a new market-based currency exchange market, SICAD II.
SICAD Il may be used voluntarily to exchange bolivars into U.S. dollars. As of December 31, 2014, the SICAD Il exchange rate was
49.99 bolivars to the U.S. dollar.

Our Venezuelan operations produce a wide range of biscuit, cheese & grocery, confectionery and beverage products. Based on the
currency exchange developments this year, we reviewed our domestic and international sourcing of goods and services and the
exchange rates we believe will be applicable. We evaluated the level of primarily raw material imports that we believe would
continue to be sourced in exchange for U.S. dollars converted at the official 6.30 exchange rate. Our remaining imported goods and
services would primarily be valued at the SICAD | exchange rate. Imports that do not currently qualify for either the official rate or
SICAD I rate may be sourced at the SICAD Il rate.

We believe the SICAD I rate is the most appropriate rate to use as it is most representative of the various exchange rates at which
U.S. dollars are currently available to our entire Venezuelan business. While some of our net monetary assets or liabilities qualify
for settlement at the official exchange rate, other operations do not, and we have utilized both the SICAD | and SICAD Il auction
processes. In addition, there is significant uncertainty about our ability to secure approval for transactions and the limited availability
of U.S. dollars offered at the official rate. As such, we believe it is more economically representative to use the SICAD | rate than
the official rate to value our net monetary assets and translate future operating results.

As of March 31, 2014, we began to apply the SICAD | exchange rate to remeasure our bolivar-denominated net monetary assets,
and we began translating our Venezuelan operating results at the new rate in the second quarter of 2014. On March 31, 2014, we
recognized a $142 million currency remeasurement loss within selling, general and administrative expenses of our Latin America
segment as a result of revaluing our bolivar-denominated net monetary assets from the official exchange rate of 6.30 bolivars to the
U.S. dollar to the then-prevailing SICAD | exchange rate of 10.70 bolivars to the U.S. dollar. As of December 31, 2014, the SICAD |
exchange rate for the food segment auctions in which we participate was 11.50 bolivars to the U.S. dollar. Through December 31,
2014, we recognized $25 million of additional remeasurement charges related primarily to changes in the SICAD | rate.

The following table sets forth net revenues for our Venezuelan operations for the year ended December 31, 2014 (measured at the
6.30 official rate in the first quarter and at the SICAD | rate subsequent to the March 31, 2014 remeasurement), and cash, net
monetary assets and net assets of our Venezuelan subsidiaries as of December 31, 2014 (translated at the SICAD I last exchange
rate for food segment auctions in which we participate, which was 11.50 bolivars to the U.S. dollar):

Venezuela operations For the Year Ended December 31, 2014
Net revenues $760 million or 2.2% of consolidated net revenues

As of December 31, 2014

Cash $278 million
Net monetary assets $236 million
Net assets $500 million
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Most recently, on February 10, 2015, the Venezuelan government announced changes in the currency exchange structure. While
retaining the 6.30 official rate for food and other essentials and the SICAD | offered rate based on recently cleared auction
transactions for specific sectors of the economy, the SICAD Il exchange rate is expected to be replaced with a new market-based
SIMADI rate. We will continue to monitor developments related to this currency structure. At this time, we continue to expect to use
the SICAD I rate to remeasure our net monetary assets in Venezuela. A change in the SICAD | rate from 11.50 (our last SICAD |
auction rate realized in 2014) to 12.00 (the opening SICAD | rate announced on February 10, 2015) would result in approximately a
$10 million remeasurement loss based on our net monetary assets in Venezuela as of December 31, 2014. Depending on the
SICAD | auctions that occur through March, 31, 2015, however, the amount of the remeasurement loss recorded in the first quarter
of 2015 could change.

Unlike the official rate that is fixed at 6.30 bolivars to the U.S. dollar, the SICAD I rate is expected to vary over time. If any of the
three-tier currency exchange rates, or the application of the rates to our business, were to change, we may recognize additional
currency losses, or gains, which could be significant.

In light of the ongoing difficult macroeconomic environment in Venezuela, we continue to monitor and actively manage our
investment and exposures in Venezuela. We plan to continue to do business in the country as long as we can successfully continue
to operate our local business there. We strive to locally source and produce a significant amount of the products we sell in
Venezuela. We have taken other protective measures against currency devaluation, such as converting monetary assets into non-
monetary assets that we can use in our business. However, suitable protective measures have become less available and more
expensive and may not offset further currency devaluation that could occur.

Argentina. On January 23, 2014, the Central Bank of Argentina adjusted its currency policy, removed its currency stabilization
measures and allowed the Argentine peso exchange rate to float relative to the U.S. dollar. On that day, the value of the Argentine
peso relative to the U.S. dollar fell by 15%, and from December 31, 2013 through December 31, 2014, the value of the peso
declined 31%. In July 2014, Argentina had a technical default on its debt as the government was blocked from making payments on
its restructured debt by certain creditors who did not participate in a debt restructuring in 2001. Based on the current state of the
Argentine economy and its restricted liquidity, access to capital, currency rules and regulations, the business operating environment
remains challenging. Further volatility and declines in the exchange rate are expected. We continue to monitor and actively manage
our investment and exposures in Argentina. We continue refining our product portfolio to improve our product offerings, mix and
profitability. We also continue to implement additional cost initiatives to protect the business. Further currency declines, economic
controls or other business restrictions could have an adverse impact on our ongoing results of operations. Our Argentinian
operations contributed approximately $693 million, or 2.0% of consolidated net revenues for the year ended December 31, 2014.
As of December 31, 2014, the net monetary liabilities of our Argentina operations were not material and they could change over
time. Argentina is not designated as a highly-inflationary economy for accounting purposes and so we continue to record currency
translation adjustments within equity and realized exchange gains and losses on transactions in earnings.

Russia. During the fourth quarter of 2014, the value of the Russian ruble relative to the U.S. dollar declined 50%, and further
volatility in the currency is expected. Russia continues to be a key market for us. We continue to take actions to protect our near-
term operating results, financial condition and cash flow. Our operations in Russia contributed approximately $1,114 million, or
3.3% of consolidated net revenues for the year ended December 31, 2014. As of December 31, 2014, the net monetary assets of
our Russia operations were not material and they could change over time. Russia is not designated as a highly-inflationary
economy for accounting purposes and so we continue to record currency translation adjustments within equity and realized
exchange gains and losses on transactions in earnings.

Ukraine. On February 5, 2015, the National Bank of Ukraine changed its currency policy by eliminating daily auctions, which
effectively supported the exchange rate, and allowed the Ukrainian hryvnya exchange rate to float relative to the U.S. dollar. The
value of the Ukrainian hryvnya relative to the U.S. dollar declined 61%, from the beginning of the year through February 11, 2015,
and further volatility in the currency is expected. Ukraine is an important emerging market and we continue to take actions to protect
our near-term operating results, cash flow and financial condition. Our Ukrainian operations contributed approximately $294 million,
or 0.9% of consolidated net revenues for the year ended December 31, 2014. As of December 31, 2014, the net monetary assets
of our Ukrainian operations were not material and they could change over time. Ukraine is not designated as a highly-inflationary
economy for accounting purposes and so we continue to record currency translation adjustments within equity and realized
exchange gains and losses on transactions in earnings.

Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposits with banks and all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less.
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Inventories:
We value our inventory using the average cost method. We also record inventory allowances for overstock and obsolete inventories
due to ingredient and packaging changes.

Long-Lived Assets:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost and depreciated by the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the assets. Machinery and equipment are depreciated over periods ranging from 3 to 20 years and buildings and building
improvements over periods up to 40 years.

We review long-lived assets, including amortizable intangible assets, for realizability on an ongoing basis. Changes in depreciation,
generally accelerated depreciation, are determined and recorded when estimates of the remaining useful lives or residual values of
long-term assets change. We also review for impairment when conditions exist that indicate the carrying amount of the assets may
not be fully recoverable. In those circumstances, we perform undiscounted operating cash flow analyses to determine if an
impairment exists. When testing for asset impairment, we group assets and liabilities at the lowest level for which cash flows are
separately identifiable. Any impairment loss is calculated as the excess of the asset’s carrying value over its estimated fair value.
Fair value is estimated based on the undiscounted cash flows for the asset group over the remaining useful life or based on the
expected cash proceeds for the asset less costs of disposal. Any significant impairment losses would be recorded within asset
impairment and exit costs in the consolidated statements of earnings.

Software Costs:

We capitalize certain computer software and software development costs incurred in connection with developing or obtaining
computer software for internal use. Capitalized software costs are included in property, plant and equipment and amortized on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the software, which do not exceed seven years.

Goodwill and Non-Amortizable Intangible Assets:

We test goodwill and non-amortizable intangible assets for impairment on an annual basis on October 1. We assess goodwiill
impairment risk throughout the year by performing a qualitative review of entity-specific, industry, market and general economic
factors affecting the reporting units with goodwill. Annually, we may perform qualitative testing or elect to do quantitative testing
instead, depending on prior test results, current year developments, current risk evaluations and other practical considerations. In
the event that significant potential goodwill impairment risk exists for a specific reporting unit, we apply a two-step quantitative test.
The first step compares the reporting unit’s estimated fair value with its carrying value. We estimate a reporting unit’s fair value
using a discounted cash flow method which incorporates planned growth rates, market-based discount rates and estimates of
residual value. This year, for reporting units in our Europe and North America segments, we used a market-based, weighted-
average cost of capital of 6.9% to discount the projected cash flows of those operations. For our Latin America, Asia Pacific and
EEMEA reporting units, we used a risk-rated discount rate of 9.9%. Estimating the fair value of individual reporting units requires us
to make assumptions and estimates regarding our future plans, industry and economic conditions, and our actual results and
conditions may differ over time. If the carrying value of a reporting unit's net assets exceeds its fair value, we apply the second step
to measure the difference between the carrying value and implied fair value of goodwill. If the carrying value of goodwill exceeds its
implied fair value, the goodwill is impaired and its carrying value is reduced to the implied fair value of the goodwiill.

We test non-amortizable intangible assets for impairment by performing a qualitative review and assessing events and
circumstances that could affect the fair value or carrying value of the indefinite-lived intangible assets. If significant potential
impairment risk exists for a specific asset, we quantitatively test it for impairment by comparing its estimated fair value with its
carrying value. We determine estimated fair value using planned growth rates, market-based discount rates and estimates of
royalty rates. If the carrying value of the asset exceeds its fair value, we consider the asset impaired and reduce its carrying value
to the estimated fair value. We amortize definite-lived intangible assets over their estimated useful lives and evaluate them for
impairment as we do other long-lived assets.

Insurance and Self-Insurance:

We use a combination of insurance and self-insurance for a number of risks, including workers’ compensation, general liability,
automobile liability, product liability and our obligation for employee healthcare benefits. We estimate the liabilities associated with
these risks on an undiscounted basis by evaluating and making judgments about historical claims experience and other actuarial
assumptions and the estimated impact on future results.
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Revenue Recognition:

We recognize revenues when title and risk of loss pass to customers, which generally occurs upon shipment or delivery of goods.
Revenues are recorded net of sales incentives and trade promotions and include all shipping and handling charges billed to
customers. Our shipping and handling costs are classified as part of cost of sales. Provisions for product returns and other trade
allowances are also recorded as reductions to revenues within the same period that the revenue is recognized.

Marketing and Research and Development:

We promote our products with advertising, marketing, sales incentives and trade promotions. These programs include, but are not
limited to, cooperative advertising, in-store displays, consumer promotions, new product introduction fees, discounts, coupons,
rebates and volume-based incentives. We expense advertising costs either in the period the advertising first takes place or as
incurred. Sales incentive and trade promotion activities are recorded as a reduction to revenues based on amounts estimated due
to customers and consumers at the end of a period. We base these estimates principally on historical utilization and redemption
rates. For interim reporting purposes, advertising expenses and sales incentives are charged to operations as a percentage of
volume, based on estimated volume and estimated program spending. We do not defer costs on our year-end consolidated
balance sheet and all marketing costs are recorded as an expense in the year incurred. Advertising expense was $1,552 million in
2014, $1,721 million in 2013 and $1,815 million in 2012. We manage advertising and consumer promotions (marketing programs)
on a combined basis. Advertising and consumer promotion costs were lower in 2014 due primarily to savings from consolidating
media providers, reductions in non-working media costs and efficiencies gained by shifting spending to lower-cost, digital media
outlets and currency, while we increased our spending on our global Power Brands and maintained working media spending. In
2013, advertising and consumer promotion costs were higher than in 2012. We expense product research and development costs
as incurred. Research and development expense was $455 million in 2014, $471 million in 2013 and $462 million in 2012. We
record marketing and research and development expenses within selling, general and administrative expenses.

Employee Benefit Plans:

We provide a range of benefits to our current and retired employees. These include pension benefits, postretirement health care
benefits and postemployment benefits depending upon jurisdiction, tenure, job level and other factors. Local statutory requirements
govern many of the benefit plans we provide around the world. Local government plans generally cover health care benefits for
retirees outside the United States, Canada and United Kingdom. Our U.S., Canadian and U.K. subsidiaries provide health care and
other benefits to most retired employees. Our postemployment benefit plans provide primarily severance benefits for eligible
salaried and certain hourly employees. The cost for these plans is recognized in earnings primarily over the working life of the
covered employee.

Financial Instruments:

We use financial instruments to manage our currency exchange rate, commodity price and interest rate risks. We monitor and
manage these exposures as part of our overall risk management program, which focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to reduce the potentially adverse effects that the volatility of these markets may have on our operating results. A
principal objective of our risk management strategies is to reduce significant, unanticipated earnings fluctuations that may arise
from volatility in currency exchange rates, commaodity prices and interest rates, principally through the use of derivative instruments.

We use a combination of primarily currency forward contracts, futures, options and swaps; commodity forward contracts, futures
and options; and interest rate swaps to manage our exposure to cash flow variability, protect the value of our existing currency
assets and liabilities and protect the value of our debt. See Note 9, Financial Instruments , to the consolidated financial statements
for more information on the types of derivative instruments we use.

We record derivative financial instruments on a gross basis and at fair value in our consolidated balance sheets within other current
assets or other current liabilities due to their relatively short-term duration. Cash flows from derivative instruments are classified in
the consolidated statements of cash flows based on the nature of the derivative instrument. Changes in the fair value of a derivative
that is designated as a cash flow hedge, to the extent that the hedge is effective, are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive
earnings / (losses) and reclassified to earnings when the hedged item affects earnings. Changes in fair value of economic hedges
and the ineffective portion of all hedges are recognized in current period earnings. Changes in the fair value of a derivative that is
designated as a fair value hedge, along with the changes in the fair value of the related hedged asset or liability, are recorded in
earnings in the same period. We use non-U.S. dollar denominated debt to hedge a portion of our net investment in non-U.S.
operations against adverse movements in exchange rates, with currency movements related to the debt and net investment and
the related deferred taxes recorded within currency translation adjustment in accumulated other comprehensive earnings / (losses).
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In order to qualify for hedge accounting, a specified level of hedging effectiveness between the derivative instrument and the item
being hedged must exist at inception and throughout the hedged period. We must also formally document the nature of and
relationship between the derivative and the hedged item, as well as our risk management objectives, strategies for undertaking the
hedge transaction and method of assessing hedge effectiveness. Additionally, for a hedge of a forecasted transaction, the
significant characteristics and expected term of the forecasted transaction must be specifically identified, and it must be probable
that the forecasted transaction will occur. If it is no longer probable that the hedged forecasted transaction will occur, we would
recognize the gain or loss related to the derivative in earnings.

When we use derivatives, we are exposed to credit and market risks. Credit risk exists when a counterparty to a derivative contract
might fail to fulfill its performance obligations under the contract. We minimize our credit risk by entering into transactions with
counterparties with high quality, investment grade credit ratings, limiting the amount of exposure with each counterparty and
monitoring the financial condition of our counterparties. We also maintain a policy of requiring that all significant, non-exchange
traded derivative contracts with a duration of one year or longer are governed by an International Swaps and Derivatives
Association master agreement. Market risk exists when the value of a derivative or other financial instrument might be adversely
affected by changes in market conditions and commodity prices, currency exchange rates or interest rates. We manage derivative
market risk by limiting the types of derivative instruments and derivative strategies we use and the degree of market risk that we
plan to hedge through the use of derivative instruments.

Commodity cash flow hedges — We are exposed to price risk related to forecasted purchases of certain commodities that we
primarily use as raw materials. We enter into commodity forward contracts primarily for cocoa, wheat, coffee, soybean and
vegetable oils, and sugar and other sweeteners. Commodity forward contracts generally are not subject to the accounting
requirements for derivative instruments and hedging activities under the normal purchases exception. We also use commaodity
futures and options to hedge the price of certain input costs, including energy costs, coffee, sugar and other sweeteners, wheat,
soybean and vegetable oils, cocoa and dairy. Some of these derivative instruments are highly effective and qualify for hedge
accounting treatment. We also sell commodity futures to unprice future purchase commitments, and we occasionally use related
futures to cross-hedge a commodity exposure. We are not a party to leveraged derivatives and, by policy, do not use financial
instruments for speculative purposes.

Currency exchange cash flow hedges — We use various financial instruments to mitigate our exposure to changes in exchange
rates from third-party and intercompany actual and forecasted transactions. These instruments may include currency exchange
forward contracts, futures, options and swaps. Based on the size and location of our businesses, we use these instruments to
hedge our exposure to certain currencies, including the euro, pound sterling and Canadian dollar.

Interest rate cash flow and fair value hedges — We manage interest rate volatility by modifying the pricing or maturity characteristics
of certain liabilities so that the net impact on expense is not, on a material basis, adversely affected by movements in interest rates.
As a result of interest rate fluctuations, hedged fixed-rate liabilities appreciate or depreciate in market value. We expect the effect of
this unrealized appreciation or depreciation to be substantially offset by our gains or losses on the derivative instruments that are
linked to these hedged liabilities. We use derivative instruments, including interest rate swaps that have indices related to the
pricing of specific liabilities as part of our interest rate risk management strategy. As a matter of policy, we do not use highly
leveraged derivative instruments for interest rate risk management. We use interest rate swaps to economically convert a portion of
our fixed-rate debt into variable-rate debt. Under the interest rate swap contracts, we agree with other parties to exchange, at
specified intervals, the difference between fixed-rate and floating-rate interest amounts, which is calculated based on an agreed-
upon notional amount. We also use interest rate swaps to hedge the variability of interest payment cash flows on a portion of our
future debt obligations. Substantially all of these derivative instruments are highly effective and qualify for hedge accounting
treatment.

Hedges of net investments in non-U.S. operations — We have numerous investments outside the United States. The net assets of
these subsidiaries are exposed to changes and volatility in currency exchange rates. We use local currency denominated debt to
hedge our non-U.S. net investments against adverse movements in exchange rates. We designated our euro and pound sterling
denominated borrowings as a net investment hedge of a portion of our overall European operations. The gains and losses on our
net investment in these designhated European operations are economically offset by losses and gains on our euro and pound
sterling denominated borrowings. The change in the debt's value, net of deferred taxes, is recorded in the currency translation
adjustment component of accumulated other comprehensive earnings / (losses).
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Income Taxes:

We recognize tax benefits in our financial statements when uncertain tax positions are assessed more likely than not to be
sustained upon audit. The amount we recognize is measured as the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely
of being realized upon ultimate settlement.

We recognize deferred tax assets for deductible temporary differences, operating loss carryforwards and tax credit carryforwards.
Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance if it is more likely than not that some portion, or all, of the deferred tax
assets will not be realized.

New Accounting Pronouncements:

In November 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued an accounting standards update (“ASU”) to clarify
how current guidance should be interpreted in evaluating the economic characteristics and risks of a host contract in a hybrid
financial instrument that is issued in the form of a share. The ASU emphasizes that an entity should consider all relevant terms and
features, including the embedded derivative feature being evaluated for bifurcation, in evaluating the nature of the host

contract. The ASU is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015, with early adoption permitted. We
will adopt the new standard on January 1, 2016 and the standard is not expected to have a material impact on our consolidated
financial statements.

In June 2014, the FASB issued an ASU to clarify the accounting for certain stock-based compensation grants in which a
performance target can be achieved after a requisite service period is completed. Under this new guidance, entities are required to
treat performance targets that affect vesting, and could be achieved after the requisite service period, as a performance condition.
The performance targets are not reflected in estimating the grant-date fair value of the grants. Compensation cost is recognized in
the period in which it becomes probable that the performance target will be achieved and should represent the compensation cost
attributable to the periods for which the requisite service has already been rendered. If the performance target becomes probable of
being achieved before the end of the requisite service period, the remaining unrecognized compensation cost should be recognized
prospectively over the remaining requisite service period. The ASU is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2015, with early adoption permitted. We will adopt the new standard on January 1, 2016 and the standard is not
expected to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued an ASU on revenue recognition from contracts with customers. The new ASU outlines a new, single
comprehensive model for companies to use in accounting for revenue. The core principle is that an entity should recognize revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to a customer in an amount that reflects the consideration the entity expects to
be entitled to receive in exchange for the goods or services. The ASU also requires additional disclosure about the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows from customer contracts, including significant judgments made in recognizing
revenue. The guidance is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, with early adoption prohibited.
The ASU may be applied retrospectively to historical periods presented or as a cumulative-effect adjustment as of the date of
adoption. We plan to adopt the new standard on the January 1, 2017 effective date and are currently assessing the impact of the
new standard on our consolidated financial statements.

In April 2014, the FASB issued an ASU on the reporting of discontinued operations. The guidance changed the definition of a
discontinued operation to include dispositions that represent a strategic shift and have a major effect on operations and financial
results. Strategic shifts may include the disposal of operations in a major geographical area, a major line of business, a major
investment accounted for under the equity method or other major parts of an entity. For disposals that qualify, additional
disclosures, including cash flow and balance sheet information for the discontinued operation, will be required. The guidance is
effective for fiscal years and interim reporting periods beginning on or after December 15, 2014, with early adoption permitted. We
will apply these provisions to prospective divestitures beginning in 2015. Refer to Note 2, Divestitures and Acquisitions—Planned
Coffee Business Transactions , on our plans to report the 2015 planned coffee business transactions.

Reclassifications:

Certain amounts previously reported have been reclassified to conform to the current-year presentation. At December 31, 2014, we
elected to net certain regional banking activity with a legal right of offset and have reflected the change in the prior periods
presented in the consolidated statements of cash flows and prior-year cash, debt and weighted-average interest rates on our debt.
During 2014, we realigned some of our products across our product categories. As a result, we have reclassified prior year product
category revenues in Note 17, Segment Reporting, on a consistent basis. We have adjusted the presentation of certain commodity
contracts in our economic hedge table to remove the impact of intercompany sales related to forward contracts for which we have
taken physical delivery. We have reflected the change in the prior periods presented in Note 9, Financial Instruments—Economic
Hedges , on a consistent basis. We have also provided greater detail on prior-year receivables and deferred taxes consistent with
the current year presentation.
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Note 2. Divestitures and Acquisitions

Planned Coffee Business Transactions:

On May 7, 2014, we announced that we entered into an agreement to combine our wholly owned coffee portfolio (outside of
France) with D.E Master Blenders 1753 B.V. (“DEMB?"). In conjunction with this transaction, Acorn Holdings B.V. (“AHBV"), owner of
DEMB, has also made a binding offer to receive our coffee business in France. The parties have also invited our partners in certain
joint ventures to join the new company.

Upon completion of all proposed transactions, we expect to receive cash of approximately € 4 billion and a 49 percent equity
interest in the new company, to be called Jacobs Douwe Egberts (“*JDE”"). AHBV will hold a majority share in the proposed
combined company and will have a majority of the seats on the board, which will be chaired by current DEMB Chairman Bart Becht.
We will have certain minority rights. AHBV is owned by an investor group led by JAB Holding Company s.ar.l.

Once we have contributed our coffee businesses to the joint venture, we expect to record our interest in the joint venture as an
equity method investment on our consolidated balance sheet and to include our share of its earnings prospectively within our
continuing results of operations. We also anticipate recording a gain on the divested assets of our coffee business portfolio. At this
time, we do not expect the coffee business divestiture to qualify for discontinued operations presentation because it does not
represent a strategic change in our business nor is it expected to have a major effect on our results of operations as we will retain
an approximate 49% interest in the combined joint venture with the DEMB business.

The transactions remain subject to regulatory approvals and the completion of employee information and consultation
requirements. We continue to expect the transactions to be completed in 2015, subject to closing conditions, including regulatory
approvals. In December 2014, the European Commission announced its intention to further evaluate the proposed transaction
against EU antitrust regulations and in order to make a final determination on merger clearance, which we currently expect in the
second half of 2015. We and DEMB also continue to undertake consultations with Works Councils and employee representatives
as required in connection with the transactions.

In connection with the expected receipt of approximately € 4 billion upon closing, we entered into currency exchange forward
contracts in the second quarter of 2014 to lock in an expected U.S. dollar value of approximately $5 billion. As of December 31,
2014, the forward contracts were recorded as derivative assets within other current assets and through December 31, 2014, we
recognized $628 million of unrealized gains related to the hedges within interest and other expense, net. On February 11, 2015, we
monetized the forward contracts and recorded an additional realized gain of $311 million in the first quarter of 2015, for a total
realized gain of $939 million. We also entered into new currency exchange forward contracts to continue to lock in an expected
U.S. dollar value of approximately $5 billion from the transactions. Based on changes in the euro/U.S. dollar exchange rate, the
actual closing date of the planned JDE coffee transactions and the settlement dates of the hedges or other hedges we may put into
place, the actual amount of U.S. dollars we receive could change. In addition to the hedges, we have also incurred incremental
expenses related to readying our coffee businesses for the planned transactions which totaled $77 million through December 31,
2014 and were recorded within selling, general and administrative expenses of our Europe and EEMEA segments and within our
general corporate expenses.

Spin-Off of Kraft Foods Group:

On the Distribution Date, we completed the Spin-Off of Kraft Foods Group. Each of our shareholders of record as of the close of
business on September 19, 2012 (“the Record Date”) received one share of Kraft Foods Group common stock for every three
shares of our Common Stock held as of the Record Date. The distribution was structured to be tax free to our U.S. shareholders for
U.S. federal income tax purposes. Following the Spin-Off, Kraft Foods Group is an independent public company and we do not
beneficially own any shares of Kraft Foods Group common stock.

The divested Kraft Foods Group business is presented as a discontinued operation on the consolidated statements of earnings in
2012 when the Spin-Off occurred and, as further noted below, in 2013 due to the resolution of the Starbucks arbitration and the
gain we recognized related to the Kraft Foods Group business. The Kraft Foods Group other comprehensive earnings, changes in
equity and cash flows are included within our consolidated statements of comprehensive earnings, equity and cash flows through
October 1, 2012.
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A summary of results related to the discontinued operation of Kraft Foods Group within our historical results is presented below:

Fourth Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended
December 31, 2013 October 1, 2012
(in millions)
Net revenues $ — $ 13,768
Earnings before income taxes $ 2,622 $ 2,266
Provision for income taxes 919 778
Earnings from discontinued operations, net of income taxes $ 1,603 $ 1,488

The results of the Kraft Foods Group discontinued operation exclude certain corporate and business unit costs that were historically
allocated to Kraft Foods Group and continued at Mondeléz International after the Spin-Off. These costs include primarily corporate
overheads, information systems and sales force support. On a pre-tax basis, through the date of the Spin-Off, these costs were
$150 million for the nine months ended October 1, 2012.

Interest expense relating to debt Kraft Foods Group incurred or assumed through the Distribution Date has been included in the
results from discontinued operations for all periods presented and as follows:

Nine Months Ended
October 1, 2012

(in millions)
$ 6.0 billion note issuance in June 2012 $ 70
$ 3.6 billion notes exchanged in July 2012 171
$ 0.4 billion debt transferred in October 2012 24
Capital leases and other 13
$ 278

On the Distribution Date, we divested net assets totaling $4,358 million, or $4,111 million net of cash retained by Kraft Foods
Group. Additionally, we distributed to Kraft Foods Group $4,308 million of accumulated other comprehensive losses primarily
related to the pension and other benefit plan net liabilities transferred to Kraft Foods Group and $89 million of unearned
compensation recorded within additional paid in capital. In total, we recorded a distribution of $8,755 million of retained earnings in
connection with the Spin-Off.

In order to implement the Spin-Off, we entered into certain agreements with Kraft Foods Group to effect our legal and structural
separation, govern the relationship between us, and allocate various assets, liabilities and obligations between us, including,
among other things, employee benefits, intellectual property and tax-related assets and liabilities (see Note 15, Income Taxes , for
additional information on the current and deferred tax assets and liabilities transferred or retained in the Spin-Off). In addition to
executing the Spin-Off in the manner provided in the agreements, in November 2012, pursuant to these agreements, we paid Kraft
Foods Group $163 million related to targeted cash flows (together with the $247 million of cash divested on the Distribution Date, a
total of $410 million of cash was transferred to Kraft Foods Group in connection with the Spin-Off). To facilitate the management,
including final payment and resolution, of certain obligations, Kraft Foods Group retained certain of our North American net trade
payables and receivables.

We also retained approximately $140 million of workers’ compensation liabilities for claims incurred by Kraft Foods Group
employees prior to the Spin-Off. In November 2012, we paid Kraft Foods Group $95 million to cash settle the net trade payables
and receivables. In March 2013, we collected $55 million from Kraft Foods Group related to the cash settlement of stock awards
held by our respective employees at the time of the Spin-Off as further described in Note 12, Stock Plans .
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In 2014, we concluded our Spin-Off transition plans. Historically, we incurred Spin-Off transaction, transition and financing and
related costs (“Spin-Off Costs”) within our operating results. We have recorded Spin-Off Costs of $35 million in 2014, $62 million in
2013 and $1,053 million in 2012 in pre-tax earnings as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in millions)
Selling, general and administrative expenses $ 35 $ 62 $ 444
Interest and other expense, net - - 609
Spin-Off Costs $ 35 $ 62 $ 1,053

Through the end of 2014, we incurred total Spin-Off Costs of approximately $1.2 billion, and we do not expect to incur additional
Spin-Off Costs.

Resolution of Starbucks Arbitration:

On December 13, 2013, an independent arbitrator in our dispute with the Starbucks Coffee Company (“Starbucks”) issued a
decision and Final Award that Kraft Foods Global, Inc. (now Kraft Foods Group), the named party in the proceeding, had proven
that it was entitled to recover and that Starbucks was required to pay $2,764 million in total cash compensation for Starbucks’
unilateral termination of the Starbucks packaged coffee business license and supply agreement. The award included compensation
for 135% of the determined fair market value of the agreement for improper termination as well as prejudgment interest of $521
million and Kraft Foods Group’s attorney’s fees, which the parties agreed would equal $15 million. Starbucks has paid all of the
amount owed pursuant to the ruling. Under the Separation and Distribution Agreement between Kraft Foods Group and us, Kraft
Foods Group directed the recovery awarded in the arbitration proceeding to us. The dispute arose within the Kraft Foods Group
discontinued operation and was directed to Mondeléz International in connection with the Spin-Off recapitalization plans.
Accordingly, the pre-tax gain on the resolution of the Starbucks arbitration of $2.5 billion ($1.6 billion net of tax) was recorded in
earnings from discontinued operations during the fourth quarter of 2013.

Acquisitions, Other Divestitures and Sales of Property:

On November 11, 2014, we announced the pending acquisition of a biscuit operation in Vietnam. The biscuit operation will become
a subsidiary within our Asia Pacific segment. The total consideration to be paid is expected to be up to 12,656 billion Viethamese
dong ($600 million U.S. dollars as of December 31, 2014). We expect to close the initial phase of the transaction in mid 2015 after
regulatory and other matters are resolved. We deposited $46 million in escrow upon signing the purchase agreement on
November 10, 2014. We expect to pay approximately 9,935 billion Vietnamese dong ($471 million U.S. dollars as of December 31,
2014) and deposit an additional 991 billion Viethamese dong ($47 million U.S. dollars as of December 31, 2014) in escrow upon
completing the initial phase of the transaction in mid 2015, which we expect to fund from current borrowing capacity. The balance
will be paid upon the satisfaction of final conditions, including the resolution of warranty or other claims and purchase price
adjustments. Legal expenses related to the planned acquisition were $2 million in 2014 and were recorded within selling, general
and administrative expenses.

On February 22, 2013, we acquired the remaining interest in a biscuit operation in Morocco, which is now a wholly-owned
subsidiary within our EEMEA segment. We paid net cash consideration of $119 million, consisting of $155 million purchase price
net of cash acquired of $36 million. Prior to the acquisition, our interest in the operation was accounted for under the equity method.
As a result of obtaining a controlling interest, we consolidated the operation and upon finalizing the valuation of the acquired net
assets, as of December 31, 2013, we had recorded the fair value of acquired assets (including identifiable intangible assets of $48
million), the liabilities assumed and goodwill of $209 million. During the three months ended March 31, 2013, we also recorded a
pre-tax gain of $22 million related to the remeasurement of our previously-held equity interest in the operation to fair value in
accordance with U.S. GAAP and acquisition costs of $7 million in interest and other expense, net and selling, general and
administrative expenses. We recorded integration charges of $4 million in 2014 and $4 million in 2013 within cost of sales and
selling, general and administrative expenses.

In 2013, we completed several divestitures primarily in our EEMEA and Europe segments that generated cash proceeds of $60
million and pre-tax gains of $8 million. The divestitures included a salty snacks business in Turkey, a confectionery business in
South Africa and a chocolate business in Spain.

In 2012, we completed several divestitures within our Europe segment that generated cash proceeds of $200 million and pre-tax
gains of $107 million. The divestitures primarily included a dinners and sauces grocery business in Germany and Belgium and a
canned meat business in Italy.
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The aggregate operating results of the 2013 and 2012 divestitures were not material to our financial statements in any of the
periods presented.

In 2013, we sold properties in India within our Asia Pacific segment and in Italy, the United Kingdom and Norway within our Europe
segment. The India property sale generated a $39 million pre-tax gain and $53 million of cash proceeds. The Europe property sales
generated $29 million in pre-tax net gains and $37 million of cash proceeds. We also have a $43 million receivable related to the
United Kingdom property sale. The gains were recorded within selling, general and administrative expenses and cash proceeds
were recorded in cash flows from other investing activities in the year ended December 31, 2013.

In 2012, we also sold property in Russia and Turkey within our EEMEA segment. The Russia property sale generated a $55 million
pre-tax gain and $72 million of cash proceeds and the Turkey property sale generated a $22 million pre-tax gain and $29 million of
cash proceeds. The gains were recorded within selling, general and administrative expenses and the cash proceeds were recorded
in cash flows from other investing activities in the year ended December 31, 2012.

Note 3. Inventories

Inventories consisted of the following:

As of December 31,

2014 2013
(in millions)
Raw materials $ 1,122 $ 1,165
Finished product 2,358 2,578
Inventories, net $ 3,480 $ 3,743

Note 4. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consisted of the following:

As of December 31,

2014 2013
(in millions)

Land and land improvements $ 574 $ 617
Buildings and building improvements 3,117 3,270
Machinery and equipment 11,737 12,351
Construction in progress 1,484 1,376
16,912 17,614

Accumulated depreciation (7,085) (7,367)
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 9,827 $ 10,247

In connection with our 2012-2014 Restructuring Program and 2014-2018 Restructuring Program (see Note 6, Restructuring
Programs ), we recorded non-cash asset write-downs (including accelerated depreciation and asset impairments) of $173 million in
2014 and $89 million in 2013. These charges were recorded in the consolidated statements of earnings within asset impairment
and exit costs as follows and arose from restructuring activities further described in Note 6, Restructuring Programs .

For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013
(in millions)

Latin America $ 14 $ -
Asia Pacific 23 2
EEMEA 16 -
Europe 37 27
North America 83 60
Total non-cash asset write-downs $ 173 $ 89
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Note 5. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill by reportable segment was:

As of December 31,

2014 2013
(in millions)
Latin America $ 1,127 $ 1,262
Asia Pacific 2,395 2,504
EEMEA 1,942 2,764
Europe 8,952 10,026
North America 8,973 9,041
Goodwill $ 23,389 $ 25,597

Intangible assets consisted of the following:

As of December 31,

2014 2013

(in millions)
Non-amortizable intangible assets $ 18,810 $ 20,067
Amortizable intangible assets 2,525 2,852
21,335 22,919
Accumulated amortization (1,000) (925)
Intangible assets, net $ 20,335 $ 21,994

Non-amortizable intangible assets consist principally of brand names purchased through our acquisitions of Nabisco Holdings
Corp., the Spanish and Portuguese operations of United Biscuits, the global LU biscuit business of Groupe Danone S.A. and
Cadbury Limited. Amortizable intangible assets consist primarily of trademarks, customer-related intangibles, process technology,
licenses and non-compete agreements. At December 31, 2014, the weighted-average life of our amortizable intangible assets was
13.5 years.

Amortization expense for intangible assets was $206 million in 2014, $217 million in 2013 and $217 million in 2012. We currently
estimate annual amortization expense for each of the next five years to be approximately $200 million.

Changes in goodwill and intangible assets consisted of:

2014 2013
Intangible Intangible
Goodwill Assets, at cost Goodwill Assets, at cost
(in millions)
Balance at January 1 $ 25,597 $ 22,919 $ 25,740 $ 23,269
Changes due to:
Currency (2,256) (1,528) (336) (390)
Divestitures - - (13) (7
Acquisition - - 209 48
Asset impairments - (57) - -
Other 48 1 3) (1)
Balance at December 31 $ 23,389 $ 21,335 $ 25,597 $ 22,919

Changes to goodwill and intangible assets were:
» Divestitures — In 2013, we reduced goodwill by $13 million and intangible assets by $7 million due to the divestitures of a
chocolate business in Spain, a salty snacks business in Turkey and a confectionery business in South Africa.
» Acquisitions — In 2013, we increased goodwill by $209 million and intangible assets by $48 million due to the acquisition
of our remaining interest in a biscuit operation in Morocco.
» Asset Impairments — In 2014, we recorded $57 million of charges related to two trademarks as described below.
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On January 1, 2014, an organizational change occurred within our North America region from a country and product category
structure to a regional product category structure. As a result, our North America region now has two instead of four reporting units.
For any reporting units that were reorganized, the goodwill was allocated to the new reporting unit structure based on relative fair
values of the related business units.

In 2014, 2013 and 2012, there were no impairments of goodwill. In connection with our 2014 annual impairment testing, each of our
reporting units had sufficient fair value in excess of carrying value. While all reporting units passed our annual impairment testing, if
expectations are not met or specific valuation factors outside of our control, such as discount rates, change significantly, then the
estimated fair values of a reporting unit or reporting units might decline and lead to a goodwill impairment in the future.

During our 2014 review of non-amortizable intangible assets, we recorded $57 million of impairment charges related to two
trademarks. In both cases, the impairments arose due to lower than expected product growth and decisions made in the fourth
quarter to redirect support for the products to other regional brands. We recorded a $48 million charge related to a biscuit
trademark in our Asia Pacific segment and a $9 million charge related to a candy trademark in our Europe segment. The
impairment charges were calculated as the excess of the carrying value over the estimated fair value of the intangible assets on a
global basis and were recorded within asset impairment and exit costs. We primarily use a relief of royalty valuation method,
which utilizes estimates of future sales, growth rates, royalty rates and discount rates in determining a brand’s global fair

value. During our 2014 intangible asset impairment review, we also noted three brands with $341 million of aggregate book value
as of December 31, 2014 that each had a fair value in excess of book value of 10% or less. While these intangible assets passed
our annual impairment testing and we believe our current plans for each of these brands will allow them to continue to not be
impaired, if expectations are not met or specific valuation factors outside of our control, such as discount rates, change significantly,
then a brand or brands could become impaired in the future.

Note 6. Restructuring Programs

2014-2018 Restructuring Program

On May 6, 2014, our Board of Directors approved a $3.5 billion restructuring program, comprised of approximately $2.5 billion in
cash costs and $1 billion in non-cash costs (the “2014-2018 Restructuring Program”), and up to $2.2 billion of capital expenditures.
The primary objective of the 2014-2018 Restructuring Program is to reduce our operating cost structure in both our supply chain
and overhead costs. The program is intended primarily to cover severance as well as asset disposals and other manufacturing-
related one-time costs. We expect to incur the majority of the program’s charges in 2015 and 2016 and to complete the program by
year-end 2018.

Restructuring Costs :
We recorded restructuring charges of $274 million in 2014 within asset impairment and exit costs. The activity for the 2014-2018
Restructuring Program liability for the year ended December 31, 2014 was:

Severance
and related Asset
costs Write -downs Total
(in millions)

Liability balance, January 1, 2014 $ - $ - $ -
Charges 251 23 274
Cash spent a7 - a7
Non-cash settlements (5) (23) (28)
Currency (5) - (5)

Liability balance, December 31, 2014 $ 224 $ - $ 224

We spent $17 million in 2014 in cash severance and related costs. We also recognized non-cash pension plan settlement losses
(see Note 10, Benefit Plans, for more details), non-cash asset write-downs (including accelerated depreciation and asset
impairments) and other non-cash adjustments totaling $28 million in 2014. At December 31, 2014, $209 million of our net
restructuring liability was recorded within other current liabilities and $15 million was recorded within other long-term liabilities.
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Implementation Costs:

Implementation costs are directly attributable to restructuring activities; however, they do not qualify for special accounting
treatment as exit or disposal activities. We believe the disclosure of implementation costs provides readers of our financial
statements with more information on the total costs of our 2014-2018 Restructuring Program. Implementation costs primarily relate
to reorganizing our operations and facilities in connection with our supply chain reinvention program and other identified productivity
and cost saving initiatives. The costs include incremental expenses related to the closure of facilities, costs to terminate certain
contracts and the simplification of our information systems. Within our continuing results of operations, we recorded implementation
costs of $107 million in 2014. We recorded these costs within cost of sales and general corporate expense within selling, general
and administrative expenses.

Restructuring and Implementation Costs in Operating Income:
During 2014, we recorded restructuring and implementation costs related to the 2014-2018 Restructuring Program within operating
income as follows:

Latin Asia North
Corporate
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 America Pacific EEMEA Europe America @ Total
(in millions)
Restructuring Costs $ 81 $ 16 $ 19 $ 91 $ 57 $ 10 $274
Implementation Costs 16 9 4 37 5 36 107
Total $ 97 $ 25 $ 23 $ 128 $ 62 $ 46 $381

(1) Includes adjustment for rounding.

2012-2014 Restructuring Program

In 2012, our Board of Directors approved $1.5 billion of restructuring and related implementation costs (the “2012-2014
Restructuring Program”) reflecting primarily severance, asset disposals and other manufacturing-related one-time costs. The
primary objective of the 2012-2014 Restructuring Program was to ensure that Mondeléz International and Kraft Foods Group were
each set up to operate efficiently and execute on our respective business strategies upon separation and in the future.

Of the $1.5 billion of 2012-2014 Restructuring Program costs, we retained approximately $925 million and Kraft Foods Group
retained the balance of the program. Through the end of 2014, we have incurred total restructuring and related implementation
charges of $899 million, and we do not expect to incur any additional charges on the 2012-2014 Restructuring Program.

Restructuring Costs:

We recorded restructuring charges of $360 million in 2014, $267 million in 2013 and $102 million in 2012 within asset impairment
and exit costs. During 2014, we also recorded out-of-period accruals for $73 million of severance ($52 million related to 2014 and
$21 million related to 2013) in connection with a change in the timing of accruals for ongoing negotiations with workers’ councils
and labor unions.

The activity for the 2012-2014 Restructuring Program liability for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 was:

Severance
and related Asset
costs Write -downs Total
(in millions)

Liability balance, January 1, 2013 $ 36 $ = $ 36
Charges 176 91 267
Cash spent (108) - (108)
Non-cash settlements (36) (91) (127)

Liability balance, December 31, 2013 $ 68 $ = $ 68
Charges 201 159 360
Cash spent (130) - (130)
Non-cash settlements (2) (159) (161)
Currency 9 - 9

Liability balance, December 31, 2014 $ 128 $ - $ 128
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We spent $130 million in 2014, $108 million in 2013 and $33 million in 2012 in cash severance and related costs. We also
recognized non-cash pension plan settlement losses (See Note 10, Benefit Plans ), non-cash asset write-downs (including
accelerated depreciation and asset impairments) and other non-cash adjustments totaling $161million in 2014, $127 million in 2013
and $33 million in 2012. At December 31, 2014, $98 million of our net restructuring liability was recorded within other current
liabilities and $30 million was recorded within other long-term liabilities.

Implementation Costs:

Implementation costs related to our 2012-2014 Restructuring Program primarily relate to activities in connection with the Spin-Off
such as reorganizing our operations and facilities, the discontinuance of certain product lines and incremental expenses related to
the closure of facilities, replicating our information systems infrastructure and reorganizing our sales function. We recorded these
costs within cost of sales and selling, general and administrative expenses primarily within our Europe and North America
segments.

Restructuring and Implementation Costs in Operating Income:
During 2014, 2013 and 2012, we recorded restructuring and implementation costs related to the 2012-2014 Restructuring Program
within operating income as follows:

Latin Asia North
For the Years Ended Corporate
December 31, America Pacific EEMEA Europe America (1) Total

(in millions)

2014
Restructuring Costs $ 8 $ 34 $ 57 $ 148 $ 113 $ - $360
Implementation Costs 3 6 2 52 32 4 99
Total $ 11 $ 40 $ 59 $ 200 $ 145 $ 4 $459
2013
Restructuring Costs $ 21 $ 2 $ 12 $ 95 $ 135 $ 2 $267
Implementation Costs - - 2 36 25 - 63
Total $ 21 $ 2 $ 14 $ 131 $ 160 $ 2 $330
2012
Restructuring Costs $ 7 $ - $ - $ 6 $ 89 $ - $102
Implementation Costs - - — — 8 - 8
Total $ 7 $ - $ - $ 6 $ 97 $ - $110
Total Project 2012 -2014
Restructuring Costs $ 36 $ 36 $ 69 $ 249 $ 337 $ 2 $729
Implementation Costs 3 6 4 88 65 4 170
Total $ 39 $ 42 $ 73 $ 337 $ 402 $ 6 $899

(1) Includes adjustment for rounding.

Note 7. Integration Program and Cost Savings Initia __ tives

Cadbury Integration Program:

As a result of our combination with Cadbury Limited (formerly, Cadbury Plc or “Cadbury”) in 2010, we launched an integration
program (the “Integration Program”) to combine the Cadbury operations with our operations and realize expected annual cost
savings of approximately $750 million by the end of 2013 and revenue synergies from investments in distribution, marketing and
product development. We achieved cost savings of approximately $800 million in 2012, a year ahead of schedule, and achieved
our planned revenue synergies in 2013. Through the end of 2013, we incurred total integration charges of approximately $1.5 billion
and completed incurring planned charges on the Integration Program.
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We recorded reversals to the Integration Program charges of $8 million in 2014 related to accruals no longer required. We recorded
Integration Program charges of $216 million in 2013 and $185 million in 2012 in cost of sales and selling, general and
administrative expenses within our Europe, Asia Pacific, Latin America and EEMEA segments. Changes in the remaining
Integration Program liability during 2014 and 2013 were:

2014 2013
(in millions)

Balance at January 1 $ 145 $ 202
Charges (8) 216
Cash spent (69) (255)
Currency / other (10) (18)

Balance at December 31 $ 58 $ 145

At December 31, 2014, $25 million of our net Integration Program liability was recorded within other current liabilities and $33
million, primarily related to leased facilities no longer in use, was recorded within other long-term liabilities.

Other Integration Costs:

In connection with our acquisition of a biscuit operation in Morocco in February 2013, we recorded integration charges of $4 million
in 2014 and $4 million in 2013. We recorded these charges in cost of sales and selling, general and administrative expenses within
our EEMEA segment. See Note 2, Divestitures and Acquisitions, for more information on the acquisition.

Cost Savings Initiatives:
Cost savings initiatives generally include exit, disposal and other project costs outside of our restructuring programs, Cadbury
Integration Program and our other integration program costs and consist of the following specific initiatives:
* In 2013, we recorded a $20 million charge primarily within the segment operating income of Latin America related to
severance benefits provided to terminated employees and one-time charges and within the segment operating income of
North America related to supply chain reinvention team expenses.
* In 2012, we recorded a $21 million charge primarily within the segment operating income of Europe related to severance
benefits provided to terminated employees and charges in connection with the reorganization in the Europe and EEMEA
segments.

Note 8. Debt and Borrowing Arrangements

Short-Term Borrowings:
Our short-term borrowings and related weighted-average interest rates consisted of:

As of December 31,

2014 2013
Amount Weighted - Amount Weighted -
Outstanding Average Rate Outstanding Average Rate
(in millions) (in millions)
Commercial paper $ 1,101 0.4% $ 1,410 0.4%
Bank loans 204 8.8% 184 7.7%
Total short-term borrowings $ 1,305 $ 1,594

As of December 31, 2014, the commercial paper issued and outstanding had between 2 and 86 days remaining to maturity. Bank
loans include borrowings on primarily uncommitted credit lines maintained by some of our international subsidiaries to meet short-
term working capital needs.

Borrowing Arrangements:

We maintain a revolving credit facility for general corporate purposes, including for working capital purposes and to support our
commercial paper program. Our $4.5 billion five-year senior unsecured revolving credit facility expires on October 11, 2018. The
revolving credit agreement includes a covenant that we maintain a minimum shareholders’ equity of at least $24.6 billion, excluding
accumulated other comprehensive earnings / (losses) and the cumulative effects of any changes in accounting principles. At
December 31, 2014, we met the covenant as our shareholders’ equity as defined by
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the covenant was $35.1 billion. The revolving credit facility agreement also contains customary representations, covenants and
events of default. There are no credit rating triggers, provisions or other financial covenants that could require us to post collateral
as security. As of December 31, 2014, no amounts were drawn on the facility.

Some of our international subsidiaries maintain primarily uncommitted credit lines to meet short-term working capital needs.
Collectively, these credit lines amounted to $2.1 billion at December 31, 2014 and $2.4 billion at December 31, 2013. Borrowings
on these lines amounted to $204 million at December 31, 2014 and $184 million at December 31, 2013.

Long-Term Debt:
Our long-term debt consisted of (interest rates are as of December 31, 2014):

As of December 31,

2014 2013
(in millions)

U.S. dollar notes, 0.76% to 7.00% (weighted-average effective rate 5.13%),

due through 2040 $ 10,873 $ 9,907
Euro notes, 0.58% to 6.25% (weighted-average effective rate 3.03%),

due through 2021 3,918 4,448
Pound sterling notes, 7.25% (weighted-average effective rate 5.44%),

due through 2018 573 1,116
Capital leases and other obligations 31 14

Total 15,395 15,485
Less current portion of long-term debt (1,530) (1,003)

Long-term debt $ 13,865 $ 14,482

As of December 31, 2014, aggregate maturities of our debt based on stated contractual maturities were (in millions):

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Thereafter Total
$1,530 $1,763 $1,498 $1,697 $1,250 $7,667 $15,405

On December 11, 2014, £300 million of our 5.375% British pound sterling bonds matured. The bonds and accrued interest to date
were paid with cash on hand and the issuance of commercial paper.

On February 19, 2014, $500 million of our 6.75% U.S. dollar notes matured. The notes and accrued interest to date were paid with
cash on hand and the issuance of commercial paper.

On February 6, 2014, we completed a cash tender offer and retired $1.56 billion of our long-term U.S. dollar debt consisting of:

*  $393 million of our 7.000% Notes due in August 2037

e $382 million of our 6.875% Notes due in February 2038

*  $250 million of our 6.875% Notes due in January 2039

*  $535 million of our 6.500% Notes due in February 2040
We financed the repurchase of these notes, including the payment of accrued interest and other costs incurred, from net proceeds
received from the $3.0 billion notes issuance on January 16, 2014. In connection with retiring this debt, during the first six months of
2014, we recorded a $493 million loss on extinguishment of debt within interest expense related to the amount we paid to retire the
debt in excess of its carrying value and from recognizing unamortized discounts and deferred financing costs in earnings at the time
of the debt extinguishment. The loss on extinguishment is included in long-term debt repayments in the 2014 consolidated
statement of cash flows. We also recognized $2 million in interest expense related to interest rate cash flow hedges that were
deferred in accumulated other comprehensive losses and recognized into earnings over the life of the debt. Upon extinguishing the
debt, the deferred cash flow hedge amounts were recorded in earnings.
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On January 16, 2014, we issued $3.0 billion of U.S. dollar notes, consisting of:
»  $400 million of floating rate notes that bear interest at three-month LIBOR plus 0.52% and mature on February 1, 2019
*  $850 million of 2.250% fixed rate notes that mature on February 1, 2019
» $1,750 million of 4.000% fixed rate notes that mature on February 1, 2024
We received net proceeds of $2,982 million that were used to fund the February 2014 tender offer, pay down commercial paper
borrowings and for other general corporate purposes. We recorded approximately $18 million of discounts and deferred financing
costs, which will be amortized into interest expense over the life of the notes.

On December 18, 2013, we completed a cash tender offer and retired $3.4 billion of our long-term U.S. dollar debt consisting of:

e $910 million of our 6.500% Notes due in August 2017

*  $729 million of our 6.125% Notes due in February 2018

*  $334 million of our 6.125% Notes due in August 2018

*  $1,467 million of our 5.375% Notes due in February 2020
We financed the repurchase of these notes, including the payment of accrued interest and other costs, with net proceeds received
from the € 2.4 hillion notes issuance on December 11, 2013, cash on hand and commercial paper issuances. We recorded a $608
million loss on extinguishment of debt within interest expense related to the amount we paid to retire the debt in excess of its
carrying value and from recognizing unamortized discounts and deferred financing costs in earnings at the time of the debt
extinguishment. The loss on extinguishment is included in long-term debt repayments in the 2013 consolidated statement of cash
flows. We also recognized $4 million in interest expense related to interest rate cash flow hedges that were deferred in accumulated
other comprehensive losses and recognized into earnings over the life of the debt. Upon extinguishing the debt, the deferred cash
flow hedge amounts were recorded in earnings.

On December 11, 2013, we issued € 2.4 billion of Euro notes, or approximately $3.3 billion in U.S. dollars as of December 31, 2013,
consisting of:

* €400 million (or $550 million) of floating rate notes that bear interest at three-month EURIBOR plus 0.50% and mature

on June 11, 2015

* €750 million (or $1,031 million) of 1.125% fixed rate notes that mature on January 26, 2017

* €1,250 million (or $1,718 million) of 2.375% fixed rate notes that mature on January 26, 2021
We received net proceeds of € 2,381 million, or $3,239 million in U.S. dollars, on December 11, 2013, that were used to patrtially
fund the December 2013 tender offer. We also recorded approximately $27 million of discounts and deferred financing costs, which
will be amortized into interest expense over the life of the notes.

On October 1, 2013, $1 billion of our 5.125% U.S. dollar notes and $800 million of our 5.250% U.S. dollar notes matured. The notes
and accrued interest to date were paid with cash on hand and the issuance of commercial paper.

On May 8, 2013, $1 billion of our 2.625% U.S. dollar notes matured. The notes and accrued interest to date were paid with cash on
hand and the issuance of commercial paper.

On February 11, 2013, $750 million of our 6.00% U.S. dollar notes matured. The notes and accrued interest to date were paid with
cash on hand.

Our weighted-average interest rate on our total debt was 4.3% as of December 31, 2014, down from 4.8% as of December 31,
2013.

Fair Value of Our Debt:

The fair value of our short-term borrowings at December 31, 2014 and 2013 reflects current market interest rates and approximates
the amounts we have recorded on our consolidated balance sheet. The fair value of our long-term debt was determined using
guoted prices in active markets (Level 1 valuation data) for the publicly traded debt obligations. At December 31, 2014, the
aggregate fair value of our total debt was $18,463 million and its carrying value was $16,700 million. At December 31, 2013, the
aggregate fair value of our total debt was $18,807 million and its carrying value was $17,079 million.

77



Table of Contents

Interest and Other Expense, Net:
Interest and other expense, net within our results of continuing operations consisted of:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in millions)

Interest expense, debt $ 778 $ 1,017 $ 1,177

Loss on debt extinguishment and related expenses 495 612 -
Unrealized gain on planned coffee business transactions

currency hedge (628) - -

Benefit from indemnification resolution - (49) -

Spin-Off-related financing fees - - 609

Other expense / (income), net 43 (1) 77

Total interest and other expense, net $ 688 $ 1,579 $ 1,863

See Note 2, Divestitures and Acquisitions, and Note 9, Financial Instruments, for information on the currency exchange forward
contracts associated with the planned coffee business transactions. See Note 11, Commitments and Contingencies, for information
on the benefit from the resolution of the Cadbury acquisition-related indemnification. See Note 9, Financial Instruments , on the
Spin-Off related financing fees of $556 million related to several interest rate swap settlements in 2012.

Note 9. Financial Instruments

Fair Value of Derivative Instruments:
Derivative instruments were recorded at fair value in the consolidated balance sheets as follows:

As of December 31,

2014 2013
Asset Liability Asset Liability
Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives
(in millions)
Derivatives designated as accounting
hedges:
Currency exchange contracts $ 69 $ 17 $ 3 $ 11
Commodity contracts 12 33 2 3
Interest rate contracts 13 42 209 —
$ 94 $ 92 $ 214 $ 14
Derivatives not designated as
accounting hedges:
Currency exchange contracts $ 735 $ 24 $ 84 $ 8
Commodity contracts 90 194 60 51
Interest rate contracts 59 39 64 38
$ 884 $ 257 $ 208 $ 97
Total fair value $ 978 $ 349 $ 422 $ 111

During 2014 and 2013, derivatives designated as accounting hedges include cash flow and fair value hedges and derivatives not
designated as accounting hedges include economic hedges. Non-U.S. debt designated as a hedge of our net investments in non-
U.S. operations is not reflected in the table above, but is included in long-term debt summarized in Note 8, Debt and Borrowing
Arrangements . We record derivative assets and liabilities on a gross basis in our consolidated balance sheet. The fair value of our
asset derivatives is recorded within other current assets and the fair value of our liability derivatives is recorded within other current
liabilities.
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The fair values (asset / (liability)) of our derivative instruments were determined using:

As of December 31, 2014
Quoted Prices in

Active Markets Significant Significant
Total for Identical Other Observable Unobservable
Fair Value of Net Assets Inputs Inputs
Asset / (Liability) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(in millions)
Currency exchange contracts $ 763 $ = $ 763 $ =
Commodity contracts (125) (49) (76) -
Interest rate contracts (9) - (9) —
Total derivatives $ 629 $ (49) $ 678 $ -
As of December 31, 2013
Quoted Prices in
Active Markets Significant Significant
Total for Identical Other Observable Unobservable
Fair Value of Net Assets Inputs Inputs
Asset /(Liability) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(in millions)
Currency exchange contracts $ 68 $ = $ 68 $ =
Commodity contracts 8 4) 12 -
Interest rate contracts 235 - 235 —
Total derivatives $ 311 $ (4) $ 315 $ —

Level 1 financial assets and liabilities consist of exchange-traded commaodity futures and listed options. The fair value of these
instruments is determined based on quoted market prices on commodity exchanges. Our exchange-traded derivatives are generally
subject to master netting arrangements that permit net settlement of transactions with the same counterparty when certain criteria
are met, such as in the event of default. We also are required to maintain cash margin accounts in connection with funding the
settlement of our open positions, and the margin requirements generally fluctuate daily based on market conditions. We have
recorded margin deposits related to our exchange-traded derivatives of $84 million as of December 31, 2014 and $21 million as of
December 31, 2013 within other current assets. Based on our net asset or liability positions with individual counterparties, in the
event of default and immediate net settlement of all of our open positions, for derivatives we have in a net liability position, we
would owe $3 million as of December 31, 2014, and for derivatives we have in a net asset position, our counterparties would owe
us a total of $38 million as of December 31, 2014 and $17 million as of December 31, 2013.

Level 2 financial assets and liabilities consist primarily of over-the-counter (“OTC”) currency exchange forwards, options and swaps;
commodity forwards and options; and interest rate swaps. Our currency exchange contracts are valued using an income approach
based on observable market forward rates less the contract rate multiplied by the notional amount. Commaodity derivatives are
valued using an income approach based on the observable market commodity index prices less the contract rate multiplied by the
notional amount or based on pricing models that rely on market observable inputs such as commaodity prices. Our calculation of the
fair value of interest rate swaps is derived from a discounted cash flow analysis based on the terms of the contract and the
observable market interest rate curve. Our calculation of the fair value of financial instruments takes into consideration the risk of
nonperformance, including counterparty credit risk. Our OTC derivative transactions are governed by International Swap Dealers
Association agreements and other standard industry contracts. Under these agreements, we do not post nor require collateral from
our counterparties. The majority of our commaodity and currency exchange OTC derivatives do not have a legal right of set-off. In
connection with our OTC derivatives that could be net-settled in the event of default, assuming all parties were to fail to comply with
the terms of the agreements, for derivatives we have in a net liability position, we would owe $156 million as of December 31, 2014
and $40 million as of December 31, 2013, and for derivatives we have in a net asset position, our counterparties would owe us a
total of $72 million as of December 31, 2014 and $275 million as of December 31, 2013. We manage the credit risk in connection
with these and all our derivatives by entering into transactions with counterparties with investment grade credit ratings, limiting the
amount of exposure with each counterparty and monitoring the financial condition of our counterparties.
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Derivative Volume:
The net notional values of our derivative instruments were:

Notional Amount
As of December 31,

2014 2013
(in millions)

Currency exchange contracts:

Intercompany loans and forecasted interest payments $ 3,640 $ 4,369

Forecasted transactions 6,681 2,565
Commodity contracts 1,569 805
Interest rate contracts 3,970 2,273
Net investment hedge — euro notes 3,932 4,466
Net investment hedge — pound sterling notes 545 1,076

Cash Flow Hedges:
Cash flow hedge activity, net of taxes, within accumulated other comprehensive earnings / (losses) included:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in millions)

Accumulated gain / (loss) at January 1 $ 117 $ (38) $ (297)
Transfer of realized (gains) / losses to earnings (40) 53 312
Unrealized gain / (loss) (79) 102 (75)
Discontinued operations - - (134)
Impact of Spin-Off - - 156
Accumulated gain / (loss) at December 31 $ (2) $ 117 $ 38)

After-tax gains / (losses) reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive earnings / (losses) into net earnings were:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

(in millions)
Currency exchange contracts - forecasted transactions $ 26 $ (26) $ 58
Commodity contracts 16 (23) (10)
Interest rate contracts (2 4) (360)
Total $ 40 $ (53) $ (312)

After-tax gains / (losses) recognized in other comprehensive earnings / (losses) were:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

(in millions)
Currency exchange contracts - forecasted transactions $ 82 $ (23) $ (16)
Commodity contracts (2) 3 (24)
Interest rate contracts (159) 122 (35)
Total $ 79) $ 102 $ 75
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Pre-tax gains / (losses) on ineffectiveness recognized in net earnings from continuing operations were:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in millions)
Commodity contracts $ (10) $ 1 $ (3)
Interest rate contracts - - (23)
Total $ 10) $ 1 $ (26)

Pre-tax gains / (losses) on amounts excluded from effectiveness testing recognized in net earnings from continuing operations
included a pre-tax loss of $556 million we recognized in 2012 within interest and other expense, net related to certain forward-
starting interest rate swaps for which the planned timing of the related forecasted debt was changed in connection with our Spin-Off
plans and related debt capitalization plans.

We record pre-tax and after-tax (i) gains or losses reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive earnings / (losses) into
earnings, (ii) gains or losses on ineffectiveness and (iii) gains or losses on amounts excluded from effectiveness testing in:
» cost of sales for commodity contracts;
» cost of sales for currency exchange contracts related to forecasted transactions; and
» interest and other expense, net for interest rate contracts and currency exchange contracts related to intercompany
loans.

Based on current market conditions, we would expect to transfer unrealized losses of $20 million (net of taxes) for commodity cash
flow hedges, unrealized gains of $53 million (net of taxes) for currency cash flow hedges and unrealized losses of $1 million (net of
taxes) for interest rate cash flow hedges to earnings during the next 12 months.

Hedge Coverage:

As of December 31, 2014, we hedged transactions forecasted to impact cash flows over the following periods:
« commodity transactions for periods not exceeding the next 15 months;
» interest rate transactions for periods not exceeding the next 31 years and 2 months; and
» currency exchange transactions for periods not exceeding the next 4 years and 10 months.

Fair Value Hedges:
Pre-tax gains / (losses) due to changes in fair value of our interest rate swaps and related hedged long-term debt were recorded in
interest and other expense, net:

For the Years Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012
(in millions)

Derivatives $ 13 $ = $ (2)
Borrowings (13) - 2

Fair value hedge ineffectiveness and amounts excluded from effectiveness testing were not material for all periods presented.
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Economic Hedges:
Pre-tax gains / (losses) recorded in net earnings for economic hedges were:

Location of
For the Years Ended December 31, Gain / (Loss)
Recognized
2014 2013 2012 in Earnings
(in millions)
Currency exchange contracts:
Intercompany loans and forecasted interest Interest and other
payments $ 4 $ 18 $ 24 expense, net
Forecasted transactions 29 65 7 Cost of sales
Interest and other
Forecasted transactions 610 9 a7 expense, net
Selling, general
and administrative
Forecasted transactions 4) 4 - expenses
Interest and other
Interest rate contracts - - 3 expense, net
Commodity contracts (136) (40) (49) Cost of sales
Total $ 503 $ 56 $ (32)

In connection with the planned coffee business transactions, we entered into euro to U.S. dollar currency exchange forward
contracts to hedge an expected cash receipt of € 4 billion upon closing. As the forward contracts relate to a pending business
divestiture, unrealized gains and losses on the derivative are recorded in earnings. We recorded a $628 million unrealized gain for
the year ended December 31, 2014 within interest and other expense, net in connection with the forward contracts as the U.S.
dollar strengthened relative to the euro. See Note 2, Divestitures and Acquisitions—Planned Coffee Business Transactions , for
additional information on the monetization of the currency exchange forward contracts in the first quarter of 2015.

Hedges of Net Investments in International Operations:
After-tax gains / (losses) related to hedges of net investments in international operations in the form of euro and pound sterling-

denominated debt were:

Location of
For the Years Ended December 31, Gain / (Loss)
2014 2013 2012 Recognized in AOCI
(in millions)
Euro notes $ 328 $ (50) $ (42) Currency Translation
Pound sterling notes 39 (13) (29) Adjustment
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Note 10. Benefit Plans

Pension Plans

Obligations and Funded Status:

The projected benefit obligations, plan assets and funded status of our pension plans were:

Benefit obligation at January 1

Service cost
Interest cost
Benefits paid

Settlements paid
Actuarial (gains) / losses

Currency
Other

Benefit obligation at December 31

Fair value of plan assets at January 1
Actual return on plan assets

Contributions
Benefits paid

Settlements paid

Currency
Other

Fair value of plan assets at December 31
Net pension liability at December 31

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
2014 2013 2014 2013
(in millions)
$ 1,266 $ 1,389 $ 9,920 $ 9,786
57 71 184 172
67 60 388 358
(20) (14) (446) (420)
(52) (59) - -
266 (182) 1,604 (184)
- - (949) 183
22 1 153 25
1,606 1,266 10,854 9,920
1,118 903 8,122 7,381
159 111 971 675
11 178 353 350
(20) (14) (446) (420)
(52) (59) - -
- - (681) 136
— (1) 43 —
1,216 1,118 8,362 8,122
$ (390) % (148) % (2,492) % (1,798)

The accumulated benefit obligation, which represents benefits earned to the measurement date, was $1,474 million at
December 31, 2014 and $1,133 million at December 31, 2013 for the U.S. pension plans. The accumulated benefit obligation for
the non-U.S. pension plans was $10,462 million at December 31, 2014 and $9,605 million at December 31, 2013.

For salaried and non-union hourly employees hired after January 1, 2009, we discontinued benefits under our U.S. pension plans
and replaced them with an enhanced Company contribution to our employee defined contribution plan. Effective December 31,
2019, benefit accruals will cease under the U.S. non-union pension plan. For non-union employees participating in that plan on
December 31, 2019, we will calculate the pension benefit obligation based on pay and service as of that date and no longer accrue

new benefits.

The combined U.S. and non-U.S. pension plans resulted in a net pension liability of $2,882 million at December 31, 2014 and
$1,946 million at December 31, 2013. We recognized these amounts in our consolidated balance sheets as follows:

Prepaid pension assets
Other accrued liabilities
Accrued pension costs
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2014 2013
(in millions)
$ 53 $ 54
(23) (38)
(2,912) (1,962)
$ (282 $ (1,946
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Certain of our U.S. and non-U.S. plans are underfunded and have accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets. For
these plans, the projected benefit obligations, accumulated benefit obligations and the fair value of plan assets were:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
As of December 31, As of December 31,
2014 2013 2014 2013
(in millions)
Projected benefit obligation $ 1,606 $ 86 $ 10,108 $ 8,379
Accumulated benefit obligation 1,474 73 9,763 8,197
Fair value of plan assets 1,216 2 7,576 6,571

We used the following weighted-average assumptions to determine our benefit obligations under the pension plans:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
As of December 31, As of December 31,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Discount rate 4.20% 5.10% 2.99% 4.00%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.25% 7.75% 5.96% 6.18%
Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 4.00% 3.26% 3.61%

Year-end discount rates for our U.S., Canadian, Eurozone and U.K. plans were developed from a model portfolio of high quality,
fixed-income debt instruments with durations that match the expected future cash flows of the benefit obligations. Year-end
discount rates for our remaining non-U.S. plans were developed from local bond indices that match local benefit obligations as
closely as possible. Changes in our discount rates were primarily the result of changes in bond yields year-over-year. We determine
our expected rate of return on plan assets from the plan assets’ historical long-term investment performance, current asset
allocation and estimates of future long-term returns by asset class.

Components of Net Pension Cost:
Net pension cost consisted of the following:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
For the Years Ended December 31, For the Years Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
(in millions)

Service cost $ 57 $ 71 % 142 $ 184 $ 172 $ 172
Interest cost 67 60 275 388 358 425
Expected return on plan assets (81) (67) (358) (485) (435) (494)
Amortization:

Net loss from experience

differences 29 55 253 106 136 121

Prior service cost 2 2 6 - 1 3
Other expenses 28 1 113 14 3 22
Net pension costs related to

discontinued operations - - (263) - - (29)
Net pension cost included in

continuing operations $ 102 $ 122 $ 168 $ 207 $ 235 $ 220

The following costs are included within other expenses above. Employees who elected lump-sum payments in connection with our
2012-2014 Restructuring Program and cost saving initiatives and retired employees who elected lump-sum payments resulted in
net settlement losses for our U.S. plans of $28 million in 2014, $1 million in 2013, and $113 million in 2012 (2012 includes amounts
related to the discontinued operation of Kraft Foods Group). Curtailment and settlement losses for our non-U.S. plans in 2014
included $12 million related to employees affected by our 2014-2018 Restructuring Program and retired employees who elected
lump-sum payments. Non-U.S. plant closures and early retirement benefits resulted in curtailment and settlement losses of $2
million in 2013 and $9 million in 2012. In addition, we incurred special termination benefit costs of $2 million in 2014 and $1 million
in 2013 in the non-U.S. plans related to the 2012-2014 Restructuring Program. We incurred special termination benefit costs of $13
million in 2012 in the non-U.S. plans related to the Cadbury integration.
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For the U.S. plans, we determine the expected return on plan assets component of net periodic benefit cost using a calculated
market return value that recognizes the cost over a four year period. For our non-U.S. plans, we utilize a similar approach with
varying cost recognition periods for some plans, and with others, we determine the expected return on plan assets based on asset

fair values as of the measurement date.

As of December 31, 2014, for the combined U.S. and non-U.S. pension plans, we expected to amortize from accumulated other

comprehensive earnings / (losses) into net periodic pension cost during 2015:
» an estimated $224 million of net loss from experience differences; and
» less than $1 million of estimated prior service cost.

We used the following weighted-average assumptions to determine our net pension cost:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
For the Years Ended December 31, For the Years Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
Discount rate 5.10% 4.20% 4.56% 4.03% 3.81% 4.62%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.75% 7.75% 8.00% 6.17% 6.08% 6.47%
Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 3.63% 3.47% 3.58%
Plan Assets:
The fair value of pension plan assets was determined using the following fair value measurements:
As of December 31, 2014
Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Markets
Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Total Fair Assets Inputs Inputs
Asset Category Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(in millions)
U.S. equity securities $ 124 $ 124 $ - $ -
Non-U.S. equity securities 698 698 - —
Pooled funds - equity securities 2,192 538 1,654 —
Total equity securities 3,014 1,360 1,654 -
Government bonds 2,283 234 2,049 -
Pooled funds - fixed-income securities 1,151 311 743 97
Corporate bonds and other
fixed-income securities 1,174 314 111 749
Total fixed-income securities 4,608 859 2,903 846
Real estate 406 110 4 292
Hedge funds 829 - 829
Private equity 237 - - 237
Cash 253 246 7 —
Other 157 124 30 3
Total $ 9,504 $ 2,699 $ 4,598 $ 2,207
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As of December 31, 2013
Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Markets

Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Total Fair Assets Inputs Inputs
Asset Category Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(in millions)

U.S. equity securities $ 104 $ 104 $ - $ -
Non-U.S. equity securities 665 665 - -
Pooled funds - equity securities 2,571 799 1,772 —

Total equity securities 3,340 1,568 1,772 -
Government bonds 1,560 308 1,252 -
Pooled funds - fixed-income securities 1,176 311 850 15
Corporate bonds and other

fixed-income securities 1,350 108 462 780

Total fixed-income securities 4,086 727 2,564 795
Real estate 381 110 4 267
Hedge funds 820 - - 820
Private equity 227 - - 227
Cash 251 251 - -
Other 54 - 54 —
Total $ 9,159 $ 2,656 $ 4,394 $ 2,109

We excluded plan assets of $74 million at December 31, 2014 and $81 million at December 31, 2013 from the above tables related
to certain insurance contracts as they are reported at contract value, in accordance with authoritative guidance.

Fair value measurements:

Level 1 — includes primarily U.S and non-U.S. equity securities and government bonds valued using quoted prices in
active markets.

Level 2 —includes primarily pooled funds, including assets in real estate pooled funds, valued using net asset values of
participation units held in common collective trusts, as reported by the managers of the trusts and as supported by the
unit prices of actual purchase and sale transactions. Level 2 plan assets also include corporate bonds and other fixed-
income securities, valued using independent observable market inputs, such as matrix pricing, yield curves and indices.
Level 3 —includes investments valued using unobservable inputs that reflect the plans’ assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing the assets, based on the best information available.

Fair value estimates for pooled funds are calculated by the investment advisor when reliable quotations or pricing
services are not readily available for certain underlying securities. The estimated value is based on either cost, or
last sale price for most of the securities valued in this fashion.

Fair value estimates for private equity investments are calculated by the general partners using the market
approach to estimate the fair value of private investments. The market approach utilizes prices and other relevant
information generated by market transactions, type of security, degree of liquidity, restrictions on the disposition,
latest round of financing data, company financial statements, relevant valuation multiples and discounted cash
flow analyses.

Fair value estimates for real estate investments are calculated by the investment managers using the present
value of future cash flows expected to be received from the investments, based on valuation methodologies such
as appraisals, local market conditions, and current and projected operating performance.

Fair value estimates for investments in hedge fund-of-funds are calculated by the investment managers using the
net asset value per share of the investment as reported by the money managers of the underlying funds.

Fair value estimates for certain fixed-income securities such as insurance contracts are calculated based on the
future stream of benefit payments discounted using prevailing interest rates based on the valuation date.
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Changes in our Level 3 plan assets, which are recorded in other comprehensive earnings / (losses), included:

Net Realized
and Unrealized Net Purchases,
January 1, Net Transfers December 31,
2014 Gains/ Issuances and Into/(Out Currency 2014
Asset Category Balance (Losses) Settlements of) Level 3 Impact Balance
(in millions)

Pooled funds-

fixed-income securities ~ $ 15 $ a5) $ 15 $ 87 $ B) $ 97
Corporate bond and other

fixed-income securities 780 80 (64) - 47 749
Real estate 267 37 2) 10 (20) 292
Hedge funds 820 40 20 - (51) 829
Private equity 227 45 (19) 2 (15) 240

Total Level 3 investments $ 2,109 $ 187 $ (50) $ 29 $ (138) $ 2,207

Net Realized
and Unrealized Net Purchases,
January 1, Net Transfers December 31,
2013 Gains/ Issuances and Into/(Out Currency 2013
Asset Category Balance (Losses) Settlements of) Level 3 Impact Balance
(in millions)

Pooled funds-

fixed-income securities $ 10 $ @ $ 2 3 4 3% - $ 15
Corporate bond and other

fixed-income securities 794 17 (48) (1) 18 780
Real estate 239 10 12 - 6 267
Hedge funds 263 (1)) 535 - 33 820
Private equity 210 15 (4) — 6 227

Total Level 3 investments $ 1516 $ 30 $ 497 % 3 $ 63 $ 2,109

The increases in Level 3 pension plan investments during 2014 were primarily due to unrealized gains across most of the Level 3
asset categories and net transfers into pooled funds-fixed income securities offset by the effects of currency. The increases in Level
3 pension plan investments during 2013 were primarily due to net purchases in hedge funds.

The percentage of fair value of pension plan assets was:

Asset Category

Equity securities
Fixed-income securities
Real estate

Hedge funds

Private equity

Cash

Other

Total

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
As of December 31, As of December 31,

2014 2013 2014 2013
45% 53% 30% 34%
52% 44% 48% 45%

3% 3% 4% 4%

- - 10% 10%

- - 3% 3%

- - 3% 3%

— — 2% 1%
100% 100% 100% 100%

For our U.S. plans, our investment strategy is based on our expectation that equity securities will outperform fixed-income securities
over the long term. We attempt to maintain our target asset allocation by rebalancing between asset classes as we make
contributions and monthly benefit payments. Due to the nature and timing of our expected pension liabilities, in the first quarter of
2014, we strategically reduced the risk level of the investment portfolio relative to the liabilities of our plans by lowering our target
allocation to equity securities (including investments in real estate) to 50% and increasing the fixed-income allocation target to 50%.
Historically we targeted an allocation of approximately 60% of our plan assets in equity securities and approximately 40% in fixed-
income securities. The strategy uses indexed U.S. equity securities, actively managed and indexed international equity securities
and actively managed U.S. investment grade fixed-income securities (which constitute 95% or more of fixed-income securities) with
lesser allocations to high yield fixed-income securities. At December 31, 2013, we had a higher allocation to fixed income due to a
voluntary $163 million contribution that was made on December 27, 2013 and temporarily invested in a short-term fixed income

investment at year-end.
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For our non-U.S. plans, the investment strategy is subject to local regulations and the asset / liability profiles of the plans in each
individual country. These specific circumstances result in a level of equity exposure that is typically less than the U.S. plans. In
aggregate, the asset allocation targets of our non-U.S. plans are broadly characterized as a mix of approximately 35% equity
securities (including investments in real estate), approximately 50% fixed-income securities and approximately 15% other
alternative securities. Our investment strategy for our largest non-U.S. plan, which comprises 50% of our non-U.S. pension assets,
is designed to balance risk and return by diversifying across a wide range of return-seeking and liability matching assets, invested
in a range of both active and passive mandates. We target an allocation of approximately 15% in equity securities, 18% credit, 13%
private markets, 16% other diversifying assets, and 38% liability matching assets. The strategy uses actively managed and indexed
global developed and emerging market equities, actively managed global investment grade and alternative credit, global private
equity and real estate, other diversifying assets including hedge funds, and other liability matching assets including a buy-in annuity
policy. During 2013, the level of diversification was strategically increased by reducing the plan’s equity exposure by approximately
10% and investing the majority of the proceeds in hedge funds and other diversifying assets.

Employer Contributions:

In 2014, we contributed $11 million to our U.S. pension plans and $334 million to our non-U.S. pension plans. In addition,
employees contributed $19 million to our non-U.S. plans. We make contributions to our U.S. and non-U.S. pension plans primarily
to the extent that they are tax deductible and do not generate an excise tax liability.

In 2015, we estimate that our pension contributions will be $210 million to our U.S. plans and $319 million to our non-U.S. plans
based on current tax laws. Of the total 2015 pension contributions, $200 million is expected to be voluntary. Our actual
contributions may be different due to many factors, including changes in tax and other benefit laws, significant differences between
expected and actual pension asset performance or interest rates, or other factors.

Future Benefit Payments:
The estimated future benefit payments from our pension plans at December 31, 2014 were (in millions):

Year ending: 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020-2024
U.S. Plans $ 73 $ 82 $ 89 $ 99 $ 114 $ 593
Non-U.S. Plans $ 434 $ 437 $ 451 $ 462 $ 476 $ 2,569

Multiemployer Pension Plans:

We made contributions to multiemployer pension plans of $32 million in 2014, $32 million in 2013 and $30 million in 2012. These
plans provide pension benefits to retirees under certain collective bargaining agreements. The following is the only individually
significant multiemployer plan we participate in as of December 31, 2014:

Expiration Date

Pension FIP / RP of Collective -
EIN / Pension Protection Act Status Pending / Surcharge Bargaining
Pension Fund Plan Number Zone Status Implemented Imposed Agreements
Bakery and Confectionery
Union and Industry International
Pension Fund 526118572 Red Implemented Yes 2/29/2016

Our contributions exceeded 5% of total contributions to the Bakery and Confectionery Union and Industry International Pension
Fund (the “Fund”) for fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012. Our contributions to the Fund were $25 million in 2014, $26 million in 2013
and $25 million in 2012. Our contribution to the Fund is based on our contribution rates under our collective bargaining agreements,
the number of our eligible employees and Fund surcharges. We expect our contribution for the next year to be approximately $30
million under the current collective bargaining arrangements. The Fund'’s actuarial valuation has been completed and the zone
status was changed to “Red” in 2012. As a result of this certification, we are being charged a 10% surcharge on our contribution
rates. Our expected future contributions include the surcharge. The Fund adopted a rehabilitation plan on November 7, 2012 that
requires contribution increases and reduction to benefit provisions.

Our contributions to other multiemployer pension plans that were not individually significant were $7 million in 2014, $6 million in
2013 and $5 million in 2012. These contributions include contributions related to Kraft Foods Group employees who participated in
our multiemployer pension plans through October 1, 2012 of $2 million in 2012.
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Other Costs:

We sponsor and contribute to employee defined contribution plans. These plans cover eligible salaried, non-union and union
employees. Our contributions and costs are determined by the matching of employee contributions, as defined by the plans.
Amounts charged to expense in continuing operations for defined contribution plans totaled $46 million in 2014, $66 million in 2013
and $74 million in 2012.

Postretirement Benefit Plans

Obligations:
Our postretirement health care plans are not funded. The changes in and the amount of the accrued benefit obligation were:

As of December 31,

2014 2013
(in millions)

Accrued benefit obligation at January 1 $ 422 $ 458
Service cost 13 15
Interest cost 22 20
Benefits paid 9) (7
Plan amendments - 3)
Currency (11) @)
Assumption changes 75 (56)
Actuarial (gains) / losses 14 4)
Other 12 6

Accrued benefit obligation at December 31 $ 538 $ 422

The current portion of our accrued postretirement benefit obligation of $11 million at December 31, 2014 and $9 million at
December 31, 2013 was included in other accrued liabilities.

We used the following weighted-average assumptions to determine our postretirement benefit obligations:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
As of December 31, As of December 31,
2014 2013 2014 2013

Discount rate 4.20% 5.10% 4.52% 4.81%
Health care cost trend rate

assumed for next year 6.50% 7.00% 5.18% 4.76%
Ultimate trend rate 5.00% 5.00% 5.53% 5.54%
Year that the rate reaches the

ultimate trend rate 2018 2018 2018 2019

Year-end discount rates for our U.S., Canadian and U.K. plans were developed from a model portfolio of high quality,

fixed-income debt instruments with durations that match the expected future cash flows of the benefit obligations. Year-end
discount rates for our remaining non-U.S. plans were developed from local bond indices that match local benefit obligations as
closely as possible. Changes in our discount rates were primarily the result of changes in bond yields year-over-year. Our expected
health care cost trend rate is based on historical costs.

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant impact on the amounts reported for the health care plans. A
one-percentage-point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects:

As of December 31, 2014
One-Percentage -Point

Increase Decrease
(in millions)
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation $ 90 $ (72)
Effect on annual service and interest cost $ 6 $ (5)
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Components of Net Postretirement Health Care Costs:
Net postretirement health care costs consisted of the following:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in millions)
Service cost $ 13 $ 15 $ 35
Interest cost 22 20 121
Amortization:
Net loss from experience differences 5 12 65
Prior service credit (20) (22) (32)
Other (1) - - 29
Net postretirement health care costs related to discontinued
operations — - (135)
Net postretirement health care costs included within
continuing operations $ 30 $ 35 $ 84

(1) In 2012, we recorded a $23 million unfunded U.S. postretirement plan obligation related to long-term disability benefits.

As of December 31, 2014, we expected to amortize from accumulated other comprehensive earnings / (losses) into pre-tax net
postretirement health care costs during 2015:

» an estimated $13 million of net loss from experience differences, and

» an estimated $7 million of prior service credit.

We used the following weighted-average assumptions to determine our net postretirement cost:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
For the Years Ended December 31, For the Years Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
Discount rate 5.10% 4.20% 4.47% 5.17% 4.39% 4.14%
Health care cost trend rate 7.00% 7.50% 7.00% 5.11% 6.47% 6.21%

Future Benefit Payments:

Our estimated future benefit payments for our postretirement health care plans at December 31, 2014 were (in millions):

Year ending: 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020-2024
U.S. Plans $7 $8 $10 $11 $13 $86
Non-U.S. Plans $5 $6 $6 $6 $7 $38

Other Costs:

We made contributions to multiemployer medical plans totaling $18 million in 2014, $18 million in 2013 and $31 million in 2012. The
contributions include contributions related to Kraft Foods Group employees who participated in our multiemployer medical plans
through October 1, 2012 of $13 million in 2012. These plans provide medical benefits to active employees and retirees under
certain collective bargaining agreements.
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Postemployment Benefit Plans

Obligations:

Our postemployment plans are primarily not funded. The changes in and the amount of the accrued benefit obligation at
December 31, 2014 and 2013 were:

2014 2013
(in millions)

Accrued benefit obligation at January 1 $ 103 $ 100
Service cost 9 8
Interest cost 6 5
Benefits paid an (21)
Assumption changes 2 (2)
Actuarial losses 9) 13

Accrued benefit obligation at December 31 $ 94 $ 103

The accrued benefit obligation was determined using a weighted-average discount rate of 5.6% in 2014 and 6.2% in 2013, an
assumed weighted-average ultimate annual turnover rate of 0.3% in 2014 and 2013, assumed compensation cost increases of
4.0% in 2014 and 2013 and assumed benefits as defined in the respective plans.

Postemployment costs arising from actions that offer employees benefits in excess of those specified in the respective plans are
charged to expense when incurred.

Components of Net Postemployment Costs:
Net postemployment costs consisted of the following:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in millions)

Service cost $ 9 $ 8 $ 12
Interest cost 6 5 8
Amortization of net (gains) / losses - Q) 3)
Other - (1) 3
Net postemployment costs related to

discontinued operations - — (5)
Net postemployment costs included in

continuing operations $ 15 $ 11 $ 15

As of December 31, 2014, the estimated net gain for the postemployment benefit plans that we expected to amortize from
accumulated other comprehensive earnings / (losses) into net postemployment costs during 2015 was insignificant.

Note 11. Commitments and Contingencies

Legal Proceedings:
We routinely are involved in legal proceedings, claims and governmental inspections or investigations (“Legal Matters”) arising in
the ordinary course of our business.

A compliant and ethical corporate culture, which includes adhering to laws and industry regulations in all jurisdictions in which we
do business, is integral to our success. Accordingly, after we acquired Cadbury in February 2010 we began reviewing and
adjusting, as needed, Cadbury’s operations in light of applicable standards as well as our policies and practices. We initially
focused on such high priority areas as food safety, the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (“FCPA”) and antitrust. Based upon Cadbury’s
pre-acquisition policies and compliance programs and our post-acquisition reviews, our preliminary findings indicated that
Cadbury’s overall state of compliance was sound. Nonetheless, through our reviews, we determined that in certain jurisdictions,
including India, there appeared to be facts and circumstances warranting further investigation. We are continuing our investigations
in certain jurisdictions, including in India, and we continue to cooperate with governmental authorities.
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As we previously disclosed, on February 1, 2011, we received a subpoena from the SEC in connection with an investigation under
the FCPA, primarily related to a facility in India that we acquired in the Cadbury acquisition. The subpoena primarily requests
information regarding dealings with Indian governmental agencies and officials to obtain approvals related to the operation of that
facility. We are continuing to cooperate with the U.S. and Indian governments in their investigations of these matters, including
through ongoing meetings with the U.S. government to discuss potential conclusion of the U.S. government investigation.

On February 28, 2013, Cadbury India Limited (now known as Mondelez India Foods Limited), a subsidiary of Mondeléz
International, and other parties received a show cause notice from the Indian Department of Central Excise Authority (the “Excise
Authority”). The notice calls upon the parties to demonstrate why the Excise Authority should not collect 2.5 billion Indian rupee
(approximately $40 million U.S. dollars as of December 31, 2014) of unpaid excise tax as well as 2.5 billion Indian rupee
(approximately $40 million U.S. dollars as of December 31, 2014) of penalties and interest related to production at the same Indian
facility. Subsequently, the Excise Authority issued another show cause notice, dated March 3, 2014, on the same issue but
covering the period February to December 2013, thereby adding 1.2 billion Indian rupee (approximately $19 million U.S. dollars as
of December 31, 2014) of unpaid excise taxes as well as 1.2 billion Indian rupee (approximately $19 million U.S. dollars as of
December 31, 2014) of penalties and interest to the amount claimed by the Excise Authority. The latest notice includes an accruing
claim for excise as finished products leave the facility on an ongoing basis. We believe that the decision to claim the excise tax
benefit is valid and we are contesting the show cause notice through the administrative and judicial process.

In April 2013, the staff of the Commodity Futures Trading Commission (“CFTC") advised us and Kraft Foods Group that it was
investigating activities related to the trading of December 2011 wheat futures contracts that occurred prior to the Spin-Off of Kraft
Foods Group. We are cooperating with the staff in its investigation. In October 2014, the staff advised us that the CFTC intends to
commence a formal action against us and Kraft Foods Group. We continue to try to resolve this matter prior to any formal action
being taken. It is not possible to predict the outcome of this matter; however, based on our Separation and Distribution Agreement
with Kraft Foods Group dated as of September 27, 2012, we expect to predominantly bear any monetary penalties or other
payments that the CFTC may impose.

While we cannot predict with certainty the results of any Legal Matters in which we are currently involved, we do not expect that the
ultimate costs to resolve any of these Legal Matters, individually or in the aggregate, will have a material effect on our financial
results.

Third-Party Guarantees:

We enter into third-party guarantees primarily to cover the long-term obligations of our vendors. As part of these transactions, we
guarantee that third parties will make contractual payments or achieve performance measures. At December 31, 2014, we had no
material third-party guarantees recorded on our consolidated balance sheet.

As part of our 2010 Cadbury acquisition, we became the responsible party for tax matters under the Cadbury Schweppes Plc and
Dr Pepper Snapple Group, Inc. (“DPSG”) Tax Sharing and Indemnification Agreement dated May 1, 2008 (“Tax Indemnity”) for
certain 2007 and 2008 transactions relating to the demerger of Cadbury’s Americas Beverage business. A U.S. federal tax audit of
DPSG for the 2006-2008 tax years was concluded with the IRS in August 2013. As a result, we recorded a favorable impact of
$336 million in selling, general and administrative expenses and $49 million in interest and other expense, net for a total pre-tax
impact of $385 million ($363 million net of tax) in the three months ended September 30, 2013 due to the reversal of the accrued
liability in excess of the amount we paid to DPSG under the Tax Indemnity in the third quarter of 2013.

Leases:
Rental expenses recorded in continuing operations were $399 million in 2014, $386 million in 2013 and $341 million in 2012. As of
December 31, 2014, minimum rental commitments under non-cancelable operating leases in effect at year-end were (in millions):

Year ending: 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Thereafter Total

$309 $227 $182 $129 $102 $131 $1,080
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Note 12. Stock Plans

On May 21, 2014, our shareholders approved the Amended and Restated 2005 Performance Incentive Plan (the “2005 Plan”).
Under the amended plan, we now make grants to non-employee directors under the 2005 Plan, and we will no longer make any
grants under the Amended and Restated 2006 Stock Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors (the “2006 Directors Plan”).
We also increased the number of shares available for issuance under the 2005 Plan by 75.7 million, which includes the shares
remaining available for issuance under the 2006 Directors Plan as of March 14, 2014. Under the 2005 Plan, we are now authorized
to issue a maximum of 243.7 million shares of our Common Stock. We may not make any grants under the 2005 Plan after May 21,
2024. As of December 31, 2014, there were 90.6 million shares available to be granted under the 2005 Plan.

In connection with the Spin-Off and divestiture of Kraft Foods Group, under the provisions of our existing plans, employee stock
option and restricted and deferred stock awards were adjusted to preserve the fair value of the awards immediately before and after
the Spin-Off. As such, we did not record any incremental compensation expense related to the conversion of the awards. In
connection with the stock awards held by our respective employees at the time of the Spin-Off, we collected a $55 million cash net
settlement for the awards from Kraft Foods Group in March 2013.

Stock Options:

Stock options (including stock appreciation rights) are granted at an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying stock
on the grant date, generally become exercisable in three annual installments beginning on the first anniversary of the grant date
and have a maximum term of ten years.

We account for our employee stock options under the fair value method of accounting using a Black-Scholes methodology to
measure stock option expense at the date of grant. The fair value of the stock options at the date of grant is amortized to expense
over the vesting period. We recorded compensation expense related to stock options held by our employees of $47 million in 2014,
$39 million in 2013 and $39 million in 2012 in our results from continuing operations. The deferred tax benefit recorded related to
this compensation expense was $12 million in 2014, $11 million in 2013 and $11 million in 2012. The unamortized compensation
expense related to our employee stock options was $67 million at December 31, 2014 and is expected to be recognized over a
weighted-average period of 2 years.

Our weighted-average Black-Scholes fair value assumptions were:

Risk -Free Expected Expected Fair Value
Interest Rate Expected Life Volatility Dividend Yield at Grant Date
2014 1.87% 6 years 21.48% 1.64% $ 6.60
2013 1.15% 6 years 20.36% 1.94% $ 4.31
2012 1.16% 6 years 20.13% 3.08% $ 4.78

The risk-free interest rate represents the constant maturity U.S. government treasuries rate with a remaining term equal to the
expected life of the options. The expected life is the period over which our employees are expected to hold their options. Volatility
reflects historical movements in our stock price for a period commensurate with the expected life of the options. The dividend yield
reflects the dividend yield in place at the time of the historical grants and reflects a lower expected dividend yield for Mondeléz
International for grants made following the Spin-Off of Kraft Foods Group.
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Stock option activity is reflected below:

Weighted -
Average Average
Exercise or Remaining Aggregate
Shares Subject Grant Price Contractual Intrinsic
to Option Per Share Term Value
Balance at January 1, 2012 49,598,867 $ 28.87
Annual grant to eligible employees 12,816,380 38.00
Additional options issued 696,459 37.60
Total options granted 13,512,839 37.97
Options exercised (1) (8,168,062) 26.39 $ 93 million
Options cancelled (2,440,601) 30.20
Adjustment due to the Spin-Off (2 249,996 19.59
Balance at December 31, 2012 52,753,039 20.45 $ 264 million
Annual grant to eligible employees 11,644,280 27.05
Additional options issued 762,512 29.69
Total options granted 12,406,792 27.21
Options exercised () (7,185,616) 19.41 $ 79 million
Options cancelled (2,190,776) 23.86
Balance at December 31, 2013 55,783,439 21.96 $ 744 million
Annual grant to eligible employees 9,919,810 34.17
Additional options issued 500,250 33.65
Total options granted 10,420,060 34.14
Options exercised () (8,076,550) 20.85 $ 125 million
Options cancelled (1,695,398) 27.65
Balance at December 31, 2014 56,431,551 24.19 7 years $ 685 million
Exercisable at December 31, 2014 34,811,236 20.66 6 years $ 545 million

(1) Cash received from options exercised was $168 million in 2014, $139 million in 2013 and $205 million in 2012. The actual tax benefit realized for

the tax deductions from the option exercises totaled $29 million in 2014, $14 million in 2013 and $21 million in 2012.
(2) In 2012, as a result of the Spin-Off, existing employee stock option awards were converted into an equivalent amount of additional Mondeléz
International stock options in order to preserve the fair value of the overall stock option awards granted.

Restricted Stock and Deferred Stock Units:

We may grant shares of restricted stock or deferred stock units to eligible employees, giving them, in most instances, all of the
rights of shareholders, except that they may not sell, assign, pledge or otherwise encumber the shares and our deferred stock units
do not have voting rights until vested. Shares of restricted stock and deferred stock units are subject to forfeiture if certain
employment conditions are not met. Restricted stock and deferred stock units generally vest on the third anniversary of the grant
date.

Performance share units granted in connection with our long-term incentive plan (“LTIP”) vest based on varying performance,
market and service conditions. The unvested share units have no voting rights and do not pay dividends. Dividend equivalents
accumulated over the vesting period are paid after the share units vest.

The fair value of the restricted stock and deferred stock units at the date of grant is amortized to earnings over the restriction period.
We recorded compensation expense related to restricted stock and deferred stock units of $94 million in 2014, $94 million in 2013
and $90 million in 2012 in our results from continuing operations. The deferred tax benefit recorded related to this compensation
expense was $26 million in 2014, $28 million in 2013 and $27 million in 2012. The unamortized compensation expense related to
our restricted stock and deferred stock units was $128 million at December 31, 2014 and is expected to be recognized over a
weighted-average period of 2 years.
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Our restricted and deferred stock activity is reflected below:

Weighted -Average Weighted -Average

Number Fair Value Aggregate
of Shares Grant Date Per Share Fair Value

Balance at January 1, 2012 13,617,173 $ 28.43
LTIP shares granted 1,321,822  Jan. 3, 2012 37.63
Annual grant to eligible employees 2,171,330 Feb. 23, 2012 38.00
Additional shares issued 1,469,399 Various 29.18

Total shares granted 4,962,551 35.25 175 million

Vested (5,007,098) 24.80 189 million
Forfeited (1,275,617) 29.22
Adjustment due to the Spin-Off @ 518,902 19.72
Balance at December 31, 2012 12,815,911 21.55
LTIP shares granted 1,542,600 Jan. 2, 2013 26.24
Annual grant to eligible employees 2,335,780 Feb. 20, 2013 27.05
Additional shares issued 1,353,057 Various 22.47

Total shares granted 5,231,437 25.63 134 million

Vested (5,350,073) 18.82 145 million
Forfeited (1,048,688) 23.23
Balance at December 31, 2013 11,648,587 24.48
LTIP shares granted 1,143,620 Jan. 2, 2014 34.97
Annual grant to eligible employees 1,991,230 Feb. 19, 2014 34.17
Additional shares issued 935,463 Various 33.15

Total shares granted 4,070,313 34.16 139 million

Vested (4,380,452) 22.98 151 million
Forfeited (755,808) 28.14
Balance at December 31, 2014 10,582,640 28.56

(1) In 2012, as a result of the Spin-Off, existing employee stock awards were converted into an equivalent amount of additional Mondeléz International
stock awards in order to preserve the fair value of the overall stock award that was granted.

Note 13. Capital Stock

Our amended and restated articles of incorporation authorize 5.0 billion shares of Class A common stock (“Common Stock”) and
500 million shares of preferred stock. There were no preferred shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2014, 2013 and
2012. Shares of Common Stock issued, in treasury and outstanding were:

Shares

Shares Issued Outstanding

1,996,537,778

Treasury Shares

(228,641,089) 1,767,896,689

Balance at January 1, 2012
Exercise of stock options and issuance of
other stock awards -

Balance at December 31, 2012 1,996,537,778

Shares repurchased
Exercise of stock options and issuance of
other stock awards -

Balance at December 31, 2013 1,996,537,778

Shares repurchased
Exercise of stock options and issuance of
other stock awards -

Balance at December 31, 2014 1,996,537,778

10,099,153 10,099,153
(218,541,936) 1,777,995,842
(82,799,448)  (82,799,448)

10,200,200 10,200,200
(291,141,184) 1,705,396,594
(51,931,864)  (51,931,864)

10,176,269 10,176,269
(332,896,779) 1,663,640,999

Stock plan awards to employees and non-employee directors are issued from treasury shares. At December 31, 2014, 154.8 million
shares of Common Stock held in treasury were reserved for stock options and other stock awards.
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Share Repurchase Program:

During 2013, our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of $7.7 billion of our Common Stock through December 31, 2016.
Repurchases under the program are determined by management and are wholly discretionary. During 2014, we repurchased

51.9 million shares of Common Stock at an average cost of $36.43 per share, or an aggregate cost of $1.9 billion, of which $1.7
billion was paid during 2014 and $0.2 billion was prepaid in December 2013 at the inception of an accelerated share repurchase
program. All share repurchases were funded through available cash and commercial paper issuances. During 2013, we
repurchased 82.8 million shares of Common Stock at an average cost of $33.09 per share, or an aggregate cost of $2.7 billion. As
of December 31, 2014, we have $3.1 billion in remaining share repurchase capacity.

In December 2013, we initiated an accelerated share repurchase (“ASR") program. On December 3, 2013, we paid $1.7 billion and
received an initial delivery of 44.8 million shares of Common Stock valued at $1.5 billion. We increased treasury stock by $1.5
billion, and the remaining $0.2 billion was recorded against additional paid in capital. In May 2014, the ASR program concluded and
we received an additional 5.1 million shares, valued at $0.2 billion, for a total of 49.9 million shares with an average repurchase
price of $34.10 per share over the life of the ASR program. The final settlement was based on the volume-weighted average price
of our Common Stock during the purchase period less a fixed per share discount. Upon conclusion of the ASR program and receipt
of the remaining repurchased shares, the $0.2 billion recorded in additional paid in capital was reclassified to treasury stock.

Note 14. Reclassifications from Accumulated Other C omprehensive Earnings / (Losses)

The components of accumulated other comprehensive earnings / (losses) attributable to Mondeléz International during 2014 and
2013 were:

Currency Derivatives
Translation Pension and Accounted for
Adjustments Other Benefits as Hedges Total
(in millions)
Balances at January 1, 2013 $ (399) $ (2,229) $ (38) $ (2,666)
Other comprehensive earnings / (losses), before
reclassifications:
Currency translation adjustment (952) (29) - (981)
Pension and other benefits - 713 - 713
Derivatives accounted for as hedges (99) - 169 70
Losses / (gains) reclassified into
net earnings - 197 72 269
Tax (expense) / benefit 36 (244) (86) (294)
Total other comprehensive
earnings / (losses) (223)
Balances at December 31, 2013 $ (1,414) $ (1,592) $ 117 $ (2,889)
Other comprehensive earnings / (losses), before
reclassifications:
Currency translation adjustment () (3,995) 146 - (3,849)
Pension and other benefits - (1,388) - (1,388)
Derivatives accounted for as hedges 595 - (166) 429
Losses / (gains) reclassified into
net earnings - 174 (45) 129
Tax (expense) / benefit (228) 386 92 250
Total other comprehensive losses (4,429)
Balances at December 31, 2014 $ (5,042) $ (2,274) $ (2) $ (7,318)

(1) The consolidated statement of comprehensive earnings for the year ended December 31, 2014 includes $(33) million of currency translation
adjustment attributable to noncontrolling interests.
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Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive earnings / (losses) and their locations in the consolidated financial

statements were as follows:

Location of
Gain / (Loss)
For the Years Ended December 31, Recognized
2014 2013 in Net Earnings
(in millions)
Pension and other benefits:
Reclassification of losses / (gains) into net earnings:
Amortization of experience losses and prior service costs (1) $ 132 $ 193
Settlement losses ) 42 4
Provision for income
Tax impact (56) (50) taxes
Derivatives accounted for as hedges:
Reclassification of losses / (gains) into net earnings:
Currency exchange contracts - forecasted transactions (27) 28 Cost of sales
Commodity contracts (22) 38 Cost of sales
Interest and other
Interest rate contracts 3 6 expense, net
Provision for income
Tax impact 6 (19) taxes
Total reclassifications into net earnings, net of tax $ 79 $ 200

(1) These items are included in the components of net periodic benefit costs disclosed in Note 10, Benefit Plans .

Note 15. Income Taxes

Earnings / (losses) from continuing operations before income taxes and the provision for income taxes consisted of the following:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013
(in millions)
Earnings / (losses) from continuing operations before income
taxes:
United States $ (135) $ (799)
Outside United States 2,689 3,191
Total $ 2,554 $ 2,392
Provision for income taxes:
United States federal:
Current $ (125) $ (489)
Deferred 28 103
97) (386)
State and local:
Current 20 (35)
Deferred 11 22
31 (13)
Total United States (66) (399)
Outside United States:
Current 644 648
Deferred (225) (189)
Total outside United States 419 459
Total provision for income taxes $ 353 $ 60
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See Note 2, Divestitures and Acquisitions , for information on taxes presented as part of discontinued operations related to the
resolution of the Starbucks arbitration and the Spin-Off of Kraft Foods Group.

During 2014, we recorded out-of-period adjustments of $31 million net expense that had an immaterial impact on the annual
provision for income taxes. In addition, during the fourth quarter of 2014, we recorded a tax benefit of $43 million associated with
the lapse of a statute of limitations that related to the third quarter of 2014. The out-of-period adjustments were not material to the
consolidated financial statements for any prior period.

The effective income tax rate on pre-tax earnings differed from the U.S. federal statutory rate for the following reasons:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
U.S. federal statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Increase / (decrease) resulting from:
State and local income taxes, net of federal tax benefit excluding
IRS audit impacts 0.3% (0.5%) (1.6%)
Foreign rate differences (14.5%) (16.3%) (20.6%)
Reversal of other tax accruals no longer required (10.5%) (9.6%) (4.3%)
Indemnification resolution - (4.7%) -
Tax legislation - (2.2%) (3.9%)
Divestitures - (2.1%) 0.6%
Venezuela devaluation 1.7% 1.0% -
Non-deductible expenses 1.5% 1.1% 3.6%
Other 0.3% 0.8% 0.7%
Effective tax rate 13.8% 2.5% 9.5%

Our 2014 effective tax rate of 13.8% was favorably impacted by the mix of pre-tax income in various non-U.S. tax jurisdictions and
net tax benefits from $206 million of discrete one-time events. The discrete net tax benefits primarily related to favorable tax audit
settlements and expirations of statues of limitations in several jurisdictions.

Our 2013 effective tax rate of 2.5% was favorably impacted by the mix of pre-tax income in various non-U.S. tax jurisdictions, net
tax benefits from discrete one-time events and the non-taxable portion of the Cadbury acquisition related indemnification resolution,
partially offset by an unfavorable tax law change. The $299 million of discrete one-time events primarily related to favorable tax
audit settlements and expirations of statutes of limitations in several jurisdictions and the net reduction of U.K. deferred tax liabilities
resulting from tax legislation enacted during 2013 that reduced U.K. corporate income tax rates.

Our 2012 revised effective tax rate of 9.5% was favorably impacted by the mix of pre-tax income in various non-U.S. tax
jurisdictions and net tax benefits from discrete one-time tax events, partially offset by non-deductible expenses. The $140 million of
discrete one-time events primarily related to the net reduction of U.K. deferred tax liabilities resulting from tax legislation enacted
during 2012 that reduced U.K. corporate income tax rates and net favorable tax audit settlements.

98



Table of Contents

The tax effects of temporary differences that gave rise to deferred income tax assets and liabilities consisted of the following:

As of December 31,

2014 2013
(in millions)
Deferred income tax assets:
Accrued postretirement and postemployment benefits $ 227 $ 176
Accrued pension costs 588 417
Other employee benefits 272 259
Accrued expenses 410 364
Loss carryforwards 656 553
Other 431 428
Total deferred income tax assets 2,584 2,197
Valuation allowance (345) 335
Net deferred income tax assets $ 2,239 $ 1,862
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Intangible assets $ (5,843) $ (6,094)
Property, plant and equipment (784) (876)
Other (439) (468)
Total deferred income tax liabilities (7,066) (7,438)
Net deferred income tax liabilities $ (4,827) $ (5,576)

At December 31, 2014, the company has pre-tax loss carryforwards of $3,432 million, of which $1,430 million will expire at various
dates between 2015 and 2033 and the remaining $2,002 million can be carried forward indefinitely.

Our significant valuation allowances reside within our operating subsidiaries in Mexico, Ireland and various other jurisdictions.

At December 31, 2014, applicable U.S. federal income taxes and foreign withholding taxes had not been provided on approximately
$13.2 billion of accumulated earnings of non-U.S. subsidiaries that are expected to be indefinitely reinvested. It is impractical for us
to determine the amount of unrecognized deferred tax liabilities on these indefinitely reinvested earnings. Future tax law changes or
changes in the needs of our non-U.S. subsidiaries could require us to recognize deferred tax liabilities on a portion, or all, of our
accumulated earnings that were previously expected to be indefinitely reinvested.

The changes in our unrecognized tax benefits were:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in millions)

January 1 $ 1,189 $ 1,164 $ 1,522
Increases from positions taken during prior periods 143 94 119
Decreases from positions taken during prior periods (247) (132) (198)
Increases from positions taken during the current period 147 131 264
Decreases relating to settlements with taxing authorities (203) (7 (257)
Reductions resulting from the lapse of the applicable statute

of limitations (64) (55) (23)
Impact of Spin-Off - - (261)
Currency / other (113) (6) (2

December 31 $ 852 $ 1,189 $ 1,164
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As of January 1, 2014, our unrecognized tax benefits were $1,189 million. If we had recognized all of these benefits, the net impact
on our income tax provision would have been $1,110 million. Our unrecognized tax benefits were $852 million at December 31,
2014, and if we had recognized all of these benefits, the net impact on our income tax provision would have been $744 million.
Within the next 12 months, our unrecognized tax benefits could increase by approximately $60 million due to unfavorable audit
developments or decrease by approximately $145 million due to audit settlements and the expiration of statutes of limitations in
various jurisdictions. We include accrued interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in our tax provision. We had
accrued interest and penalties of $228 million as of January 1, 2014 and $184 million as of December 31, 2014. Our 2014 provision
for income taxes included $2 million for interest and penalties.

Under the Tax Sharing and Indemnity Agreements between us and Kraft Foods Group, Kraft Foods Group generally assumes
liability for all U.S. state income taxes and Canadian federal and provincial income taxes and we generally assume responsibility for
all U.S. federal income taxes and substantially all non-U.S. income taxes, excluding Canadian income taxes, for all tax periods prior
to the Spin-Off. In addition, we transferred to Kraft Foods Group all of its deferred tax assets and liabilities as of the Distribution
Date. See Note 2, Divestitures and Acquisitions.

Our income tax filings are regularly examined by federal, state and non-U.S. tax authorities. Our 2010-2012 U.S. federal income tax
filings are currently under examination by the IRS. U.S. state and non-U.S. jurisdictions have statutes of limitations generally
ranging from three to five years; however, these statutes are often extended by mutual agreement with the tax authorities. Years
still open to examination by non-U.S. tax authorities in major jurisdictions include (earliest open tax year in parentheses): Brazil
(2009), France (2010), Germany (2005), India (2003), Italy (2009), United Kingdom (2012) and Russia (2011).

Note 16. Earnings Per Share

Basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) from continuing and discontinued operations were calculated using the following:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in millions, except per share data)
Earnings from continuing operations $ 2,201 $ 2,332 $ 1,606
Earnings from discontinued operations,
net of income taxes - 1,603 1,488
Net earnings 2,201 3,935 3,094
Noncontrolling interest 17 20 27
Net earnings attributable to Mondeléz International $ 2,184 $ 3,915 $ 3,067
Weighted-average shares for basic EPS 1,691 1,774 1,777
Plus incremental shares from assumed conversions of
stock options and long-term incentive plan shares 18 15 12
Weighted-average shares for diluted EPS 1,709 1,789 1,789
Basic earnings per share attributable to
Mondeléz International:
Continuing operations $ 1.29 $ 1.30 $ 0.90
Discontinued operations - 0.91 0.83
Net earnings attributable to
Mondeléz International $ 1.29 $ 2.21 $ 1.73
Diluted earnings per share attributable to
Mondeléz International:
Continuing operations $ 1.28 $ 1.29 $ 0.88
Discontinued operations - 0.90 0.83
Net earnings attributable to
Mondeléz International $ 1.28 $ 2.19 $ 1.71
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We exclude antidilutive Mondeléz International stock options from our calculation of weighted-average shares for diluted EPS. We
excluded 8.6 million antidilutive stock options for the year ended December 31, 2014, 7.0 million antidilutive stock options for the
year ended December 31, 2013, and 7.3 million antidilutive stock options for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Note 17. Segment Reporting

We manufacture and market primarily snack food and beverage products, including biscuits (cookies, crackers and salted snacks),
chocolate, gum & candy, coffee & powdered beverages and various cheese & grocery products. We manage our global business
and report operating results through geographic units.

Our operations and management structure are organized into five reportable operating segments:
* Latin America
+ Asia Pacific
+ EEMEA
 Europe
* North America

We manage our operations by region to leverage regional operating scale, manage different and changing business environments
more effectively at a local level and pursue growth opportunities as they arise in our key markets. Beginning in 2015, within each
region, we also manage by product category. The change will not affect our operating or reportable segments. In the historical
periods within our consolidated financial statements, we managed our operations within Latin America, Asia Pacific and EEMEA by
location and within Europe and North America by product category.

We use segment operating income to evaluate segment performance and allocate resources. We believe it is appropriate to
disclose this measure to help investors analyze segment performance and trends. Segment operating income excludes unrealized
gains and losses on hedging activities (which are a component of cost of sales), general corporate expenses (which are a
component of selling, general and administrative expenses), amortization of intangibles, the benefit from the Cadbury acquisition-
related indemnification resolution (which is a component of selling, general and administrative expenses), gains and losses on
divestitures or acquisitions and acquisition-related costs (which are a component of selling, general and administrative expenses) in
all periods presented. We exclude these items from segment operating income in order to provide better transparency of our
segment operating results. Furthermore, we centrally manage interest and other expense, net. Accordingly, we do not present
these items by segment because they are excluded from the segment profitability measure that management reviews.
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Our segment net revenues and earnings were:

Net revenues:
Latin America
Asia Pacific
EEMEA
Europe
North America

Net revenues

Earnings from continuing operations before income taxes:

Operating income:

Latin America

Asia Pacific

EEMEA

Europe

North America

Unrealized gains / (losses) on hedging activities
General corporate expenses
Amortization of intangibles

Benefit from indemnification resolution
Gains on acquisition and divestitures, net
Acquisition-related costs

Operating income

Interest and other expense, net

For the Years Ended December 31,

Earnings from continuing operations before income taxes

2014 2013 2012
(in millions)

$ 5,153 $ 5,382 $ 5,396
4,605 4,952 5,164

3,638 3,915 3,735
13,912 14,059 13,817
6,936 6,991 6,903

$ 34,244 $ 35,299 $ 35,015

For the Years Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012
(in millions)

$ 475 $ 570 $ 769
385 512 657

327 379 506

1,770 1,699 1,762

922 889 781

(112) 62 1

(317) (287) (728)
(206) (217) (217)

— 336 -

— 30 107
2 ) @)

3,242 3,971 3,637
(688) (1,579) (1,863)

$ 2,554 $ 2,392 $ 1,774

No single customer accounted for 10% or more of our net revenues from continuing operations in 2014. Our five largest customers
accounted for 15.7% and our ten largest customers accounted for 23.7% of net revenues from continuing operations in 2014.

Items impacting our segment operating results are discussed in Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, including the

Venezuelan currency devaluation, Note 2, Divestitures and Acquisitions , Note 5, Goodwill and Intangible Assets , Note 6,

Restructuring Programs , and Note 7, Integration Program and Cost Saving Initiatives . Also see Note 8, Debt and Borrowing
Arrangements , and Note 9, Financial Instruments, for more information on our interest and other expense, net for each period.

102



Table of Contents

Total assets, depreciation expense and capital expenditures by segment were:

As of December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in millions)
Total assets:
Latin America $ 6,470 $ 6,860 $ 7,018
Asia Pacific 8,620 9,032 9,748
EEMEA 5,247 7,045 7,105
Europe 24,568 27,599 27,513
North America 21,303 21,723 22,158
Unallocated assets (1) 607 256 1,935
Total assets $ 66,815 $ 72,515 $ 75,477

(1) Unallocated assets consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, deferred income taxes, centrally held property, plant and equipment, prepaid

pension assets and derivative financial instrument balances.

For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in millions)
Depreciation expense:
Latin America $ 118 $ 107 $ 98
Asia Pacific 112 107 100
EEMEA 90 88 77
Europe 359 359 368
North America 174 199 224
Total — continuing operations 853 860 867
Discontinued operations - — 261
Total depreciation expense $ 853 $ 860 $ 1,128
For the Years Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012
(in millions)
Capital Expenditures:
Latin America $ 460 $ 412 $ 220
Asia Pacific 356 268 250
EEMEA 219 254 227
Europe 429 478 414
North America 178 210 217
Total — continuing operations 1,642 1,622 1,328
Discontinued operations - — 282
Total capital expenditures $ 1,642 $ 1,622 $ 1,610
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Net revenues by product category were:

Biscuits

Chocolate

Gum & Candy
Beverages
Cheese & Grocery
Total net revenues

Biscuits

Chocolate

Gum & Candy
Beverages
Cheese & Grocery
Total net revenues

Biscuits

Chocolate

Gum & Candy
Beverages
Cheese & Grocery
Total net revenues

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

During 2014, we realigned some of our products across product categories and as such, we have reclassified the 2013 and 2012
product category net revenues below on a consistent basis.

Latin Asia North
America Pacific EEMEA Europe America Total
(in millions)
$ 1,322 $ 1,177 $ 642 $ 2,882 $ 5,486 11,509
1,054 1,555 1,082 5,394 296 9,381
1,176 776 646 908 1,154 4,660
940 465 981 3,292 - 5,678
661 632 287 1,436 - 3,016
$ 5,153 $ 4,605 $ 3,638 $ 13,912 $ 6,936 34,244
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013
Latin Asia North
America Pacific EEMEA Europe America Total
(in millions)
$ 1,288 $ 1,311 $ 677 $ 2,940 $ 5,480 11,696
1,143 1,632 1,181 5,385 326 9,667
1,380 849 673 968 1,185 5,055
907 470 1,113 3,340 - 5,830
664 690 271 1,426 - 3,051
$ 5,382 $ 4,952 $ 3,915 $ 14,059 $ 6,991 35,299
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012
Latin Asia North
America Pacific EEMEA Europe America Total
(in millions)
$ 1,208 $ 1,374 $ 595 $ 2,709 $ 5,267 11,153
1,127 1,686 1,139 5,067 336 9,355
1,433 899 726 1,000 1,280 5,338
953 453 1,025 3,411 1 5,843
675 752 250 1,630 19 3,326
$ 5,396 $ 5,164 $ 3,735 $ 13,817 $ 6,903 35,015
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Geographic data for net revenues and long-lived assets, excluding deferred tax, goodwill and intangible assets, were:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in millions)
Net revenues:
United States $ 6,143 $ 5,965 $ 5,974
Other 28,101 29,334 29,041
Total net revenues $ 34,244 $ 35,299 $ 35,015

As of December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in millions)
Long-lived assets:
United States $ 1,270 $ 1,375 $ 1,475
Other 9,802 10,142 9,814
Total long-lived assets $ 11,072 $ 11,517 $ 11,289

No individual country within Other exceeded 10% of our net revenues or long-lived assets for all periods presented.

Note 18. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Our summarized operating results by quarter are detailed below.

2014 Quarters
First Second Third Fourth
(in millions, except per share data)
Net revenues $ 8,641 $ 8,436 $ 8337 $ 8,830
Gross profit 3,204 3,105 3,142 3,146
(Benefit) / provision for income taxes () (27) 91 178 111
Net earnings $ 150 $ 642 $ 902 $ 507
Noncontrolling interest (13) 20 3 7
Net earnings attributable to Mondeléz International $ 163 $ 622 $ 899 $ 500
Weighted-average shares for basic EPS 1,704 1,694 1,688 1,677
Plus incremental shares from assumed conversions of
stock options and long-term incentive plan shares 18 18 17 18
Weighted-average shares for diluted EPS 1,722 1,712 1,705 1,695
Per share data:
Basic EPS attributable to Mondeléz International: $ 0.10 $ 037 $ 053 $ 0.30
Diluted EPS attributable to Mondeléz International: $ 0.09 $ 036 $ 053 $ 0.29
Dividends declared $ 014 $ 014 $ 015 $ 0.15
Market price - high $ 36.05 $ 38.47 3% 3954 3 39.42
- low $ 31.84 % 34.03 $ 3393 $ 31.83

(1) Inthe fourth quarter of 2014, we recorded a tax benefit of $43 million associated with the lapse of a statute of limitations that related to the third quarter of 2014,
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Net revenues
Gross profit
Provision / (benefit) for income taxes

Earnings from continuing operations
Earnings from discontinued operations, net of income taxes

Net earnings
Noncontrolling interest

Net earnings attributable to Mondeléz International

Weighted-average shares for basic EPS
Plus incremental shares from assumed conversions of
stock options and long-term incentive plan shares

Weighted-average shares for diluted EPS

Per share data:

Basic EPS attributable to Mondeléz International:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Net earnings attributable to Mondeléz International:

Diluted EPS attributable to Mondeléz International:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Net earnings attributable to Mondeléz International:

Dividends declared

Market price - high
- low

(1) Inthe third quarter of 2013, we recorded a $385 million pre-tax gain ($363 million net of tax) due to the resolution of a Cadbury acquisition-related

2013 Quarters

First Second Third Fourth
(in millions, except per share data)

$ 8,744 $ 8,595 $ 8,472 $ 9,488
3,242 3,231 3,144 3,493
13 28 26 7)

$ 542 $ 602 $ 1,018 $ 170
— — — 1,603

$ 542 $ 602 $ 1,018 $ 1,773
6 1 6 7

$ 536 $ 601 $ 1,012 $ 1,766
1,784 1,788 1,779 1,743

14 15 15 18

1,798 1,803 1,794 1,761

$ 0.30 $ 034 % 057 $ 0.09
- - - 0.92

$ 030 $ 034 $ 057 $ 1.01
$ 030 $ 033 $ 056 $ 0.09
— — — 0.91

$ 0.30 $ 0.33 $ 056 $ 1.00
$ 0.13 $ 0.13 $ 014 $ 0.14
$ 30.66 $ 3210 $ 33.08 $ 35.43
$ 2578 % 2822 % 2850 $ 30.07

indemnification. See Note 11, Commitments and Contingencies , for additional information. In the fourth quarter of 2013, we recorded a $608 million pre-tax
loss ($386 million net of tax) in connection with extinguishing debt in the December 18, 2013 tender offer and a $2.5 billion pre-tax gain ($1.6 billion net of tax)
on the resolution of the Starbucks arbitration. See Note 8, Debt and Borrowing Arrangements and Note 2, Divestitures and Acquisitions , for additional

information.

Basic and diluted EPS are computed independently for each of the periods presented. Accordingly, the sum of the quarterly EPS

amounts may not equal the total for the year.
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During 2014 and 2013, we recorded the following pre-tax charges / (gains) in earnings from continuing operations:

Asset impairment and exit costs
Unrealized (gain) / loss on planned coffee
business transactions
currency hedge
Loss on early extinguishment of
debt and related expenses

Asset impairment and exit costs
Benefit from indemnification resolution
Loss on early extinguishment of

debt and related expenses
(Gains) / losses on divestitures, net

2014 Quarters

First Second Third Fourth
(in millions)
$ 42 $ 55 $ 188 $ 407
- 7 (420) (215)
494 1 - -
$ 536 $ 63 $ (232) $ 192
2013 Quarters
First Second Third Fourth
(in millions)
$ 44 $ 48 $ 43 $ 138
- - (385) -
- - - 612
(22) (6) — (2
$ 22 $ 42 $ (342) $ 748
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accounta  nts on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We have established disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in
our reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in the rules and forms of the SEC, and such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including
our Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) and Chief Financial Officer (“CFQ”), as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure. Management, together with our CEO and CFO, evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures as of December 31, 2014. Based on this evaluation, the CEO and CFO concluded that, due to a continued material
weakness in our internal control over financial reporting related to the accounting for income taxes, our disclosure controls and
procedures were not effective as of December 31, 2014. In light of this material weakness, prior to filing this Annual Report on Form
10-K, we undertook additional substantive procedures related to our disclosure controls, including validating the completeness and
accuracy of the underlying data used for accounting for income taxes.

These additional procedures have allowed us to conclude that, notwithstanding the material weakness in our internal control over
financial reporting, the consolidated financial statements included in this report fairly present, in all material respects, our financial
position, results of operations and cash flows for the periods presented in conformity with GAAP.

Status of Remediation

Through December 31, 2014, we made substantial progress toward remediating the material weakness in the internal control
including:

e revising and formalizing numerous income tax review processes,

» redesigning and executing a new, more robust internal control set related to income tax accounting,

» defining and clearly communicating roles and responsibilities for income tax accounting to local and regional personnel,
» implementing new industry-standard technology tools utilized in the accounting for income taxes,

» conducting extensive training on the accounting and control processes involving income tax accounting, and

» hiring additional personnel with specific tax accounting expertise.

While significant improvement in the internal controls was made through December 31, 2014, we continue to evaluate the
effectiveness of the new internal controls to confirm that a sustainable, controlled process is fully in place. As we utilized outside tax
advisors and resources during 2014 to execute many of the new processes and controls, we hired and continue to hire additional
tax personnel across the Company. We have put in place processes to help ensure, and we continue to confirm, that sufficient
knowledge transfer has occurred and that relevant personnel and processes have been in operation for a sustained period of time.

We and our Board of Directors are committed to maintaining a strong and sustainable internal control environment. We believe that
the remediation work completed to date has significantly improved our internal control over the accounting for income taxes. We
believe it is important to confirm that the new processes and controls that we put in place as part of the remediation are fully
operational for a sufficient period of time in order to provide the Company with adequate assurance of a sustainable and reliable
control environment related to income tax accounting.

Report of Management on Internal Control Over Finan  cial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in

Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or
under the supervision of, our CEO and CFO, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the Company’s Board of
Directors, management and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
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accounting principles. Our internal control over financial reporting includes those written policies and procedures that:

e pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of assets;

e provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

« provide reasonable assurance that receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with management and
director authorization and

» provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of
assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014. Management
based this assessment on criteria for effective internal control over financial reporting described in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSQ").

Management reviewed the results of its assessment with the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors. Based on this assessment,
management determined that, as of December 31, 2014, a material weakness in our internal control over accounting for income
taxes continued to exist. Because of this material weakness, management concluded that we did not maintain effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014, based on the COSO criteria. For information on the progress of the
remediation of the material weakness, see Status of Remediation above.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of our annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on
a timely basis.

The errors arising from the underlying deficiencies were not material to the financial results reported in any interim or annual period.
For details of the current year adjustments, refer to Note 18, Income Taxes .

The control deficiencies in the aggregate could result in misstatements of the income tax accounts and disclosures that would result
in a material misstatement to the annual or interim consolidated financial statements that would not be prevented or detected.
Accordingly, we have determined that the ineffective monitoring and oversight of controls over income tax accounting constituted a
material weakness.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, has audited the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014, as stated in their report that appears herein.

February 20, 2015

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reportin = g

Management, together with our CEO and CFO, evaluated the changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the
quarter ended December 31, 2014. As outlined above, we added controls to remediate the material weakness related to our
accounting for income taxes. There were no other changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended
December 31, 2014, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial
reporting.

Iltem 9B. Other Information.

None.
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PART Il
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora  te Governance.

Information required by this Item 10 is included under the heading “Executive Officers of the Registrant” in Part I, Item 1 of this
Form 10-K, as well as under the headings “Election of Directors,” “Corporate Governance - Governance Guidelines and Codes of
Conduct,” “Corporate Governance - Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” and “Board Committees and
Membership - Audit Committee” in our definitive Proxy Statement for our Annual Meeting of Shareholders scheduled to be held on
May 20, 2015 (“2015 Proxy Statement”). All of this information from the 2015 Proxy Statement is incorporated by reference into this
Annual Report.

The information on our Web site is not, and shall not be deemed to be, a part of this Annual Report or incorporated into any other
filings we make with the SEC.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

Information required by this Item 11 is included under the headings “Board Committees and Membership - Human Resources and
Compensation Committee,” “Compensation of Non-Employee Directors,” “Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” “Executive
Compensation Tables” and “Human Resources and Compensation Committee Report for the Year Ended December 31, 2014” in
our 2015 Proxy Statement. All of this information is incorporated by reference into this Annual Report.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matte  rs.

The number of shares to be issued upon exercise or vesting of awards issued under, and the number of shares remaining available
for future issuance under, our equity compensation plans at December 31, 2014 were:

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of Securities
Remaining Available for

Number of Securities to Future Issuance under
be Issued Upon Exercise Weighted Average Equity Compensation

of Outstanding Exercise Price of Plans (excluding

Options, Warrants Outstanding Options, securities reflected

and Rights (1) Warrants and Rights in column (a)) (2)

@ (b) (©)
Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders 64,236,073 $ 24.19 90,575,662

(1) Includes vesting of deferred stock units and long-term incentive plan stock.
(2) Includes 45,806,803 options and deferred stock units and 44,768,859 shares of restricted stock available for issuance under the Amended and
Restated 2005 Performance Incentive Plan.

Information related to the security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management is included in our 2015 Proxy Statement
under the heading “Ownership of Equity Securities” and is incorporated by reference into this Annual Report.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transac tions, and Director Independence.

Information required by this Item 13 is included under the headings “Corporate Governance - Director Independence” and
“Corporate Governance - Review of Transactions with Related Persons” in our 2015 Proxy Statement. All of this information is
incorporated by reference into this Annual Report.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

Information required by this Item 14 is included under the heading “Board Committees and Membership - Audit Committee” in our
2015 Proxy Statement. All of this information is incorporated by reference into this Annual Report.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Schedules
Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 54
Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 55
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Earnings for the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 56
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 57
Consolidated Statements of Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 58
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 59
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 60
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Financial Statement Schedule S-1
Financial Statement Schedule-Valuation and Qualifying Accounts S-2

Schedules other than those listed above have been omitted either because such schedules are not required or are not applicable.
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(b)

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

The following exhibits are filed as part of, or incorporated by reference into, this Annual Report:

Separation and Distribution Agreement between the Registrant and Kraft Foods Group, Inc., dated as of September 27,
2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on
October 1, 2012).*

Canadian Asset Transfer Agreement, by and between Mondelez Canada Inc. and Kraft Canada Inc., dated as of
September 29, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.3 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with
the SEC on February 25, 2013).*

Master Ownership and License Agreement Regarding Patents, Trade Secrets and Related Intellectual Property, among
Kraft Foods Global Brands LLC, Kraft Foods Group Brands LLC, Kraft Foods UK Ltd. and Kraft Foods R&D Inc., dated
as of October 1, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
with the SEC on October 1, 2012).*

Master Ownership and License Agreement Regarding Trademarks and Related Intellectual Property, by and between
Kraft Foods Global Brands LLC and Kraft Foods Group Brands LLC., dated as of September 27, 2012 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 1, 2012).*

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant, effective March 14, 2013 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on May 8, 2013).

Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Registrant, effective October 1, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to
the Registrant’'s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 1, 2012).

The Registrant agrees to furnish to the SEC upon request copies of any instruments defining the rights of holders of
long-term debt of the Registrant and its consolidated subsidiaries that does not exceed 10 percent of the total assets of
the Registrant and its consolidated subsidiaries.

Indenture, by and between the Registrant and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas (as successor trustee to The
Bank of New York and The Chase Manhattan Bank), dated as of October 17, 2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.1 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (Reg. No. 333-86478) filed with the SEC on April 18, 2002).

Supplemental Indenture, by and between the Registrant and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, Deutsche Bank
AG, London Branch and Deutsche Bank Luxembourg S.A., dated as of December 11, 2013 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 11, 2013).

Form of Indenture between Mondeléz International, Inc. and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as trustee
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (Reg. No. 333-194330)
filed with the SEC on March 5, 2014).

$4.5 Billion 5-Year Revolving Credit Agreement, by and among the Registrant, the initial lenders named therein,
JPMorgan Securities LLC, Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., Citigroup Global Markets Inc., Credit Suisse Securities (USA)
LLC and HSBC Securities (USA) LLC, as joint lead arrangers and joint bookrunners, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
and Deutsche Bank AG New York Branch, as co-administrative agents, dated as of October 11, 2013 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 3, 2014).

Tax Sharing Agreement, by and between the Registrant and Altria Group, Inc., dated as of March 30, 2007 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 30, 2007).

Tax Sharing and Indemnity Agreement, by and between the Registrant and Kraft Foods Group, Inc., dated as of
September 27, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with
the SEC on October 1, 2012).

Global Contribution Agreement by and among Mondeléz International Holdings, LLC, Acorn Holdings B.V., Charger Top
HoldCo B.V. and Charger OpCo B.V., dated May 7, 2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on August 8, 2014).**

Shareholders’ Agreement by and among Mondeléz International Holdings, LLC, Delta Charger HoldCo B.V. and Charger
Top HoldCo B.V., dated May 7, 2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on August 8, 2014).**
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10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19
10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

Mondeléz International, Inc. Amended and Restated 2005 Performance Incentive Plan, amended and restated as of May
21, 2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on
May 22, 2014).+

Form of Mondeléz International, Inc. Amended and Restated 2005 Performance Incentive Plan Restricted Stock
Agreement for Mondeléz International Common Stock.+

Form of Mondeléz International, Inc. Amended and Restated 2005 Performance Incentive Plan Global Deferred Stock
Unit Agreement.+

Form of Mondeléz International, Inc. Amended and Restated 2005 Performance Incentive Plan Non-Qualified U.S. Stock
Option Agreement.+

Form of Mondeléz International, Inc. Amended and Restated 2005 Performance Incentive Plan Non-Qualified Non-U.S.
Stock Option Agreement.+

Form of Mondeléz International, Inc. Amended and Restated 2005 Performance Incentive Plan Global Long-Term
Incentive Grant Agreement.+

Mondeléz International, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan, restated as of October 2, 2012 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.9 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on February 25, 2013).+

Mondeléz Global LLC Supplemental Benefits Plan |, effective as of September 1, 2012 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.10 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on February 25, 2013).+

Mondeléz Global LLC Supplemental Benefits Plan Il, effective as of September 1, 2012 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.11 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on February 25, 2013).+

Form of Mondeléz Global LLC Amended and Restated Cash Enrolliment Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.12 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on February 25, 2013).+

Form of Mondeléz Global LLC Amended and Restated Employee Grantor Trust Enrollment Agreement (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on February 25, 2013).+

Mondeléz International, Inc. Amended and Restated 2006 Stock Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors,
amended and restated as of October 1, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Registrant’'s Annual
Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on February 25, 2013).+

Mondeléz International, Inc. 2001 Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors, amended as of December 31, 2008
and restated as of January 1, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K filed with the SEC on February 25, 2013).+

Mondeléz International, Inc. Change in Control Plan for Key Executives, amended as of February 4, 2015.+

Mondeléz Global LLC Executive Deferred Compensation Plan, effective as of October 1, 2012 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on February 25, 2013).+

Mondeléz Global LLC Executive Deferred Compensation Plan Adoption Agreement, effective as of October 1, 2012
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Registrant’'s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on
February 25, 2013).+

Deferred Compensation Plan Trust Document, by and between Mondeléz Global LLC and Wilmington Trust Retirement
and Institutional Services Company, dated as of September 18, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on February 25, 2013).+

Offer of Employment Letter, between the Registrant and Irene B. Rosenfeld, dated June 22, 2006 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.29 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2006).+

Amendment to Offer of Employment Letter, between the Registrant and Irene B. Rosenfeld, amended as of December
31, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC
on February 27, 2009).+
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10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31
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21.1
23.1
31.1

31.2

32.1

101.1

Performance-Contingent Restricted Stock Unit Agreement, between the Registrant and Irene B. Rosenfeld, effective as
of December 19, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed
with the SEC on February 25, 2013).+

Offer of Employment Letter, between the Registrant and Daniel P. Myers, dated June 20, 2011 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on November 4, 2011).+

Offer of Employment Letter, between the Registrant and Tracey Belcourt, dated July 8, 2012 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on November 8, 2012).+

Offer of Employment Letter, between Mondeléz Global LLC and Brian T. Gladden, dated September 26, 2014
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October
9, 2014).+

Separation Agreement and General Release, between Mondeléz Global LLC and Mary Beth West, dated December 16,
2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on
December 22, 2014).+

Form of Indemnification Agreement for Non-Employee Directors (incorporated by reference to 10.28 to the Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on February 27, 2009).+

Indemnification Agreement between the Registrant and Irene B. Rosenfeld, dated January 27, 2009 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on February 2, 2009).+

Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges.
Subsidiaries of the Registrant.
Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Certification of the Registrant’s Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of the Registrant’s Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certifications of the Registrant’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

The following materials from Mondeléz International’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December
31, 2014, formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Language): (i) the Consolidated Statements of Earnings,
(i) the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Earnings, (iii) the Consolidated Balance Sheets, (iv) the
Consolidated Statements of Equity, (v) the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and (vi) Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

* Upon request, Mondeléz International, Inc. agrees to furnish to the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, on a
supplemental basis, a copy of any omitted schedule or exhibit to such agreement.

** Portions of this exhibit (indicated by asterisks) have been omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment and
have been separately filed with the SEC.

+ Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: February 20, 2015

MONDELEZ INTERNATIONAL, INC.

By: /s/ BRIAN T. GLADDEN

(Brian T. Gladden
Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons
on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Signature
/s/ IRENE B. ROSENFELD

(Irene B. Rosenfeld)

/sl BRIAN T. GLADDEN

(Brian T. Gladden)

/sl LUCA ZARAMELLA

(Luca Zaramella)

/s/ STEPHEN F. BOLLENBACH

(Stephen F. Bollenbach)

/sl LEWIS W. K. BOOTH

(Lewis W. K. Booth)

/s/ _LOIS D. JULIBER

(Lois D. Juliber)

/sl _MARK D. KETCHUM

(Mark D. Ketchum)

/sl JORGE S. MESQUITA

(Jorge S. Mesquita)
/s/  JOSEPH NEUBAUER

(Joseph Neubauer)

/s/ NELSON PELTZ

(Nelson Peltz)

/sl FREDRIC G. REYNOLDS

(Fredric G. Reynolds)

/sl PATRICK T. SIEWERT

(Patrick T. Siewert)

/s/ _RUTH J. SIMMONS

(Ruth J. Simmons)

/sl RATAN N. TATA

(Ratan N. Tata)

/s/ JEAN-FRANCOIS M.L. VAN BOXMEER

(Jean-Frangois M.L. van Boxmeer)
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Director, Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Senior Vice President and
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Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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February 20, 2015

February 20, 2015

February 20, 2015

February 20, 2015

February 20, 2015

February 20, 2015

February 20, 2015

February 20, 2015
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Mondeléz International, Inc.:

Our audits of the consolidated financial statements and of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting referred to in
our report dated February 20, 2015 appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Mondeléz International, Inc. also included an
audit of the financial statement schedule listed in Iltem 15(a) of this Form 10-K. In our opinion, this financial statement schedule
presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated
financial statements.

/s/ P RICEWATERHOUSE C OOPERS LLP

Chicago, lllinois
February 20, 2015
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Mondel €z International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
For the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 201 2

(in millions)
Col. A Col. B Col. C Col. D Col. E
Additions
Balance at Charged to Charged to Balance at
Beginning Costs and Other End of
Description of Period Expenses Accounts Deductions Period
G (b)
2014:
Allowance for trade receivables $ 86 9 % (20) 19 66
Allowance for other current receivables 73 39 (13) 8 91
Allowance for long-term receivables 16 1 (2) 1 14
Allowance for deferred taxes 335 61 (25) 26 345
$ 510 110 $ (50) 54 516
2013:
Allowance for trade receivables $ 118 14 3% (12) 35 86
Allowance for other current receivables 45 20 - (8) 73
Allowance for long-term receivables 16 - - - 16
Allowance for deferred taxes 426 20 - 111 335
$ 605 54 $ (11) 138 510
2012:
Allowance for trade receivables $ 143 27 % (32) 20 118
Allowance for other current receivables 40 6 (7 (6) 45
Allowance for long-term receivables 19 4) (1) (2) 16
Allowance for deferred taxes 464 63 (17) 84 426
$ 666 92 $ (57) 96 605

Notes:

(@) Primarily related to divestitures, acquisitions and currency translation.

(b) Represents charges for which allowances were created.
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Exhibit 10.7

MONDEL EZ INTERNATIONAL, INC.
AMENDED AND RESTATED 2005 PERFORMANCE INCENTIVE PLA N
(Amended and Restated as of May 21, 2014)

RESTRICTED STOCK AGREEMENT
FOR MONDEL EZ INTERNATIONAL COMMON STOCK

MONDELEZ INTERNATIONAL, INC., a Virginia corporation (thé Company”), hereby grants to the employee (the “ EmploY)ee
named in the award statement provided to the Enegl@the “ Award Statemefitas of the date set forth in the Award Statenfdre “ Grant
Date”) pursuant to the provisions of the Mongelnternational, Inc. Amended and Restated 200foArance Incentive Plan, as amended
from time to time (the “ PlaP), restricted stock (the ** Grari} with respect to the number of shares of CommtmeiSset forth in the Award
Statement (the “ Restricted Shatgsupon and subject to the restrictions, terms emditions set forth below, in the Award Statemamd in
the Plan. Capitalized terms not otherwise defimeithis Restricted Stock Agreement (the “ Agreenigshall have the meaning specified in
Plan. All references to action of or approval by @ommittee shall be deemed to include action afpproval by any other person(s) to whom
the Committee has delegated authority to act. Ttaads subject to the following terms and condisio

The Employee must execute and deliver or electroratly accept the terms set forth in this Agreementin the manner and within a
period specified by the Committee. The Committee ma in its sole discretion, cancel the Restricted @lnes if the Employee fails to
execute and deliver or electronically accept this greement and related documents within the specifiederiod.

1. Restrictions Subject to paragraph 2 below, the restrictionthenRestricted Shares shall lapse and the Restrighares shall vest on
the date set forth in the Restricted Stock seaifdhe Award Statement (the “ Vesting Dayeprovided that the Employee remains an active
employee of the Mond&t Group during the entire period commencing onGhant Date set forth in the Award Statement andngndn the
Vesting Date (the “ Restriction Perid

2. Termination of Employment During Restriction iBdr. In the event of the termination of the Employemisployment with the
Mondekz Group prior to the Vesting Date other than bytlleBisability or Normal Retirement (as defineddselin paragraph 16) or unless it
is otherwise determined by the Committee, the Restt Shares shall not vest and the Employee 8ivédiit all rights to the Restricted Shares.
Any Restricted Shares that are forfeited shallraedferred directly to the Company. If death, Diliglor Normal Retirement of the Employee
occurs prior to the Vesting Date, the restrictionghe Restricted Shares shall immediately lapsefz Restricted Shares shall become fully
vested on such date of death, Disability or NorRetirement.

3. Voting and Dividend RightsDuring the Restriction Period, the Employee shalle the right to vote the Restricted Sharesand t
receive any dividends and other distributions witbpect to the Restricted Shares, as paid, ledisa@pp Tax-Related Items (as defined in
paragraph 6, below) (it being understood that glicidends will generally be taxable as ordinary pamsation income during such Restriction
Period) unless and until such Restricted Sharefodedted pursuant to paragraph 2 hereof.

4. Custody and Delivery of Certificates Represenfhares The shares of Common Stock subject to the Graytime held by a
custodian in book entry form with the restrictiarssuch shares duly noted or, alternatively, then@any may hold the certificate or
certificates representing such shares, in eithes oatil the Grant vests, in whole or in part, parg to paragraphs 1 and 2 hereof. As soon as
practicable after the Restricted Shares shall kasg=d pursuant to paragraphs 1 and 2 hereof,cdubjparagraph 8 hereof, the restrictions
shall be removed from those of such shares thdieldein book entry forn




5. Transfer RestrictionsThis Grant and the Restricted Shares (until tiegome unrestricted pursuant to the terms heresf)@n-
transferable and may not be assigned, hypotheocatettherwise pledged and shall not be subject éz@tion, attachment or similar process.
Upon any attempt to effect any such dispositiorypon the levy of any such process, the Grant ghaflediately become null and void and
Restricted Shares shall be forfeited.

6. Withholding Taxes The Employee acknowledges that, regardless otatign taken by the Company or, if different, Eraployee’s
employer (the * Employel), the ultimate liability for all income tax, sadiinsurance, payroll tax, fringe benefits tax, payt on account or
other tax-related items related to the Employeatsigipation in the Plan and legally applicabléiie Employee (* TesRelated ltem$), is and
remains the Employee’s responsibility and may esd¢be amount actually withheld by the Company erEmployer. The Employee further
acknowledges that the Company and/or the Empl@)anéke no representations or undertakings regattsmtreatment of any Tax-Related
Items in connection with any aspect of the Grartluding the grant, vesting or payment of the Grtr receipt of any dividends or the
subsequent sale of shares of Common Stock; ardb(bdt commit to and are under no obligation tacttrre the terms of the grant or any
aspect of the Restricted Shares to reduce or edimithe Employee’s liability for Tax-Related Iteorsachieve any particular tax result. Further
if the Employee becomes subject to any Tax-Relkgads in more than one jurisdiction (including gdictions outside the United States)
between the Grant Date and the date of any reléaaable event, the Employee acknowledges thattmpany and/or the Employer (or
former employer, as applicable) may be requireditbhold or account for (including report) Tax-Regd Items in more than one jurisdiction.

The Employee acknowledges and agrees that the Gongpall not be required to lift the restrictionstbe Restricted Shares unless it
received payment in a form acceptable to the Comfamall applicable Tax-Related Items, as welbasounts due to the Company as
“theoretical taxes”, if applicable, pursuant to then-current international assignment and taxarsticial insurance equalization policies and
procedures of the Mondi Group, or arrangements satisfactory to the Comparthe payment thereof have been made.

In this regard, the Employee authorizes the Companalyor the Employer, in their sole discretion aithout any notice or further
authorization by the Employee, to withhold all apable Tax-Related Items legally due by the Empéoged any theoretical taxes from the
Employee’s wages or other cash compensation paidebZompany and/or the Employer. Alternativelyimaddition, the Company may
(i) deduct the number of Restricted Shares havingggregate value equal to the amount of Tax-Rél&ens and any theoretical taxes due
from the total number of Restricted Shares awardested, paid or otherwise becoming subject toeciitiaxation; (ii) instruct the broker it has
selected for this purpose (on the Employee’s bedraifat the Employee’s direction pursuant to thibarization) to sell the Restricted Shares
to meet the Tax-Related Items withholding obligatmd any theoretical taxes, except to the extexitsuch a sale would violate any U.S.
federal securities law or other applicable law;/angiii) satisfy the Tax-Related Items and anyaietical taxes arising from the granting or
vesting of this Grant, as the case may be, thranytother method established by the Company. Nestanding the foregoing, if the
Employee is subject to the short-swing profit ridéSection 16(b) of the Exchange Act, the Employesy elect the form of withholding in
advance of any Tax-Related Items withholding et in the absence of the Employee’s electionCirapany will withhold in Restricted
Shares upon the relevant withholding event or then@ittee may determine that a particular methoddasal to satisfy any Tax Related Items
withholding. Restricted Shares deducted from thign®in satisfaction of withholding tax requiremeshall be valued at the Fair Market Value
of the Common Stock received upon vesting of Restli Shares on the date as of which the amoumnigyiise to the withholding requirement
first became includible in the gross income of Emeployee under applicable tax laws.
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To avoid any negative accounting treatment or fr @ther reason, the Company may withhold or accfarirax-Related Items or
theoretical taxes by considering applicable mininataiutory withholding amounts (in accordance \@#ttion 14(d) of the Plan) or other
applicable withholding rates. If the obligation fbax-Related Items is satisfied by withholding iesRicted Shares, for tax purposes, the
Employee is deemed to have been issued the fulbeuwf shares of Common Stock underlying the Graotiyithstanding that a number of
Restricted Shares are held back solely for thequerpf paying the Tax-Related Items due as a rebaly aspect of the Employee’s
participation in the Plan.

Finally, the Employee agrees to pay to the Compmarifie Employer any amount of Tax-Related Itemsamdtheoretical taxes that the
Company or the Employer may be required to withlasldccount for as a result of the Employee’s pigdition in the Plan that cannot be
satisfied by the means previously described.

7. Section 83(b) ElectionThe Employee may file an election for immedia¢el€ral income taxation of the Grant pursuant toeCod
Section 83(b). Such election must be filed withiinty (30) days after the Grant Date. In the ewbat the Employee makes an election purs
to Code Section 83(b), the Employee agrees toynthté Company thereof in writing within ten (10)ydafter such electiohe Employee
hereby acknowledges that he or she has been advidedconsult with his or her tax advisor to determire the tax consequences of
acquiring the shares of Common Stock and the advaages and disadvantages of filing the Code SectioB(B) election. The Employee
hereby acknowledges that it is the Employee’s sotesponsibility, and not the Company’s, to file a tinely election under Code Section 83
(b), even if the Employee requests the Company dsirepresentatives to make this filing on his or hebehalf.

8. Death of Employeelf any of the Restricted Shares shall vest upendeath of the Employee, they shall be registerdue name of
the estate of the Employee.

9. Restrictions and Covenants

(a) In addition to such other conditions as magstablished by the Company or the Committee, isic@nation for making a Grant
under the terms of the Plan, the Employee agregs@enants as follows for a period of twelve (&®@)nths following the date of Employee’s
termination of employment from the Mond&elGroup:

1. to protect the Mondét Group’s legitimate business interests in its m@rftial information, trade secrets and goodwitid a
to enable the Mondéz Group’s ability to reserve these for the excladgimowledge and use of the Morgeroup, which i
of great competitive importance and commercial @atuthe Mondekz Group, the Employee, without the express written
permission of the Executive Vice President of HurR&sources of the Company, will not engage in amgdact in which
Employee contributes his/her knowledge and sldil€ctly or indirectly, in whole or in part, as arecutive, employer,
employee, owner, operator, manager, advisor, ctargubgent, partner, director, stockholder, offi#elunteer, intern or ar
other similar capacity to a competitor or to aritgrengaged in the same or similar business aMredeEz Group,
including those engaged in the business of produgcsale or marketing of snack foods (includingd, rimt limited to gum,
chocolate, confectionary products, biscuits or atfyer product or service Employee has reason tavkres been under
development by the Mond Group during Employee’s employment with the Mdadé&sroup). Employee will not engage
in any activity that may require or inevitably rég@uEmployee’s use or disclosure of the Mordeébroup’s confidential
information, proprietary information and/or tradeeets;
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2. to protect the Mondez Group’s investment in its employees and to enthedong-term success of the business, Employee
without the express written permission of the Exieewice President of Human Resources of the Cawpaill not
directly or indirectly solicit, hire, recruit, attet to hire or recruit, or induce the terminatidremployment of any employee
of the Mondegz Group; anc

3. to protect the Mondez Group’s investment in its development of good wiild customers and to ensure the long-term
success of the business, Employee will not diremtlindirectly solicit (including, but not limitetb, e-mail, regular mail,
express mail, telephone, fax, instant message B®&it8xt messaging) or attempt to directly or indilesolicit, contact or
meet with the current or prospective customerhieMonde¢z Group for the purpose of offering or acceptingdmpor
services similar to or competitive with those offiby the Mondiéz Group.

The provisions contained herein in paragraph Sateén lieu of, but are in addition to the contingiobligation of the Employee (which
Employee acknowledges by accepting any Grant uthéelPlan) to not use or disclose the Moad&broup’s trade secrets or Confidential
Information known to the Employee until any partaourade secret or Confidential Information becergenerally known (through no fault of
the Employee), whereupon the restriction on usedistlosure shall cease as to that item. For pesposthis agreement, " Confidential
Information” includes, but is not limited to, certain salesrketing, strategy, financial, product, personmenufacturing, technical and other
proprietary information and material which are fhieperty of the Mondék Group. Employee understands that this list issxbaustive, and
that Confidential Information also includes othafiormation that is marked or otherwise identifisdcanfidential or proprietary, or that would
otherwise appear to a reasonable person to bedemnital or proprietary in the context and circumsts in which the information is known or
used.

(b) A main purpose of the Plan is to strengtherafignment of long-term interests between Employesthe Mondek Group by
providing an ownership interest in the Company, tangrevent former employees whose interests be@aiverse to the Company from
maintaining that ownership interest. By acceptasfany Grant (including the Restricted Stock) unther Plan, the Employee acknowledges
and agrees that if the Employee breaches any afabhenants set forth in paragraph 9(a):

1. all unvested Grants (including the unvested ResttiStock) shall be immediately forfeite

2. the Company may cancel, rescind, suspend, withdraotherwise limit or restrict any unexpired paid or deferred Grants
(including the Restricted Stock) at any time if Hayge is not in compliance with all terms and cdiodis set forth in the
Plan including, but not limited to, paragraph 9

3. the Employee shall repay to the MordeBroup the net proceeds of any exercise or Plagfli¢hat occurs at any time after
the earlier of the following two dates: (i) the éaivelve months immediately preceding any suchatioh; or (ii) the date si
(6) months prior to the Employee’s termination ofpgoyment with the Mondet Group. The Employee shall repay to the
MondeEz Group the net proceeds in such a manner andaintstms and conditions as may be required by theddEz
Group, and the Mondegt Group shall be entitled to set-off against th@am of any such net proceeds any amount owed tt
the Employee by the Mondel Group, to the extent that such set-off is nobimsistent with Section 409A of the Code or
other applicable law. For purposes of this pardgrapt proceeds shall mean the fair market valubeoshares of Common
Stock less any Ti-Related Items; an



4, the Mondedz Group shall be entitled to seek, in additiontteeo available remedies, a temporary or permamgumigtion or
other equitable relief against such breach or thresl breach from any court of competent jurisdictivithout the necessity
of showing any actual damages or that money damagekl not afford an adequate remedy, and withb@intecessity of
posting any bond or other security as Employee @sladges that such breach would cause the Ménd&loup to suffer
irreparable harm. The aforementioned equitablefrghiall be in addition to, not in lieu of, legahmedies, monetary damag
or other available forms of relie

(c) If any provision contained in this paragrapsh@ll for any reason, whether by application osgng law or law which may develop
after Employee’s acceptance of a Grant under the B¢ determined by a court of competent jurisalicto be overly broad as to scope of
activity, duration or territory, the Employee agée join the Mondek Group in requesting such court to construe suchigion by limiting or
reducing it so as to be enforceable to the extemipatible with then applicable law.

10. Clawback Policy/ForfeitureThe Employee understands and agrees that indherittee’s sole discretion, the Company may cance
all or part of the Restricted Shares or requirayement by the Employee to the Company of all ot pathe Restricted Shares, the underlying
shares of Common Stock or any cash equivalentypatgo any recovery, recoupment, clawback andfardorfeiture policy maintained by
the Company, including a violation of paragraprb®we, from time to time. In addition, any paymentdenefits the Employee may receive
hereunder shall be subject to repayment or forfeiis may be required to comply with the requiresiender the U.S. Securities Act of 1933,
as amended (the “ Securities Axtthe Exchange Act, rules promulgated by the Cassion or any other applicable law, including the
requirements of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Refont @onsumer Protection Act, or any securities emghaon which the Common Stock is
listed or traded, as may be in effect from timéine.

11. Original Issue or Transfer TaxeShe Company shall pay all original issue or tfantaxes and all fees and expenses incident o suc
delivery, except as otherwise provided in parag@ph

12. Successors and Assigighenever the word “Employee” is used herein unéfeumstances such that the provision should lotyical
be construed to apply to the executors, the adirémigs, or the person or persons to whom the ResirShares may be transferred pursuant 1
this Agreement, it shall be deemed to include ferison or persons. The Company may assign ang nftts under this Agreement to single
or multiple assignees, and this Agreement shallibéing upon and inure to the benefit of any suscesor assigns of the Company and any
person or persons who shall acquire any rightsumeler in accordance with this Agreement, the Avwgtatement or the Plan.

13. Grant Confers No Rights to Continued Employmertlature of the GrantNothing contained in the Plan or this Agreeméuatlls
give the Employee the right to be retained in tmpleyment of any member of the MongelGroup, affect the right of any such employer to
terminate the Employee or be interpreted as forrmimg@mployment or service contract with any menatbéine Mondedz Group. The adoption
and maintenance of the Plan shall not constitut@ducement to, or condition of, the employmenthaf Employee. Further, the Employee
acknowledges, understands and agrees that:

(a) the Plan is established voluntarily by the Camy it is discretionary in nature and it may bedified, amended, suspended or
terminated by the Company at any time, to the eéxiermitted by the Plan;
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(b) the grant of Restricted Shares is voluntary ecmhsional and does not create any contractuzther right to receive future
grants, or benefits in lieu of Grants, even if gsdmave been made in the past;

(c) all decisions with respect to future Grantanf/, will be at the sole discretion of the Comett
(d) the Employee is voluntarily participating iretRlan;

(e) the Restricted Shares and the shares of Constomk subject to the Restricted Shares are natdet to replace any pension
rights or compensation;

(f) the Restricted Shares and the shares of Con8hmrk subject to the Restricted Shares and therieand the value of same are
not part of normal or expected compensation omrgdta purposes of calculating any severance, regign, termination, redundancy, dismis
end-of-service payments, bonuses, long-servicedsyaension, retirement or welfare benefits or lsinpayments;

(9) the future value of the underlying shares ofm@wn Stock is unknown, indeterminable and canngirbdicted with certainty;

(h) no claim or entitlement to compensation or dgesashall arise from forfeiture of the Restrictédu®s resulting from the
termination of the Employee’s employment or ottewie relationship by the Company or the Emploged in consideration of the Grant of
the Restricted Shares to which the Employee israike not entitled, the Employee irrevocably agneeger to institute any claim against the
Mondekz Group, waives his or her ability, if any, to lgiany such claim, and releases the Mog@l@€roup from any such claims. If,
notwithstanding the foregoing, any such claim isvaéd by a court of competent jurisdiction, thep participating in the Plan, the Employee
shall be deemed irrevocably to have agreed notiteug such claim and agrees to execute any add@liments necessary to request dismisse
or withdrawal of such claim;

(i) the Employee is hereby advised to consult \hth Employee’s own personal tax, legal and findraad&isors regarding the
Employees participation in the Plan before taking any acttielated to the Plan and that the Company is righng any tax, legal or financi
advice, nor is the Company making any recommengatiegarding the Employee’s participation in thenPbr the Employee’s acquisition or
sale of the underlying shares of Common Stock; and

() unless otherwise provided in the Plan or by@wmnpany in its discretion, the Restricted Sharesthe benefits evidenced by tl
Agreement do not create any entitlement to hav&#sdricted Shares or any such benefits transféorent assumed by, another company,
be exchanged, cashed out or substituted for, inexion with any corporate transaction affecting @mpany’s Common Stock.

14. Interpretation The terms and provisions of the Plan (a copy littvwill be made available online or furnishedhie Employee upon
written request to the Office of the Corporate 8toy, Mondedz International, Inc., Three Parkway North, Deddfjdllinois 60015) are
incorporated herein by reference. To the extentpanyision of the Award Statement or this Agreenisrihconsistent or in conflict with any
term or provision of the Plan, the Plan shall gav@he Committee shall have the right to resolVegadstions that may arise in connection \
the Grant or this Agreement. Any interpretatiortedmination or other action made or taken by then@ittee regarding the Plan or this
Agreement shall be final, binding and conclusive.



15. Entire Agreement; Governing Lawhe Award Statement, the Plan and this Agreemmemstitute the entire agreement of the parties
with respect to the subject matter hereof and saglerin their entirety all prior undertakings agdeaments of the Company and the Employe
with respect to the subject matter hereof, and nmype modified adversely to the Employee’s inteegsept as provided in the Award
Statement, the Plan or this Agreement or by me&asagiting signed by the Company and the Employésthing in the Award Statement, the
Plan and this Agreement (except as expressly peoviderein) is intended to confer any rights oredi®ms on any persons other than the pa
The Award Statement, the Plan and this Agreementaabe construed in accordance with and govergedebsubstantive laws of the
Commonwealth of Virginia, U.S.A., without givingfe€t to any choice of law rule that would causedhpplication of the laws of any
jurisdiction other than the substantive laws of @@mmonwealth of Virginia to the rights and dutiéthe parties. Unless otherwise provide:
the Award Statement, the Plan or this AgreemertBimployee is deemed to submit to the exclusiviediation of the Commonwealth of
Virginia, U.S.A., and agrees that such litigatidvals be conducted in the courts of Henrico CouNfiyginia, or the federal courts for the United
States for the Eastern District of Virginia.

16. Miscellaneous DefinitionsFor purposes of this Agreement, (a) the termsability” means permanent and total disability as
determined under procedures established by the @ayripr purposes of the Plan, and (b) the term fhiNd Retirement means retirement
from active employment under a pension plan oMoadekz Group, an employment contract with any membehefMondetz Group or a
local labor contract, on or after the date spediéis the normal retirement age in the pension plaployment contract or local contract, if any,
under which the Employee is at that time accruiegsion benefits for his or her current service ifothe absence of a specified normal
retirement age, the age at which pension benefiigiusuch plan or contract become payable withediation for early commencement and
without any requirement of a particular period gbpservice). In any case in which (i) the meaniigNormal Retirement” is uncertain under
the definition contained in the prior sentenceiip@(termination of employment at or after agevéiuld not otherwise constitute “Normal
Retirement,” an Employee’s termination of employtn&mall be treated as a “Normal Retirement” undehsircumstances as the Committee,
in its sole discretion, deems equivalent to ret@am

17. Adjustments In the event of any merger, share exchange, aagtion, consolidation, recapitalization, recifasation, distribution,
stock dividend, stock split, reverse stock sppititsup, spin-off, issuance of rights or warrantsother similar transaction or event affecting the
Common Stock after the date of this Grant, the BadDirectors of the Company or the Committee lsimake adjustments to the number and
kind of shares of Common Stock subject to this Griacluding, but not limited to, the substitutiohequity interests in other entities involved
in such transactions, to provide for cash paymiertisu of restricted or unrestricted shares, anddtermine whether continued employment
with any entity resulting from such a transactialt @r will not be treated as continued employmbwptthe Mondedz Group, in each case
subject to any Board of Director or Committee atpecifically addressing any such adjustments) pagments, or continued employment
treatment.

18. Notices Any notice required or permitted hereunder sheal(i) given in writing and shall be deemed effesly given upon personal
delivery, upon deposit for delivery by an interpatilly recognized express mail courier servicepmrudeposit in the United States mail by
certified mail (if the parties are within the UnidtStates), with postage and fees prepaid, addrésdkd other party at its address as shown in
these instruments, or to such other address aspsushmay designate in writing from time to tineethe other party or (ii) delivered
electronically through the Company’s electronic lnsgstem (including any notices delivered by ad¥party) and shall be deemed effectively
given upon such delivery. Any documents requiredeaiven or delivered to the Employee relatedutoent or future participation in the Plan
may also be delivered through electronic meansasribed in Section 19 below.
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19. Electronic Delivery and Acceptanc&he Company may, in its sole discretion, dectdddliver any documents related to current or
future participation in the Plan by electronic meabhe Employee hereby consents to receive sualmunts by electronic delivery and agrees
to participate in the Plan through any on-line lectonic system established and maintained byCttapany or a third party designated by the
Company.

20. Compliance With LawNotwithstanding any other provision of the Plaritos Agreement, unless there is an available gtiem
from any registration, qualification or other legefuirement applicable to the shares of CommonkSthe Company shall not be required to
deliver any Common Stock underlying the Restricédres prior to the completion of any registratoualification of the shares of Comir
Stock under any local, state, federal or foreigrusées or exchange control law or under rulingsegulations of the Commission or of any
other governmental regulatory body, or prior toaging any approval or other clearance from anwgllostate, federal or foreign governmental
agency, which registration, qualification or appmbthe Company shall, in its absolute discretiagrd necessary or advisable. The Employee
understands that the Company is under no oblig&tioagister or qualify the shares of Common Steith the Commission or any state or
foreign securities commission or to seek approval@arance from any governmental authority forilseiance or sale of the shares of
Common Stock. Further, the Employee agrees thattmepany shall have unilateral authority to amdradRlan and the Agreement without
Employee’s consent to the extent necessary to gowifth securities or other laws applicable to tbguiance of shares of Common Stock.

21. Agreement Severahldhe provisions of this Agreement are severabteiany one or more provisions are determinedetdlbgal o
otherwise unenforceable, in whole or in part, #gmaining provisions shall nevertheless be bindimdyenforceable.

22. Insider Trading/Market Abuse Law$he Employee acknowledges that the Employeeliesuto insider trading and/or market abuse
laws, which affect the Employee’s ability to acquar sell shares of Common Stock under the Plaimglsuch times as the Employee is
considered to have “material nonpublic information™inside information” (as defined by the lawstire Employee’s country). The Employee
also acknowledges that the Employee is subjettedCompanys insider trading policy, and the requirementspgflizable laws may or may r
be consistent with the terms of the Company’s imstchding policy. The Employee acknowledges thiatliis or her responsibility to be
informed of and compliant with any such laws, antereby advised to speak to his or her personé@don this matter.

23. Headings Headings of paragraphs and sections used id\grsement are for convenience only and are notqdahis Agreement,
and must not be used in construing it.

24. Imposition of Other Requirement¥he Company reserves the right to impose ottigrirements on the Employee’s participation in
the Plan and on the Restricted Shares to the etkter@ompany determines it is necessary or adwdabllegal or administrative reasons, ar
require the Employee to sign any additional agregmer undertakings that may be necessary to adegdnthe foregoing.

8



25. Waiver. The Employee acknowledges that a waiver by thmg2my of a breach of any provision of this Agreetrsdrall not operate
or be construed as a waiver of any other provisiathis Agreement or of any subsequent breach &yEthployee or any other participant of
Plan.

26. Conformity to Securities LawsThe Employee acknowledges that the Award StatgrttemPlan and this Agreement are intended to
conform to the extent necessary with all provisiohthe Securities Act and the Exchange Act, andaamd all regulations and rules
promulgated thereunder by the Commission, includivithout limitation, Rule 168 under the Exchange Act. Notwithstanding anyttiacgir
to the contrary, the Award Statement, the PlanthisdAgreement shall be administered, and the Gsamiade, only in such a manner as to
conform to such laws, rules and regulations. Toetktent permitted by applicable law, the Award &tagnt, the Plan and this Agreement shall
be deemed amended to the extent necessary to notdauch laws, rules and regulations.
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*kk

The Employee acknowledges that the Employee has rewed the Plan, the Award Statement and this Agreeemt (including any
appendices hereto) in their entirety and fully undestands their respective provisions. The Employeegaees to accept as binding,
conclusive and final all decisions or interpretatios of the Committee upon any questions arising undé¢he Plan, the Award Statement

or this Agreement.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been dubcexed as of the Grant Date.

MONDELEZ INTERNATIONAL, INC.

/s/ Carol J. Wart

Carol J. Warc
Vice President and Corporate Secre’
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Exhibit 10.¢

MONDEL EZ INTERNATIONAL, INC.
AMENDED AND RESTATED 2005 PERFORMANCE INCENTIVE PLA N
(Amended and Restated as of May 21, 2014)

GLOBAL DEFERRED STOCK UNIT AGREEMENT

MONDELEZ INTERNATIONAL, INC., a Virginia corporation (th Company”), hereby grants to the employee (the “ EmploY)ee
named in the award statement provided to the Enegl@the “ Award Statemetitas of the date set forth in the Award Statenfdre “ Grant
Date”) pursuant to the provisions of the Mongelnternational, Inc. Amended and Restated 200foArance Incentive Plan, as amended
from time to time (the “ Plat), Deferred Stock Units (the " Grafif representing a right to receive a correspondinmber of shares of
Common Stock of the Company set forth in the Awatatement, upon and subject to the restrictions)g@nd conditions set forth below
(including the country-specific terms set forthtie attached Appendix A), in the Award Statemeuwkiarthe Plan. Capitalized terms not
otherwise defined in this Global Deferred StocktUdgreement (the “ Agreemefthave the meaning set forth in the Plan. All refeces to
action of or approval by the Committee shall bendeg to include action of or approval by any othenspn(s) to whom the Committee has
delegated authority to act.

The Grant is subject to the following terms andditions (including the country-specific terms settti in Appendix A to the
Agreement):

The Employee must execute and deliver or electroratly accept the terms set forth in this Agreementin the manner and within a
period specified by the Committee. The Committee ma in its sole discretion, cancel the Deferred StidJnits if the Employee fails to
execute and deliver or electronically accept this greement and related documents within the specifiegeriod.

1. Restrictions Subject to Section 2 below, the restrictionstmDeferred Stock Units shall lapse and the DedeBteck Units shall vest
on the Vesting Date shown in the Award Statemdmt {tVesting Daté), provided that the Employee remains an activpleyee of the
MondeEz Group during the entire period commencing onGh&nt Date and ending on the Vesting Date.

2. Termination of Employment Before Vesting Date the event of the termination of the Employesisployment with the Monde#
Group prior to the Vesting Date due to death oability (as defined below in Section 21) or upoa Employee’s Normal Retirement (as
defined below in Section 21), the restrictions lo& Deferred Stock Units shall lapse and the Deflesteck Units shall become fully vested on
the date of death, Disability or Normal Retirement.

If the Employee’s employment with the MongelGroup is terminated for any reason other thathd&idsability or Normal Retirement
prior to the Vesting Date, including any terminatiaf employment caused directly or indirectly bg tilondetz Group (even if such
termination constitutes unfair dismissal undergh@gloyment laws of the country where the Employesides or if the Employee’s termination
is later determined to be invalid and his or hepllyment is reinstated), the Employee shall forddlitights to the Deferred Stock Units and
shares of Common Stock underlying the DeferrediStbats. Notwithstanding the foregoing, upon thertmation of an Employee’s
employment with the Mondez Group, the Committee or an authorized delegatg inats sole discretion, waive the restrictioms and the
vesting requirements for, the Deferred Stock Units.

For purposes of this Agreement, the Employee’s eympént shall be deemed to be terminated when Bheors no longer actively
employed by the Mondez Group (regardless of the reason for such terioin@nd whether or not later found to be invalidrobreach of
employment laws in the jurisdiction where the Engpleis employed or the terms of the Employee’s egipent agreement, if any). Unless
otherwise determined by the Committee, a leavédséace shall not constitute a termination of empienyt.



3. Voting and Dividend RightsThe Employee does not have the right to voteDikerred Stock Units or receive dividends or divide
equivalents prior to the date, if any, such Def@iB¢ock Units vest and are paid to the Employahérform of Common Stock pursuant to the
terms hereof. However, the Employee shall receagh @ayments (less applicable Tax-Related Itemddfiised below) withholding) in lieu of
dividends otherwise payable with respect to shaf€mmon Stock equal in number to the DeferreaiStdnits that have not been forfeited,
as such dividends are paid.

4. Transfer RestrictionsThis Grant and the Deferred Stock Units are ransferable and may not be assigned, hypothecatettherwis
pledged and shall not be subject to executionclattent or similar process. Upon any attempt tocetiey such disposition, or upon the levy
any such process, the Grant shall immediately beawuli and void and the Deferred Stock Units shalforfeited. These restrictions shall not
apply, however, to any payments received purswa8ettion 8 below.

5. Withholding Taxes The Employee acknowledges that regardless ofatign taken by the Company or, if different, thafoyee’s
employer (the “ Employel), the ultimate liability for all income tax, saisecurity, payroll tax, fringe benefits tax, pamhon account or
other tax-related items related to the Employealsigipation in the Plan and legally applicabléite Employee or deemed by the Company ol
the Employer, in their discretion, to be an appiatprcharge to the Employee even if legally appliedo the Company or the Employer (* Fax
Related Item$) is and remains his or her responsibility and reageed the amount actually withheld by the Comparthe Employer. The
Employee further acknowledges that the Companyoaridé Employer (a) make no representations or miakiags regarding the treatment of
any Tax-Related Items in connection with any aspétite Deferred Stock Units, including the grargsting or payment of this Grant, the
receipt of any dividends or cash payments in liedividends, or the subsequent sale of shares ofrfian Stock; and (b) do not commit to and
are under no obligation to structure the terms$efgrant of the Deferred Stock Units or any aspétite Employees participation in the Plan
reduce or eliminate his or her liability for TRelated Items or achieve any particular tax resuitther, if the Employee becomes subject tc
Tax-Related Items in more than one jurisdictionaen the Grant Date and the date of any relevaabta event, the Employee acknowledge:s
that the Company and/or the Employer (or formerleysr, as applicable) may be required to withhaldacount for (including report) Tax-
Related Items in more than one jurisdiction.

The Employee acknowledges and agrees that the Gognmpay refuse to issue or deliver shares of Com8took upon vesting of the
Deferred Stock Units if Employee fails to complytiwhis or her Tax-Related Items obligations or@wmpany has not received payment in a
form acceptable to the Company for all applicakde-Related Items, as well as amounts due to thep@oynas “theoretical taxes”, if
applicable, pursuant to the then-current intermati@ssignment and tax and/or social insuranceliegtian policies and procedures of the
MondeEz Group, or arrangements satisfactory to the Comfanthe payment thereof have been made.

In this regard, the Employee authorizes the Companalyor the Employer, in their sole discretion aithout any notice or further
authorization by the Employee, to withhold all apable Tax-Related Items legally due by the Empéofa otherwise due by the Employee as
set forth in this Section 5) and any theoreticaétafrom the Employee’s wages or other cash congpienspaid by the Company and/or the
Employer or from proceeds of the sale of the shaf€ommon Stock issued upon vesting of the Defe8®ck Units. Alternatively, or in
addition, the Company may (i) deduct the numbddefierred Stock Units having an aggregate valueldquhe amount of Tax-Related Items
and any theoretical taxes



due from the total number of Deferred Stock Uniteualed, vested, paid or otherwise becoming subjectirrent taxation; (ii) instruct the
broker it has selected for this purpose (on the IByge’s behalf and at the Employee’s direction part to this authorization without further
consent) to sell any shares of Common Stock tleaEthployee acquires upon vesting of the DeferrediStnits to meet the Tax-Related
Items withholding obligation and any theoreticalds, except to the extent that such a sale wooldtei any U.S. federal securities law or of
applicable law; and/or (iii) satisfy the Tax-Relhtéems and any theoretical taxes arising fromgitaating or vesting of this Grant, as the case
may be, through any other method established bgZdmpany. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Hoype is subject to the short-swing
profit rules of Section 16(b) of the Exchange Abg Employee may elect the form of withholding dlvance of any Tax-Related Items or any
theoretical taxes withholding event and in the abseof the Employee’s election, the Company withiold in Deferred Stock Units upon the
relevant withholding event or the Committee mayedwine that a particular method be used to sasisfyrequired withholding. Finally, the
Employee agrees to pay to the Company or the Eraplayy amount of Tax-Related Items and any thaaletaxes that the Company or the
Employer may be required to withhold or accountdsia result of the Employeedarticipation in the Plan that cannot be satidifig the mean
previously described.

To avoid any negative accounting treatment or fiyr aher reason, the Company may withhold or accfmrirax-Related Items or
theoretical taxes by considering applicable minimsiatutory withholding amounts (in accordance @#cttion 14(d) of the Plan) or other
applicable withholding rates. If the obligation fbax-Related Items is satisfied by withholding iaf®rred Stock Units, for tax purposes, the
Employee is deemed to have been issued the fulbeuwf shares of Common Stock underlying the Graotiyithstanding that a number of
Deferred Stock Units are held back solely for theppse of paying the Tax-Related Items and/or hagretical taxes due as a result of any
aspect of the Employee’s participation in the Plan.

6. Death of Employeelf any of the Deferred Stock Units shall vest mploe death of the Employee, any Common Stock veden
payment of the vested Deferred Stock Units shatklgistered in the name of and delivered to thatestf the Employee.

7. Payment of Deferred Stock UnitEach Deferred Stock Unit granted pursuant to@rant represents an unfunded and unsecured
promise of the Company to issue to the Employeeras soon as practicable, but not later thana38,cafter the date the Deferred Stock L
vest pursuant to Section 1 or 2 and otherwise sttjethe terms of this Agreement (including themtoy-specific terms set forth in Appendix
A to this Agreement), the value of one share of@benmon Stock. Except as otherwise expressly peavathd subject to the terms of this
Agreement (including Appendix A hereto), such isgieashall be made to the Employee (or, in the evkhis or her death to the Employee’s
estate or beneficiary as provided above) in thenfof Common Stock as soon as practicable followfregvesting of the Deferred Stock Units
pursuant to Section 1 or 2.

8. Special Payment Provisionblotwithstanding anything in this Agreement to toatrary, if the Employee (i) is subject to U.8déral
income tax on any part of the payment of the DeféStock Units, (ii) is a “specified employee” withthe meaning of Section 409A(a)(2)(B)
of the Internal Revenue Code (the * Cdileand (iii) will become eligible for Normal Re&ément (A) for Deferred Stock Units with a Vesting
Date between January 1 and March 15, before tlemdat year preceding the Vesting Date and (B) ffeBed Stock Units with a Vesting
Date after March 15, before the calendar year iithvBuch Vesting Date occurs, then any paymenteiéDed Stock Units under Section 7
is on account of his or her separation from sernviithin the meaning of Section 409A(a)(2)(A)(i) thie Code shall be delayed until six months
following such separation from service. In additidrsuch an Employee is not vested in his or hefebred Stock Units, and the Employee
(i) becomes eligible for Normal Retirement whilepdayed by a subsidiary or affiliate of the Compdinat
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would not be a “service recipient” with respecthie Grant within the meaning of the regulationsarrfslection 409A of the Code or

(i) becomes eligible for Normal Retirement and seduently transfers to a subsidiary or affiliatéhef Company that would not be a “service
recipient” with respect to the Grant within the miggy of the regulations under Section 409A of tleal€; then the Employee’s Deferred Stock
Units shall be paid to the Employee at such timadoordance with Section 7 (based on the valubares of Common Stock at the time of
payment), subject to a six-month delay from the degtated as a separation from service within tearimg of Section 409A(a)(2)(A)(i) of the

Code.

9. Restrictions and Covenants

(a) In addition to such other conditions as mag$@blished by the Company or the Committee, irsidenation for making a Gra
under the terms of the Plan, the Employee agreg@s@renants as follows for a period of twelve (&®@)nths following the date of Employee’s
termination of employment from the Mona&elGroup:

1.

to protect the Mondez Group’s legitimate business interests in its wharitial information, trade secrets and goodwill,
and to enable the Mondgl Group’s ability to reserve these for the excladimowledge and use of the Morgtel

Group, which is of great competitive importance anthmercial value to the Mondel Group, the Employee, without
the express written permission of the Executivee\Reesident of Human Resources of the Companyneflengage i
any conduct in which Employee contributes his/heidledge and skills, directly or indirectly, in wibar in part, as

an executive, employer, employee, owner, operatanager, advisor, consultant, agent, partner, tirestockholder,
officer, volunteer, intern or any other similar aeajty to a competitor or to an entity engaged snghme or similar
business as the MondelGroup, including those engaged in the businegsamfuction, sale or marketing of snack
foods (including, but not limited to gum, chocolatenfectionary products, biscuits or any otheidpit or service
Employee has reason to know has been under devefagy the Mondék Group during Employee’s employment
with the Monde#z Group). Employee will not engage in any activftgt may require or inevitably require Employee’s
use or disclosure of the Monéz Grouy's confidential information, proprietary informatiand/or trade secrel

to protect the Mond&t Group’s investment in its employees and to enthedong-term success of the business,
Employee, without the express written permissiothefMonde$z Group, will not directly or indirectly solicit,ite,
recruit, attempt to hire or recruit, or induce teemination of employment of any employee of therldeEz Group;
and

to protect the Mondét Group’s investment in its development of good atild customers and to ensure the long-tern
success of the business, Employee will not diremtiyndirectly solicit (including, but not limitetb, e-mail, regular

mail, express mail, telephone, fax, instant messageSMS text messaging) or attempt to directlindirectly solicit,
contact or meet with the current or prospectiveamsrs of the Mondet Group for the purpose of offering or
accepting goods or services similar to or competitvith those offered by the Moni&z Group.

The provisions contained herein in Section 9 atémbeu of, but are in addition to the continuiagligation of the Employee (which Employ
acknowledges by accepting any Grant under the Rtam)t use or disclose the MonélelGroup’s trade secrets or Confidential Information
known to the Employee until any particular tradereeor Confidential Information becomes generlatipwn (through no fault of
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the Employee), whereupon the restriction on usedistlosure shall cease as to that item. For pesposthis agreement,_ " Confidential
Information” includes, but is not limited to, certain salesrketing, strategy, financial, product, personmanufacturing, technical and other
proprietary information and material which are fhieperty of the Mondék Group. Employee understands that this list issxbaustive, and
that Confidential Information also includes othafiormation that is marked or otherwise identifisdcanfidential or proprietary, or that would
otherwise appear to a reasonable person to bedemnital or proprietary in the context and circumsts in which the information is known or
used.

(b) A main purpose of the Plan is to strengtherafignment of long-term interests between Employeesthe Mondek Group by
providing an ownership interest in the Company, tangrevent former employees whose interests be@aiverse to the Company from
maintaining that ownership interest. By acceptasfany Grant (including the Deferred Stock Unitefar the Plan, the Employee
acknowledges and agrees that if the Employee besaay of the covenants set forth in Section 9(a):

1. all unvested Grants (including any unvested DeteBtock Units) shall be immediately forfeite

2. the Company may cancel, rescind, suspend, widtdraotherwise limit or restrict any unexpired paid or deferred
Grants (including the Deferred Stock Units) at &me if Employee is not in compliance with all tesmnd conditions
set forth in the Plan including, but not limited &ection 9(a)

3. the Employee shall repay to the Mordebroup the net proceeds of any Plan benefit tbetis at any time after the
earlier of the following two dates: (i) the dateetwe months immediately preceding any such viotgtar (ii) the date
six (6) months prior to the Employee’s terminatafremployment with the Monde&t Group. The Employee shall reg
to the Mondeadz Group the net proceeds in such a manner andantetms and conditions as may be required by the
MondeEz Group, and the Mond& Group shall be entitled to set-off against th@am of any such net proceeds any
amount owed to the Employee by the Mordébroup, to the extent that such set-off is nobisistent with
Section 409A of the Code or other applicable laar. furposes of this paragraph, net proceeds skahrthe fair
market value of the shares of Common Stock lessTar-Related Items; an

4.  the Mondedlz Group shall be entitled to seek, in additiontteeo available remedies, a temporary or permanent
injunction or other equitable relief against suckdeh or threatened breach from any court of coempédirisdiction,
without the necessity of showing any actual damagéisat money damages would not afford an adeqeatedy, and
without the necessity of posting any bond or odesurity as Employee acknowledges that such briewaald cause th
MondekEz Group to suffer irreparable harm. The aforememtibequitable relief shall be in addition to, motiéu of,
legal remedies, monetary damages or other avaifabies of relief.

(c) If any provision contained in this Section @lslior any reason, whether by application of ergiiaw or law which may develc
after Employee’s acceptance of a Grant under the B¢ determined by a court of competent jurisalicto be overly broad as to scope of
activity, duration or territory, the Employee aggéde join the Mondeék Group in requesting such court to construe suohigion by limiting or
reducing it so as to be enforceable to the extemipatible with then applicable law.
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10. Clawback Policy/ ForfeitureThe Employee understands and agrees that inahenittee’s sole discretion, the Company may cance
all or part of the Deferred Stock Units or requigpayment by the Employee to the Company of gllast of any cash payment or shares of
Common Stock underlying any vested Deferred Stagitslpursuant to any recovery, recoupment, clawlaagior other forfeiture policy
maintained by the Company, including a violatiorSeftion 9 above, from time to time. In additiony @ayments or benefits the Employee
may receive hereunder shall be subject to repayoreorfeiture as may be required to comply witk tequirements under the U.S. Securities
Act of 1933, as amended (the * Securities Acthe Exchange Act, rules promulgated by the Comimissir any other applicable law, includ
the requirements of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Refand Consumer Protection Act, or any securiteehange on which the Common Stock
is listed or traded, as may be in effect from timéime.

11. Original Issue or Transfer TaxeShe Company shall pay all original issue or tfantaxes and all fees and expenses incident to the
delivery of the shares of Common Stock underlylmgested Deferred Stock Units, except as othemvi@eided in Section 5.

12. Grant Confers No Rights to Continued Employméithing contained in the Plan or this Agreeméamtlgding the country-specific
terms set forth in Appendix A to the Agreement)lkhize any employee the right to be retained ia émployment of any member of the
MondeEz Group, affect the right of any Employer to teratenany employee, or be interpreted as formingngmi@y/ment or service contract
with any member of the Mond& Group. The adoption and maintenance of the Fial ot constitute an inducement to, or conditdnthe
employment of the Employee.

13. Nature of the Grantin accepting the Deferred Stock Units, the Empéogcknowledges, understands, and agrees that:

(a) the Plan is established voluntarily by the Camy it is discretionary in nature and it may bedified, amended, suspended or
terminated by the Company at any time, to the éxemmitted by the Plan;

(b) the Grant is voluntary and occasional and dat¢greate any contractual or other right to regdiure Grants, or benefits in li
of Deferred Stock Units, even if Deferred Stock tdiave been granted in the past;

(c) all decisions with respect to future Grantanf/, will be at the sole discretion of the Comett
(d) the Employee’s participation in the Plan iswdhry;

(e) the Deferred Stock Units and the shares of Com8tock subject to the Deferred Stock Units atdmiended to replace any
pension rights or compensation;

(f) the Grant and the shares of Common Stock sutjebe Deferred Stock Units and the income ardviidue of the same are not
part of normal or expected compensation or sal@rptdirposes of calculating any severance, resigmatiermination, redundancy, dismissal,
end-of-service payments, bonuses, long-servicedsygaension, retirement or welfare benefits or lsinpayments;

(g9) the future value of the underlying shares ofm@wn Stock is unknown, indeterminable and canngirbdicted with certainty;
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(h) no claim or entitlement to compensation or dgesashall arise from forfeiture of the DeferredcRtbnits resulting from the
termination of the Employee’s employment or ottewie relationship by the Company or the Empld§@r any reason whatsoever, whether
or not later found to be invalid or in breach offggayment laws in the jurisdiction where the Empleyg employed or the terms of his or her
employment agreement, if any), and in consideratiathe Grant to which the Employee is otherwistartitled, the Employee irrevocably
agrees never to institute any claim against thedéén Group, waives his or her ability, if any, to lriany such claim, and releases the
Mondekz Group from any such claims. If, notwithstandihg foregoing, any such claim is allowed by a cofidcompetent jurisdiction, then,
by participating in the Plan, the Employee shaltbemed irrevocably to have agreed not to purscie claim and agrees to execute any and 8
documents necessary to request dismissal or witladraf such claim;

(i) the Employee is hereby advised to consult \hth Employee’s own personal tax, legal and findraad&isors regarding the
Employees patrticipation in the Plan before taking any acttielated to the Plan and that the Company is righng any tax, legal or financi
advice, nor is the Company making any recommendatiegarding the Employee’s participation in th@nRdr Employee’s acquisition or sale
of the underlying shares of Common Stock;

() unless otherwise provided in the Plan or by@mnpany in its discretion, the Grant of Deferréoc® Units and the benefits
evidenced by this Agreement do not create anylemignt to have the Deferred Stock Units or any seriefits transferred to, or assumed by,
another company, or to be exchanged, cashed suibstituted for, in connection with any corporatasaction affecting the Company’s
Common Stock; and

(k) the following provisions apply only if the Engylee is providing services outside the United State

(A) the Deferred Stock Units and the shares of Com@tock subject to the Deferred Stock Units atepaat of normal or expecte
compensation or salary for any purpose; and

(B) neither the Company, the Employer nor any memob¢éhe Mondedz Group shall be liable for any foreign exchange ra
fluctuation between the Employee’s local currenggl the United States Dollar that may affect thaigalf the Deferred Stock Units or any
shares of Common Stock delivered to the Employes westing of the Deferred Stock Units or of anggeeds resulting from the Employee’s
sale of such shares.

14.Data Privacy. The Employee hereby explicitly and unambiguoustynsents to the collection, use and transfer, ie&tonic or
other form, of his or her personal data as describi@ this Agreement (* Datd) by and among the Mondeék Group for the exclusive
purpose of implementing, administering and managifgnployers participation in the Plan.

The Employee understands that the MonéelGroup may hold certain personal information abokitm or her, including, but not
limited to, the Employee’s name, home address agldgghone number, date of birth, social securityinsurance number or other
identification number, salary, nationality, job 1, any shares of stock or directorships held iret@ompany, and details of the Deferred
Stock Units or any other entitlement to shares aff@mon Stock, canceled, exercised, vested, unvastedtstanding in the Employe's
favor, for the exclusive purpose of implementingjrainistering and managing the Plar

Employees residing outside the U.S. should undenmsitéhe following: Data will be transferred to UBSifancial Services, Inc. (* UBS
"), or such other stock plan service provider as ynlae selected



by the Company in the future, which is assistinget€ompany with the implementation, administrationdamanagement of the Plan. The
Employee understands that Data may also be transfdrto the Compar’s independent registered public accounting firm,
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, or such other publiccaanting firm that may be engaged by the Companythe future. The Employe
understands that the recipients of the Data maylbeated in the United States or elsewhere, and ttiet recipients’country (e.g., the Unite:
States) may have different data privacy laws andtpctions than Employe's country. The Employee understands that if he sire resides
outside the United States, the Employee may reqaditt with the names and addresses of any potntcipients of the Data by contacting
the Employee’s local human resources representatiiee Employee authorizes the Company, UBS and ather possible recipients which
may assist the Company (presently or in the futurg}h implementing, administering and managing thli&an to receive, possess, use, retain
and transfer the Data, in electronic or other fornipr the sole purpose of implementing, administegiand managing the Employee’s
participation in the Plan. The Employee understanttat Data will be held only as long as is necessty implement, administer an
manage the Employee’s participation in the Plan. @lEmployee understands that if he or she residetsimie the United States, the
Employee may, at any time, view Data, request addél information about the storage and processinfjData, require any necessa
amendments to Data or refuse or withdraw the contsslmerein, in any case without cost, by contactingwriting the Employee’s local
human resources representative. Further, the Empeyunderstands that the Employee is providing tlh@sents herein on a purely
voluntary basis. If the Employee does not conseamtif the Employee later seeks to revoke his or kkensent, the Employee’s employment
status or service and career with the Employer widit be adversely affected; the only consequenceebising or withdrawing the
Employefs consent is that the Company would not be ablgtant the Employee Deferred Stock Units or otheuéty awards or administer
or maintain such grants. The Employee also undersia that the Company has no obligation to substtuither forms of grants or
compensation in lieu of the Deferred Stock Units agonsequence of the Employseefusal or withdrawal of his or her consent. Thefore,
the Employee understands that refusing or withdragihis or her consent may affect the Employee’slapito participate in the Plan. For
more information on the consequences of the Emplegerefusal to consent or withdrawal of consentetiEmployee understands that he or
she may contact the Employ’s local human resources representative

15. Notices Any notice required or permitted hereunder sheal(i) given in writing and shall be deemed effesly given upon personal
delivery, upon deposit for delivery by an interpatilly recognized express mail courier servicepmrudeposit in the United States mail by
certified mail (if the parties are within the UnidtStates), with postage and fees prepaid, addrésdkd other party at its address as shown in
these instruments, or to such other address aspsutshmay designate in writing from time to tineethe other party or (ii) delivered
electronically through the Company’s electronic lnsgstem (including any notices delivered by ad¥party) and shall be deemed effectively
given upon such delivery. Any documents requiredeaiven or delivered to the Employee relatedutoent or future participation in the Plan
may also be delivered through electronic meansasribed in Section 16 below.

16. Electronic Delivery and Acceptanc&he Company may, in its sole discretion, dectdddliver any documents related to current or
future participation in the Plan by electronic meahhe Employee hereby consents to receive suamugts by electronic delivery and agrees
to participate in the Plan through any on-line lectonic system established and maintained byCttrapany or a third party designated by the
Company.

17. Language If the Employee has received this Agreement grather document related to the Plan translaterarianguage other th
English and if the meaning of the translated verssadifferent from the English version, the Enlglieersion will control.
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18. Interpretation The terms and provisions of the Plan (a copy littvwill be made available online or furnishedhie Employee upon
written request to the Office of the Corporate 8y, Mondedz International, Inc., Three Parkway North, Deddfid¢llinois 60015) are
incorporated herein by reference. To the extentpaayision in the Award Statement or this Agreenisnibconsistent or in conflict with any
term or provision of the Plan, the Plan shall gav@he Committee shall have the right to resolVegadstions that may arise in connection \
the Grant, including whether the Employee is ngtmactively employed. Any interpretation, deteration or other action made or taken by
the Committee regarding the Plan or this Agreershall be final, binding and conclusive.

19. Successors and Assigrishe Company may assign any of its rights undsrAlgreement to single or multiple assignees, aisl t
Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to threefieof any successors or assigns of the Compadyaay person or persons who shall
acquire any rights hereunder in accordance withAlgireement, the Award Statement or the Plan.

20. Entire Agreement; Governing Lawhe Award Statement, the Plan and this Agreememstitute the entire agreement of the parties
with respect to the subject matter hereof and salerin their entirety all prior undertakings agdeaments of the Company and the Employe
with respect to the subject matter hereof, and nmype modified adversely to the Employee’s inteegsept as provided in the Award
Statement, the Plan or this Agreement or by me&asagiting signed by the Company and the Employésthing in the Award Statement, the
Plan and this Agreement (except as expressly peovilderein) is intended to confer any rights oredims on any persons other than the pa
The Award Statement, the Plan and this Agreementaabe construed in accordance with and govergedebsubstantive laws of the
Commonwealth of Virginia, U.S.A., without givingfe€t to any choice of law rule that would causedhpplication of the laws of any
jurisdiction other than the substantive laws of @@mmonwealth of Virginia to the rights and dutiéthe parties. Unless otherwise provide:
the Award Statement, the Plan or this AgreemeptBimployee is deemed to submit to the exclusiviediation of the Commonwealth of
Virginia, U.S.A., and agrees that such litigatidvals be conducted in the courts of Henrico CouNfiyginia, or the federal courts for the United
States for the Eastern District of Virginia. Thigr@ement shall be interpreted and construed inrmerahat avoids the imposition of taxes anc
other penalties under Section 409A of the Codapjfflicable. Notwithstanding the foregoing, undeicitoumstances shall any member of the
Mondekz Group be responsible for any taxes, penalti¢éstdst or other losses or expenses incurred biif@oyee due to any failure to
comply with Section 409A of the Code.

21. MiscellaneousIn the event of any merger, share exchange, aagtion, consolidation, recapitalization, recifsstion,
distribution, stock dividend, stock split, revesteck split, split-up, spin-off, issuance of rigbtswarrants or other similar transaction or event
affecting the Common Stock after the date of thiar® the Board of Directors of the Company or@uwenmittee shall make adjustments to the
number and kind of shares of Common Stock subgetttis Grant, including, but not limited to, thebstitution of equity interests in other
entities involved in such transactions, to proviillecash payments in lieu of Deferred Stock Urars] to determine whether continued
employment with any entity resulting from suchangaction will or will not be treated as contingsdployment with any member of the
Mondekz Group, in each case subject to any Board of Bire@r Committee action specifically addressing such adjustments, cash
payments, or continued employment treatment.

For purposes of this Agreement, (a) the term “ Bilig " means permanent and total disability as deterchimeder procedures
established by the Company for purposes of the, Rlaoh (b) the term “ Normal Retiremémneans retirement from active employment, in
circumstances that constitute a “separation fromice® for purposes of Section 409A of the Codejema pension plan of the Monazl
Group, an employment contract with any member efMtondetz Group or a local labor
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contract, on or after the date specified as thenabretirement age in the pension plan, employroentract or local contract, if any, under
which the Employee is at that time accruing pensienefits for his or her current service (or, ia #bsence of a specified normal retirement
age, the age at which pension benefits under slachap contract become payable without reductiarefoly commencement and without any
requirement of a particular period of prior seryida any case in which the meaning of “Normal Ratient” is uncertain under the definition
contained in the prior sentence, an Employee’sitation shall be treated as Normal Retirement atbmmittee, in its sole discretion, deems
equivalent to retirement. For purposes of this &grent, (x) a “ subsidiaryincludes only any company in which the applicabiity, directly

or indirectly, has a beneficial ownership interafstjreater than 50 percent and (y) an “ affiliatecludes only any company that (A) has a
beneficial ownership interest, directly or indillgcin the applicable entity of greater than 50geet or (B) is under common control with the
applicable entity through a parent company thagatlly or indirectly, has a beneficial ownershifemest of greater than 50 percent in both the
applicable entity and the affiliate.

22. Compliance With LawNotwithstanding any other provision of the Plaritos Agreement, unless there is an available @tiem
from any registration, qualification or other legefuirement applicable to the shares of CommonkStbe Company shall not be required to
deliver any Common Stock issuable upon settlemititeoDeferred Stock Units prior to the completa@frany registration or qualification of
the shares of Common Stock under any local, dederal or foreign securities or exchange contral br under rulings or regulations of the
Commission or of any other governmental regulabmgy, or prior to obtaining any approval or othielacance from any local, state, federal ot
foreign governmental agency, which registratiorglification or approval the Company shall, in ibsalute discretion, deem necessary or
advisable. The Employee understands that the Coyripamder no obligation to register or qualify 8teares of Common Stock with the
Commission or any state, provincial or foreign sii®s commission or to seek approval or cleardmm® any governmental authority for the
issuance or sale of the shares of Common Stockhénithe Employee agrees that the Company shadl hiailateral authority to amend the
Plan and the Agreement without the Employee’s aatiteethe extent necessary to comply with secwsritieother laws applicable to the
issuance of shares of Common Stock.

23. Agreement Severahblén the event that any provision in this Agreemeititbe held invalid or unenforceable, such prawswill be
severable from, and such invalidity or unenforchghiill not be construed to have any effect dme remaining provisions of this Agreement.

24. Headings Headings of paragraphs and sections used id\grsement are for convenience only and are notqdahis Agreement,
and must not be used in construing it.

25. Imposition of Other Requirement¥he Company reserves the right to impose ottirirements on the Employee’s participation in
the Plan, on the Deferred Stock Units and on aayeshof Common Stock acquired under the Plan g@xitent the Company determines it is
necessary or advisable for legal or administratdasons and to require the Employee to sign aniada agreements or undertakings that
may be necessary to accomplish the foregoing.

26. Insider Trading/Market Abuse Law$he Employee acknowledges that the Employeeliesuto insider trading and/or market abuse
laws, which affect the Employee’s ability to acgquar sell shares of Common Stock under the Plaimglsuch times as the Employee is
considered to have “material nonpublic information™inside information” (as defined by the lawstivre Employee’s country). The Employee
also acknowledges that the Employee is subjetted@ompanys insider trading policy, and the requirementspgflizable laws may or may r
be consistent with the terms of the Company’s istchding policy. The Employee acknowledges thatliis or her responsibility to be

informed of and compliant with any such laws, antiéreby advised to speak to his or her personéa@don this matter.
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27. Appendix Notwithstanding any provisions in this Agreemehg Deferred Stock Units shall be subject to grecil terms set forth
in the Appendix to this Agreement for Employee’siatsy. Moreover, if Employee relocates to one & tountries included in the Appendix,
the special terms for such country will apply to [foyee, to the extent the Company determines kieaapplication of such terms is necessary
or advisable for legal or administrative reasorfee Appendix constitutes part of this Agreement.

28. Waiver. The Employee acknowledges that a waiver by thm@2my of a breach of any provision of this Agreetrstrall not operate
or be construed as a waiver of any other provisiothis Agreement or of any subsequent breach &yEthployee or any other participant of
Plan.

29. Conformity to Securities LawsThe Employee acknowledges that the Award StaterttemPlan and this Agreement are intended to
conform to the extent necessary with all provisiohthe Securities Act and the Exchange Act, andaard all regulations and rules
promulgated thereunder by the Commission, includivithout limitation, Rule 168 under the Exchange Act. Notwithstanding anyttiacgir
to the contrary, the Award Statement, the PlanthisdAgreement shall be administered, and the Gsamiade, only in such a manner as to
conform to such laws, rules and regulations. Tcetktent permitted by applicable law, the Award &tant, the Plan and this Agreement shall
be deemed amended to the extent necessary to notdauch laws, rules and regulations.
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*kk

The Employee acknowledges that the Employee has rewed the Plan, the Award Statement and this Agreeemt (including any
appendices hereto) in their entirety and fully undestands their respective provisions. The Employeegaees to accept as binding,
conclusive and final all decisions or interpretatios of the Committee upon any questions arising undé¢he Plan, the Award Statement
or this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been dubycexed as of the Grant Date.
MONDELEZ INTERNATIONAL, INC.

s/ Carol J. Ward

Carol J. Warc
Vice President and Corporate Secre’
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Exhibit 10.¢

MONDEL EZ INTERNATIONAL, INC.
AMENDED AND RESTATED 2005 PERFORMANCE INCENTIVE PLA N
(Amended and Restated as of May 21, 2014)

NON-QUALIFIED U.S. STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT

MONDELEZ INTERNATIONAL, INC., a Virginia corporation (the Company”), hereby grants to the employee (the “ Optiotee
identified in the award statement provided to thi@hee (the * Award Statemetftunder the Mondelz International, Inc. Amended and
Restated 2005 Performance Incentive Plan, as arddrata time to time (the “ Plaf) non-qualified stock options (the * Optidh The Option
entitles the Optionee to exercise options for uheoaggregate number of shares set forth in tharé\8tatement (the_* Option Shafgef the
Company’s Common Stock, at the price per sharfogétin the Award Statement (the “ Grant PriyeCapitalized terms not otherwise defir
in this Non-Qualified U.S. Stock Option Agreemethie(“ Agreement) shall have the meaning set forth in the Plan.réflerences to action of
or approval by the Committee shall be deemed tludiecaction of or approval by any other persordsylhom the Committee has delegated
authority to act. The Option is subject to thedwling terms and conditions:

The Optionee must execute and deliver or electroradly accept the terms set forth in this Agreementin the manner and within a
period specified by the Committee. The Committee ma in its sole discretion, cancel the Option if th®©ptionee fails to execute and
deliver or electronically accept this Agreement andelated documents within the specified period.

1. Vesting. Prior to the satisfaction of the vesting requieans (“_Vesting Requirementsset forth in a schedule to the Award Statement
(the “ Schedulg), the Option may not be exercised except as piexvin paragraph 3 below.

2. Vesting Upon Termination of Employmenh the event of the termination of the Optionesigployment with the Mond&t Group
prior to satisfaction of the Vesting Requiremerttgeo than by reason of Early Retirement (as deflmeldw in paragraph 14) occurring after
December 31 of the same year as the date of gr@raft Date’) of the Option, Normal Retirement (as defineddyein paragraph 14), death
or Disability (as defined below in paragraph 14)as otherwise determined by the Committee, thiso@shall not be exercisable. If death or
Disability of the Optionee occurs prior to satigfae of the Vesting Requirements, this Option shaltome immediately exercisable for 100%
of the Option Shares set forth in the Award Stat@méthe Optionee’s employment with the MorgeGroup is terminated by reason of
Normal Retirement, or by Early Retirement occurritfiger December 31 of the same year as the Graetdahe Option, the Option shi
continue to become exercisable as set forth ostiedule as if such Optionee’s employment hademptibated.

3. Exercisability Upon Termination of Employmentrin the Mondedz Group. During the period commencing on the first dat the
Vesting Requirements are satisfied (or, such eathiée determined in accordance with paragrapm@)and including the expiration date set
forth in the Schedule (“ Expiration Datg this Option may be exercised in whole or intpaith respect to such Option Shares, subjectéo th
following provisions:

(a) In the event that the Optionee’s employmektgiisinated by reason of Early Retirement occurafigr December 31 of the
same year as the Grant Date of the Option, Norratitétnent, death or Disability, such Option mayelercised on or prior to the Expiration
Date;

(b) If employment is terminated by the Optionedéotthan by Early Retirement occurring after Decen8i of the same year as
the Grant Date of the Option, death, DisabilityNmrmal Retirement), such Option may be exercise@foeriod of 30 days from the effective
date of termination



(c) If, other than by death, Disability, Normal Reinent or Early Retirement occurring after Decenfeof the same year as the
Grant Date of the Option, the Optionee’s employnigitérminated by the Mondi Group without Cause for any reason or in the egéany
other termination of employment caused directlyndirectly by the Mondekz Group, such Option may be exercised for a pesfdt?2 months
following such termination; and

(d) If the Optionee’s employment is involuntarilyspended or terminated by the Morg@eGroup for Cause, the Option shall be
forfeited.

No provision of this paragraph 3 shall permit tiereise of any Option after the Expiration Dater porposes of this Agreement, t

Optionee’s employment shall be deemed to be tetednahen he or she is no longer actively employethb Mondeiz Group (regardless of
the reason for such termination and whether otatet found to be invalid or in breach of employmikemvs in the jurisdiction where the
Optionee is employed or the terms of the Optioneaiployment agreement, if any). The Optionee stalbe considered actively employed
during any period for which he or she is receivingis eligible to receive, salary continuationfio® period or garden leave payments, or othe
comparable benefits under the MoreteGlobal LLC Severance Pay Plan for Salaried Exdemgployees, or any similar plan maintained by
MondeEz Group or through other such arrangements thathbeagntered into that give rise to separation ¢iceg@ay, except in any case in
which the Optionee is eligible for Normal RetirerhenEarly Retirement upon the expiration of saleontinuation or other benefits. The
Committee shall have the exclusive discretion teeine when the Optionee is no longer actively leygd for purposes of the Option. Unl
otherwise determined by the Committee, leaves séiate shall not constitute a termination of empleytnior purposes of this Agreement.
Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions and unietberwise determined by the Company, this Optiay only be exercised on a day that
NASDAQ Global Select Market (tF* Exchang€’) is open. Accordingly, if the Expiration Dateasday the Exchange is closed, the Expiration
Date shall be the immediately preceding day on thie Exchange is open.

4. Exercise of Option and Withholding TaxeBhis Option may be exercised only in accordanite the procedures and limitations set
forth in the Company’s Equity Awards Plan Guideaasended from time to time, or such other simijgietcommunication provided by the
Company (the “ Methods of Exerci®e

The Optionee acknowledges that, regardless of etigretaken by the Company or, if different, theti®pee’s employer (the * Employer
"), the ultimate liability for all income tax, sadiinsurance, payroll tax, fringe benefits tax, payt on account or other taglated items relate
to the Optionee participation in the Plan and legally applicaléhe Optionee or deemed by the Company or thel@mp in their discretior
to be an appropriate charge to the Optionee eviegddly applicable to the Company or the Emplayérax-Related Item$), is and remains
the Optionee’s responsibility and may exceed thewarnactually withheld by the Company or the Employrhe Optionee further
acknowledges that the Company and/or the Empl@)an@ke no representations or undertakings regattmtreatment of any Tax-Related
Items in connection with any aspect of the Optinoluding the grant, vesting or exercise of thei@ptthe subsequent sale of Option Shares
acquired pursuant to such exercise and the reskipty dividends; and (b) do not commit to andwarder no obligation to structure the terms
of the grant or any aspect of the Option to rechrogliminate the Optionee’s liability for Tax-ReggtItems or achieve any particular tax result.
Further, if the Optionee becomes subject to anyRabated Items in more than one jurisdiction (indhg jurisdictions outside the United
States) between the Grant Date and the date afedenyant taxable event, the Optionee acknowledgssthie Company and/or the Employer
former employer, as applicable) may be requireditbhold or account for (including report) Tax-Rigd Items in more than one jurisdiction.
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The Optionee acknowledges and agrees that the Gongball not be required to deliver the Option $karpon any exercise of this
Option unless it has received payment in a fornepiable to the Company for all applicable Tax-Reldtems, as well as amounts due to the
Company as “theoretical taxes” pursuant to the-themnent international assignment and tax and/oiasmsurance equalization policies and
procedures of the Mondia Group, or arrangements satisfactory to the Comparthe payment thereof have been made.

In this regard, the Optionee authorizes the Companayor the Employer, in their sole discretion aritthout any notice or further
authorization by the Optionee, to withhold all dapable Tax-Related Items legally due by the Optéo(@ otherwise due from the Optionee as
set forth above in this paragraph 4) and any thealdaxes from the Optioneeivages or other cash compensation paid by the Gayrgnd/o
the Employer or from proceeds of the sale of Op8bares. Alternatively, or in addition, the Compamgy instruct the broker it has selected
for this purpose (on the Optionee’s behalf andhat@ptionee’s direction pursuant to this authormatvithout further consent) to sell the
Option Shares that the Optionee acquires to meetdl-Related Items withholding obligation and émgoretical taxes. In addition, unless
otherwise determined by the Committee, Tax-Relétds or theoretical taxes may be paid with outditegnshares of the CompasyCommor
Stock, such shares to be valued at Fair Marketé/atuthe exercise date. Finally, the Optionee ag@eay to the Company or the Employer
any amount of Tax-Related Items and theoreticalgdkat the Company or the Employer may be requir@dthhold as a result of the
Optionee’s participation in the Plan or the Optiwsa=xercise of the Option that cannot be satidiiethe means previously described.

To avoid any negative accounting treatment or fr @her reason, the Company may withhold or accfarirax-Related Items or
theoretical taxes by considering applicable minimaiaiutory withholding amounts or other applicallghholding rates.

5. CashOut of Option. The Committee may elect to cash out all or aipomf the Option to be exercised pursuant to amyhdd of
Exercise by paying the Optionee an amount in cagommon Stock, or both, equal to the Fair Markelié of such shares on the exercise
date less the Grant Price for such shares.

6. Restrictions and Covenants

(a) In addition to such other conditions as magstablished by the Company or the Committee, isic@nation for making a Grant
under the terms of the Plan, the Optionee agregs@renants as follows for a period of twelve (@®)nths following the date of Optionee’s
termination of employment from the Mond&elGroup:

1. to protect the Mondét Group’s legitimate business interests in its m@rftial information, trade secrets and goodwilid a
to enable the Mondéz Group’s ability to reserve these for the excladgimowledge and use of the Morgeroup, which i
of great competitive importance and commercial @atuthe Mondekz Group, the Optionee, without the express written
permission of the Executive Vice President of HurR&sources of the Company, will not engage in amgact in which
Optionee contributes his/her knowledge and sldilgctly or indirectly, in whole or in part, as arecutive, employer,
employee, owner, operator, manager, advisor, ctardubgent, partner, director, stockholder, offi#elunteer, intern or ar
other similar capacity to a competitor or to aritgrengaged in the same or similar business aMredeEz Group,
including those engaged in the business of prodngcsiale or marketing of snack foods (including, it limited to gum,
chocolate, confectionary products, biscuits or atfyer product or service Optionee has reason tavkres been under
development by the Mond Group during Optionee’s employment with the Mdadéroup). Optionee will not engage in
any activity that may require or inevitably requidptionee’s use or disclosure of the Mordebroup’s confidential
information, proprietary information and/or tradeeets;
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2. to protect the Mondez Group’s investment in its employees and to enthedong-term success of the business, Optionee
without the express written permission of the Exieewice President of Human Resources of the Cawpaill not
directly or indirectly solicit, hire, recruit, attet to hire or recruit, or induce the terminatidremployment of any employee
of the Mondegz Group; anc

3. to protect the Mondez Group’s investment in its development of good wiild customers and to ensure the long-term
success of the business, Optionee will not diremtlyndirectly solicit (including, but not limitetb, e-mail, regular mail,
express mail, telephone, fax, instant message B®&it8xt messaging) or attempt to directly or indilesolicit, contact or
meet with the current or prospective customerhi@efMondeéz Group or any of its affiliates for the purposeoéfering or
accepting goods or services similar to or competitvith those offered by the Moniéz Group.

The provisions contained herein in paragraph aten lieu of, but are in addition to the contingiobligation of the Optionee (which
Optionee acknowledges by accepting any Grant uth@elPlan) to not use or disclose the Moad&roup’s trade secrets or Confidential
Information known to the Optionee until any partaourade secret or Confidential Information becergenerally known (through no fault of
the Optionee), whereupon the restriction on usedistdosure shall cease as to that item. For peposthis agreement, * Confidential
Information” includes, but is not limited to, certain salesrketing, strategy, financial, product, personmenufacturing, technical and other
proprietary information and material which are phieperty of the Mondék Group. Optionee understands that this list issxbaustive, and
that Confidential Information also includes othafiormation that is marked or otherwise identifisdcanfidential or proprietary, or that would
otherwise appear to a reasonable person to bedemnital or proprietary in the context and circumsts in which the information is known or
used.

(b) A main purpose of the Plan is to strengtherafignment of long-term interests between Optioraesthe Mondek Group by
providing an ownership interest in the Company, tangrevent former employees whose interests be@aiverse to the Company from
maintaining that ownership interest. By acceptasfany Grant (including the Option) under the Plue, Optionee acknowledges and agrees
that if the Optionee breaches any of the coverseitforth in paragraph 6(a):

1. all unvested Grants (including any unvested portibthe Option) shall be immediately forfeite

2. the Company may cancel, rescind, suspend, withdraotherwise limit or restrict any unexpiredsted, unpaid or deferred
Grants (including the vested but unexercised pomitthe Option) at any time if Optionee is notompliance with all termr
and conditions set forth in the Plan including, bat limited to, paragraph 6(c

3. the Optionee shall repay to the Mordebroup the net proceeds of any exercise or Plasfli¢hat occurs at any time after
the earlier of the following two dates: (i) the éaivelve months immediately preceding any suchatioh; or (ii) the date si
(6) months prior to the Optionee’s termination wipgoyment with the Mondez Group. The Optionee shall repay to the
MondeEz Group the net proceeds in such a manner andaintstms and conditions as may be required by theddEz
Group, and the Mondegt Group shall be entitled to set-off against th@am of any such net proceeds any amount owed tt
the Optionee by the Mondel Group, to the extent that such eéftis not inconsistent with Section 409A of thedewr othe
applicable law. For purposes of this paragraphprmateeds shall mean the difference between thenfaiket value of the
shares of Common Stock and the Grant Price les3ax-Related Items; an
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4, the Mondedz Group shall be entitled to seek, in additiontteeo available remedies, a temporary or permamgumigtion or
other equitable relief against such breach or thresl breach from any court of competent jurisdictivithout the necessity
of showing any actual damages or that money damagekl not afford an adequate remedy, and withb@intecessity of
posting any bond or other security as Optionee awsladges that such breach would cause the Ménd&ioup to suffer
irreparable harm. The aforementioned equitablefrghiall be in addition to, not in lieu of, legahmedies, monetary damag
or other available forms of relie

(c) If any provision contained in this paragrapsh@ll for any reason, whether by application okgng law or law which may develop
after Optionee’s acceptance of a Grant under the B¢ determined by a court of competent jurisaolicto be overly broad as to scope of
activity, duration or territory, the Optionee ags¢e join the Mondek Group in requesting such court to construe suohigion by limiting or
reducing it so as to be enforceable to the extemipatible with then applicable law.

7. Clawback Policy/ForfeitureThe Optionee understands and agrees that indheritee’s sole discretion, the Company may caaltel
or part of the Option or require repayment by thti@ee to the Company of all or part of any caaynpent or shares of Common Stock
acquired at exercise pursuant to any recoveryuggoent, clawback and/or other forfeiture policy mained by the Company, including a
violation of paragraph 6 above, from time to tinreaddition, any payments or benefits the Optiomeg receive hereunder shall be subject to
repayment or forfeiture as may be required to cgmagth the requirements under the U.S. Securitiesdk 1933, as amended (the * Securities
Act "), the Exchange Act, rules promulgated by the Cagsion or any other applicable law, including tequirements of the Dodeérank Wal
Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, or @oysties exchange on which the Common Stock tiedisr traded, as may be in effect fi
time to time.

8. Transfer RestrictionsUnless otherwise required by law, this Optionas transferable or assignable by the Optione@ynnaanner
other than by will or the laws of descent and dsition and is exercisable during the Optionedtiline only by the Optionee.

9. Adjustments In the event of any merger, share exchange, aaizgtion, consolidation, recapitalization, recifisation, distribution,
stock dividend, stock split, reverse stock sppititsup, spin-off, issuance of rights or warrantsother similar transaction or event affecting the
Common Stock after the Grant Date, the Board oé®aors of the Company or the Committee shall maleséments to the terms and
provisions of this Grant (including, without limitj the generality of the foregoing, terms and miovis relating to the Grant Price and the
number and kind of shares subject to this Optisri} deems appropriate including, but not limitedthe substitution of equity interests in of
entities involved in such transactions, to provillecash payments in lieu of the Option, and tedatne whether continued employment with
any entity resulting from such transaction or eweititor will not be treated as a continued emplayrhwith the Mondekz Group, in each case,
subject to any Board of Director or Committee atpecifically addressing any such adjustments$y pagments or continued employment
treatment.

10. Successors and Assigri&henever the word “Optioneé&s used herein under circumstances such that thesgsn should logically k
construed to apply to the executors, the admingsaor the person or persons to whom this Optiay be transferred pursuant to this
Agreement, it shall be deemed to include such pess@ersons. The Company may assign any of itdgignder this Agreement to single or
multiple assignees, and this Agreement shall bdibgiupon and inure to the benefit of any successpassigns of the Company and any
person or persons who shall acquire any rightsumeler in accordance with this Agreement, the Awatatement or the Plan.
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11. Entire Agreement; Governing Lawhe Award Statement, the Plan and this Agreemmemstitute the entire agreement of the parties
with respect to the subject matter hereof and saplerin their entirety all prior undertakings agdeaments of the Company and the Optionee
with respect to the subject matter hereof, and nmype modified adversely to the Optionee’s inteegsept as provided in the Award
Statement, the Plan or this Agreement or by me&asagiting signed by the Company and the Optiomdathing in the Award Statement, the
Plan and this Agreement (except as expressly peoviderein) is intended to confer any rights oredi®ms on any persons other than the pa
The Award Statement, the Plan and this Agreementaabe construed in accordance with and govergedebsubstantive laws of the
Commonwealth of Virginia, U.S.A., without givingfe€t to any choice of law rule that would causedhpplication of the laws of any
jurisdiction other than the substantive laws of @@mmonwealth of Virginia to the rights and dutiéthe parties. Unless otherwise provide:
the Award Statement, the Plan or this AgreemertQhtionee is deemed to submit to the exclusivedigtion of the Commonwealth of
Virginia, U.S.A., and agrees that such litigatidvals be conducted in the courts of Henrico CouNfyginia, or the federal courts for the United
States for the Eastern District of Virginia.

12. Grant Confers No Rights to Continued Employmertlature of the GrantNothing contained in the Plan or this Agreeméuatlls
give any employee the right to be retained in tin@leyment of any member of the MonéelGroup, affect the right of any such employer to
terminate any employee, or be interpreted as fagramemployment or service contract with any menatbéne Mondedz Group. The adoptic
and maintenance of the Plan shall not constitutedmncement to, or condition of, the employmenany employee. Further, the Optionee
acknowledges, understands and agrees that:

(a) the Plan is established voluntarily by the Camy it is discretionary in nature and it may bedified, amended, suspended or
terminated by the Company at any time, to the éxemmitted by the Plan;

(b) the grant of the Option is voluntary and ocoaal and does not create any contractual or ottjlet to receive future grants of
options, or benefits in lieu of options, even itiops have been granted in the past;

(c) all decisions with respect to future optiorotiier Grants, if any, will be at the sole discretod the Committee;

(d) the Optionee is voluntarily participating iretRlan;

(e) the Option and the Option Shares subject t@fhEon are not intended to replace any pensidntsigr compensation;

(f) the Option and the Option Shares subject taddp#on and the income and the value of same arparbof normal or expected
compensation or salary for purposes of calculatimg severance, resignation, termination, redundatisgnissal, end-of-service payments,
bonuses, long-service awards, pension, retirenranetfare benefits or similar payments;

(g9) the future value of the underlying shares ofm@wn Stock is unknown, indeterminable and canngirbdicted with certainty;

(h) if the underlying shares of Common Stock doinotease in value, the Option will have no value;

(i) if the Optionee exercises the Option and olstainares of Common Stock, the value of those slsfi@smmon Stock acquired
upon exercise may increase or decrease in valee, le®low the Grant Price;

6



(j) no claim or entitlement to compensation or dgegshall arise from forfeiture of the Option réisgl from the termination of the
Optionee’s employment or other service relationdlyiphe Company or the Employer, and in considemnadf the grant of the Option to which
the Optionee is otherwise not entitled, the Optomeevocably agrees never to institute any clagairast the Mondék Group, waives his or
her ability, if any, to bring any such claim, amdeases the Mondid Group from any such claims. If, notwithstandihg foregoing, any such
claim is allowed by a court of competent jurisdiatj then, by participating in the Plan, the Opt®shall be deemed irrevocably to have agree
not to pursue such claim and agrees to executarmohyll documents necessary to request dismissuatludrawal of such claim;

(k) the Optionee is hereby advised to consult WithOptionee’s own personal tax, legal and findradaisors regarding the
Optionee’s participation in the Plan before takémy action related to the Plan and that the Comgangt providing any tax, legal or financial
advice, nor is the Company making any recommendatiegarding the Optionee’s participation in thenPbr the Optionee’s acquisition or
sale of the underlying shares of Common Stock;

() the Option is designated as not constitutingren@ntive Stock Option; this Agreement shall belipreted and treated consiste
with such designation; and

(m) unless otherwise provided in the Plan or byGbenpany in its discretion, the Option and the fienevidenced by this
Agreement do not create any entitlement to havéibtgon or any such benefits transferred to, ouarel by, another company nor to be
exchanged, cashed out or substituted for, in cdiorewith any corporate transaction affecting th@r@any’s Common Stock.

13. Interpretation The terms and provisions of the Plan (a copy littvwill be made available online or furnishedhe Optionee upon
written request to the Office of the Corporate 8toy, Mondedz International, Inc., Three Parkway North, Dedédfjdllinois 60015) are
incorporated herein by reference. To the extentpaayision in the Award Statement or this Agreenisnibconsistent or in conflict with any
term or provision of the Plan, the Plan shall gav@he Committee shall have the right to resolVegadstions that may arise in connection \
the Grant or this Agreement, including whether guti@ee is no longer actively employed and anyrpritation, determination or other action
made or taken by the Committee regarding the Plahi® Agreement shall be final, binding and cosala.

14. Miscellaneous DefinitionsFor the purposes of this Agreement, the termsability ” means permanent and total disability as
determined under the procedures established bgahgpany for purposes of the Plan and the term ‘hidbiRetirement means retirement
from active employment under a pension plan oMoadekz Group, an employment contract with any membehefMondetz Group or a
local labor contract, on or after the date spedifis normal retirement age in the pension planj@mpgent contract or local contract, if any,
under which the Optionee is at that time accruieggion benefits for his or her current service ifothe absence of a specified normal
retirement age, the age at which pension benefigiusuch plan or contract become payable withediation for early commencement and
without any requirement of a particular period abpservice. In any case in which the meaningdéfmal Retirement” is uncertain under the
definition contained in the prior sentence, an @pae’s termination shall be treated as Normal Beiant as the Committee, in its sole
discretion, deems equivalent to retirement. Forptmposes of this Agreement, “ Early Retirememteans retirement from active employment
other than Normal Retirement, as determined byCthmmittee, in its sole discretion.

15. Compliance With LawNotwithstanding any other provision of the Plarttos Agreement, unless there is an available gtiem
from any registration, qualification or other legefiuirement applicable to the shares of CommonkSthe Company shall not be required to
deliver any Option Shares issuable upon exercisleso©ption prior to the completion of any registma or qualification of the Option Shares
under any local, state, federal or foreign se@sitir exchange control
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law or under rulings or regulations of the Comnuasdr of any other governmental regulatory bodyprior to obtaining any approval or other
clearance from any local, state, federal or forgigmernmental agency, which registration, qualtf@aor approval the Company shall, in its
absolute discretion, deem necessary or advisahke Optionee understands that the Company is urcdebligation to register or qualify the
Option Shares with the Commission or any stat®@i@in securities commission or to seek approvalearance from any governmental
authority for the issuance or sale of the shareghEr, the Optionee agrees that the Company khadl unilateral authority to amend the Plan
and the Agreement without the Optionee’s consettig@xtent necessary to comply with securitiestier laws applicable to the issuance of
shares of Common Stock.

16. Notices Any notice required or permitted hereunder shal(i) given in writing and shall be deemed effesly given upon personal
delivery, upon deposit for delivery by an interpatilly recognized express mail courier servicepmrudeposit in the United States mail by
certified mail (if the parties are within the UrnidtStates), with postage and fees prepaid, addréssbd other party at its address as shown in
these instruments, or to such other address aspsutshmay designate in writing from time to tineethe other party or (ii) delivered
electronically through the Company’s electronic lnsgstem (including any notices delivered by ad¥party) and shall be deemed effectively
given upon such delivery. Any documents requirede@iven or delivered to the Optionee relatecutoent or future participation in the Plan
may also be delivered through electronic meanseasribed in paragraph 17 below.

17. Electronic Delivery and Acceptanc&he Company may, in its sole discretion, dectdddliver any documents related to current or
future participation in the Plan by electronic meahhe Optionee hereby consents to receive sualmtkrats by electronic delivery and agrees
to participate in the Plan through any on-line lectonic system established and maintained byCttrapany or a third party designated by the
Company.

18. Agreement Severabl@he provisions of this Agreement are severabteibany one or more provisions are determinedetdlbgal o
otherwise unenforceable, in whole or in part, #gmaining provisions shall nevertheless be bindimdjenforceable.

19. Headings Headings of paragraphs and sections used iAtiisement are for convenience only and are notgdattis Agreement,
and must not be used in construing it.

20. Imposition of Other Requirement¥he Company reserves the right to impose othggrirements on the Optionee’s participation in
the Plan, on the Option and on any shares of Confehack acquired under the Plan, to the extent hragany determines it is necessary or
advisable for legal or administrative reasons, anequire the Optionee to sign any additional egrents or undertakings that may be
necessary to accomplish the foregoing.

21. Insider Trading/Market Abuse Law$he Optionee acknowledges that the Optioneebstto insider trading and/or market abuse
laws, which affect the Optionee’s ability to acguar sell shares of Common Stock under the Plaimglsuch times as the Optionee is
considered to have “material nonpublic information™inside information” (as defined by the lawstive Optionee’s country). The Optionee
also acknowledges that the Optionee is subjettedCompany’s insider trading policy, and the regmients of applicable laws may or may not
be consistent with the terms of the Company’s stchding policy. The Optionee acknowledges thistliis or her responsibility to be

informed of and compliant with any such laws, antereby advised to speak to his or her personé@don this matter.

22. Appendix Notwithstanding any provisions in this Agreeméfithe Optionee relocates to one of the couninekided in Appendix /
to the Company’s Non-Qualified Non-U.S. Stock Optigreement, the special terms for such countryapiply to the Optionee, to the extent
the Company determines that the application of $eehs is necessary or advisable for legal or athtnéttive reasons, and the Appendix will
constitute part of this Agreement.



23. Waiver. The Optionee acknowledges that a waiver by thmg2my of a breach of any provision of this Agreetrsrall not operate «
be construed as a waiver of any other provisiathigf Agreement or of any subsequent breach by fit@ee or any other participant of the
Plan.

24. Conformity to Securities LawsThe Optionee acknowledges that the Award StatgrttemPlan and this Agreement are intended to
conform to the extent necessary with all provisiohthe Securities Act and the Exchange Act, andaamd all regulations and rules
promulgated thereunder by the Commission, includivithout limitation, Rule 168 under the Exchange Act. Notwithstanding anyttiacgir
to the contrary, the Award Statement, the PlanthisdAgreement shall be administered, and the @psigranted, only in such a manner as to
conform to such laws, rules and regulations. Toetktent permitted by applicable law, the Award &tagnt, the Plan and this Agreement shall
be deemed amended to the extent necessary to notdauch laws, rules and regulations.
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*kk

The Optionee acknowledges that the Optionee has liewed the Plan, the Award Statement and this Agreeamt (including any
appendices hereto) in their entirety and fully undestands their respective provisions. The Optioneegaees to accept as binding,
conclusive and final all decisions or interpretatios of the Committee upon any questions arising undé¢he Plan, the Award Statement

or this Agreement.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been execaseof the Grant Date.

MONDELEZ INTERNATIONAL, INC.

/s/ Carol J. Wart

Carol J. Warc
Vice President and Corporate Secre’
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Exhibit 10.1(

MONDEL EZ INTERNATIONAL, INC.
AMENDED AND RESTATED 2005 PERFORMANCE INCENTIVE PLA N
(Amended and Restated as of May 21, 2014)

NON-QUALIFIED NON-U.S. STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT

MONDELEZ INTERNATIONAL, INC., a Virginia corporation (the Company”), hereby grants to the employee (the “ Optiotee
identified in the award statement provided to thi@hee (the * Award Statemetftunder the Mondelz International, Inc. Amended and
Restated 2005 Performance Incentive Plan, as arddrata time to time (the “ Plaf) non-qualified stock options (the * Optidh The Option
entitles the Optionee to exercise options for uheoaggregate number of shares set forth in tharé\8tatement (the_* Option Shafgef the
Company’s Common Stock, at the price per sharfogétin the Award Statement (the “ Grant PriyeCapitalized terms not otherwise defir
in this Non-Qualified Non-U.S. Stock Option Agreemé&he “ Agreement) shall have the meaning set forth in the Plari.réferences to
action of or approval by the Committee shall bendeg to include action of or approval by any othenspn(s) to whom the Committee has
delegated authority to act.

The Option is subject to the following terms andditions (including the country-specific terms &®th in Appendix A to the
Agreement):

The Optionee must execute and deliver or electroradly accept the terms set forth in this Agreementin the manner and within a
period specified by the Committee. The Committee ma in its sole discretion, cancel the Option if th®©ptionee fails to execute and
deliver or electronically accept this Agreement andelated documents within the specified period.

1. Vesting. Prior to the satisfaction of the vesting requiesits (“_Vesting Requirementsset forth in the schedule to the Award
Statement (the “ Schedulg the Option may not be exercised except as piexvin paragraph 3 below.

2. Vesting Upon Termination of Employmenrih the event of the termination of the Optionesisployment with the Mondét Group
prior to satisfaction of the Vesting Requiremerttgeo than by reason of Early Retirement (as deflmeldw in paragraph 15) occurring after
December 31 of the same year as the date of gr@raft Date”) of the Option, Normal Retirement (as defineddvein paragraph 15), death
or Disability (as defined below in paragraph 15)as otherwise determined by the Committee, thiso@shall not be exercisable. If death or
Disability of the Optionee occurs prior to satigfae of the Vesting Requirements, this Option shaltome immediately exercisable for 100%
of the Option Shares set forth in the Award Stat@méthe Optionee’s employment with the MorgeGroup is terminated by reason of
Normal Retirement, or by Early Retirement occurrafiggr December 31 of the same year as the Grawtdahe Option, the Optic
shall continue to become exercisable as set fartthe Schedule as if such Optionee’s employmennioaterminated.

3. Exercisability Upon Termination of Employmentrin the Mondedz Group. During the period commencing on the first datd the
Vesting Requirements are satisfied (or, such eathiée determined in accordance with paragrapm@)and including the expiration date set
forth in the Schedule (“ Expiration Datg this Option may be exercised in whole or intpaith respect to such Option Shares, subjectéo th
following provisions:

(a) In the event that the Optionee’s employmetgiisiinated by reason of Early Retirement occurdfigr December 31 of the
same year as the Grant Date of the Option, Normatitétnent, death or Disability, such Option mayelercised on or prior to the Expiration
Date;



(b) If employment is terminated by the Optionedéotthan by Early Retirement occurring after Decen8i of the same year as
the Grant Date of the Option, death, DisabilityNmrmal Retirement), such Option may be exercisedfoeriod of 30 days from the effective
date of termination;

(c) If, other than by death, Disability, Normal Rement or Early Retirement occurring after Decengfeof the same year as the
Grant Date of the Option, the Optionee’s employnigitérminated by the Mondi Group without Cause for any reason (even if such
termination constitutes unfair dismissal underah@ployment laws of the country where the Optioresides or if the Optionee’s termination is
later determined to be invalid and/or his or heplryment is reinstated) or in the event of any pteemination of employment caused directly
or indirectly by the Mondeék Group, such Option may be exercised for a pesfdd® months following such termination; and

(d) If the Optionee’s employment is involuntarilyspended or terminated by the MorsdeGroup for Cause, the Option shall be
forfeited.

No provision of this paragraph 3 shall permit tRereise of any Option after the Expiration Dater parposes of this Agreement,
the Optionee’s employment shall be deemed to Ineinated when he or she is no longer actively engaldyy the Mondék Group (regardless
of the reason for such termination and whetherodtater found to be invalid or in breach of empt@nt laws in the jurisdiction where the
Optionee is employed or the terms of the Optionegiployment agreement, if any). The Optionee stailbe considered actively employed
during any period for which he or she is receiviogis eligible to receive, salary continuationtice period or garden leave payments, or othe
comparable benefits or through other such arrangentleat may be entered into that give rise torstjme or notice pay, except in any case in
which the Optionee is eligible for Normal RetirerhenEarly Retirement upon the expiration of saleontinuation or other benefits. The
Committee shall have the exclusive discretion teeine when the Optionee is no longer actively leygd for purposes of the Option. Unl
otherwise determined by the Committee, leaves séiate shall not constitute a termination of empleynfor purposes of this Agreement.
Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions and unieerwise determined by the Company, this Optiay only be exercised on a day that
NASDAQ Global Select Market (tF* Exchang€’) is open. Accordingly, if the Expiration Dateasday the Exchange is closed, the Expiration
Date shall be the immediately preceding day on iie Exchange is open.

4. Exercise of Option and Withholding TaxeEhis Option may be exercised only in accordanitk the procedures and limitations
(including the country-specific terms set forthAippendix A to the Agreement) set forth in the Compga Equity Awards Plan Guide, as
amended from time to time, or such other similgretgommunication provided by the Company (the “lMdb of Exercisé), provided,
however, that unless otherwise permitted by the @omw, the Option may not be exercised by delivethe Company (either actual delivery
or attestation) of previously owned shares of Com&tock.

The Optionee acknowledges that, regardless of etigretaken by the Company or, if different, thetiOpee’s employer (the * Employer
"), the ultimate liability for all income tax, sadiinsurance, payroll tax, fringe benefits tax, payt on account or other tagkated items relate
to the Optionee participation in the Plan and legally applicaléhe Optionee or deemed by the Company or thel@mp in their discretior
to be an appropriate charge to the Optionee evegdldly applicable to the Company or the Empldydrax-Related Item$), is and remains
the Optionee’s responsibility and may exceed thewarhactually withheld by the Company or the Employrhe Optionee further
acknowledges that the Company and/or the Empl@)anéke no representations or undertakings regattsmtreatment of any Tax-Related
Items in connection with any aspect of the Optinoluding the grant, vesting or exercise of thei@ptthe subsequent sale of Option Shares
acquired pursuant to such exercise and the reckaty dividends; and (b) do not commit to andwarder no obligation to structure the terms
of the grant or any aspect of the Option to redwrcgliminate the Optionee’s liability for Tax-
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Related Items or achieve any particular tax reguitther, if the Optionee becomes subject to angRelated Items in more than one
jurisdiction between the Grant Date and the da&ngfrelevant taxable event, the Optionee acknaydedhat the Company and/or

Employer (or former employer, as applicable) maydmpiired to withhold or account for (including cef) Tax-Related Items in more than one
jurisdiction.

The Optionee acknowledges and agrees that the Gongball not be required to deliver the Option $8arpon any exercise of this
Option unless it has received payment in a fornepiable to the Company for all applicable Tax-Regldtems, as well as amounts due to the
Company as “theoretical taxes” pursuant to the-therent international assignment and tax and/olasurance equalization policies and
procedures of the Mond& Group, or arrangements satisfactory to the Comfarthe payment thereof have been made.

In this regard, the Optionee authorizes the Compaamaiyor the Employer, in their sole discretion arithout any notice or further
authorization by the Optionee, to withhold all apable Tax-Related Items legally due by the Opté(@ otherwise due from the Optionee as
set forth above in this paragraph 4) and any thimatd¢axes from the Optioneeivages or other cash compensation paid by the Gwyrgnd/o
the Employer or from proceeds of the sale of Op8bares. Alternatively, or in addition, the Compamgy instruct the broker it has selected
for this purpose (on the Optionee’s behalf andvat@ptionee’s direction pursuant to this authoizatvithout further consent) to sell the
Option Shares that the Optionee acquires to meetdix-Related Items withholding obligation and #mgoretical taxes. In addition, unless
otherwise determined by the Committee, Tax-Rel#tgds or theoretical taxes may be paid by withim@drom Option Shares subject to the
exercised Option, provided, however, that withhaddin Option Shares shall be subject to approvahbyCommittee to the extent deemed
necessary or advisable by counsel to the Compatiedime of any relevant tax withholding evenndtly, the Optionee agrees to pay to the
Company or the Employer any amount of Tax-Relatesh$ and theoretical taxes that the Company oEthployer may be required to
withhold as a result of the Optionee’s participatio the Plan or the Optionee’s exercise of thedpthat cannot be satisfied by the means
previously described.

To avoid any negative accounting treatment or fiyr @her reason, the Company may withhold or accfmrirax-Related Items or
theoretical taxes by considering applicable minimaiaiutory withholding amounts or other applicallthholding rates.

5. CashOut of Option. The Committee may elect to cash out all or aipomf the Option to be exercised pursuant to amyhdd of
Exercise by paying the Optionee an amount in ca€ommmon Stock, or both, equal to the Fair Markealié of such shares on the exercise
date less the Grant Price for such shares.

6. Restrictions and Covenants

(a) In addition to such other conditions as magstablished by the Company or the Committee, isic@nation for making a Grant
under the terms of the Plan, the Optionee agregs@renants as follows for a period of twelve (@®@)nths following the date of Optionee’s
termination of employment from the Mon@&elGroup:

1. to protect the Mondez Group’s legitimate business interests in its wharftial information, trade secrets and goodwilld a
to enable the Mondez Group’s ability to reserve these for the excladimowledge and use of the Mor&eGroup, which it
of great competitive importance and commercial @atuthe Mondekz Group, the Optionee, without the express written
permission of the Executive Vice President of Hut
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Resources of the Company, will not engage in amglaot in which Optionee contributes his/her knowkednd skills,
directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, as erecutive, employer, employee, owner, operator,agan advisor, consultal
agent, partner, director, stockholder, officerwatker, intern or any other similar capacity tmenpetitor or to an entity
engaged in the same or similar business as the dm@roup, including those engaged in the businegsaafuction, sale
or marketing of snack foods (including, but notited to gum, chocolate, confectionary products;uiis or any other
product or service Optionee has reason to knovbbans under development by the Mordebroup during Optionee’s
employment with the Mondez Group). Optionee will not engage in any activitgt may require or inevitably require
Optioner's use or disclosure of the Mongz Grouy's confidential information, proprietary informatiand/or trade secret

2. to protect the Mond&t Group’s investment in its employees and to enthedong-term success of the business, Optionee,
without the express written permission of the Exieewice President of Human Resources of the Cawpaill not
directly or indirectly solicit, hire, recruit, attept to hire or recruit, or induce the terminatidremployment of any employee
of the Mondegz Group; anc

3. to protect the Mond&t Group’s investment in its development of good aiild customers and to ensure the long-term
success of the business, Optionee will not diremtlyndirectly solicit (including, but not limitetb, e-mail, regular mail,
express mail, telephone, fax, instant message B®&it8xt messaging) or attempt to directly or indilesolicit, contact or
meet with the current or prospective customersieMondetz Group for the purpose of offering or acceptingdmpor
services similar to or competitive with those offgiby the Mondiéz Group.

The provisions contained herein in paragraph @ateén lieu of, but are in addition to the contingiobligation of the Optionee (which
Optionee acknowledges by accepting any Grant utha@elPlan) to not use or disclose the Moad&roup’s trade secrets or Confidential
Information known to the Optionee until any partasurade secret or Confidential Information becergenerally known (through no fault of
the Optionee), whereupon the restriction on usediselosure shall cease as to that item. For pegobthis agreement,_* Confidential
Information” includes, but is not limited to, certain salesrketing, strategy, financial, product, personmanufacturing, technical and other
proprietary information and material which are phieperty of the Mondék Group. Optionee understands that this list issxbaustive, and
that Confidential Information also includes othaformation that is marked or otherwise identifisdcanfidential or proprietary, or that would
otherwise appear to a reasonable person to bedewnital or proprietary in the context and circumsts in which the information is known or
used.

(b) A main purpose of the Plan is to strengtherafignment of long-term interests between Optioraesthe Mondek Group by
providing an ownership interest in the Company, @ngrevent former employees whose interests beeawnerse to the Company from
maintaining that ownership interest. By acceptasfa@ny Grant (including the Option) under the Pllue, Optionee acknowledges and agrees
that if the Optionee breaches any of the coversgitforth in paragraph 6(a):

1. all unvested Grants (including any unvested portibtihe Option) shall be immediately forfeite

2. the Company may cancel, rescind, suspend, wihdraotherwise limit or restrict any unexpiredsted, unpaid or deferred
Grants (including the vested but unexercised pomitthe Option) at any time if Optionee is notompliance with all termr
and conditions set forth in the Plan including, bot limited to, paragraph 6(¢
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3. the Optionee shall repay to the Mordebroup the net proceeds of any exercise or Plaafli¢hat occurs at any time after
the earlier of the following two dates: (i) the éaivelve months immediately preceding any suchatioh; or (ii) the date si
(6) months prior to the Optionee’s termination ofgoyment with the Mondéek Group. The Optionee shall repay to the
MondeEz Group the net proceeds in such a manner andaintstms and conditions as may be required by theddEz
Group, and the Mondegt Group shall be entitled to set-off against th@am of any such net proceeds any amount owed tt
the Optionee by the Mond&l Group, to the extent that such séftis not inconsistent with Section 409A of thed@oor othe
applicable law. For purposes of this paragraphprmateeds shall mean the difference between thenfaiket value of the
shares of Common Stock and the Grant Price les3ax-Related Items; an

4, the Mondedz Group shall be entitled to seek, in additionttreo available remedies, a temporary or permamgumétion or
other equitable relief against such breach or thresl breach from any court of competent jurisdictivithout the necessity
of showing any actual damages or that money damagell not afford an adequate remedy, and withloeinecessity of
posting any bond or other security as Optionee @eledges that such breach would cause the Mend&toup to suffer
irreparable harm. The aforementioned equitablefrshall be in addition to, not in lieu of, legahnedies, monetary damag
or other available forms of relie

(c) If any provision contained in this paragrapsh@ll for any reason, whether by application oseng law or law which may
develop after Optionee’s acceptance of a GrantuihdePlan be determined by a court of competeigdiction to be overly broad as to scope
of activity, duration or territory, the Optioneerags to join the Mondez Group in requesting such court to construe suchigion by limiting
or reducing it so as to be enforceable to the ¢éxtempatible with then applicable law.

7. Clawback Policy/ForfeitureThe Optionee understands and agrees that indhmertitee’s sole discretion, the Company may caaltel
or part of the Option or require repayment by thti@ee to the Company of all or part of any casympent or shares of Common Stock
acquired at exercise pursuant to any recoveryugoent, clawback and/or other forfeiture policy mained by the Company, including a
violation of paragraph 6 above, from time to tinreaddition, any payments or benefits the Optiomeg receive hereunder shall be subject to
repayment or forfeiture as may be required to cgmyith the requirements under the U.S. Securitiesdf 1933, as amended (the “ Securities
Act "), the Exchange Act, rules promulgated by the Cassion or any other applicable law, including tequirements of the Dodérank Wal
Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, or a&aysties exchange on which the Common Stocktiedisr traded, as may be in effect fi
time to time.

8. Transfer RestrictionsUnless otherwise required by law, this Optionas transferable or assignable by the Optione@ynnaanner
other than by will or the laws of descent and distion and is exercisable during the Optioned&tilne only by the Optionee.

9. Adjustments In the event of any merger, share exchange, aairgtion, consolidation, recapitalization, recifisation, distribution,
stock dividend, stock split, reverse stock sppititsup, spin-off, issuance of rights or warrantsother similar transaction or event affecting the
Common Stock after the Grant Date, the Board oé®aors of the Company or the Committee shall maleséments to the terms and
provisions of this Grant (including, without limit the generality of the foregoing, terms and
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provisions relating to the Grant Price and the neinamd kind of shares subject to this Option) @e&ms appropriate including, but not limited
to, the substitution of equity interests in othetitées involved in such transactions, to providedash payments in lieu of the Option, and to
determine whether continued employment with anityergsulting from such transaction or event willvaill not be treated as a continued
employment with the Mond&t Group, in each case, subject to any Board ofdireor Committee action specifically addressing sich
adjustments, cash payments or continued employtreatment.

10. Successors and Assigri&henever the word “Optione&s used herein under circumstances such that thesgsn should logically k
construed to apply to the executors, the adming@saor the person or persons to whom this Optiay be transferred pursuant to this
Agreement, it shall be deemed to include such pess@ersons. The Company may assign any of itdgignder this Agreement to single or
multiple assignees, and this Agreement shall bdibgiupon and inure to the benefit of any successpassigns of the Company and any
person or persons who shall acquire any rightsumeler in accordance with this Agreement, the Awatatement or the Plan.

11. Entire Agreement; Governing Lawhe Award Statement, the Plan and this Agreememstitute the entire agreement of the parties
with respect to the subject matter hereof and salerin their entirety all prior undertakings agdeaments of the Company and the Optionee
with respect to the subject matter hereof, and nmype modified adversely to the Optionee’s inteegsept as provided in the Award
Statement, the Plan or this Agreement or by me&asaiting signed by the Company and the Optiomthing in the Award Statement, the
Plan and this Agreement (except as expressly peovilderein) is intended to confer any rights oredims on any persons other than the pa
The Award Statement, the Plan and this Agreementaabe construed in accordance with and govergedebsubstantive laws of the
Commonwealth of Virginia, U.S.A., without givingfe€t to any choice of law rule that would causedhpplication of the laws of any
jurisdiction other than the substantive laws of @@mmonwealth of Virginia to the rights and dutidéshe parties. Unless otherwise provide:
the Award Statement, the Plan or this AgreemeptQhtionee is deemed to submit to the exclusiviediation of the Commonwealth of
Virginia, U.S.A., and agrees that such litigatidvals be conducted in the courts of Henrico CouNfyginia, or the federal courts for the United
States for the Eastern District of Virginia.

12. Grant Confers No Rights to Continued Employmertlature of the GrantNothing contained in the Plan or this Agreement
(including the country-specific terms set forthAippendix A to the Agreement) shall give any empkoyfee right to be retained in the
employment of any member of the MorgeGroup, affect the right of any such employergiontinate any employee, or be interpreted as
forming an employment or service contract with amymber of the Mondet Group. The adoption and maintenance of the Riat ot
constitute an inducement to, or condition of, thepyment of any employee. Further, the Optiondemawledges, understands and agrees

(a) the Plan is established voluntarily by the Camy it is discretionary in nature and it may bedified, amended, suspended or
terminated by the Company at any time, to the éxemmitted by the Plan;

(b) the grant of the Option is voluntary and ocoaal and does not create any contractual or ottjlet to receive future grants of
options, or benefits in lieu of options, even itiops have been granted in the past;

(c) all decisions with respect to future optiorotier Grants, if any, will be at the sole discretad the Committee;

(d) the Optionee is voluntarily participating iretRlan;



(e) the Option and the Option Shares subject t@fhEon are not intended to replace any pensidntsigr compensation;

(f) the Option and the Option Shares subject tadpgon and the income and the value of same arpart of normal or expected
compensation or salary for purposes of calculadimg severance, resignation, termination, redundatisgnissal, end-of-service payments,
bonuses, long-service awards, pension, retirementtfare benefits or similar payments;

(9) the future value of the underlying shares ofm@wn Stock is unknown, indeterminable and canngirbdicted with certainty;
(h) if the underlying shares of Common Stock doinotease in value, the Option will have no value;

(i) if the Optionee exercises the Option and olsainares of Common Stock, the value of those sledi@smmon Stock acquired
upon exercise may increase or decrease in valee, leslow the Grant Price;

(j) no claim or entitlement to compensation or dgegshall arise from forfeiture of the Option réisgl from the termination of the
Optionee’s employment or other service relationslyiphe Company or the Employer (for any reasontsdever, whether or not later found to
be invalid or in breach of any employment lawshia jurisdiction where the Optionee is employedherterms of the Optionee’s employment
agreement, if any), and in consideration of thengodithe Option to which the Optionee is otherwise entitled, the Optionee irrevocably
agrees never to institute any claim against thedé@én Group, waives his or her ability, if any, to liany such claim, and releases the
Mondekz Group from any such claims. If, notwithstandihg foregoing, any such claim is allowed by a cofidcompetent jurisdiction, then,
by participating in the Plan, the Optionee shaltbemed irrevocably to have agreed not to purscie dlaim and agrees to execute any and al
documents necessary to request dismissal or witladraf such claim;

(k) the Optionee is hereby advised to consult WithOptionee’s own personal tax, legal and findradaisors regarding the
Optionee’s participation in the Plan before takimy action related to the Plan and that the Commangt providing any tax, legal or financial
advice, nor is the Company making any recommendatiegarding the Optionee’s participation in th@nRPbr the Optionee’s acquisition or
sale of the underlying shares of Common Stock;

() the Option is designated as not constitutingreo@ntive Stock Option; this Agreement shall belipreted and treated consiste
with such designation;

(m) the Optionee acknowledges and agrees thatemetie Company, the Employer nor any member oMbadeEz Group shall b
liable for any foreign exchange rate fluctuatiotween the Optionee’s local currency and the Un8&des Dollar that may affect the value of
the Option or any shares of Common Stock delivewdtie Optionee upon exercise of the Option omygf aroceeds resulting from the
Optionee’s sale of such shares; and

(n) unless otherwise provided in the Plan or byGoenpany in its discretion, the Option and the fiesevidenced by this
Agreement do not create any entitlement to haveitgon or any such benefits transferred to, ouaeEsl by, another company nor to be
exchanged, cashed out or substituted for, in cdiorewith any corporate transaction affecting th@@any’s Common Stock.
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13.Data Privacy. The Optionee explicitly and unambiguously consemd the collection, use and transfer, in electroror other form,
of the Optionee’s personal data as described irstAgreement and any other Option grant materialslfata”) by and among the Mondek
Group for the exclusive purpose of implementing,nathistering and managing the Optionee’s participati in the Plan.

The Optionee understands that the MonéelGroup may hold certain personal information abotlte Optionee, including, but not
limited to, the Optionee’s name, home address aglégghone number, date of birth, social securityinsurance number or other
identification number, salary, nationality, job &, any shares of stock or directorships held iret€ompany, details of all options or any
other entitlement to shares of stock awarded, cdadeexercised, vested, unvested or outstandinthénOptionee’s favor, for the exclusive
purpose of implementing, administering and managittte Plan.

The Optionee understands that Data will be transkul to UBS Financial Services, Inc.(* UB3), or such other stock plan service
provider as may be selected by the Company in tharé, which is assisting the Company with the irepientation, administration an
management of the Plan. The Optionee understandsttbata may also be transferred to the Company’dépendent registered public
accounting firm, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, or $uother public accounting firm that may be engagbg the Company in the future.
The Optionee understands that the recipients of thata may be located in the United States or elsexghand that the recipients’ country
(e.g., the United States) may have different datavgicy laws and protections than the Optionse&ountry. The Optionee understands that
Optionee may request a list with the names and &ddes of any potential recipients of the Data byteating the Optionee’s local human
resources representative. The Optionee authoritess€@ompany, UBS and any other possible recipienksaly may assist the Company
(presently or in the future) with implementing, admistering and managing the Plan to receive, possasse, retain and transfer the Data,
electronic or other form, for the sole purpose afiplementing, administering and managing the Optiarig participation in the Plan. The
Optionee understands that Data will be held onlylaag as is necessary to implement, administer ananage the Optionee’s participation
in the Plan. The Optionee understands that the @pke may, at any time, view Data, request additianéormation about the storage and
processing of Data, require any necessary amendra¢atData or refuse or withdraw the consents herdimany case without cost, k
contacting in writing the Optionee’s local human seurces representative. Further, the Optionee urgtands that he or she is providing the
consents herein on a purely voluntary basis. If tptionee does not consent, or if the Optionee laeeks to revoke his or her consent, his
or her employment status or service and career with Employer will not be adversely affected; thelypconsequence of refusing or
withdrawing the Optionee’s consent is that the Coamy would not be able to grant the Optionee an optir other equity awards or
administer or maintain such grants. The Optioneesalunderstands that the Company has no obligatiorstibstitute other forms of grants
or compensation in lieu of the option as a conseque of the Optionee’s refusal or withdrawal of his her consent. Therefore, the
Optionee understands that refusing or withdrawingstor her consent may affect the Optionee’s abilityparticipate in the Plan. For more
information on the consequences of the Optiongeéfusal to consent or withdrawal of consent, thgptionee understands that he or she n
contact his or her local human resources represeite.

14. Interpretation The terms and provisions of the Plan (a copy littvwill be made available online or furnishedhe Optionee upon
written request to the Office of the Corporate 8toy, Mondedz International, Inc., Three Parkway North, Deddfjdllinois 60015) are
incorporated herein by reference. To the extentpnyision in the Award Statement or this Agreenisiimconsistent or in conflict with any
term or provision of the Plan, the Plan shall gav@he Committee shall have the right to resolVegadstions that may arise in connection \
the Grant or this Agreement, including whether guti@ee is no longer actively employed, and angrimretation, determination or other act
made or taken by the Committee regarding the Plahi® Agreement shall be final, binding and cosala.
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15. Miscellaneous DefinitionsFor the purposes of this Agreement, the termsability ” means permanent and total disability as
determined under the procedures established bgahgpany for purposes of the Plan and the term ‘hidbiRetirement means retirement
from active employment under a pension plan ofMloedeEz Group, an employment contract with any membéehefMondetz Group or a
local labor contract, on or after the date spetifis normal retirement age in the pension planj@mpent contract or local contract, if any,
under which the Optionee is at that time accruieggion benefits for his or her current service ifothe absence of a specified normal
retirement age, the age at which pension benefigiusuch plan or contract become payable witheniation for early commencement and
without any requirement of a particular period dbpservice). In any case in which the meaningNrmal Retirement” is uncertain under the
definition contained in the prior sentence, an @uee’s termination shall be treated as Normal Beitint as the Committee, in its sole
discretion, deems equivalent to retirement. Forpimposes of this Agreement, “ Early Retirememteans retirement from active employment
other than Normal Retirement, as determined byCthmmittee, in its sole discretion.

16. Language If this Agreement or any other document relatethe Plan is translated into a language other Braglish and if the
meaning of the translated version is different frivea English version, the English version will aoht

17. Compliance With LawNotwithstanding any other provision of the Plarttos Agreement, unless there is an available gstiem
from any registration, qualification or other legefuirement applicable to the shares of CommonkSthe Company shall not be required to
deliver any Option Shares issuable upon exercisleso©ption prior to the completion of any registma or qualification of the Option Shares
under any local, state, federal or foreign se@sitir exchange control law or under rulings or l&gns of the Commission or of any other
governmental regulatory body, or prior to obtainamy approval or other clearance from any locatestfederal or foreign governmental
agency, which registration, qualification or appbthe Company shall, in its absolute discretia@erd necessary or advisable. The Optionee
understands that the Company is under no oblig&tioagister or qualify the Option Shares with @@mmission or any state or foreign
securities commission or to seek approval or ctegdrom any governmental authority for the isseamicsale of the shares. Further, the
Optionee agrees that the Company shall have urdlaathority to amend the Plan and the Agreeméthtowrt the Optionee’s consent to the
extent necessary to comply with securities or oldmes applicable to the issuance of shares of Com&tiock.

18. Notices Any notice required or permitted hereunder sheal(i) given in writing and shall be deemed effeslly given upon personal
delivery, upon deposit for delivery by an interpatilly recognized express mail courier servicepmrudeposit in the United States mail by
certified mail (if the parties are within the UnidtStates), with postage and fees prepaid, addrésdkd other party at its address as shown in
these instruments, or to such other address aspsutshmay designate in writing from time to tineethe other party or (ii) delivered
electronically through the Company’s electronic lnsgstem (including any notices delivered by ad¥party) and shall be deemed effectively
given upon such delivery. Any documents requirede@iven or delivered to the Optionee relatedutoent or future participation in the Plan
may also be delivered through electronic meansasribed in paragraph 19 below.

19. Electronic Delivery and Acceptanc&he Company may, in its sole discretion, dectdddliver any documents related to current or
future participation in the Plan by electronic meahhe Optionee hereby consents to receive sualmtkrats by electronic delivery and agrees
to participate in the Plan through any on-line lectonic system established and maintained byCttrapany or a third party designated by the
Company.




20. Agreement Severabldhe provisions of this Agreement are severabteiaany one or more provisions are determinedetdlbgal o
otherwise unenforceable, in whole or in part, #gmaining provisions shall nevertheless be bindimdjenforceable.

21. Headings Headings of paragraphs and sections used il\grsement are for convenience only and are notqddhis Agreement,
and must not be used in construing it.

22. Imposition of Other Requirement¥he Company reserves the right to impose ottgrirements on the Optionee’s participation in
the Plan, on the Option and on any shares of Confehack acquired under the Plan, to the extent hragany determines it is necessary or
advisable for legal or administrative reasons antjuire the Optionee to sign any additional agesgs or undertakings that may be nece:
to accomplish the foregoing.

23. Insider Trading/Market Abuse Law$he Optionee acknowledges that the Optioneehjesuto insider trading and/or market abuse
laws, which affect the Optionee’s ability to acguar sell shares of Common Stock under the Plaimglsuch times as the Optionee is
considered to have “material nonpublic information™inside information” (as defined by the lawstive Optionee’s country). The Optionee
also acknowledges that the Optionee is subjettedCompany’s insider trading policy, and the regmients of applicable laws may or may not
be consistent with the terms of the Company’s istchding policy. The Optionee acknowledges thitliis or her responsibility to be

informed of and compliant with any such laws, anteéreby advised to speak to his or her personé@don this matter.

24. Appendix Notwithstanding any provisions in this Agreemehg Option shall be subject to any special teretgasth in the
Appendix to this Agreement for the Optionee’s coynioreover, if the Optionee relocates to onehef tountries included in the Appendix,
the special terms for such country will apply te tBptionee, to the extent the Company determiregstie application of such terms is
necessary or advisable for legal or administratdzsons. The Appendix constitutes part of this Agrent.

25. Waiver. The Optionee acknowledges that a waiver by thmg@zmy of a breach of any provision of this Agreetrstrall not operate «
be construed as a waiver of any other provisiathigf Agreement or of any subsequent breach by fit@ee or any other participant of the
Plan.

26. Conformity to Securities LawsThe Optionee acknowledges that the Award StaterttesPlan and this Agreement are intended to
conform to the extent necessary with all provisiohthe Securities Act and the Exchange Act, andaard all regulations and rules
promulgated thereunder by the Commission, includivithout limitation, Rule 168 under the Exchange Act. Notwithstanding anyttiacgir
to the contrary, the Award Statement, the PlanthisdAgreement shall be administered, and the @psigranted, only in such a manner as to
conform to such laws, rules and regulations. Toetktent permitted by applicable law, the Award &tagnt, the Plan and this Agreement shall
be deemed amended to the extent necessary to notdauch laws, rules and regulations.
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*kk

The Optionee acknowledges that the Optionee has liewed the Plan, the Award Statement and this Agreeamt (including any
appendices hereto) in their entirety and fully undestands their respective provisions. The Optioneegaees to accept as binding,
conclusive and final all decisions or interpretatios of the Committee upon any questions arising und¢he Plan, the Award Statement

or this Agreement.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been execaseof the Grant Date.

MONDELEZ INTERNATIONAL, INC.

/s/ Carol J. Wart

Carol J. Warc
Vice President and Corporate Secre’
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Exhibit 10.1:

MONDEL EZ INTERNATIONAL, INC.
AMENDED AND RESTATED 2005 PERFORMANCE INCENTIVE PLA N
(Amended and Restated as of May 21, 2014)

GLOBAL LONG-TERM INCENTIVE GRANT AGREEMENT
(2015-2017 Performance Cycle)

MONDELEZ INTERNATIONAL, INC., a Virginia corporation (the Company”), hereby grants to the individual (the “ Partiaiy”)
named in the Long-Term Incentive Grant Notice (tiNotice ") a Long-Term Incentive Grant (the * LTI Graftwith respect to the
Performance Cycle and Performance Goals set fortihei Notice, subject to the terms and provisidrth® Notice, this Global Long-Term
Incentive Grant Agreement, including any countreaific appendix (this * Agreemefit and the Mondelz International, Inc. Amended and
Restated 2005 Performance Incentive Plan, as arddrata time to time (the “ Plaf). Unless and until the Committee determines #rat
Award is payable with respect to the LTI Grantthie manner set forth in Sections 4 or 5 hereofPticipant shall have no right to payment
based on the LTI Grant. Prior to payment of an Alaased on the LTI Grant, the LTI Grant represantsnsecured obligation of the
Company payable, if at all, from the general assktee Company. All references to action of orrappl by the Committee shall be deemed tc
include action of or approval by any other persptgsvhom the Committee has delegated authorigcto

The LTI Grant is subject to the following terms arahditions (including the country-specific ternet orth in Appendix A to the
Agreement):

The Participant must execute and deliver or electnoically accept the terms set forth in this Agreemetn in the manner and within a
period specified by the Committee. The Committee ma in its sole discretion, cancel the LTI Grant ifthe Participant fails to execute
and deliver or electronically accept this Agreemenand related documents within the specified period.

1. Definitions. For purposes of the Plan, the following termdidtave the meanings specified below, unless timdecd clearly indicates
otherwise. The singular pronoun shall include tluegb where the context so indicates. All capitatizerms used in this Agreement without
definition shall have the meanings ascribed inRtaan and the Notice.

(a) Affiliate . “Affiliate” means any entity that directly or iiréctly through one or more intermediaries contaylss controlled by the
Company, in each case, as determined by the Coeanitt

(b) Disability . “Disability” means permanent and total disabibty determined under procedures established b§ah®wany for purposes of
the Plan.

(c) Early Retirement“Early Retirement” means retirement from activeptoyment other than Normal Retirement, as detezthiny the
Committee, in its sole discretion.

(d) LTI Award Payout “LTI Award Payout” means the number of share€ofmmon Stock (if the Award is settled in sharesheramount (if
the Award is settled in cash) in either case with\talue determined as the product of (a) the LiEInGTarget multiplied by (b) the
Performance Goal Attainment Factor (subject toGbenmittee’s discretion specified in Section 4(a))d, in the case of a Participant who
terminates employment before the last day of thboFeance Cycle, further multiplied by (c) the Reigation Period Facto




(e) LTI Grant Target “LTI Grant Target” means the target number ofreBaof Common Stock or amount set forth in the ot

(f) Maximum Goal Factor “Maximum Goal Factor” means the maximum perceatsef forth in the Notice.

(g9) Normal Retirement“Normal Retirement” means retirement from ac&eployment under (a) a pension plan of the Magel€lroup, (b) a
employment contract with any member of the Moz&roup, or (c) a local labor contract, on or after date specified as normal retirement
age in the pension plan, employment contract alloontract, if any, under which the Participardtishat time accruing pension benefits for
his or her current service (or, in the absencesffexified normal retirement age, the age at whatsion benefits under such plan or such
contract become payable without reduction for eeolmmencement and without any requirement of aquéait period of prior service). In any
case in which the meaning of “Normal Retirementifgertain under the definition contained in thiepsentence, a Participant’s termination
shall be treated as Normal Retirement as the Caerniin its sole discretion, deems equivalent tioer@ent.

(h) Participation Period FactofParticipation Period Factor” means a fractidrg humerator of which is the number of months (idirig
partial months, rounded up to the next whole motite)Participant was actively employed by the Méed&roup during the Performance
Cycle and the denominator of which is the numbemnohths (including partial months, rounded up ®nlext whole month) in the Performa
Cycle. The Committee, in its sole discretion, mejuat the Participation Period Factor.

(i) Performance Cycle“Performance Cycletheans the performance period set forth in the Matier which the attainment of the Performs
Goals will be measured for the purpose of detemgjthe LTI Award Payout.

(j) Performance Goal Attainment FactdPerformance Goal Attainment Factor” means a @etiage ranging from 0% to the Maximum Goal
Factor representing the level at which the PerformeaGoals have been attained as determined bydhmen@tee.

(k) Qualified Performanc8ased CompensatiorfQualified Performance-Based Compensation” mearyscompensation that is intended to
constitute “qualified performance-based compeneats described in Section 162(m)(4)(C) of the Code

2. Incorporation of Terms of PlarThe LTI Grant is subject to the terms and condgiof the Plan, which is incorporated herein grence.
In the event of any inconsistency between the Bfahthis Agreement, the terms of the Plan shallrobaxcept as otherwise expressly set f
in this Agreement.

3. Vesting and Forfeiture

(a) Vesting. Subject to Sections 3(b) and 5 of this Agreemiéthhe Committee determines that the Performanaal&for the
Performance Cycle have been met and the other @mohsonditions set forth in the Plan have beenfgad, an Award will be made to the
Participant based on the Participant’s LTI Awargdrd. Except as otherwise provided in Section 3(l){d Section 5 below, in the case of an
LTI Grant that is intended to constitute Qualifiedrformance-Based Compensation, no Award will haplg unless and until the Committee
has certified in writing whether and the extenivttich the Performance Goals for the Performancdelyave been attained.

(b) Forfeiture. Except as provided herein, if the Participant maisbeen continuously and actively employed witheanber of the
MondeEz Group that employs the Participant (the * Empidye



from the date of the Notice through the last ddtte Performance Cycle or if the Participant is @o employee in good standing with the
Employer on the date of payment in Section 4(ag¢diethe LTI Grant will be forfeited immediately dmithout any further action by the
Company or the Committee. For purposes of the gdirgesentence, the Participant will not be considdo be continuously and actively
employed with the Employer once he or she has sthppoviding services, notwithstanding any notiedqad mandated under the employment
laws of the country where the Participant resigeg.( active employment would not include a peabtharden leave” or similar period
pursuant to the employment laws of the country wlike Participant resides), unless otherwise détedrby the Company on a country-by-
country basis. The Committee has the exclusiverelien to determine when a Participant is no loraygively employed for purposes of the
LTI Grant, subject to compliance with Section 408&he Code.

(i) Death/Disability. If the Participant dies or terminates active esgpient with the Mondék Group due to Disability during the
first year of the Performance Cycle, no Award Wil made based on the LTI Grant for the Perform@yate. If the Participant dies or
terminates employment with the MongelGroup due to Disability after the first year bétPerformance Cycle, an LTI Award Payout will be
made to the Participant calculated by using a Pedace Goal Attainment Factor equal to 100%, stibgecompliance with the payment
timing provisions set forth in Section 4(a)(iii)reef.

(il) Retirement If a Participant terminates active employmentwiite Mondedz Group prior to the end of the Performance Cys
a result of the Participant’s Early or Normal Resttirent, if the Committee in its sole discretion stedmines, the Participant shall retain a
prorated portion of the LTI Grant with a potenttalard payable based on actual attainment of theoReance Goals at the same time an
Award (if any) is payable to other participants fioe Performance Cycle. The proration of the LTa@mwill be calculated by applying the
Participant’s Participation Period Factor as debeeah in the sole discretion of the Committee, scije compliance with the payment timing
provisions set forth in Section 4 hereof. If then@pittee determines that there has been a legaihjadgand/or legal development in the
jurisdiction where the Participant resides thatiltssn the favorable treatment on Early or NoriRatirement described in this section be
deemed unlawful and/or discriminatory, then the @any will not apply such favorable treatment, amel Participant shall forfeit as of the d
of the termination any rights under the LTI Grant.

4. Payment

(a) Form and Time of Payment

(i) Eorm of Payment Subject to the terms of the Plan, the Notice thiglAgreement, and except as otherwise expresshiged
and subject to the terms of this Agreement (inclgdhppendix A hereto), any Award that becomes pleymbaccordance with Section 3 her
shall be paid in whole shares of Common Stock, vklall be issued in book-entry form, registerethaParticipant’s name. In the event the
LTI Award Payout results in less than a whole nundfeshares of Common Stock, the LTI Award Paydalisbe rounded up to the next wh
share of Common Stock (no fractional shares of ComBtock shall be issued in payment of an Award).

(ii) Certification; Performance Goal Attainment Factor DeterminatiBollowing the completion of the Performance Cyarhal,
subject to Section 3(b)(i) and Section 5 hereagrgp the payment of an Award, the Committee sbaitify in writing whether the applicable
Performance Goals were achieved for the Perform@ycke and shall determine the Performance Goalifitient Factor with respect to the
Award.




(iii) Payment Timing. Except as otherwise provided in the followingteene, the LTI Award Payout shall be paid as s@on a
practicable following the date the Committee citithat the Performance Goals for the Perform&@yote have been attained and determines
an LTI Grant has vested and is payable for theoPmdnce Cycle, but in no event later than Marcloflthe taxable year following the end of
the Performance Cycle, including upon a ParticigaBarly or Normal Retirement. An Award that becompagable under Section 3(b)(i) her
in connection with a Participant’s death or ternimaresulting from Disability shall be paid withitb days following the Participant’s death or
termination of employment, as applicable, but ig ement no later than March 15 following the yehdeath or termination from Disability.

(b) Conditions to Payment of an Awardlotwithstanding any other provision of this Agment (including without limitation Section 3(
hereof):

(i) The Award shall not become payable to the Bigaint or his or her legal representative unlesluamil the Participant or his or
her legal representative shall have satisfiedmdlieable withholding obligations for Tax-Relatddrhs (as defined in Section 8 below), if any,
in accordance with Section 8 hereof.

(ii) The Company shall not be required to issudealiver any certificate or certificates (whetheeiectronic or other form) for any
shares of Common Stock in payment of the Awardrpgadhe fulfillment of all of the following condins: (A) the admission of the Common
Stock to listing on all stock exchanges on whigh @mmmon Stock is then listed, (B) the completibary registration or other qualification
the Common Stock under any state or federal launder rulings or regulations of the Commission theo governmental regulatory body,
which the Committee shall, in its sole and absotiiteretion, deem necessary and advisable, oeibffering of the Common Stock is not so
registered, a determination by the Company thaisgignce of the Common Stock would be exempt inynsuch registration or qualification
requirements, (C) the obtaining of any approvadtber clearance from any state, federal or forggwvernmental agency that the Committee
shall, in its absolute discretion, determine tobeessary or advisable and (D) the lapse of any masonable period of time following the ¢
the Award becomes payable as the Committee may tiroeto time establish for reasons of administetionvenience, subject to compliance
with Section 409A of the Code.

(c) Payment Amountlf the LTI Grant is intended to constitute Quiglif Performanc&ased Compensation, the Committee shall hav
right, in its sole discretion, to reduce the Parfance Goal Attainment Factor (resulting in the otidi or elimination (including to zero), but
not an increase, in the amount otherwise payahlderuhe LTI Grant) to take into account recommeiodatof the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company and/or such additional factors inclgdjnalitative factors, if any, that the Committeayndeem relevant to the assessment of
individual or corporate performance for the Perfante Cycle. If the LTI Grant is not intended to stitnte Qualified Performance-Based
Compensation, the Committee shall retain the rights sole discretion, to modify the Performa®@eal Attainment Factors (resulting in a
reduction, an increase or elimination (including#wo) of, the amount otherwise payable under flieGrant) to take into account
recommendations of the Chief Executive Officerhef Company and/or such additional factors includjaglitative factors, if any, that the
Committee may deem relevant to the assessmendliefdoal or corporate performance for the Perforoea@ycle. Anything to the contrary in
the foregoing notwithstanding, in no event shall anch reduction or elimination of the amount pdgamder an LTI Grant contemplated in
the foregoing sentences increase the amount payabdkr an LTI Grant that is intended to constiQtelified Performance-Based
Compensation.




5. Treatment Upon a Change in Control

(a) Grants under the Plan Are Assumétbtwithstanding anything contained herein to¢batrary or Section 6(a) of the Plan, upon a
Change in Control, the LTI Grant shall be convettedash, regardless of actual or projected pedoge, equal in value to the product of
(a) the target number of shares of Common Stockifspe in the LTI Grant Target multiplied by (b)dlclosing share price of the Common
Stock on last trading day immediately precedingdiosing date of the Change in Control (the * CrmmControl Valu€). For the avoidance
of doubt, if the LTI Grant Target is denominatedash only, then the Change in Control Value vgli& the dollar amount of the LTI Grant
Target. Following the Change in Control, if outstang Grants other than Incentive Awards under tlaa Bre assumed or replaced in
accordance with Section 6(a)(i) of the Plan, thetoag as the Participant remains employed withMleadekz Group (or any successor entity
thereto), the Change in Control Value and any agthut unpaid dividend equivalents through the dathe Change in Control will be paid to
the Participant within 60 days following the lastydbf the Performance Cycle; provided, howevethéf Participant’s employment with, or
performance of services for, the MongeGroup (or any successor entity thereto) is teateith by the Mondet Group (or any successor entity
thereto) for any reasons other than Cause withanwio-year period commencing on the Change in ©britren the Participant will receive a
pro rata payment within 60 days following terminatiequal to the product of (a) the Change in CéMadue multiplied by (b) a fraction
whereby the numerator is the number of days comglit the applicable Performance Cycle and the m@mator of which is the total number
of days in the Performance Cycle, plus any acchugdinpaid dividend equivalents through the datdhefChange in Control. For the
avoidance of doubt, if the Participant is eligitdeparticipate in the Mondez International, Inc. Change in Control Plan foryKexecutives,
this Section 5(a) will only apply if the Particigadpes not terminate employment with the Mogdé&broup (or any successor entity thereto)
during the Performance Cycle related to the LTIn&rH the Participant is eligible to participatethe Mondedz International, Inc. Change in
Control Plan for Key Executives and terminates @wplent with the Mondék Group (or any successor entity thereto) durimgRarformance
Cycle, then payment will be made in accordance thi¢ghMondeiz International, Inc. Change in Control Plan foryKexecutives.

(b) Grants under the Plan Are Not Assumdédoutstanding Grants other than Incentive Awardder the Plan are not assumed or
replaced in accordance with Section 6(a)(i) ofRten, then the Participant will receive a pro ah payment immediately following the
Change in Control equal to the product of (a) thar@e in Control Value multiplied by (b) a fractimhereby the numerator is the number of
days completed in the applicable Performance Cyutethe denominator of which is the total numbedayfs in the Performance Cycle, plus
any accrued but unpaid dividend equivalents thrahgtdate of the Change in Control.

6. Restrictions and Covenants

(a) In addition to such other conditions as magstablished by the Company or the Committee, isic@nation for making a Grant
under the terms of the Plan, the Participant agaadscovenants as follows for a period of twelv@®) (honths following the date of Participat
termination of employment from the Mon@&elGroup:

1. to protect the Mond&t Group’s legitimate business interests in its m@rftial information, trade secrets and goodwitid a
to enable the Mondéz Group’s ability to reserve these for the excladgimowledge and use of the Morgeroup, which i
of great competitive importance and commercial @atuthe Mondekz Group, the Participant, without the express amitt
permission of the Executive Vice President of HurR&sources of the Company, will not engage in amgact in which
Participant contributes his/her knowledge and skdirectly or indirectly, in whole or in part, as executive

5



employer, employee, owner, operator, manager, adwisnsultant, agent, partner, director, stockéoldfficer, volunteer,
intern or any other similar capacity to a competitoto an entity engaged in the same or similair®ss as the Mondel
Group, including those engaged in the businessaafuyction, sale or marketing of snack foods (inglggdbut not limited to
gum, chocolate, confectionary products, biscuitaror other product or service Participant has mrasd&now has been
under development by the MongelGroup during Participant’'s employment with therddekz Group). Participant will not
engage in any activity that may require or inevitalequire Participant’s use or disclosure of therideEz Group’s
confidential information, proprietary informationd/or trade secret

2. to protect the Mondez Group’s investment in its employees and to enthedong-term success of the business, Participar
without the express written permission of the Exieewice President of Human Resources of the Campaill not
directly or indirectly solicit, hire, recruit, attept to hire or recruit, or induce the terminatidremployment of any employee
of the Mondegz Group; anc

3. to protect the Mondez Group’s investment in its development of good wiild customers and to ensure the long-term
success of the business, Participant will not diyear indirectly solicit (including, but not limétd to, e-mail, regular mail,
express mail, telephone, fax, instant message BI&lt8xt messaging) or attempt to directly or indilg solicit, contact or
meet with the current or prospective customerhiefMonde¢z Group for the purpose of offering or acceptingdmpor
services similar to or competitive with those offiby the Mondiéz Group.

The provisions contained herein in Section 6 atambeu of, but are in addition to the continuiagligation of the Participant (which
Participant acknowledges by accepting any Granéutite Plan) to not use or disclose the Mogzl@roup’s trade secrets or Confidential
Information known to the Participant until any pewtar trade secret or Confidential Information ®e@es generally known (through no fault of
the Participant), whereupon the restriction onars# disclosure shall cease as to that item. Fgrgses of this agreement,* Confidential
Information” includes, but is not limited to, certain salesrketing, strategy, financial, product, personmenufacturing, technical and other
proprietary information and material which are gineperty of the Mondek Group. Participant understands that this lisiosexhaustive, and
that Confidential Information also includes othafiormation that is marked or otherwise identifisdcanfidential or proprietary, or that would
otherwise appear to a reasonable person to bedemnitl or proprietary in the context and circumsts in which the information is known or
used.

(b) A main purpose of the Plan is to strengtheralfignment of long-term interests between Partitipand the Mondet Group by
providing an ownership interest in the Company, tangrevent former employees whose interests be@aiverse to the Company from
maintaining that ownership interest. By acceptasfany Grant (including the LTI Grant) under tha®lthe Participant acknowledges and
agrees that if the Participant breaches any ofdwenants set forth in Section 6(a):

1. all unvested or unearned Grants (including any urezhportion of the LTI Grant) shall be immediatéyfeited;

2. the Company may cancel, rescind, suspend, withtrotdherwise limit or restrict any unexpired, urtpar deferred Grants
any time if Participant is not in compliance withtarms and conditions set forth in the Plan inidhg, but not limited to,
Section 6(a)

3. the Participant shall repay to the MorgdeBroup the net proceeds of any Plan benefit tbedirs at any time after the earlier
of the following two dates: (i) the date twelve ntos

6



immediately preceding any such violation; or (figtdate six (6) months prior to the Participargtsrtination of employment
with the Monde#z Group. The Participant shall repay to the Moezl€roup the net proceeds in such a manner andabn su
terms and conditions as may be required by the Mibadsroup, and the Mond& Group shall be entitled to set-off against
the amount of any such net proceeds any amount towtbe Participant by the MondelGroup, to the extent that such set-
off is not inconsistent with Section 409A of thedeoor other applicable law. For purposes of thitiSe, net proceeds shall
mean the fair market value of the shares of Com8tonk less any T«Related Items; an

4, the Mondedz Group shall be entitled to seek, in additionttreo available remedies, a temporary or permamgumétion or
other equitable relief against such breach or thresd breach from any court of competent jurisdictivithout the necessity
of showing any actual damages or that money damagel! not afford an adequate remedy, and withloeinecessity of
posting any bond or other security as Participakhawledges that such breach would cause the Man@bup to suffer
irreparable harm. The aforementioned equitablefrshall be in addition to, not in lieu of, legahnedies, monetary damag
or other available forms of relie

(c) If any provision contained in this Section Glsfior any reason, whether by application of ergtiaw or law which may develop after
Participant’s acceptance of a Grant under the Bé¢adletermined by a court of competent jurisdictibe overly broad as to scope of activity,
duration or territory, the Participant agrees ia fhhe Monde$z Group in requesting such court to construe suchigion by limiting or
reducing it so as to be enforceable to the extemipatible with then applicable law.

7. Clawback Policy/ForfeitureThe Participant understands and agrees thaei€dmmittee’s sole discretion, the Company may et or
part of the LTI Grant or require repayment by thketieipant to the Company of all or part of any LAward Payout underlying any vested LTI
Grant pursuant to any recovery, recoupment, claiwbad/or other forfeiture policy maintained by thempany, including a violation of
Section 6 above, from time to time. In additiony @ayments or benefits the Participant may reckereunder shall be subject to repayment o
forfeiture as may be required to comply with thguieements under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933raended (the_* Securities Agtthe
Exchange Act, rules promulgated by the Commissicaing other applicable law, including the requiremseof the Dodd-Frank Wall Street
Reform and Consumer Protection Act, or any seesritixchange on which the Common Stock is listethded, as may be in effect from time
to time.

8. Withholding Taxes The Participant acknowledges that regardlesspiation taken by the Company or, if differeng tmployer, the
ultimate liability for all income tax, social sedyr payroll tax, fringe benefits tax, payment arcaunt or other tax-related items related to the
Participant’s participation in the Plan and legapplicable to the Participant or deemed by the @y or the Employer, in their discretion, to
be an appropriate charge to the Participant evieg#ily applicable to the Company or the Empldyéfax-Related Item$) is and remains his
or her responsibility and may exceed the amountadigtwithheld by the Company or the Employer. Haticipant further acknowledges that
the Company and/or the Employer (a) make no reptatens or undertakings regarding the treatmeiingfTax-Related Items in connection
with any aspect of the LTI Grant, including the tuag or payment of any Award relating to the LTIa@t, the receipt of any dividends or cash
payments in lieu of dividends, or the subsequédetaiashares of Common Stock; and (b) do not contoréind are under no obligation to
structure the terms of the LTI Grant or any aspéthe Participant’s participation in the Plan égluce or eliminate his or her liability for Tax-
Related Items or achieve any particular tax resuitther, if the Participant becomes subject to Baiy-Related Items in more than one
jurisdiction between the date




grant and the date of any relevant taxable eveatParticipant acknowledges that the Company arldéoEmployer (or former employer, as
applicable) may be required to withhold or accdon{including report) Tax-Related Items in moranhone jurisdiction.

The Company is authorized to satisfy the withhajdior any or all Tax-Related Items arising from testing or payment of any Award
relating to the LTI Grant or sale of shares of CanrStock issued pursuant to the Award, as the masebe, by deducting the number of
shares of Common Stock having an aggregate valua émthe amount of Tax-Related Items withholditug from the LTI Award Payout or
otherwise becoming subject to current taxatiothéf Company satisfies the Tax-Related Items oliigdiy withholding a number of shares of
Common Stock as described herein, for tax purpakesarticipant will be deemed to have been issiwedull number of shares of Common
Stock due to the Participant at vesting, notwithdiag that a number of shares of Common Stockli heck solely for the purpose of such
Tax-Related Items withholding.

The Company is also authorized to satisfy the ddtae-Related Items withholding arising from thestieg or payment of any Award relating
to the LTI Grant, the sale of shares of Common IStssued pursuant to the Award or hypothetical dtding tax amounts if the Participant is
covered under a Company tax equalization policghasase may be, by the remittance of the reqaineaunts from any proceeds realized
upon the open-market sale of the Common Stockveddiy the Participant. Such open-market sale iherParticipant’s behalf and at the
Participant’s direction pursuant to this autholizrawithout further consent.

Furthermore, the Company and/or the Employer affecgized to satisfy the Tax-Related Items withhio¢darising from the vesting or payment
of any Award relating to the LTI Grant, or salesbfares issued pursuant to the Award, as the cagbendy withholding from the Participast’
wages or other cash compensation paid to the Raniicby the Company and/or the Employer.

If the Participant is subject to the short-swingffirules of Section 16(b) of the Exchange Acg fParticipant may elect the form of
withholding in advance of any Tax-Related Iltemshiilding event, and in the absence of the Partitip&lection, the Company will deduct
the number of shares of Common Stock having areagge value equal to the amount of Tax-Relateddteithholding due from the LTI
Award Payout, or the Committee may determine thadréicular method be used to satisfy any Tax Rdl##ems withholding.

Shares of Common Stock deducted from the LTI AvRaglout in satisfaction of Tax-Related Items withlirog shall be valued at the Fair
Market Value of the Common Stock received in paynoeéthe Award on the date as of which the amouvihg rise to the withholding
requirement first became includible in the grogome of the Participant under applicable tax ldfhe Participant is covered by a Company
tax equalization policy, the Participant also agreepay to the Company any additional hypothetialobligation calculated and paid under
the terms and conditions of such tax equalizatalicy.

To avoid any negative accounting treatment or fiyr @her reason, the Company may withhold or accfarirax-Related Items or theoretical
taxes by considering applicable minimum statutoithkolding amounts or other applicable withholdnages.

Finally, the Participant shall pay to the Companyhe Employer any amount of Tax-Related Items thatCompany or the Employer may be
required to withhold as a result of his or heriggration in the Plan that cannot be satisfiedh®y means previously described. The Company
may refuse to issue or deliver the Common StotkefParticipant fails to comply with his or her TRelated Items obligations.
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9. Nature of the GrantBy participating in the Plan and in exchangeréareiving the LTI Grant, the Participant acknowleslgunderstands and
agrees that:

(a) the Plan is established voluntarily by the Camy it is discretionary in nature and it may bedified, amended, suspended or
terminated by the Company at any time, to the éxemmitted by the Plan;

(b) the LTI Grant is voluntary and occasional anésinot create any contractual or other right ¢eixe future awards, or benefits in lieu
of LTI Grants, even if LTI Grants have been madéimpast;

(c) all decisions with respect to future LTI Graritsany, will be at the sole discretion of the Quittee;
(d) the Participant’s participation in the Plarv@untary;

(e) the LTI Grant and the shares of Common Stoblestito the LTI Grant are not intended to replaog pension rights or
compensation;

(f) the LTI Grant and the shares of Common Stodiestt to the LTI Grant and the income and the valuine same are not part of
normal or expected compensation or salary for mepof calculating any severance, resignation,itetion, redundancy, dismissal, end-of-
service payments, bonuses, long-service awardsj@erretirement or welfare benefits or similar pants;

(9) the future value of the underlying shares om@won Stock is unknown, indeterminable and canngirbdicted with certainty;

(h) no claim or entitlement to compensation or dgesashall arise from forfeiture of the LTI Gransuling from the failure to reach
Performance Goals or termination of the Particifmaemployment or other service relationship by tben@any or the Employer (for any rea
whatsoever, whether or not later found to be imvatiin breach of employment laws in the jurisdintivhere the Participant is employed or the
terms of his or her employment agreement, if aag)l in consideration of the LTI Grant to which frticipant is otherwise not entitled, the
Participant irrevocably agrees never to institutg elaim against the Mond& Group, waives his or her ability, if any, to lgiany such claim,
and releases the MondelGroup from any such claims. If, notwithstandihg foregoing, any such claim is allowed by a cofidcompetent
jurisdiction, then, by participating in the PlahetParticipant shall be deemed irrevocably to tereed not to pursue such claim and agre
execute any and all documents necessary to redisesissal or withdrawal of such claim; and

(i) the following provisions apply only if the Panipant is providing services outside the Unitedt&s:

(A) the LTI Grant and the shares of Common Stodkesti to the LTI Grant are not part of normal opegted compensation or
salary for any purpose; and

(B) neither the Company, the Employer nor any othember of the Mondez Group shall be liable for any foreign exchange ra
fluctuation between the Participant’s local curreaod the



United States Dollar that may affect the valuehef it TI Grant or any shares of Common Stock delidgoethe Participant upon vesting of the
LTI Grant or of any proceeds resulting from thetiegrant’s sale of such shares.

10. Data Privacy. The Participant hereby explicitly and unambigudysconsents to the collection, use and transfer gilectronic or other
form, of the Participan’s personal data as described in this Agreement amy other LTI Grant materials (“Data”) by and amagthe
Mondelez Group for the exclusive purpose of implementimgiministering and managing the Participant’s partmation in the Plan.

The Participant understands that the Mond&l Group may hold certain personal information abotlte Participant, including, but not
limited to, the Participant’s name, home addresstatelephone number, date of birth, social securityinsurance number or other
identification number, salary, nationality, job 1&, any shares of stock or directorships held iret@ompany, details of all LTI Grants or any
other entitlement to shares of Common Stock awardeshceled, exercised, vested, unvested or outstanid the Participant’s favor, for the
purpose of implementing, administering and managittge Plan.

The Participant understands that Data will be trafesred to UBS Financial Services, Inc. (* UBS), or such other stock plan service
provider as may be selected by the Company in tharé, which is assisting the Company with the irepientation, administration an
management of the Plan. The Participant understartiat Data may also be transferred to the Companiyidependent registered public
accounting firm, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, or $uother public accounting firm that may be engagbyg the Company in the future.
The Participant understands that the recipientstbe Data may be located in the United States oeelsere, and that the recipients’ country
(e.g., the United States) may have different datavqcy laws and protections than the Participaattountry. If the Participant resides outsi
the United States, the Participant understands tinat or she may request a list with the names andradses of any potential recipients of
the Data by contacting his or her local human resees representative. The Participant authorizes thempany, UBS and any other
possible recipients which may assist the Compamgg¢pntly or in the future) with implementing, admistering and managing the Plan t
receive, possess, use, retain and transfer the Datalectronic or other form, for the sole purposé implementing, administering and
managing his or her participation in the Plan. Thearticipant understands that Data will be held on&s long as is necessary to implement,
administer and manage the Participant’s participati in the Plan. If the Participant resides outsidike United States, the Participant
understands that he or she may, at any time, vieatd) request additional information about the staya and processing of Data, require a
necessary amendments to Data or refuse or withdthesconsents herein, in any case without cost, bytacting in writing his or her local
human resources representative. Further, the Paigignt understands that the Participant is providirige consents herein on a purely
voluntary basis. If the Participant does not congeaor if the Participant later seeks to revoke hos her consent, the Participant’s
employment status or service and career with thetoyer will not be adversely affected; the only smauence of refusing or withdrawing
the Participant’s consent is that the Company wourdt be able to grant the Participant an LTI Gramatr other equity awards or administer
or maintain such Grants. The Participant also undgands that the Company has no obligation to sutagé other forms of Grants or
compensation in lieu of the LTI Grant as a conseaquee of the Participant’s refusal or withdrawal ofis or her consent. Therefore, the
Participant understands that refusing or withdrawinhis or her consent may affect the Participés ability to participate in the Plan. For
more information on the consequences of the Paignt’s refusal to consent or withdrawal of consettthe Participant understands that he
or she may contact the Participant’s local humans@urces representative.

11. Nontransferability of LTI GrantThe LTI Grant or the interests or rights thensiay not be transferred in any manner other thawithyr
by the laws of descent and distribution, and maybeo
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assigned, hypothecated or otherwise pledged adidnshide subject to execution, attachment or sinfirocess. Upon any attempt to effect an
such disposition, or upon the levy of any such ess¢in violation of the provisions herein, the IGriant shall immediately become null and
void and any rights to receive a payment undetfieGrant shall be forfeited.

12. Rights as ShareholdeNeither the Participant nor any person claimingar or through the Participant shall have anyhefrights or
privileges of a shareholder of the Company in respgany shares of Common Stock issuable herewndess and until certificates
representing such Common Stock (which may be iruificated form) will have been issued and recdrde the books and records of the
Company or its transfer agents or registrars, @tideted to the Participant (including through &ecic delivery to a brokerage account). A
such issuance, recordation and delivery, the Raatit shall have all the rights of a shareholdahefCompany, including with respect to the
right to vote the Common Stock and the right teeree any cash or share dividends or other disiobstpaid to or made with respect to the
Common Stock. Notwithstanding the foregoing, inadance with Section 9 of the Plan, the Company pagydividend equivalents on the
outstanding LTI Grant subject to such restrictiand conditions as the Committee may establish.

13. Adjustments For LTI Grants that are intended to constitutal@ied Performance-Based Compensation, the Pegoom Goals, as well as
the manner in which the LTI Award Payout is caltedbis subject to adjustment as provided in Sed{@i) of the Plan and the Notice. For LTI
Grants not intended to constitute Qualified Perfamge-Based Compensation, the Committee may makessgijiestments to one or more of the
Performance Goals, as well as the manner in whiel.TI Award Payout is calculated, as the Commiiteiés sole discretion deems
appropriate. The Participant shall be notifiedudlsadjustment and such adjustment shall be bingdog the Company and the Participant.

14. NO GUARANTEE OF CONTINUED EMPLOYMENTTHE PARTICIPANT HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES TAT THE
VESTING OF THE LTI GRANT PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONSF THE PLAN AND THIS AGREEMENT IS EARNED ONLY IF
THE PERFORMANCE GOALS ARE ATTAINED AND THE OTHER TRMS AND CONDITIONS SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT
AND THE PLAN ARE SATISFIED AND BY THE PARTICIPANT ONTINUING TO BE EMPLOYED (SUBJECT TO THE PROVISIONS
OF SECTION 3(b) HEREOF) AT THE WILL OF THE EMPLOYERND NOT THROUGH THE ACT OF BEING EMPLOYED BY THE
EMPLOYER, BEING GRANTED AN LTI GRANT, OR RECEIVIN&OMMON STOCK HEREUNDER). THE PARTICIPANT FURTHER
ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT THIS AGREEMENT, THE TANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREUNDER AND THE
RIGHT TO EARN A PAYMENT UNDER THE LTI GRANT SET FORH HEREIN DO NOT CONSTITUTE AN EXPRESS OR IMPLIED
PROMISE OF CONTINUED EMPLOYMENT DURING THE PERFORNNCE CYCLE, FOR ANY PERIOD, OR AT ALL, AND SHALL
NOT INTERFERE WITH THE PARTICIPAN’S RIGHT OR THE RIGHT OF THE EMPLOYER TO TERMINATEHE PARTICIPANT'S
EMPLOYMENT AT ANY TIME, WITH OR WITHOUT CAUSE AND N ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE EMPLOYMENT LAWS
OF THE COUNTRY WHERE THE PARTICIPANT RESIDES OR BETERPRETED AS FORMING AN EMPLOYMENT OR SERVICE
CONTRACT WITH THE EMPLOYER.

15. Entire Agreement; Governing Lawhe Notice, the Plan and this Agreement constitiue entire agreement of the parties with resyettte
subject matter hereof and supersede in their eéyptiteprior undertakings and agreements of the @amy and the Participant with respect tc
subject matter hereof, and may not be modified eshhe to the Participant’s interest except as rediin the Notice, the Plan or this
Agreement or by means of a writing signed by thenBany and the Participant. Nothing in the Notibe, Plan and this Agreement (except as
expressly provided therein) is intended to confgr @ghts or remedies on any persons other thapdhtées. The Notice, the Plan and this
Agreement are to be
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construed in accordance with and governed by thstaative laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia, LAS without giving effect to any
choice of law rule that would cause the applicatibthe laws of any jurisdiction other than the stalntive laws of the Commonwealth of
Virginia to the rights and duties of the partiesléss otherwise provided in the Notice, the Plathizr Agreement, the Participant is deemed tc
submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the Commaalth of Virginia, U.S.A., and agrees that sudhdition shall be conducted in the courts of
Henrico County, Virginia, or the federal courts fbe United States for the Eastern District of Vfiig.

16. Conformity to Securities LawsThe Participant acknowledges that the Notice Pfa@ and this Agreement are intended to confortheo
extent necessary with all provisions of the SemsiAct and the Exchange Act, and any and all edgaris and rules promulgated thereunde
the Commission, including, without limitation, Ruléb-3 under the Exchange Act. Notwithstanding anythiagein to the contrary, the Notic
the Plan and this Agreement shall be administered the LTI Grant is made, only in such a manngo a®nform to such laws, rules and
regulations. To the extent permitted by applicdéne the Notice, the Plan and this Agreement dtmlieemed amended to the extent nece
to conform to such laws, rules and regulations.

17. Administration and Interpretatiormhe terms and provisions of the Plan (a copy lwttvwill be made available online or furnishedhe
Participant upon written request to the Officetw Corporate Secretary, Monéelnternational, Inc., Three Parkway North, Deddfid¢llinois
60015) are incorporated herein by reference. T@ttent any provision in the Notice or this Agreetnis inconsistent or in conflict with any
term or provision of the Plan, the Plan shall govexcept as otherwise expressly set forth in tlyseA@ment. The LTI Grant, the vesting of the
LTI Grant and any issuance of Common Stock upomaeny of the LTI Grant are subject to, and shalhfministered in accordance with, the
provisions of the Plan, as the same may be amenaladtime to time. Any question or dispute regagdihe administration or interpretation of
the Notice, the Plan Agreement and this Agreemieait be submitted by the Participant or by the Camypto the Committee. The resolutior
such question or dispute by the Committee shdfinta¢ and binding on all persons.

18. Headings The captions used in the Notice and this Agre¢ramninserted for convenience and shall not bendéea part of the LTI Grant
for construction or interpretation.

19. Notices Any notice required or permitted hereunder sheal(i) given in writing and shall be deemed effsly given upon personal
delivery, upon deposit for delivery by an interpatilly recognized express mail courier servicepmrudeposit in the United States mail by
certified mail (if the parties are within the UnidtStates), with postage and fees prepaid, addrésdkd other party at its address as shown in
these instruments, or to such other address aspsusthmay designate in writing from time to tineethe other party or (ii) delivered
electronically through the Company’s electroniclnsgstem (including any notices delivered by ad¥party) and shall be deemed effectively
given upon such delivery. Any documents requiredeaiven or delivered to the Participant relatedurrent or future participation in the Plan
may also be delivered through electronic meansasribed in Section 26 below.

20. Successors and Assigrnhe Company may assign any of its rights underAlgreement to single or multiple assignees, &igl t
Agreement shall inure to the benefit of the suamesand assigns of the Company. Subject to theatshs on transfer herein set forth, this
Agreement shall be binding upon the Participantl@aar her heirs, executors, administrators, sssmes and assigns.

21. Severability Whenever feasible, each provision of the Notileis, Agreement and the Plan shall be interpretedigih manner as to be
effective and valid under applicable law, but ifgmovision in the Notice, the Plan or this Agreermis held to be prohibited by or invalid
under applicable law, such provision will be inetfee only to the extent of such prohibition or afidity, without invalidating the remainder of
the Notice, the Plan or this Agreement.
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22. Code Section 409AThis LTI Grant is intended to be exempt from 88td09A of the Code and shall be interpreted, afeer and
administered in a manner consistent with such infems Agreement may be amended at any time, withiee consent of any party, to avoid
the application of Section 409A of the Code in gipalar circumstance or that is necessary or dbkarto satisfy any of the requirements unde
Section 409A of the Code, but the Company shalbeainder any obligation to make any such amendrivathing in the Agreement or the
Plan shall provide a basis for any person to takiemagainst the Mondé&t Group based on matters covered by Section 409AeoCode,
including the tax treatment of any amount paid urtde LTI Grant made hereunder, and Moidébroup shall not under any circumstances
have any liability to any participant or his estateany other party for any taxes, penalties argdgt due on amounts paid or payable under thi
Agreement, including taxes, penalties or intenegtdsed under Section 409A of the Code.

23. No Advice Regarding LTI GranfThe Company is not providing any tax, legal aaficial advice, nor is the Company making any
recommendations regarding the Participant’s pawditdn in the Plan or the Participant’s acquisitiorsale of any shares of Common Stock
issued in payment of the LTI Grant. The Participartereby advised to consult with his or her owrspnal tax, legal and financial advisors
regarding the Participant’s participation in tharPbefore taking any action related to the Plan.

24. Language If the Participant has received this Agreemerdror other document related to the Plan translateda language other than
English and if the meaning of the translated verssadifferent than the English version, the Ergligrsion will control.

25. Appendix Notwithstanding any provisions in this Agreemehg LTI Grant shall be subject to any special teand conditions set forth in
Appendix A to this Agreement for the Participardtauntry. Moreover, if the Participant relocate®i@ of the countries included in
Appendix A, the special terms and conditions fartsaountry will apply to the Participant, to thaent the Company determines that the
application of such terms and conditions is neagssaadvisable for legal or administrative reas@Xgpendix A constitutes part of this
Agreement.

26. Electronic Delivery and Acceptanc&he Company may, in its sole discretion, decidédliver any documents related to current or futur
participation in the Plan by electronic means. Phaeticipant hereby consents to receive such doctstgrelectronic delivery and agrees to
participate in the Plan through any on-line or etatc system established and maintained by thegammy or a third party designated by the
Company.

27. Imposition of Other Requirement¥he Company reserves the right to impose othggrirements on the Participant’s participation ia th
Plan or on the LTI Grant and on any shares of Com8tock issued in payment of the LTI Grant, toekent the Company determines it is
necessary or advisable for legal or administratdzsons and to require the Participant to signaaltijtional agreements or undertakings that
may be necessary to accomplish the foregoing.

28. Insider Trading/Market Abuse Law$he Participant acknowledges that the Particiastibject to insider trading and/or market abuse
laws, which affect the Participant’s ability to age or sell shares of Common Stock under the Blaimg such times as the Participant is
considered to have “material nonpublic information™inside information” (as defined by the lawstive Participant’s country). The
Participant also acknowledges that the Particifgastibject to the Company’s insider trading polayd the requirements of applicable laws
may or may not be consistent with the terms of@benpany’s insider trading policy. The Participackrmowledges that it is his or her

responsibility to be informed of and compliant wathy such laws, and is hereby advised to spealstortiher personal advisor on this matter.
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29. Waiver. The Participant acknowledges that a waiver byGbmpany of a breach of any provision of this Agneet shall not operate or be
construed as a waiver of any other provision of fkgreement or of any subsequent breach by theiparit or any other participant of the
Plan.
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*kk

The Participant acknowledges that the Participant las reviewed the Plan, the Notice and this Agreeme(ihcluding any
appendices hereto) in their entirety and fully undestands their respective provisions. The Participahagrees to accept as binding,
conclusive and final all decisions or interpretatios of the Committee upon any questions arising unde¢he Plan, the Notice or this

Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been dulscexed as of the date of the Notice.

MONDELEZ INTERNATIONAL, INC.

/s/ Carol J. Ward

Carol J. Warc
Vice President and Corporate Secre’
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1. Definitions

M ONDELEZ | NTERNATIONAL , | NC.
C HANGE IN C ONTROL P LAN FOR K EY E XECUTIVES

For purposes of the Change in Control Plan for Eggcutives, the following terms are defined af@eh below (unless the context clearly

indicates otherwise):

2005 Plan

Annual Base
Salary

Board

Annual Incentive Award
Target

Cause

Change in Control

The Mondetz International, Inc. Amended and Restated 200fbHrance Incentive Plan, as amended from
time to time.

Twelve times the higher of:

(i) the highest monthly base salary paid orafide to the Participant by the MoneelGroup for the twelve-
month period immediately preceding the month incithe Change in Control occurs, or

(i) the highest monthly base salary in effecamy time thereafter,

in each case including any base salary that hasdemed and deferre
The Board of Directors of the Compal

The annual incentive award that the Participantldioeceive for a fiscal year under the Managemeogtive
Plan or any comparable annual incentive plan iftéinget goals were achieve

As defined in Section 3.2(b)(i) of this Ple

The occurrence of any of the following events:

(A) Acquisition of 20% or more of the outstandingting securities of the Company by another entitgroup;
excluding, however, the following:

(1) any acquisition by the Mondel Group;

(2) any acquisition by an employee benefit planetated trust sponsored or maintained by any ewniitlyin the
Mondekz Group; or

(3) any acquisition pursuant to a merger or codstitbn described in clause (C) of this definition.

(B) During any consecutive 24 month period, persehs constitute the Board at the beginning of Suetiod
cease to constitute at least 50% of the Board;igeohthat each new director who is approved by ity of
the directors serving at the beginning of the 2singeriod shall be deemed to have been a dirattbe
beginning of such 24 month peric



(C) The consummation of a merger or consolidatiothe Company with another company, and the
Company is not the surviving company; or, if atach transaction, the other entity owns, directly o
indirectly, 50% or more of the outstanding votirgurities of the Company; excluding, however, a
transaction pursuant to which all or substantiallyof the individuals or entities who are the bfésial
owners of the outstanding voting securities of@lmenpany immediately prior to such transaction will
beneficially own, directly or indirectly, more th&0% of the combined voting power of the outstagdin
securities entitled to vote generally in the elmt®f directors (or similar persons) of the entégulting
from such transaction (including, without limitatican entity which as a result of such transaaiwns
the Company either directly or indirectly) in sudogially the same proportions relative to each oése
their ownership, immediately prior to such trangagtof the outstanding voting securities of the
Company; or

(D) The consummation of a plan of complete liquinlabf the Company or the sale or disposition bf al
or substantially all of the Company’s assets othan a sale or disposition pursuant to which all or
substantially all of the individuals or entities evare the beneficial owners of the outstandingnepti
securities of the Company immediately prior to strelnsaction will beneficially own, directly or
indirectly, more than 50% of the combined votingweo of the outstanding securities entitled to vote
generally in the election of directors (or simitearsons) of the entity purchasing or acquiring the
Company’s assets in substantially the same praprtielative to each other as their ownership,
immediately prior to such transaction, of the autsling voting securities of the Company.

Code The U.S. Internal Revenue Cot

Committee The Board’s Human Resources and Compensation Cbeenany successor thereto or such other comnaittee
subcommittee as may be designated by the Boardintinéster the Plar

Company MondeEz International, Inc., a corporation organized urtte laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia, or any
successor theret

Date of Termination If the Participant’'s employment is terminated by:

(i) The Employer for Cause or by the Particiffan Good Reason, the Date of Termination shalihgedate
on which the Participant or the Employer, as treeaaay be, receives the Notice of Termination (as
described in Section 3.2(c)) or any later date ifipeldherein as the case may be.

(i) The Employer other than for Cause, deatDisability, the Date of Termination shall be thetelon which
the Employer notifies the Participant of such teration.
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Disability

Disability Effective
Date

Effective Date

Employer

Excise Tax

Good Reasor

Key Executive

Long-Term Incentive Grant
Target

Mondelez Group

Non-Competition
Agreement

(i) Reason of death or Disability, the Date armination shall be the date of death of the Fp#gid or the
Disability Effective Date, as the case may be.

Notwithstanding the above, in the event that thee@& Termination as determined above is not thedate or
which the Participant is employed by the Employtee, Participant’s Date of Termination shall be ldst date
on which the Participant is employed by the Empto

As defined in Section 3.2(b)(ii

As defined in Section 3.2(b)(ii).

April 24, 2007. The Plan was amended effective bdmr 31, 2009, October 2, 2012, May 21, 2014, Dées
4, 2014 and February 4, 20:

The Company or any entity in the Mongz Group.

The excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Cgdether with any interest or penalties imposét w
respect to such excise t

As defined in Section 3.2(¢

An employee who is employed on a regular basitheyEmployer and (i) is serving as the Company’'s
Chairman and/or Chief Executive Officer, (ii) isdag in an executive position that reports dirgtt the
Companys Chairman and/or Chief Executive Officer, (iii)serving as a Regional President of the Compal
(iv) is otherwise designated by the Committee aghd¢ to participate in this Pla

The award that the Participant would receive watspect to a performance cycle under the Mazdel
International, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (a-guén of the 2005 Plan) or any comparable incerpie@ or
any outstanding Lor-Term Incentive Grant under the 2005 Plan if thggaperformance goals were achiev

The Company and each of its subsidiaries and atfgi.

The agreement of a Participant not to, withoutGeenpany’s prior written consent, engage in anyégtor
provide any services, whether as a director, managpervisor, employee, adviser, consultant oemwtfse, for
a period of up to one (1) year following the Paptmt's Date of Termination, with a company that is
substantially competitive with a Mon@elGroup business; provided, that if the Particifgamost recent grant
agreement contains non-competition standards tbahare restrictive that apply to the Participantiofving
termination of employment, the standards in thahgagreement will supersede this provis
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Non-Solicitation The agreement of a Participant that he or shenwtlisolicit, directly or indirectly, any employeétbhe
Agreement MondeEz Group, or a surviving entity following a ChangeGontrol, to leave the Mond& Group and to work
for any other entity, whether as an employee, irddpnt contractor or in any other capacity, foeaqu of up
to one (1) year following the Participant's Datel@rmination; provided, that if the Participant'®sh recent
grant agreement contains non-solicitation standdwatsare more restrictive that apply to the Pgoaiat
following termination of employment, the standair¢hat grant agreement will supersede this promwis

Non-U.S. Executive A Key Executive whose designated home countryptoposes of the Employer’s personnel and benefits
programs and policies, is other than the UnitedeSt

Participant A Key Executive who meets the eligibility requirents of Section 2.1; provided, however that any-Nd8.
Executive who, under the laws of his or her degigshhlome country or the legally enforceable program
policies of the Employer in such designated homenty, is entitled to receive, in the event of taration of
employment (whether or not by reason of a Changgointrol), separation benefits at least equal oregate
amount to the Separation Pay prescribed underd®e®iB(b) of this Plan shall not be considered réi¢haant
for the purposes of this Pla

Payment Any payment or distribution in the nature of comgation (within the meaning of Section 280G(b)(®he
Code) to or for the benefit of the Participant, thiee paid or payable pursuant to this Plan or etfser.

Plan The Mondegz International, Inc. Change in Control Plan foryKexecutives, as set forth here

Plan Administrator The third-party accounting, actuarial, consultimgsimilar firm retained by the Company prior t€hange in

Control to administer this Plan following a Chariigé&ontrol.

Separation Benefits The amounts and benefits payable or required frddéded in accordance with Section 3.3 of thenPas
potentially modified by Section 3.

Separation Pay The amount or amounts payable in accordance witlid®e3.3(b) of this Plar

U.S. Executive A Participant whose designated home country, tmppses of the Employer’s personnel and benefidgnams
and policies, is the United Stat

For purposes of these definitions and the Planrefgyence to a statute also refers to any regulsgpromulgated with respect to the statute
any successor or amendment to the statute, regulatilegal standart
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2. Eligibility

2.1. Participation Except as set forth in the definition of Partasip above, each employee who is a Key Executiiheikffective Date shall
be a Participant in the Plan effective as of tHedfive Date and each other employee shall becoReticipant in the Plan effective as of the
date of the employee’s promotion or hire as a Kegdative or designation by the Committee as a Ejpatint.

2.2. Duration of ParticipationA Participant shall cease to be a ParticipatiiénPlan if (i) the Participant terminates emplopmeith the
Employer under circumstances not entitling him erto Separation Benefits or (ii) the Participathteowise ceases to be a Key Executive by
role or by action of the Committee. No Key Execatimay be removed from Plan participation in corninaatith or in anticipation of a Chan
in Control that actually occurs. A Participant wik@ntitled, as a result of ceasing to be a Keychttee of the Employer, to receive benefits
under the Plan shall remain a Participant in ttae RIhtil the amounts and benefits payable undePlie have been paid or provided to the
Participant in full.

3. Separation Benefits

3.1. Right to Separation Benefité Participant shall be entitled to receive frdm Employer the Separation Benefits as provided in
Section 3.3, if:

(1) a Change in Control has occurred,

(2) the Participant's employment by the Employeeisninated under circumstances specified in Se@&ié(a), whether the termination is
voluntary or involuntary, and

3
(i) such termination occurs after such Change intf@and on or before the second anniversary tfgos

(ii) such termination is reasonably demonstratethieyParticipant to have been initiated by a tpaidty that has taken steps reasonably
calculated to effect a Change in Control or otheeab have arisen in connection with or in antiégraof such Change in Control and
such Change in Control occurs within 90 days oftémmination.

For avoidance of doubt, no Separation Benefits lvalpayable to a U.S. Participant, until the U &tiBipant has a “separation from service”
within the meaning of Treasury Regulation § 1.408A) regardless of whether the U.S. Participantizaka termination of employment.
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3.2. Termination of Employment

(a) Terminations that give rise to Separation Benefitader this Plan.The circumstances specified in this Section 3.@(@)any termination
of employment with the Employer by action of themdekz Group or by a Participant for Good Reason, dtii@n as set forth in
Section 3.2(b) below. For purposes of this P*Good Reasc” shall mean

(i) the assignment to the Participant of any dusigsstantially inconsistent with the Participamiésition, authority, duties or
responsibilities in effect immediately prior to tBdange in Control, or any other action by the MegmGroup that results in a
marked diminution in the Participé s position, authority, duties or responsibilitiegcluding for this purpost

a. changes in the Participant’s position, authodtyties or responsibilities that are consisterihwie Participant’s education,
experience, etc.; ar

b. an isolated, insubstantial and inadvertent aatiat taken in bad faith and that is remedied leyNtondetz Group promptly
after receipt of notice thereof given by the Partat;

(i) any material reduction in the Participant'ssbasalary, annual incentive or long-term incentipportunity as in effect immediately
prior to the Change in Contrc

(iii) the MondeEz Group’s requiring the Participant to be baseaigtoffice or location other than any other locatibat does not
extend the Participa’s home to work commute as of the time of the Cham@ontrol by more than 50 miles;

(iv) any failure by the Company to require any ®s3or (whether direct or indirect, by purchase geerconsolidation or otherwise) to
all or substantially all of the business and/oetssf the Company to assume expressly and agpsfiarm this Plan in the same
manner and to the same extent that the ComparedEmployer would be required to perform it if nels succession had taken
place, as and to the extent required by Sectic

In order for a Participant to terminate employmfentGood Reason, the Participant must notify then@any of any event purporting to
constitute Good Reason within 45 days following Blaeticipant’s knowledge of its existence. If then@pany or the Employer fails to take full
corrective action within 30 days of the Participamiotice, the Participant’s termination of emplambwill constitute Good Reason for
purposes of this Plan.

(b) Terminations that DO NOT give rise to Separation idits under this Plan Notwithstanding Section 3.2(a), if a Participant’s
employment is terminated for Cause or Disability ff@ose terms are defined below) or as a restitteoParticipant’s death, or the
Participant terminates his or her own employmehénthan for Good Reason, the Participant shalbeantitled to Separation Benefits
under the Plan, regardless of the occurrence dfan@e in Control

(i) Atermination for*Caus” shall have occurred where a Participant is terrethdecause o

a. Continued failure to substantially perform ttatieipant’s job’s duties (other than resultingrfrincapacity due to
disability);



(©)

(ii)

b. Gross negligence, dishonesty, or violation gof @asonable rule or regulation of the Mordebroup where the violation
results in significant damage to the Moréz Group; ol

C. Engaging in other conduct that adversely refleotthe Mondegz Group in any material respe

A termination upon Disability shall have occed where a Participant is absent from the Pasdidip duties with the Employer on a
full-time basis for 180 consecutive days as a tesfuihcapacity due to mental or physical illnedsiet is determined to be total and
permanent by a physician selected by the Compaitg orsurers and acceptable to the ParticipatheParticipant’s legal
representative. In such event, the Participantplepment with the Employer shall terminate effeeton the 30th day after receipt
of such notice by the Participant (the “Disabiliiffective Date”),provided that, within the 30 days after such ret;efe Participan
shall not have returned to f-time performance of the Particip’s duties

Notice of termination.Any termination of employment initiated by the Eimoyer for Cause, or by the Participant for Good Reashall
be communicated by a Notice of Termination to ttreepparty. For purposes of this Plan, a “Noticd efmination” means a written
notice that

(i)
(ii)

(i)

indicates the specific termination provision instRilan relied upor

to the extent applicable, sets forth in reemde detail the facts and circumstances claimgutdeide a basis for termination of the
Participan’s employment under the provision so indicated,

specifies the date upon which the Participariermination of employment is expected to occuri¢v date shall be not more than
days after the giving of such notice), providedybwer, that such specified date shall not be censitithe Date of Termination for
any purpose of this Plan if such date differs frim Participar's actual Date of Terminatio

The failure by the Participant or the Employerdoferth in the Notice of Termination any fact accamstance that contributes to a
showing of Good Reason or Cause shall not waiveighy of the Participant or the Employer, respeslti, hereunder or preclude the
Participant or the Employer, respectively, fromeasag such fact or circumstance in enforcing thetiBipant’s or the Employer’s rights
hereunder.

3.3._Separation Benefit.a Participant’s employment is terminated undier tircumstances set forth in Section 3.2(a) émgithe Participant
to Separation Benefits, and if the Participant sigiNon-Competition Agreement and a Non-Solicitatigreement, the Company shall pay or
provide, as the case may be, to the Participarditi@unts and benefits set forth in items (a) thno{figbelow (the “Separation Benefits”):

(@)

The Employer shall pay to the Participant, in apusum in cash within 30 days after the Date of Tieation (or, if later, 30 days after t
date of the Change in Control), or on such latée da required under Section 3.3(g), the sur

(A) the Participant’'s Annual Base Salary through rate of Termination to the extent not theretofmail, plus
8



(b)

()

(B) the product of (x) the Participant’s Annual émtive Award Target and (y) a fraction, the numaraf which is the number of
days in the current fiscal year through the Dat€ermination and the denominator of which is 3dGsp

(C) the product of (x) the value equal to the peidf (i) the target number of shares under théi¢pant's Long-Term Incentive
Grant Target multiplied by (ii) the closing shar&cp of the Common Stock (as defined in the 20@mPon the last trading day
immediately preceding the closing date of the CleangControl; provided, however, if the Long-Ternténtive Grant Target is
denominated and payable in cash, then the valuegukl the target cash value and (y) a fractioa,numerator of which is the
number of days the Participant has been activelyi@yed during the applicable performance cycleubtothe Participant’ Date o
Termination and the denominator of which is thaltaumber of days in the performance cycle, plysatrued but unpaid
dividend equivalents on the Participant’s Long-Téncentive Grant Target up to the date of the ClandControl, plus

(D) any accrued vacation pay, in each case toxtemnenot theretofore paid.
The sum of the amounts described in sub clausegB})(C) and (D) shall be referred to as the “Amal Obligations”.

The Employer also shall pay to the Participang lump sum in cash within 30 days after theeDxtTermination (or, if later, 30 days
after the date of the Change in Control), or orhdater date as required under Section 3.3(g) navuat (“Separation Pay”) equal to the
product of (A) two (or in the case of a Participatip served as Chairman and/or Chief Executivec@®ffimmediately prior to the Char
in Control, 2.99) and (B) the sum of (x) the Paptimt’'s Annual Base Salary and (y) the ParticipaAthnual Incentive Award Target,
reduced (but not below zero) in the case of anyidiaant who is a NorJ.S. Executive by the U.S. dollar equivalent (d@ieed as of th
Participant’s Date of Termination) of any paymemtsde to the Participant under the laws of his odesignated home country or any
program or policy of the Employer in such countryazcount of the Particip¢ s termination of employmer

Solely with respect to U.S. Participants, feotyears after the Participant’'s Date of Termirmafor, if later, the date of the Change in
Control), (or in the case of a Participant who edras Chairman and/or Chief Executive Officer imiatedy prior to the Change in
Control, three years), or such longer period as beagrovided by the terms of the appropriate ptaogram, practice or policy, the
Employer shall continue welfare benefits to thetiBi@ant and/or the Participant’s family at leagtial to those that would have been
provided to them in accordance with the plans, Eog, practices and policies (including, withouatitation, medical, prescription,
dental, disability, employee/spouse/child life irmce, executive life, estate preservation (secosttie life insurance) and travel accid
insurance plans and programs), as if the Partitppamployment had not been terminated, or, if nfav®rable to the Participant, as in
effect generally at any time thereafter with respeother peer executives of the MorideGroup and their families; provided, however,
that if the Participant becomes reemployed \



(d)

()

another employer and is eligible to receive medicalther welfare benefits under another employexiged plan, the medical and other
welfare benefits described herein shall be secgridathose provided under such other plan durirgpspplicable period of eligibility.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the reimbursement®BRA coverage can be provided, at the Com'’s sole discretion, in the form @
lump sum taxable severance payment in lieu of a R®Bubsidy if the COBRA subsidy is found to be disgnatory pursuant to
applicable guidance. The period of continuatioam§ group medical plan coverage under Section 4480Be Code (the “COBRA
Period”) shall run concurrently during the periad ¥vhich medical coverage is provided to the Pguaiat pursuant to this Section 3.3(c).
The provision of medical coverage made during tRBRA Period is intended to qualify for the exceptio deferred compensation as a
medical benefit provided in accordance with thevimions of Section 409A of the Code and TreasurguRaion 81.409A-1(b)(9)(v)(B).
Any reimbursements required to be made to a Ppatitiunder any arrangement pursuant to this Se8t&{g) that is not described in the
preceding sentence or is not excepted from Sedti@A of the Code under Treasury Regulation § 1.4088(5) shall be made to the
Participant no later than the end of the Partidijgasecond taxable year following the date the espebeing reimbursed was incurred.
The maximum amount of any such welfare benefityigea to a Participant under this provision in @ajendar year shall not be
increased or decreased to reflect the amount of wetfare benefits provided to such Participantarrttis provision in a prior or
subsequent calendar year. For purposes of detemgniihé Participant’s eligibility for retiree bertsfpursuant to such welfare plans,
practices, programs and policies, the Participhall e considered to have remained employed twmilyears (or in the case of a
Participant who served as Chairman and/or Chietttiee Officer immediately prior to the Change iar@rol, three years) after the Date
of Termination; provided, however, that the Papticit's commencement of such retiree benefits slodlbe any sooner than the date on
which the Participant attains 55 years of age aodiged, further, that the Participant’s costs uratey such retiree benefits plans,
practices, programs or policies shall be based aptural service with the Mon€z Group.

The Employer shall, at its sole expense, pm@W Participant with outplacement services thinaiwg provider of the Company’s choice,
the scope of which shall be chosen by the Partitipahis or her sole discretion within the ternngl @onditions of the Company’s
outplacement services policy as in effect immetligteor to the Change in Control, but in no evehall such outplacement services
continue for more than two years after the calegdar in which the Participant terminates employtr

The Employer shall, for two years after thetiegrant’s Date of Termination (or in the case d?aticipant who served as Chairman
and/or Chief Executive Officer immediately priorttee Change in Control, three years), or aftei@hange in Control, if later, or such
longer period as may be provided by the terms @fibpropriate perquisite, continue to provide thepisites at least equal to those that
the Employer would have provided to the Participargccordance with the perquisites in effect imratady prior to the Change in
Control; provided
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(f)

(9)

(h)

however, that the maximum value of perquisites jgied to a Participant under this provision in aajeadar year shall not be increased
or decreased to reflect the value of perquisitesiged to such Participant under this provisiom jprior or subsequent calendar year. .
reimbursements to a Participant for costs assatiaith such continued perquisites shall be madieter than the end of the Participant’
second taxable year following the date the Paditifncurred such cost. This clause does not apgbgrsonal use of the Company
aircraft to the extent that this perquisite isfifeet for any Key Executive immediately prior teetichange in Contro

To the extent not theretofore paid or providia, Employer shall pay or provide to the Partinipat the time otherwise payable, any
other amounts or benefits accrued as of the Paattitis termination of employment and required tghil or provided or that the
Participant is eligible to receive under any plamgram, policy or practice or contract or agreenoéithe Mondegz Group.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Participast“specified employee” within the meaning of Sect#li®A of the Code, then (i) any
payments described in Sections 3.3(a) and (b)thiea€ompany determines constitute the payment dualified deferred compensatic
within the meaning of Section 409A of the Code Jldadelayed and become payable within five ddiex she six-month anniversary of
the Participant’s termination of employment aniidity benefits provided under Sections 3.3(c) a)dhat the Company determines
constitute the payment of nonqualified deferred pensation, within the meaning of Section 409A ef @ode, shall be provided at the
Participant’s sole cost during the six-month pead@r the date of the Participant’'s terminatioreofployment, and within five days after
the expiration of such period the Company shathkeirse the Participant for the portion of such £pstyable by the Company pursuant
to Sections 3.3(c) and (e) here

For all purposes under the applicable Compamyqualified defined benefit pension plan, the Campshall credit the Participant with
two (or in the case of a Participant who serve@laagirman and/or Chief Executive Officer immediatetior to the Change in Control,
three) additional years of service and shall adul (v in the case of a Participant who served a&r@tan and/or Chief Executive Officer
immediately prior to the Change in Control, thrgears to the Participe’s age

3.4. [Reserved].
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3.5. Potential Reduction in Payments for Certairti€pants.

(@)

(b)

Anything in this Plan to the contrary notwitiistling, with respect to any Participant who ista@n or resident of the United States, in
the event (1) a Change in Control occurs and (2pimection with such Change in Control it shaldle¢ermined that any Payment would
be subject to the Excise Tax, then the aggregatm@as to the Participant will be the greater pb(i(ii) below, after taking into account
the Excise Tax and the applicable income and empéoy taxes payable by the Participz

(i) The full amount of the Payments,
(i)  An amount (th¢‘'Reduced Amour”) that is one dollar less than the smallest amowttvtiould give rise to any Excise T

The Mondetz Group will bear no responsibility for any ExciBax payable on any Reduced Amount pursuant to sesutent claim by
the Internal Revenue Service or otherwise. For geep of determining the Reduced Amount under thitiéh 3.5(a), amounts otherwise
payable to the Participant under the Plan shalktdaced, to the extent necessary, in the followirtigr: first, Separation Pay under
Section 3.3(b), then Accrued Obligations payabl@enrSection 3.3(a), other than Annual Base Salagugh the Date of Termination,
followed by outplacement services payable undeti@e8.3(d), welfare benefits payable under SecB@{c), and, finally, perquisites
payable under Section 3.3(e). In the event that seductions are not sufficient to reduce the aggpe Payments to the Participant to the
Reduced Amount, then Payments due the Participaderiany other plan shall be reduced in the ord&arthined by the Plan
Administrator in its sole discretion.

All determinations required to be made undes 8ection 3.5, including whether Reduced Amoumpiaigable, and the assumptions to be
utilized in arriving at such determinations, shelmade by the Company’s independent auditorsalr sther nationally recognized
certified public accounting firm as may be desigdaty the Company and approved by the Particighat‘Accounting Firm”), which
shall provide detailed supporting calculations otthe Company and the Participant within 15 beséndays of the receipt of notice fi
the Participant that there has been a Paymenticbresarlier time as is requested by the ComparnyeAs and expenses of the Accoun
Firm shall be borne solely by the Company. Any deteation by the Accounting Firm shall be bindingom the Monde&iz Group and th
Participant

3.6. Payment Obligations Absolutépon a Change in Control and termination of empleghunder the circumstances described in Sectibn 3
(a), the obligations of the Mondel Group to pay or provide the Separation Benefitdl e absolute and unconditional and shall not be
affected by any circumstances, including, withauithtion, any set-off, counterclaim, recoupmermfehse or other right that the Mongel
Group may have against any Participant. In no esleall a Participant be obligated to seek otherleynpent or take any other action by wa
mitigation of the amounts payable to a Participamder any of the provisions of this Plan, nor stt@lamount of any payment or value of any
benefits hereunder be reduced by any compensatioenefits earned by a Participant as a resulimgfl@eyment by another employer, excep
specifically provided under Section 3.3.

3.7. NonCompetition and NotSolicitation.Upon a Change in Control and termination of emplegitrunder the circumstances described in
Section 3.2(a), the obligations of the Mor&@eGroup to pay or provide the Separation Benefiéscantingent on the
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Participant’s adhering to the Non-Competition Agneat and the Non-Solicitation Agreement. ShouldRbgicipant violate the Non-
Competition Agreement or Non-Solicitation Agreemehé Participant will be obligated to pay backhte Employer the net amounts payable
to the Participant pursuant to this Plan and th@layer will have no further obligation to pay tharfcipant any payments that may be
remaining due under this Plan.

3.8. NonDisparagementJpon a Change in Control and termination of emplegtrunder the circumstances described in Sect(a)3 the
obligations of the Mondat Group to pay or provide the Separation Benefitscantingent on the Participant’'s adhering toaiemon-
disparagement provisions. The Participant agressitle Participant will not disparage, discredibtrerwise treat in a detrimental manner the
Mondekz Group or its officers, directors and employees.

3.9 General Release of Clainipon a Change in Control and termination of emplegtrunder the circumstances described in Sectia)3.
the obligations of the Mond& Group to pay or provide the Separation Benefiéiscantingent on the Participant’s (for him/herski/her

heirs, legal representatives and assigns) execatidmon-revocation of a general release in thm fond substance to be provided by Employe
with the general release becoming effective andme@ncable within 30 days (52 days if Participam¢’snination of employment occurs as the
result of a group termination) following the Paigignt’s termination of employment and receipt @& tfeneral release, releasing the Mogdel
Group and its officers, directors, agents and eygae from any claims or causes of action of ang Kiat the Participant might have against
any one or more of them as of the date of this&sleregarding his/her employment or the terminatgfahat employment. The Participant
understands that this Release applies to all cléiie might have under any federal, state or Istzdlte or ordinance, or the common law, for
employment discrimination, wrongful discharge, loteaf contract, violations of Title VII of the CiMRights Act of 1964, the Civil Rights Act
of 1991, the Age Discrimination in Employment Aitte Older Workers Benefit Protection Act, the Enygle Retirement Income Security Act,
the Americans With Disabilities Act, or the Famélgd Medical Leave Act, and all other claims relatedny way to Participant's employment
or the termination of that employment.

3.10._NonExclusivity of RightsNothing in this Plan shall prevent or limit the f@pant’s continuing or future participation inyaplan,
program, policy or practice provided by the MordeBroup and for which the Participant may qualifgr, subject to Section 6.2, shall
anything herein limit or otherwise affect such tghs the Participant may have under any contramgi@ement with the Mond&l Group.
Amounts or benefits that the Participant is otheeagntitled to receive under any plan, policy, ficacor program of or any contract or
agreement with the Mond Group will be payable in accordance with suci pgelicy, practice or program or contract or agreet, except
as explicitly modified by this Plan.

4. Successor to Company

This Plan shall bind any successor of the Compigsassets or its businesses (whether direct areictg by purchase, merger, consolidation or
otherwise), in the same manner and to the sametekia the Mondék Group would be obligated under this Plan if nocassion had taken
place.
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In the case of any transaction in which a successaid not by the foregoing provision or by opesatof law be bound by this Plan, the
Company shall require such successor expresslymrwohditionally to assume and agree to perfornMbadekEz Group’s obligations under
this Plan, in the same manner and to the sameteki@rthe Company would be required to performoifsuch succession had taken place. Th
term “Company,” as used in this Plan, shall meaGbmpany as hereinbefore defined and any succesassignee to the business or assets
that by reason hereof becomes bound by this Plan.

5. Duration, Amendment and Termination

5.1. Duration This Plan shall remain in effect until terminatesiprovided in Section 5.2. Notwithstanding thedming, if a Change in Conti
occurs, this Plan shall continue in full force affitct and shall not terminate or expire until aél Participants who become entitled to any
payments or benefits hereunder shall have recaiveld payments or benefits in full.

5.2. Amendment and TerminatioThe Plan may be terminated or amended in anyotdyy resolution adopted by the Committee unless a
Change in Control has previously occurred. Howeafter the Board has knowledge of a possible ti@imwaor event that if consummated
would constitute a Change in Control, this Plan malybe terminated or amended in any manner thatdadversely affect the rights or
potential rights of Participants, unless and uhtl Board has determined that all transactionyents that, if consummated, would constitute &
Change in Control have been abandoned and wibeaonsummated, and, provided that the Board datdsave knowledge of other
transactions or events that, if consummated, wooltstitute a Change in Control. If a Change in @drdccurs, the Plan shall no longer be
subject to amendment, change, substitution, deletevocation or termination in any respect thateaskely affects the rights of Participants,
and no Participant shall be removed from Plan gpgtion.

6. Miscellaneous

6.1. Leqgal FeesThe Company agrees to pay, to the full exteningezd by law, all legal fees and expenses thaPd@mticipant may reasonably
incur as a result of any contest by the Moazl&roup, the Participant or others of the validityenforceability of, or liability under, any
provision of this Plan or any guarantee of perfarogathereof (including as a result of any contgghle Participant about the amount of any
payment pursuant to this Plan), plus in each aasedst on any delayed payment at the applicaldergérate provided for in Section 7872(f)
(2)(A) of the Code; provided that the Company shalle no obligation under this Section 6.1 to tktere the resolution of any such contest
includes a finding denying, in total, the Participa claims in such contest.
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6.2. Employment StatusThis Plan does not constitute a contract of egmpknt or impose on the Participant, the CompartheParticipant’s
Employer any obligation to retain the Participasiba employee, to change the status of the Pamtitgpemployment as an “at will” employee,
or to change the Mond& Group’s policies regarding termination of empl@ymrh

6.3. Tax Withholding The Employer may withhold from any amounts pagabider this Plan such taxes as shall be requirbd tvithheld
pursuant to any applicable law or regulation agmeined by the Employer in its sole discretion.

6.4. Validity and Severability The invalidity or unenforceability of any provisi of the Plan shall not affect the validity or @mkability of an'
other provision of the Plan, which shall remairitith force and effect, and any prohibition or unerieability in any jurisdiction shall not
invalidate or render unenforceable such provisioany other jurisdiction.

6.5. Governing Law The validity, interpretation, construction andfpemance of the Plan shall in all respects be goee by the laws of the
Commonwealth of Virginia, without reference to miples of conflict of law.

6.6. Section 409A of the Codé&he Plan shall be interpreted, construed andabpéro reflect the intent of the Company thatafiects of the
Plan shall be interpreted either to be exempt fitmenprovisions of Section 409A of the Code or hi ¢éxtent subject to Section 409A of the
Code, comply with Section 409A of the Code. Notsiémding anything to the contrary in Section this Plan may be amended at any time,
without the consent of any Participant, to avoid dpplication of Section 409A of the Code in aipatar circumstance or to the extent
determined necessary or desirable to satisfy amlyeofequirements under Section 409A of the CodetHe Employer shall not be under any
obligation to make any such amendment. NothindnénRIlan shall provide a basis for any person te &adtion against the Employer based on
matters covered by Section 409A of the Code, innlyithe tax treatment of any amount payable urfieiPian, and the Employer shall not
under any circumstances have any liability to aastiBipant or other person for any taxes, penatiréaterest due on amounts paid or payable
under the Plan, including taxes, penalties or @geimposed under Section 409A of the Code.

6.7 Claim Procedurelf an individual makes a written request allegingght to receive Separation Benefits under the Br alleging a right to
receive an adjustment in benefits being paid utftePlan, the Company shall treat it as a clainbémefits. All claims for Separation Benefits
under the Plan shall be sent to the General Cowfiské Company and must be received within 30 ddigs the Date of Termination. If the
Company determines that any individual who hagwai a right to receive Separation Benefits undePtlan is not entitled to receive all or a
part of the benefits claimed, it will inform theaghant in writing of its determination and the rers therefore in terms calculated to be
understood by the claimant. The notice will be seithin 90 days of the written request, unless@oenpany determines additional time, not
exceeding 90 days, is needed and provides the ataiwith notice, during the initial 9@ay period, of the circumstances requiring the resite
of time and the length of the extension. The natitall make specific reference to the pertinent Plavisions on which the denial is
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based, and describe any additional material orimétion that is necessary. Such notice shall, ditaah, inform the claimant what procedure
the claimant should follow to take advantage ofréhgew procedures set forth below in the eventtagnant desires to contest the denial of
the claim. The claimant may within 90 days themrasubmit in writing to the Plan Administrator atice that the claimant contests the deni
his or her claim by the Company and desires adunthview. The Plan Administrator shall within 68yd thereafter review the claim and
authorize the claimant to appear personally anvethe pertinent documents and submit issues amonents relating to the claim to the
persons responsible for making the determinatiohedvalf of the Plan Administrator. The Plan Admirasor will render its final decision with
specific reasons therefor in writing and will tramisit to the claimant within 60 days of the writteequest for review, unless the Plan
Administrator determines additional time, not exdirg 60 days, is heeded, and so notifies the clatidaring the initial 60-day period. If the
Plan Administrator fails to respond to a claimdile accordance with the foregoing within 60 daysigy such extended period, the Plan
Administrator shall be deemed to have denied thienclIThe Committee may revise the foregoing prooesias it determines necessary to
comply with changes in the applicable U.S. Depantnoé Labor regulations.

6.8. Unfunded Plan Statudhis Plan is unfunded and is intended to qua#ya severance pay plan within the meaning of LBlepartment
Regulations Section 2510.3-2(b). All payments pansuo the Plan shall be made from the generaldwfidhe Employer and no special or
separate fund shall be established or other sefipagz assets made to assure payment. No Pamicipaother person shall have under any
circumstances any interest in any particular prigpar assets of the Mondel Group as a result of participating in the Plaotwithstanding th
foregoing, the Committee may authorize the creatioinusts or other arrangements to assist in aotating funds to meet the obligations
created under the Plan; provided, however, thaéssrthe Committee otherwise determines, the exstef such trusts or other arrangemer
consistent with the “unfunded” status of the Plan.

6.9. Reliance on Adoption of PlarSubject to Section 5.2, each person who shatibeca Key Executive shall be deemed to have semweéd
continue to serve in such capacity in reliance upenChange in Control provisions contained in Ean.

6.10. Plan Supersedes Prior U.S. Arrangements the period of two years following the occaae of a Change in Control, the provisions of
this Plan shall supersede, with respect to U.Sidjzants, any and all plans, programs, policies amangements of the MondelGroup
providing severance benefits.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this ®ldoe executed by its duly authorized officeeefive as of the Effective
Date set forth above.

MONDEL EZ INTERNATIONAL, INC.

By: /s/ Karen May

Karen May

Executive Vice President, Global Human
Resource:

[ Sgnature Page to the Mondeléz International, Inc. Change in Control Plan for Key Executives as Amended February 4, 2015]
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EXHIBIT 12.1
Mondel €z International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges
(in millions of dollars)

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Earnings from continuing operations before income taxes $ 2554 $ 2392 $ 1,774 $ 1,880 $ 726
Add / (Deduct):
Equity in net earnings of less than 50% owned affiliates (112) (207) (106) (84) (115)
Dividends from less than 50% owned affiliates 61 66 63 60 61
Fixed charges 965 1,145 2,323 2,050 2,209
Interest capitalized, net of amortization 3) (2) () 2 2
Earnings available for fixed charges $ 3465 $ 3494 $ 4,053 $ 3,908 $ 2,883
Fixed charges:
Interest incurred:
Interest expense @ $ 882 $ 1,031 $ 2206 $ 1956 $ 2,098
Capitalized interest 3 2 3 - 1
885 1,033 2,209 1,956 2,099
Portion of rent expense deemed to represent interest factor 80 112 114 94 110
Fixed charges $ 965 $ 1,145 $ 2,323 $ 2,050 $ 2,209
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 3.6 3.1 1.7 1.9 1.3

Notes:
(a) Excludes interest related to uncertain tax positions, which is recorded in our tax provision.



Mondeléz International, Inc.

Subsidiaries — 2014

Exhibit 21.1

Entity Name Country
LU Algerie S.p.A. Algeria
Cadbury Bebidas De Argentina S. Argentina
Mondelez Argentina S./ Argentina
Nabisco Inversiones S.R. Argentina
Van Mar SA Argentina
Cadbury Finance Pty Limite Australia
Cadbury Marketing Services Pty Limit Australia
General Foods Pty. Lt Australia
KF (Australia) Pty. Ltd Australia
Kraft Jacobs Suchard (Australia) Pty. L Australia
Lanes Biscuits Pty. Ltc Australia
Lanes Food (Australia) Pty. Lt Australia
MacRobertson Pty Limite Australia
Mondelez Australia (Foods) Li Australia
Mondelez Australia Group Co Pty L Australia
Mondelez Australia Group Investments Australia
Mondelez Australia Holdings Pty. Lt Australia
Mondelez Australia Investments Pty L Australia
Mondelez Australia Pty. Ltc Australia
Mondelez New Zealand Holdings (Australia) Pty. L Australia
Recaldent Pty Lt Australia
The Natural Confectionery Co. Pty L Australia
Kraft Foods CEEMA Gmb} Austria
Mirabell Salzburger Confisel-und Bisquit GmbF Austria
Mondelez Oesterreich Gmk Austria
Mondelez Oesterreich Production Gm Austria
Fulmer Corporation Limite: Bahamas
Mondelez Bahrain Biscuits WL Bahrain
Mondelez Bahrain W.L.L Bahrain
LLC Jacobs Be Belarus
OO0OO Mondelez International B Belarus
Cadbury Belgium BVBA Belgium
Confibel SPRL Belgium
Kraft Foods Belgium Intellectual Propel Belgium
Kraft Foods Belgium Production Holdings BVE Belgium
Kraft Foods Production Holdings Maatsct Belgium
Mondelez Belgium Biscuits Production N Belgium
Mondelez Belgium BVBA Belgium
Mondelez Belgium Manufacturing Services BV Belgium
Mondelez Belgium Production BVB. Belgium

Mondelez Belgium Services BVB

Belgium



Mondeléz International, Inc.
Subsidiaries — 2014

Entity Name Country
Mondelez Namur Production SP¥ Belgium
Mondelez de Alimentos Bolivia S.R Bolivia
Mondelez International de Alimentos S.R Bolivia
Cadbury Botswana (Proprietary) Limit Botswang
Cadbury Confy (Proprietary) Limite Botswang
K&S Alimentos S.A. Brazil
Lacta Alimentos Ltda Brazil
Mondelez Brasil Ltda Brazil
Mondelez Brasil Norte Nordeste Ltc Brazil
Taloca Cafe Ltde Brazil
Mondelez Bulgaria EOOI Bulgaria
Mondelez Bulgaria Holding Al Bulgaria
Mondelez Bulgaria Production EOC Bulgaria
152999 Canada In Canade
3072440 Nova Scotia Compa Canade
MCI Finance Inc Canads
Mondelez Asia Pacific (Alberta) GP UL Canade
Mondelez Canada Holdings Two UL Canade
Mondelez Canada Holdings UL Canade
Mondelez Canada In Canade
TCI Realty Holdings Inc Canade
Cadbury Stani Adams Chile Productos Alimenticiositada Chile
Mondelez Chile S.A Chile
Cadbury Confectionery (Guangzhou) Co., Limi China
Cadbury Food Co. Limited Chir China
Cadbury Marketing Services Co Ltd Shang China
Kraft Tianmei Food (Tianjin) Co. Ltc China
Mondelez Beijing Food Co., Lt China
Mondelez China Co., Lt China
Mondelez Guangzhou Food Company Limi China
Mondelez Jiangmen Food Co., L China
Mondelez Shanghai Food Co., L China
Mondelez Shanghai Foods Corporate Management @b. China
Mondelez Suzhou Food Co., Li China
Nabisco Food (Suzhou) Co. Lt China
Industria de Colores y Sabores S./ Colombia
Kraft Foods Colombia S.A.¢ Colombia
Mondelez Colombia S.A.¢ Colombia
Servicios Comerciales Colombia S, Colombia
Taloca y Cia Ltda Colombia
El Gallito Industrial, S.A Costa Rice



Mondeléz International, Inc.
Subsidiaries — 2014

Entity Name Country
Mondelez Costa Rica Limitac Costa Rice
Mondelez Zagreb d.o.: Croatia
Gum Management Services L Cyprus

Mondelez CR Biscuit Production s.r
Mondelez CR Coffee Production s.r
Mondelez Czech Republic s.r

Opavia Lu s.r.o

Kraft Foods Danmark Intellectual Property A
Mondelez Danmark Ap.

Mondelez Danmark Kaffe Ap

Mondelez Dominicana, S./

Mondelez Ecuador Cia. Ltd

Cadbury Egypt for Importatio

Mondelez Egypt Foods S.A.

Mondelez Egypt Trading LL(

Mondelez El Salvador, Ltda. de C.

Mondelez Eesti Osauhir

Kraft Foods Finland Production C

Mondelez Finland OY

Cadbury France SA

Generale Biscuit Glico Franc

Generale Biscuit SA

Kraft Foods France Biscuit S.A.

Kraft Foods France Intellectual Property S./
Mondelez France Antilles Guyane Distribution S
Mondelez France Biscuit Distribution S/
Mondelez France Biscuits Production S
Mondelez France Commercial 1 S.A
Mondelez France Confectionery Production £
Mondelez France Ocean Indien Distribution £
Mondelez France R&D SA

Mondelez France S.A.!

Mondelez Laverune Production S.N
Mondelez Strasbourg Production S.N

LLC Jacobs Georgi

Mondelez Georgia LL(

Carlton Lebensmittel Vertriebs Gmt

Don Snack Foods Handelsgesellschaft Gr
Johann Jacobs Gmk

Kraft Foods Deutschland Biscuits Grundstuecksveammals GmbH & Co. KC
Kraft Foods Deutschland Holding Gmt

Czech Republi
Czech Republi
Czech Republi
Czech Republi
Denmark
Denmark
Denmark
Dominican Republi
Ecuadot

Egypt

Egypt

Egypt

El Salvadol
Estonia
Finland
Finland

France

France

France

France

France

France

France

France

France

France

France

France

France

France

France
Georgia
Georgia
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany

Germany



Mondeléz International, Inc.
Subsidiaries — 2014

Entity Name Country
Kraft Foods Deutschland Holding Grundstuecksvemwejs GmbH & Co. KC Germany
Kraft Foods Deutschland Intellectual Property GnmbiBo. KG Germany
Kraft Foods Deutschland Production Grundstuecksakangs GmbH & Co. KC Germany
Mondelez Deutschland Biscuits Production Grr Germany
Mondelez Deutschland Coffee Gml Germany
Mondelez Deutschland Gmk Germany
Mondelez Deutschland Production GmbH & Co. Germany
Mondelez Deutschland Professional G Germany
Mondelez Deutschland R&D Gmk Germany
Mondelez Deutschland Services GmbH & Co. Germany
Mondelez International Genussmittel Gm Germany
Onko Grossroesterei Gmkt Germany
Cadbury Ghana Limite Ghans
Lapworth Commaodities Limite Ghans
Mondelez Hellas Production S.. Greece
Mondelez Hellas S.A Greece
Mondelez Korinthos Production S.. Greece
Mondelez Guatemala, Ltd Guatemale
Landers Centro Americana, Fabricantes de Molinoscl* Coron” S.A. de C.V. Honduras
Mondelez Honduras, S. de R Honduras
Cadbury Trading Hong Kong Lti Hong Kong
Mondelez Hong Kong Limite Hong Kong
Gyori Keksz Kft SARL Hungary
Mondelez Hungaria IP Ki Hungary
Mondelez Hungaria Ki Hungary
C S Business Services (India) Pvt. Limi India
Georges Beverages India Private Limi India
Induri Farm Limited India
KJS India Private Limite: India
Mondelez India Foods Private Limits India
P.T. Cadbury Indones Indonesie
P.T. Cipta Manis Makmt Indonesie
P.T. Kraft Symphoni Indones Indonesie
P.T. Kraft Ultrajaya Indonesi Indonesie
P.T. Mondelez Indones Indonesie
P.T. Mondelez Indonesia Manufacturi Indonesie
P.T. Mondelez Indonesia Tradil Indonesie
Alreford Limited Ireland
Berkeley Re Limitec Ireland
Cadbury Schweppes Ireland Limit Ireland

Cadbury Schweppes Treasury Amel Ireland



Mondeléz International, Inc.

Subsidiaries — 2014

Entity Name Country
Cadbury Schweppes Treasury Internatic Ireland
Cadbury Schweppes Treasury Servi Ireland
Kraft Foods Ireland Intellectual Property L Ireland
Krema Limited Ireland
Mondelez Ireland Limite: Ireland
Mondelez Ireland Production Limite Ireland
Seural Ireland
Sunkist Soft Drinks International Limite Ireland
Trebor (Dublin) Limitec Ireland
Trebor Ireland Limitec Ireland

Greencastle Drinks Limite

Cote ¢ Or Italia S.r.l.

Fattorie Osella S.p.£

Kraft Foods Italia Intellectual Property S.
Mondelez Italia Biscuits Production S.p
Mondelez Italia Production S.r
Mondelez Italia S.r.I

Mondelez Italia Services S.r

Kraft Foods Jamaica Limite

AGF Kanto, Inc.

AGF SP Inc.

AGF Suzuka, Inc

Ajinomoto General Foods, In

Kraft Foods Japan K.k

Meito Adams Company Limite
Mondelez Japan Lt

Mondelez Japan Ltd T!

LLP Jacobs Kazakhst:

Mondelez Kazakhstan LL

Cadbury Kenya Limite:

Dong Suh Foods Corporati

Migabang Limited Compan

SIA Mondelez Latvije

Cadbury Adams Middle East Offshore S.A
Cadbury Adams Middle East S.A.

AB Kraft Foods Lietuve

UAB Mondelez Baltic

UAB Mondelez Lietuva Productic

Kraft Foods Biscuit Financing Luxembourg S

Kraft Foods Financing Luxembourg S

Kraft Foods Luxembourg Se

Ireland/Netherlanc
Italy

Italy

Italy

Italy

Italy

Italy

Italy
Jamaice
Japar

Japar

Japar

Japar

Japar

Japar

Japar

Japar
Kazakhstar
Kazakhstar
Kenya
Korea
Korea
Latvia
Lebanor
Lebanor
Lithuania
Lithuania
Lithuania
Luxembourg
Luxembourg

Luxembourg



Mondeléz International, Inc.
Subsidiaries — 2014

Entity Name Country
Adams Marketing (M) Sdn Bh Malaysia
Cadbury Confectionery Malaysia Sdn. Bl Malaysia
Cadbury Confectionery Sales (M) Sdn. B Malaysia
Kraft Foods Jaya (Malaysia) Sdn B Malaysia
Mondelez Malaysia Sales Sdn. Bl Malaysia
Mondelez Malaysia Sdn. Bh Malaysia
Trebor (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhi Malaysia
Trebor Sales Sdn. Bh Malaysia
Cadbury Mauritius Ltc Mauritius
Corporativo Mondelez, S. en N.C. de C Mexico
KTL S. de R.L.de C.V Mexico
Mondelez Holding, S. de R.L. de C. Mexico
Mondelez Mexico, S. de R.L. de C. Mexico
Productos Mondelez, S. de R.L. de C Mexico
Servicios Intregales Mondelez, S. de R.L. de ( Mexico
Servicios Mondelez, S. de R.L. de C Mexico
Mondelez Maroc S/ Morocco
Springer Schokoladenfabrik (Pty) Limit Namibia
Abades B.V Netherland:
Aztecanana B\ Netherlands
Cadbury CIS B.V Netherland:
Cadbury Enterprises Holdings B. Netherland
Cadbury Holdings B.V Netherlands
Cadbury Netherlands International Holdings B Netherlands
CS Americas Holdings B.\ Netherlands
Gernika, B.V. Netherland:
Kraft Foods Central & Eastern Europe Service E Netherlands
Kraft Foods Cesko Holdings B Netherlands
Kraft Foods Entity Holdings B.\ Netherlands
Kraft Foods Holland Holding B Netherland:
Kraft Foods Intercontinental Netherlands C Netherland
Kraft Foods LA MB Holding B.V. Netherlands
Kraft Foods LA MC B.V. Netherland:
Kraft Foods LA NMB B.V. Netherland:
Kraft Foods LA NVA B.V. Netherland:
Kraft Foods LA VA Holding B.V. Netherland:
Kraft Foods Nederland Biscuit C.' Netherland:
Kraft Foods Nederland Intellectual Property Netherlands
Kraft Foods North America and Asia B. Netherlands
Merola Finance B.V Netherlands
Mondelez Espana Biscuits Holdings B Netherland



Mondeléz International, Inc.
Subsidiaries — 2014

Entity Name Country
Mondelez Nederland B.\ Netherland:
Mondelez Nederland Services B. Netherland:
Mondelez Netherlands RUS Holdings B Netherlands
Nabisco Holdings Il B.V Netherlands

Mondelez New Zealan

Mondelez New Zealand Investmel
Mondelez Nicaragua, S./

Cadbury Nigeria PL(

Freia A/S

Kraft Foods Norge Intellectual Property /
Mondelez Norge A/¢

Mondelez Norge Production A
Mondelez Pakistan Limite

Mondelez Panama, S. de R
Mondelez Peru S.£

Mondelez Philippines, In

Nabisco Philippines Inc

Leemond Investments Sp. z.c

Lu Polska SA

Mondelez Polska Production sp. z.c
Mondelez Polska Sp. z.o.

Mondelez Portugal Iberia Production, S
Mondelez Portugal, Unipessoal Lt
Mondelez Puerto Rico LL!

Mondelez Romania S./

Mon'delez Rus LLC

Mondelez Arabia for Trading LL(
Nabisco Arabia Co. Ltc

Mondelez d.o.o. Beogre

Mondelez Procurement d.o.o. Beog
Cadbury Enterprises Pte. L

Kraft Foods Holdings Singapore Pte. L
Kraft Foods Trading Singapore Pte. L
Kraft Helix Singapore Pte. Lt

Kuan Enterprises Pte. Lt

Mondelez Asia Pacific Pte. Lt
Mondelez Business Services AP Pte
Mondelez Singapore Pte. Li
Symphony Biscuits Holdings Pte. Lt
Taloca (Singapore) Pte Lt

Mondelez European Business Services Centre

New Zealanc
New Zealanc
Nicarague
Nigeria
Norway
Norway
Norway
Norway
Pakistar
Paname
Peru
Philippines
Philippines
Poland
Poland
Poland
Poland
Portugal
Portugal
Puerto Ricc
Romania
Russis
Saudi Arabie
Saudi Arabie
Serbia
Serbia
Singapore
Singapore
Singapore
Singapore
Singapore
Singapore
Singapore
Singapore
Singapore
Singapore

Slovakia



Mondeléz International, Inc.

Subsidiaries — 2014

Entity Name Country
Mondelez Slovakia Holding a. Slovakia
Mondelez Slovakia Intellectual Property s.| Slovakia
Mondelez Slovakia s.r.( Slovakia
Mondelez SR Production s.r. Slovakia
Mondelez, trgovska druzba, d.o.0, Ljubje Slovenia
Cadbury South Africa (Pty) Limite South Africa

Chapele-Humphries Investments (Pty) Limit
Kraft Foods Services South Africa (Pty) L
Mondelez South Africa (Pty) Lt

South Africa LF

Kraft Foods Espana Holdings S.L.

Kraft Foods Espana Intellectual Property S
Mondelez Espana Biscuits Holdings y Campania
Mondelez Espana Commercial, S.L
Mondelez Espana Confectionery Production, ¢
Mondelez Espana Galletas Production, S.I
Mondelez Espana Postres Production, S.;
Mondelez Espana Production, S.L
Mondelez Espana Services, S.L

Mondelez Iberia Holdings, S.L.l

Chapelat Swaziland (Proprietary) Limit
Cadbury (Swaziland) (Pty) Limite

Kraft Foods Sverige Holding A

Kraft Foods Sverige Intellectual Property /
Mondelez Sverige Al

Mondelez Sverige Kaffee A

Mondelez Sverige Production A

Consodri Investments A

Kraft Foods Biscuits Holding Gmb

Kraft Foods Holding (Europa) Gmb

Kraft Foods Intercontinental Schweiz Gm
Kraft Foods Schweiz Holding Gmb
Lambras Holdings AC

Mondelez Europe Gmb

Mondelez Europe Procurement Gm
Mondelez Europe Services Gml

Mondelez International Finance A
Mondelez Schweiz Gmb

Mondelez Schweiz Holding Gmb
Mondelez Schweiz Production Gmt
Mondelez World Travel Retail Gmb

South Africa
South Africa
South Africa
South Africa
Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain

Swaziland

Swaziland/South Afric

Sweder

Sweder

Sweder

Sweder

Sweder

Switzerland
Switzerland
Switzerland
Switzerland
Switzerlanc
Switzerlanc
Switzerlanc
Switzerlanc
Switzerland
Switzerland
Switzerland
Switzerland
Switzerland

Switzerland



Mondeléz International, Inc.

Subsidiaries — 2014

Entity Name Country
Taloca Gmblt Switzerland
Mondelez Taiwan Limite: Taiwan
Cadbury South East Asia Limite Thailand
Mondelez (Thailand) Co., Lt Thailand
Mondelez International (Thailand) Co., L Thailand
Kraft Foods (Trinidad) Unlimite: Trinidad
Kent Gida Maddeleri Sanayii ve Ticaret Anonim St} Turkey

Cadbury South Africa (Holding:
Dirol Cadbury Ukraine SF

LLC Chipsy LYUKS

Private Joint Stock Compar*Mondelez Ukrani”
Mondelez Eastern Europe Middle East & Africe F
Arcadian of Devon Limite:
Brentwick Limited

Cadbury Eight LLF

Cadbury Financial Service
Cadbury Five LLF

Cadbury Four LLF

Cadbury International Limite
Cadbury Limitec

Cadbury New Zealand LL
Cadbury Nine LLF

Cadbury Nominees Limite
Cadbury One LLF

Cadbury Russia Limite

Cadbury Russia Two Lt

Cadbury Schweppes Finance Limi
Cadbury Schweppes Investments
Cadbury Schweppes Overseas Limi
Cadbury Seven LLI

Cadbury Six LLF

Cadbury Ten LLF

Cadbury Three LLI

Cadbury Two LLF

Cadbury UK Limited

Cadbury US Holdings Limite
Chromium Acquisitions Limites
Chromium Assets Limite
Chromium Suchex LLI

Chromium Suchex No. 3 LL

Craven Keiller

UK/South Africa
Ukraine
Ukraine

Ukraine

United Arab Emirate

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom



Entity Name

Mondeléz International, Inc.
Subsidiaries — 2014

Country

Ernest Jackson & Co Limite

Galactogen Products Limite

Green & Blacl's Limited

Hesdin Investments Limite

Kraft Foods Investment Holdings UK Limite
Kraft Foods Middle East & Africa Ltc

Kraft Foods UK Intellectual Property Limite
Kraft Foods UK IP & Production Holdings Lt
Kraft Russia Limitec

L. Rose & Co., Limitec

Mondelez UK Biscuit Financing Lt
Mondelez UK Confectionery Production Limit
Mondelez UK Holdings & Services Limite
Mondelez UK Limited

Mondelez UK Production Limite

Mondelez UK R&D Limited

Reading Scientific Services Limite

Ritz Biscuit Company Limite:

Schweppes Limite

Somerdale Limite«

The Kenco Coffee Company Limite

The Old Leo Company Limite

Trebor Bassett Holdings Limite

Trebor Bassett Limite

Trebor International Limite:

Vantas International Limite

Yellowcastle Limitec

B2N Corporatior

Back to Nature Food Company, LL
Cadbury Schweppes US Finance L
Callard & Bowse-Suchard, Inc
Intercontinental Brands LL!
Intercontinental Great Brands LL
KFI-USLLC IX

KFI-USLLC VI

KFI-USLLC Vil

KFI-USLLC XI

KFI-USLLC Xl

KFI-USLLC XIV

KFI-USLLC XVI

Kraft Foods Asia Pacific Services LL

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United State:
United State:
United State:
United State:
United State:
United State:
United State:
United State:
United State:
United State:
United State:
United State:
United State:
United State:



Entity Name

Mondeléz International, Inc.

Subsidiaries — 2014

Country

Kraft Foods Biscuit Brands Kuan LL

Kraft Foods Brentwick LLC

Kraft Foods Holdings LLC

Kraft Foods International Beverages LI

Kraft Foods International Biscuit Holdings LL
Kraft Foods International Europe Holdings LI
Kraft Foods International Holdings Delaware L
Kraft Foods International Services Ll

Kraft Foods Latin America Holding LL¢

Kraft Foods R & D, Inc

Kraft Foods Taiwan Holdings LL!

Mondeé&z BTN Holdings LLC

Mondeéz Global LLC

Mondeéz International Holdings LL(
Mondeéz International Service Holdings LL
Mondeéz International Service LL¢
Mondelez International SM, LL!

Mondelez Suchex Holdings LL

Mondelez Thrive Investment LL

Nabisco International Limite

Nabisco Royal Argentina LL!

NISA Holdings LLC

NSA Holdings LLC

Redbird Services LL(

Suchex IV LLC

C.A.S. Uruguay S.A

Mondelez Uruguay S.#

Cadbury Adams, S./

Cadbury Beverages de Venezuela
Compania Venezolana de Conservas (
Covenco Holding C.A

Kraft Foods Venezuela, C. ,

Promotora Cadbury Adams, C.

Tevalca Holdings C.A

Cadbury Schweppes Zimbabwe (Private) Limi

United State:
United State:
United State:
United State:
United State:
United State:
United State:
United State:
United State:
United State:
United State:
United State:
United State:
United State:
United State:
United State:
United State:
United State:
United State:
United State:
United State:
United State:
United State:
United State:
United State:
Uruguay
Uruguay
Venezuel:
Venezuel:
Venezuel:
Venezuel:
Venezuele
Venezuele
Venezuele

Zimbabwe



EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-3 (File No. 333-194330) and on
Form S-8 (No. 333-197088, 333-184178, 333-183993, 333-183992, 333-182066, 333-174665, 333-165736, 333-133559, 333-
125992 and 333-71266) of Mondeléz International, Inc. of our reports dated February 20, 2015 relating to the consolidated financial

statements, financial statement schedule and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, which appear in this Form
10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chicago, lllinois
February 20, 2015



EXHIBIT 31.1

Certifications
I, Irene B. Rosenfeld, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Mondeléz International, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a

material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of,
and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’'s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 20, 2015

/ s/ IRENE B. ROSENFELD
Irene B. Rosenfeld
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2

Certifications
I, Brian T. Gladden, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Mondeléz International, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a

material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of,
and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’'s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 20, 2015

/s/ BRIAN T. GLADDEN
Brian T. Gladden

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATIONS OF
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Irene B. Rosenfeld, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Mondeléz International, Inc. (“Mondeléz International”), certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that Mondeléz
International’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2014, fully complies with the requirements of
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that the information contained in Mondeléz International’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K fairly presents in all material respects Mondeléz International’s financial condition and results of
operations.

/ s/ IRENE B. ROSENFELD

Irene B. Rosenfeld

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
February 20, 2015

I, Brian T. Gladden, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Mondeléz International, Inc. (“Mondeléz International”),
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that Mondeléz
International’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2014, fully complies with the requirements of
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that the information contained in Mondeléz International’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K fairly presents in all material respects Mondeléz International’s financial condition and results of
operations.

/s/ BRIAN T. GLADDEN
Brian T. Gladden

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
February 20, 2015

A signed original of these written statements required by Section 906, or other document authenticating, acknowledging, or
otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic version of this written statement required by
Section 906, has been provided to Mondeléz International, Inc. and will be retained by Mondeléz International, Inc. and furnished to
the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



